
AA04249

---------------------69 
1 yro? 

2 A. No. Because she told 1112 on the phone she 
3 was going to care mmy tilres . I knew sarething had to be 

4 going on at the house, but I didn't know .mat was going 
5 on. 

6 Q, Did you think he was 1112ssing arourrl with 
7 other 1112n? 
8 A. I sensed it, but I didn't know for sure, so 
9 I couldn't keep throwing it in her face when I was talking 

10 to her. I asked her straight out, if you' re dating 
11 sarebody let rre know. She said, no, I'm not dating 
12 nol:xxiy. r 'm not seeing nolx:dy. I don't want nolx:dy else. 
: 3 That was her exact words to :rre. 
14 Q. Now in the State's opening statement they 
15 talked al:out sare letters you sent to her fran jail. Did 
16 you send her letters fran jail? 
17 A. fully. 
18 Q. The State referred to thing that you said in 
19 those letters. What kind of things did you say to her? 
20 A. I asked her how she was doing? How the kids 

21 were doing. I told her I loved her, I missed her. I told 
22 her she rreant the wrld to nE. 

Were those things true? 
Yes, sir, very llD.lch, 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 
A. 
Q, Did you also say degrading things to her in 

69 

l those letters? 
2 A. Like the last two letters I put sare bad 
3 words in there. 
4 Q. 
5 A. 

6 around --
7 Q. 
8 A. 
9 Q. 

10 A. 
11 Q. 
12 easy? 
13 A. 

14 Q, 

15 A. 

Did you call her a slut? 
I told her if she was out there rressing 

Jarres, did you call her a slut? 
Yes, I did. 
Did you call her a whore? 
I wrote that, yes. 
Did you ask her questions like, are you 

Yes. 
Why did you say these things to her? 
Because so mmy things were haf:1i:,ening while 

16 I was in jail. I was very depressed, upset, lonely, hurt 
17 devastated. She once told rre on the phone that she wuld 
18 never aban:lon rre in Las Vegas. 
19 Q. Jarres, did you see her on August 30th, 
20 1995? 

21 

22 

23 

24 
25 d3.y? 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Where did you see her? 
At the city court house. 
Did she care to your court appearance that 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

s battery? 
6 A. 
7 Q. 

Yes, sir. 

Did she testify against you? 
No, sir. 

Did you plead guilty that day to dcnestic 

Yes, sir. 
D:) you know on August 30th or August 31st 

s that you i.oold be released fran custody? 
9 A, Absolutely not. 

10 Q. But you were released fran custo:iy, ·.eren' t 
:: you? 

:2 A. Yes, sir. 

13 Q. And when yoo were released fran custody, 
11 what did you do? 
IS A. I walked fran downtown to around Bonanza nd 

16 I.arrb. 
17 Q. 8™ far is that, if you know, and hcr.1 long 
18 did it take you to walk out there? 
19 A. Fran around Las Vegas Boulevard, and Bonanza 
20 and Larrb, it ..oold take about 45 minutes, 50 minutes. 
21 Q. Why did you walk out there? 
22 A. I was happy to be out. I just wantec. to see 
23 rtrJ girl and rtrJ children. 
24 Q. Where were you going? 
25 A. I didn't go hare at first. 

1 

2 

3 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

4 Apartrrents? 

Where did you go? 
To Vera Johnson project apartments. 
What did you do there at the Vera Joh.,son 

5 A. Went over there and just talked to a couple 
6 of people. 
7 Q. Who did you talk to? 
8 A. Sare 111:lll over there narre:i Ben and a couple 
9 other people. 

10 Q. He,.,; far is Vera Johnson carplex fran where 
11 you lived at the Ballerina Sunrise place, if you knew? 
12 A. It's only, like, 2 blocks, so approxillately 
13 it wculd take like probably 15 minutes to get fran tilere 
14 to hare. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Q, 

A. 
Q. 

Did you oorraw a bicycle there? 
Yes, I did. 

Once you had the bicycle what did you do? 
A. I went hare. 

19 Q. Now when you went hare, this is the hare at 
20 839 North I.anb? 

21 

22 

23 !),bra? 
24 

25 

A. Yes, sir. 
Q. This is the trailer that you shared with 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Did you expect her to be there? 

71 

72 

STATE vs. CHAPPELL 3/19/2007 

Docket 77002   Document 2019-19268



AA04250

_______________ ,_____ _____ 73 

1 A. No, I did not, because I called twice tefore 

2 I i.€nt hare. 

3 Q. 

' ' A. 
Where did you call fran, if you recall? 

I called fran downtown, and I called fran 

5 Vera Johnson Apart:rrents . 

6 Q. Nob:xiy answered? 
7 

8 

A, 

Q. 
9 you do? 

~O A. 

No, sir. 

So you arrived at the trailer and what do 

I put the bike on the side of the house. 

11 Q, Janes, I'm sorry, but your hands are in 

:2 front of your. nouth and the jury needs to hear this. 

13 A. I put the bike on the side of house and went 

14 to the window. 

15 Q. Janes, I'm going to interrupt you for a 

16 second and show you a picture again, State's Exhibit 1, 
17 which is a picture of the trailer. Is one of those 

18 windaws there where you ~t to? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Is one of these win:lM where you entered 

21 the place? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. l·fuy did you go into your place throt.,gh the 

24 window? 

25 A. I had been through the window through rrany 

of our residences in Arizona and Michigan, and I didn't 

2 figure nothing was wrong with that. 
3 Q. Did you have a key to get inside to place? 

4 

5 

A. 
Q. 

6 happened? 

1 A. 

I used to, but I lost it. 

You started clirrbing in the window and what 

I started cl:irrbir.g through the wincb,i and 

73 

8 cebbie walked in the doorway and she asked rre why didn't I 

9 !mock at the door. I said I didn' t knw you were hare. I 

1 o said I just called, why didn't yoo ans\o.'er the phone. She 

11 said I just got here. 
12 Q. CO you know what time this is? 
13 A. No, sir. I wasn't paying attention to the 
14 tine. I know I had tote back downtown at 1:00 o'clock. 
15 Q. So you get in the window, right? 

16 A. Yes, sir. 

17 Q. What happens? You get into the window and 

18 do you guys talk or what? 

19 A. Yeah, we talked, 

20 Q. What else did you do? 
21 A. I got on my knees in front of her and she 
22 was sitting on the couch. I asked her what had she been 
23 doing while I was in jail. She said working full tirre and 
24 watching the kids. 

25 Q. What happened next? 
74 

1 A. We talked about a couple of things that was 

2 said over the phone. She told rre about a couple of tilings 
3 that her friends did while I was in jail. 

4 Q. Were you glad to see her? 

s A. Absolutely. 

6 

7 

$ 

~ 

10 

11 

:2 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Did you think anything was okay? 

Yes. 

Hw long did you all talk? 

About 20 minutes. 

What did you all do then? 

We kissed a couple of times. 

Then what happened? 

We started taking each other's clothes off. 

: 4 We tegan to have sex on the couch. 

15 Q. Where was the couch? 

16 A, Excuse me? 

17 Q. Where was the couch where 1,12re you having 

IE sex? 

19 A, It was along the wall right at the corner of 

2C the kitchen. 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

It was not in the master l:edrcait? 

No. 

I guess it had been a long tirre s~ you 

24 had sex? 

25 A. A very long ti.Ire. 

Q. But you had sex with her probably hundreds 
2 of thousands of tines with her tefore? 

3 A. A million, billions of tirres. 
4 Q. And you loved her? 

5 A. Extr5rely. She was the world to rre. 
6 Q. What happened? 
1 A. rfuen I entered her her vagina was all loose 
8 and wet and srrelly and wasn't nothing like it used to 

9 1::€. 
10 Q. l·;tat did you think? vJiat did that irean to 

11 you? 

12 A. I i.Jmroiately thought that she had been 

13 rressing around on n:e. 
14 Q. You thought she was rressing aroi.:nd with 

15 other nEn? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What did you do? 

A. I got up. I graooed her and asked her who 

she had been with. She said nolx:dy. She said I swe.ar to 

Go:i on my grandrother grave I ain't been with nobody. 
That was her exact words. 

Q. Did you telieve her? 
A. Absolutely not. 

Q, So what do you do then? 

75 

25 A. I walked away fran her and started walking 
76 
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1 is facing the death penalty even though ( 1) there is no finding by any jury that he acted with 

2 premeditation and deliberation; and (2) there is no aggravating circumstance other than a 

3 felony murder aggravating circumstance of NRS 200.033(4) or NRS 200.033(13). Under 

4 explained in McConnell, this situation fails to narrow application of the death penalty and 

5 is invalid under Zant, 462 U.S. at 877, Lowenfield v. Phelps, 484 U.S. 231, 241-46 (1988) 

6 and the Nevada Constitution. Accordingly, the aggravating circumstance is invalid and there 

7 are no remaining aggravating circumstances, so the sentence of death must be vacated. 

8 Chappell' s sentence of death must also be vacated because the State was permitted 

9 to divide the three felony murder aggravating circumstances by using two as the basis for 

10 felony murder and one as the basis of an aggravating circumstance. In McConnell, this Court 

11 held: "We further prohibit the State from selecting among multiple felonies that occur during 

12 'an indivisible course of conduct having one principal criminal purpose' and using one to 

13 establish felony murder and another to support an aggravating circumstance." McConnell, 

14 120 Nev. at 1069-70, 102 P.3d at 624-25. Although the State did not divide its aggravating 

15 circumstances in response to McConnell, as known by the fact that McConnell had not been 

16 decided at the time the State performed its division, the result is the same: the State used 

17 some felony-murder circumstances to establish felony murder and used an additional felony-

18 murder circumstance to establish an aggravating circumstance. This result is not permitted 

19 under McConnell, so the aggravating circumstance here is invalid and must be vacated. 

20 P. 

21 

The Judement Must Be Reversed Because of Cumulative Error. 

Chappell' s constitutional rights to a fair trial, a fair penalty hearing, due process, 

22 confrontation, cross-examination, and his right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment 

23 were denied by the multiple occurs which occurred during his trial. U.S. Const. amend. V, 

24 VI, VIII, XIV; Nevada Const. art. I, Sec. 3, 6 and 8; art. IV, Sec. 21. 

25 "The cumulative effect of errors may violate a defendant's constitutional right to a fair 

26 trial even though errors are harmless individually." Butler v. State, 120 Nev. 879, 102 P.3d 

27 71, 85 (2004); U.S. v. Necoechea, 986 F.2d 1273, 1282 (9th Cir. 1993) (although individual 

28 errors may not separately warrant reversal, "their cumulative effect may nevertheless be so 
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1 prejudicial as to require reversal"). 

2 Chappell submits that the majority of the errors presented here are stand alone claims 

3 with sufficient prejudice to warrant reversal. If this Court concludes that no single issue, 

4 however, warrants reversal of his conviction and sentencing of death, the cumulative effect 

5 of the multiple errors which occurred before and during the first guilt phase and second 

6 penalty hearing warrant reversal of his conviction and sentence of death on federal and state 

7 constitutional grounds. 

8 "The Supreme Court has clearly established that the combined effect of multiple trial 

9 errors violates due process where it renders the resulting criminal trial fundamentally unfair." 

10 Parle v. Runnels, 505 F.3d 922,927 (9th Cir. 2007) (citing Chambers v. Mississippi, 410 U.S. 

11 284 (1973); Montana v. Egelhoff, 518 U.S. 37, 53 (1996)). "The cumulative effect of 

12 multiple errors can violate due process even where no single error rises to the level of a 

13 constitutional violation or would independently warrant reversal." Id. ( citing Chambers, 410 

14 U.S. at 290 n.3). "[W]here the combined effect of individually harmless errors renders a 

15 criminal defense 'far less persuasive than it might [otherwise] have been,' the resulting 

16 conviction violates due process." Id. (quoting Chambers, 410 U.S. at 294, 302, 303). 

17 Reversal here should be granted because of the cumulative errors. In making this argument, 

18 Chappell incorporates each of the claims raised in this direct appeal from the original 

19 judgment and in the appeal from the order of the district court denying relief on the guilt 

20 phase issues presented in his post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus. 

21 VII. CONCLUSION 

22 Chappell respectfully submits that both his judgment of conviction and sentence of 

23 death must be vacated for the reasons set forth herein. 

24 Respectfully submitted this/1'J-ay ofMa , 2008. 

25 

26 

27 

28 
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I hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief, and to the best of my knowledge, 

4 information, and belief, it is not frivolous or interposed for any improper purpose. I further 

5 certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in 

6 particular NRAP 28( e ), which requires every assertion in the brief regarding matters in the 

7 record to be supported by appropriate references to the record on appeal. I understand that 

8 I may be subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying brief is not in conformity 

9 with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure. 
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

JAM S MONTELL CHAPPELL, 
Appel ant, 

vs. 
THE TATE OF NEVADA, 
Res ndent. 

STA E OF NEVADA, ss. 

Supreme Court No. 49478 

District Court Case No. C131341 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE 

I, Tra ie Lindeman, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of 
Neva a, do hereby certify that the following is a full, true and correct copy of the Judgment in this 
matt r. 

JUDGMENT 

The ourt being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered, adjudged and decreed, 
as fo lows: "ORDER the judgment of conviction AFFIRMED." 

ent, as quoted above, entered this 2oth day of October, 2009. 

JUDGMENT 

The ourt being fully advised in the premises and the law, it is now ordered; adjudged and decreed, 
as fo lows: "Rehearing denied." 

, ' 

ent, as quoted above, entered this 16th day of December, 2009. 

I 
I I .' / . , 

' ' 
'I \ , I < / 

,; 
. / ; _I • \ , 
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1 0001 rF!LED 
JUN 2 2 2010 

JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL 
2 BACK NO. 52338 

Ely State Prison 
3 P.O. Box 1989 ·~ Ely NV 89301 
4 PETITIONER IN PROPER PERSON1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

* * * 

9 JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL, CASE NO. C 131341 
DEPT. NO. d-tt ✓ 

10 Petitioner, 

11 vs. 

12 WARDEN OF ELY STATE PRISON, 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

and TFIE ST A TE OF NEV ADA, 

Respondent. 

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS 
(POST CONVICTION) 

DATE: ULAv'le.- o<O., ;?.o(O 
TIME: 9. :no 11r:'l 

1. Name of institution and county in which you are presently imprisoned or v✓here and 

19 how you are presently restrained of your liberty: Ely State Prison, White Pine County, Ely 

20 Nevada 

21 2. Name and location of court which entered the judgment of conviction under attack: 
-- - - - - -

22 Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County, Las Vegas Nevada 

23 

24 

25 

26 

3. Date of judgement of conviction: 5/10/2007 

4. Case number: C 131341 

5. (a) Length of sentence: Death 

27 'Prepared \Vith the assistance of JoNell Tho1nas, Deputy Special Public Defender. A full 
review of the record was not conducted prior to filing thts Petition as it is anticipated that an 

28 attorney will be appointed and new counsel will be filing a supplemental petition with additional 
issues and points and authorities in support thereof. RE.CElVED 

JUN 2 2 20\0 
(1.8f(K Of lHi cou«l' 

---------------~--------------------------___. 
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-------------- --- ------

1 (b) If sentence is death, state any date upon which execution is scheduled: Sentence 

2 stayed pending appeal 

3 6. Are you presently serving a sentence for a conviction other than the conviction under 

4 attack in this motion? Yes ___ No _X~X~_ 

5 If ''yes", list crime, case number and sentence being served at this time: NIA 

6 7. Nature of offense involved in conviction being challenged: Burglary, Robbery with 

7 use of a Deadly Weapon, and Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon 

8 8. What was your plea? (Check one) 

9 (a) Not guilty XX 

10 
-- -

(b) Guilty 

( c) Guilty but mentally ill 

( d) Nolo contendere 

11 

12 

13 9. If you entered a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill to one count of an indictment 

I 4 or information, and a plea of not guilty to another count of an indictment or information, or if 

15 a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill was negotiated, give details: NI A 

16 10. If you were found guilty after a plea of not guilty, was the finding made by: (check 

17 one) NIA 

18 (a) Jury XX 

(b) Judge without a jury 

11. Did you testify at the trial? Yes XX No __ _ 

12. Did you appeal from the judgement of conviction? Yes XXX 

13. If you did appeal, answer the following: 

(a) Name of court: Nevada Supreme Court 

(b) Case number or citation: 49478 

( c) Result: Conviction and Sentence Affirmed 

(d) Date of result: 1012012009 

( e) Issues raised: 

No --

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 (i) Whether Chappell's Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed 

2 

I 
' 

Ii 

~----------------'-------------------------------
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Because The Jury Was Not Properly Instructed On The Elements OfThe Capital Offense 

(ii) Whether Chappell's Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed 

Because The Jury Was Not Properly Instrµcted On The Elements Of Felony Murder 

(iii) Whether Chappell's Sentence of Death Must Be Vacated Because NRS 

177 .055(3) Is Unconstitutional 

(iv) Whether Chappell Was Entitled To Review By The DistrictAttome:y's Death 

Review Committee 

(v) Whether Chappell's Death Sentence Is Unconstitutional Because of the Trial 

Court Failed to Dismiss Jurors For Cause Who Would Always Impose A Sentence of 
-~--,____,,.._~-- ---- - ---_ ----- -· -- - . - ·- - - - - -- - -

Death 

(vi) Whether Chappell's Conviction Is Unconstitutional Because The State Was 

Permitted To Introduce Unreliable Hearsay Evidence During The Penalty Hearing In 

Support of The Aggravating Circumstance and as Other Matter Evidence 

( vii) Whether The District Court Erroneously Admitted Presentence Investigation 

Reports 

(viii) Whether The District Court Allowed Improper Victim Impact Testimony 

(ix) Whether The District Court Erred In Allowing Admission ofChappell's Prior· 

Testimony 

(x) Whether The State Committed Prosecutorial Misconduct By Making 

Arguments Based Upon Comparative Worth Arguments 

(xi) Whether The State Committed Extensive Prosecutorial Misconduct 

(xii) Whether The District Court Failed To Instruct The Jury That The State Was 

Required To Establish Beyond On Beyond a Reasonable Doubt That 1v1itigating 

Circumstances Did Not Outweigh Aggravating Circumstances 

(xiii) Whether The Jury's Failure to Find Mitigating Circumstances Was Clearly 

Erroneous and Requires That the Death Sentence Be Vacated 

(xiv) Whether There Is Insufficient Evidence To Support The Sexual Assault 

Aggravator 

3 
• 

I 

I 

i' I 
,. 

• 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

-
(xv) Whether The Sexual Assault Aggravating Circumstance Is Invalid Under 

McConnell v. State 

(xvi) Whether The Judgment Must Be Reversed Because of Cumulative Error. 

14. If you did not appeal, explain briefly why you did not: NIA 

15. Other than a direct appeal from the judgement of conviction and sentence, have you 

6 previously filed any petitions, applications or motions with respect to this judgement in any 

7 court, state or federal? Yes XX No __ 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

16. If your answer to No. 15 was "yes," give the following information: 

(a) as to any first petition, application or motion: 
--- --.- - ---- --- ~- ~ - - - - - -- --- -- ~-- - - - -

( 1) Name of court: Nevada Supreme Court 

(2) Nature of proceeding: Direct Appeal from trial (JOC 12/31/1996) 

(3) Grounds raised: 

(i) The trial court abused its discretion by allowing the State to introduce evidence 

of prior domestic batteries by Chappell when that evidence was not relevant. 

(ii) The trial court abused its discretion by allo,ving state witnesses to testify 

regarding the state of mind of Panos, thereby improperly impeaching Chappell's 

credibility. 

(iii) The trial court abused its discretion by allowing the State to introduce 

testimony regarding a shoplifting incident that occurred the day after the killing. 

(iv) The trial court abused its discretion by allowing the State to introduce 

character evidence that Chappell was unemployed and a chronic thief and this evidence 

was admitted without the scrutiny of a pre-trial Petrocelli hearing. 

(v) The cumulative effect of the trial court's evidentiary rulings was to allow the 

State to introduce overwhelming character evidence at trial, thereby denying Chappell his • 

due process rights to a fair trial. 

(vi) The State discriminated against the defendant by u1s1ng peremptory 

challenges to selectively exclude the only two black persons qualified for the jury pool. 

(vii) The State failed to prove beyond a reasonable doubt the charges of burglary, 

4 
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-
robbery, and first degree murder. 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

(viii) The trial court committed reversible error by denying defendant's motion 

to strike the Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty. 

(ix) The prosecutor committed misconduct during the closing argument by 

attacking the defendant's post arrest silence. 

( 4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or rnotion? 

7 Yes XX No --
(5) Result: conviction and sentence affirmed 

(6) Date of result: 10/30/1998 
-

8 

9 

IO (7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such 

11 result: Chappell v. State, 114 Nev. 1404, 972 P.2d 838 (1998) 

12 (b) as to any second petition, application or motion, give the same information: 

13 (1) Name of court: United States Supreme Court 

14 (2) Nature of proceedings: Petition for Writ of Certiorari 

15 (3) Grounds raised: 

16 (i) The state discriminated against petitioner by using peremptory challenges to 

17 selectively exclude the only two black persons qualified for the jury pool 

18 ( 4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? 

19 Yes No XX 

20 ( 5) Result: Denied 

21 ( 6) Date of result: October 4, 1999 

22 (7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such 

23 result: Chappell v. Nevada, 528 U.S. 853 ( 1999) 

24 ( c) As to any third or subsequent additional applications or motions, giv1e the same 

25 information as above. 

26 

27 

28 

(c) as to any third petition, application or motion, give the same information: 

( 1) Name of court: Eighth Judicial District Court 

(2) Nature of proceeding: Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) 

5 

11 
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1 

2 

-
(3) Ground(s) raised: 

(i) Trial counsel was ineffective in failing to call witnesses to testify on behalf of 

3 Chappell 

4 (ii) Trial counsel failed to timely object to the system of jury selection that systematically 

5 excluded African Americans and wherein African Americans are under represented. 

6 

7 

(iii) Trial counsel failed to object to unconstitutional and improper jury instructions. 

(iv) Trial counsel failed to object to numerous instances of improper closing argument 

8 at the trial. 

9 (v) Trial counsel failed to make contemporaneous objections on valid issues thereby 
-

10 precluding meaningful appellate review. 

11 (vi) Appellate counsel failed to raise on direct appeal that a number of jury instructions 

12 given to the jury during the trial hearing were unconstitutional and improper. 

13 (vii) Appellate counsel failed to raise the use of overlapping aggravating circumstances 

14 on direct appeal. 

15 ( viii) Appellate counsel failed to raise the issue of improper closing argument on direct 

16 appeal 

17 ( 4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? 

18 Yes XX No --

19 (5) Result: The district court denied the petition as to the trial phase issues and granted 

20 the petition as to the sentencing phase iss~es; ordered a new sentencing hearing 

21 

22 

(6) Date of result: April 2, 2004 

(7) ·If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered·pursuant to such 

23 result: June 3, 2004 

24 

25 

26 

( d) as to any fourth petition, application or motion, give the same information 

(1) Name of court: Nevada Supreme Court 

(2) Nature of proceeding: The State filed an appeal from the district court's order for a 

27 new sentencing hearing after the post conviction hearing. Petitioner/Defendant Chappell filed 

28 a cross-appeal from the denial of a new trial after the post conviction hearing. 

6 

~--- ---·--··----- . 
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1 

2 

-
(3) Grounds raised: 

-

3 (4) Did you receive an evidentiary hearing on your petition, application or motion? 

4 Yes No XXX 

5 (5) Result: The Nevada Supreme Court affirmed the district court's decision to deny a 

6 new trial and grant a new sentencing hearing 

7 

8 

(6) Date of result: April 7, 2006 

(7) If known, citations of any written opinion or date of orders entered pursuant to such 

9 result: Case No. 43493 
-

10 (t) Did you appeal to the highest state or federal court having jurisdiction, the result or 

11 action taken on any petition, application or motion? 

12 

13 

14 

. 15 

16 

17 

18 

( 1) Direct appeal from trial and first penalty hearing: Yes No __ 

Citation or date of decision: ---------

(2) Direct appeal from second penalty hearing Yes 

Citation or date of decision: 

(3) Third petition, application or motion? Yes 

Citation or date of decision: 

No 

No 

--

-----------------
( e) If you did not appeal from the adverse action on any petition, application or motion, 

19 explain briefly why you did not. (You must relate specific facts in response to this question. 

20 Your response may be included on paper which is 8 ½ by 11 inches attached to the petition. 

21 Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) N/ A 

22 17. I-fas any ground being raised in this petition been previously presented to this or any 

23 other court by way of petition for habeas corpus, motion, application or any other post-

24 conviction proceeding? Yes: XX NO: __ _ 

25 If yes, identify: Chappell incorporates all claims raised in his previous post conviction 

26 petition concerning the guilt phase of his trial and the guilt phase issues of his first direct appeal 

27 18. If any of the grounds listed in Nos. 23(a), (b), (c) and (d), or listed on any additional 

28 pages you have attached, were not previously presented in any other court, state or fi~deral, list 

7 
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- -
1 briefly what grounds were not so presented, and give your reasons for not presenting them. (You 

2 must relate specific facts in response to this question. Your response may be included on paper 

3 which is 8 ½ by 11 inches attached to the petition. Your response may not exceed five 

4 handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(a) Ineffective assistance of original trial counsel - including but not limited to, 

failure to properly prepare Chappell for his testimony at trial (which was also used 

against him during his second penalty trial), and failure to object to questions implicating 

Chappell 1s right to remain silent, and other issues to be addressed following the 

appointment of counsel. 

(b) Ineffective assistance of original appellate counsel 

( c) Ineffective assistance of penalty phase trial counsel - including but notlimited 

to failure to present expert testimony on the fact that semen may be secreted without 

ejaculation, which was necessary to confront the testimony of Detective James Vaccaro; 

failure to investigate and call as witnesses court personnel who could have testified that 

Chappell would not have had the opportunity to meet with Panos and threaten her during 

court proceedings - as alleged by the State at the penalty trial; failure to object to the 

ad1nission of two PSI reports on statutory and constitutional grounds, including the 

statement from Panos's mother that "The SOB does not deserve to live; 11 failure to object 

to victim impact evidence on the ground that no notice, under SCR 250, was provided of 

such testimony from non-family members; failure to object to prosecutorial misconduct; 

failure to object to a comparative value or comparative worth argument; failure to object 

to an argu1nent on the role of mitigating circumstances; and failure to object to the jury 

instruction on Nevada's weighing equation and failure to proffer a correct instruction;. 

( d) Ineffective assistance of penalty phase appellate counsel 

( e) The conviction for first-degree murder is unconstitutional because the jury was 

not properly instructed on the elements of first-degree murder. 

( f) The conviction for first-degree murder is unconstitutional because the jury was 

not properly instructed on felony-murder. 

8 

------··-----····-------------------------------------------i 
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- -- -----------------------------~ 

-
1 These issues were not raised previously as this is the first post conviction proceeding concerning 

2 the second penalty trial. 

3 19. Are you filing this petition more than 1 year following the filing of the judgement of 

4 conviction or the filing of a decision on direct appeal? Yes: _ No: XX 

5 If yes, state briefly the reasons for the delay. (You must relate specific facts in response 

6 to this question. Your response may be included on paper which is 8 ½ by 11 inches attached 

7 to the petition. Your response may not exceed five handwritten or typewritten pages in length.) 

8 20. Do you have any petition or appeal now pending in any court, either state or federal, 

9 as to the judgement under attack? Yes __ No XX 

10 

11 

If yes, state what court and the case number: NIA 

21. Give the name of each attorney who represented you in the proceeding resulting in 

12 your conviction and on direct appeal: 

13 Trial and first direct appeal: Clark County Public Defender's Office: Howard Brooks, 

14 Michael Miller, Morgan Harris, Kedric Bassett, and Will Ewing 

Post Conviction Proceedings: David Schieck 15 

16 Second Penalty Hearing and appeal: Clark County Special Public Defender's Office: 

17 David Schieck, Clark Patrick, and JoNell Thomas 

18 22. Do you have any future sentences to serve after you complete the sentence imposed 

19 by the judgement under attack? Yes __ 

20 to be served, if you know: N/A 

No XX If yes, specify where and when it is 

21 23. State concisely every ground on which you claitn that you are being held unlawfully. 

22 Sutnmarize briefly the facts supporting each ground. If necessary you may attach pages stating 

23 additional grounds and facts supporting same. 

I 

I. 
:, 

24 (a) Ground one: I was denied my rights under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments as , I. 

25 I did not receive due process of law or effective assistance of counsel at trial and at the first 

26 penalty hearing, including but not limited to 

27 

28 

~--- ------------- -

(i) failure to properly prepare Chappell for his testimony at trial (which was also 

used against him during his second penalty trial), and 

9 

11 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

- -
(ii) failure to object to questions implicating Chappell's right to remain silent 

(iii) The conviction for first-degree murder is unconstitutional because the jury 

was not properly instructed on the elements of first-degree murder. 

(iv) The conviction for first-degree murder is unconstitutional because the jury 

was not properly instructed on felony-murder. 

(v) any other issues to be addressed following the appointment of counsel. 

I am indigent and do not understand the law and need counsel appointed to help me file 

8 a supplemental petition with additional issues and points and authorities and supporting facts. 

9 (b) Ground two: I was denied my rights under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments 
-

1 O as I did not receive due process of law or effective assistance of counsel on direct appeal from 

11 the first trial concerning the guilt phase of the trial.. 

12 (i) issues to be addressed following the appointment of counsel 

13 I am indigent and do not understand the law and need counsel appointed to help me file 

14 a supplemental petition with additional issues and points and authorities and supporting facts. 

15 (c) Ground three: I was denied my rights under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments 

16 as I did not receive due process of law for effective assistance of counsel at the second penalty 

17 hearing, including but not limited to: 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

(i) failure to present expert testimony on the fact that semen may be secreted 

without ejaculation, which was necessary to confront the testimony of Detective James 

Vaccaro; 

(ii) failure to investigate and call as witnesses court personnel who could have 

testifie•d that Chappell ,vould not have had the opportunity to 1neet with Panos and 

threaten her during court proceedings - as alleged by the State at the penalty trial; 

(iii) failure to object to the admission of two PSI reports on statutory and 

constitutional grounds, including the statement from Panos's mother that "The SOB does 

not deserve to live; 11 

(iv) failure to object to victim impact evidence on the ground that no notice, under 

SCR 250, was provided of such testimony from non-family members; 

10 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

• -
(v) failure to object to prosecutorial misconduct; 

(vi) failure to object to a comparative value or comparative worth argument; 

(vii) failure to object to an argument on the role of mitigating circumstances; and 

(viii) failure to object to the jury instruction on Nevada's weighing equation and 

failure to proffer a correct instruction;. 

(ix) any other issues to be addressed following the appointment of counsel 

I am indigent and do not understand the law and need counsel appointed to help me file 

8 a supplemental petition with additional issues and points and authorities and supporting facts. 

9 (d) Ground four: I was denied my rights under the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments 

IO as I did not receive due process of law or effective assistance of counsel on appeal from the 

11 second penalty hearing. 

12 (i) issues to be addressed following the appointment of counsel 

13 I am indigent and do not understand the law and need counsel appointed to help me file 

14 a supplemental petition with additional issues and points and authorities and supporting facts. 

15 WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays that the court grant Petitioner relief to which he may be 

16 entitled in this proceeding; and pursuant to NRS 34.820 moves this Court for an Order to appoint 

17 counsel to assist Petitioner in these proceedings. 

18 EXECUTED at Ely State Prison on 0V.\flf., 80? J..o ( 0 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

E State Prison 
P.O. Box 1989 
Ely NV 89301 
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2 

3 

-
VERIFICATION 

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he is the Petitioner nmned in the 

4 foregoing petition and knows the contents thereof; that the pleading is true of his own 

5 knowledge, except as to those matters stated on information and belief, and as to such matters 

6 he believes them to be true. 
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8 
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10 
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13 
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15 
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28 

y State Prison 
.0. Box 1989 

Ely NV 89301 
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05/03/2007 15:49 
• 7024862875 

-
COURT SERVICES 

PAGE 01/07 

- t+-s-s--c..rz, 3 
sOIJTtfl!RH couulfto 

Jim Gibbol'ls 
G¢WllnOI" 

PhlNip A. Galeoto 
Diredor 

John Allen Goru;.~• 
C/'lief 

Division of Parole and Probation 

Amended PrlM.lltence bwe&tiption Report 
May~:2917 

TM Reaonble De•ll• w. Hern4oa 
n.p.H mt m, Clark Couty 

Eightt, Judicial District 

Prosecutor: Christopher J. Owens, Chief DOA and P8.lllela C. Weekerly, ODA 
Defense Attomey: David M Schieck, and Clark W. Patrick. Appt. 

Aerendant: James Montell Chappell 
~ate ofBlrth; 12-27•1969 

AJ!e: 37 
SSN: 373-80-2907 
Address: Nl)()C 
City/State/Zip: Las Vegas, NV 
Montbs/Y ears: l O years 
Phone: None 

L CASE INFQRMATIQN 

Cai.t: C131341 
Il>: 1212860 
PCN: 07250016 
P&P Bin: 1000808273 
ll'Bl: 284 918 JA6 
SID:NV01780406 
Resident: Yes 
OffeDff Date: 08-31-1995 
Arrest Date: 09-01-1995 

• 215 E. eonanza Rd. 
us veoa, NV 119101 

C 820 8lllrOle S1. 
LJl9 VeQH, NV A9107 

• 8t0Reln,H9l 
Las Vega, NV 89107 

• 490& E. TroplcaNI Ave. 
Laa Vegas, NV 88121 

PSI: 250520 

Driver's Licen,e: None 
St.ate: NIA Jury Verdict Date: 10-16--1996 
Statds: Ni A ·· ·· ·· · 
.POD: Lansing, Ml 
US Citizen: Yes 
Notification Required Per NRS 630.307: No 

·-·· ... Penalty Dedunn .C.ountID: 03::2.1~2007 
Senten.c,~ ~te: 05-10-2007 

Offense: Count I - Burglary(F) ST OF f,)V j,:-~ I, (" PA,;' /LC AND i='R08ATION 

NRS: 205.060 Category: B RE:LEAS£0 lU: ---------
NOC: 00299 
Penalty: By imtJrisomnCIJt in the NDOC for a minimum term of not less than 1 year and a maximum term of not 

.Jl0re than 10 years, and may be further puruahed by a fine of not more than $10,000. 
Wreviously sentenced on 12-30-1996 

I 
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f--4 

~ENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT 
~iMES MONTELL CHAPPELL 
~-C131341 
~ 
~ 

cot.RT SERVICES 

CJ ff ense: Count II - Robbezy With Use Of A Deadly Weap0n (F) 
@Rs: 200.380, 193.165: Categery: B 
~OC: 00118 . _, 

PAGE 02/07 - PAGE2 

•:Yenalty: By imprisonment in the NDOC for a minimum term of not less than 2 years and a maximum term of not 
:::hore tlwn 15 years, plus an equal and consecutive mi;DJm:um term of not less than 2 years and a maximum tetm of 
Z)ot more than 1 S years for Use of a Deadly Weapon. Previously sentenced on 12-30--1996 

Offense: Couot m - Murder of the First Degree With Use of a Deadly Weapon (F) 
NRS: 200.010, 200.030, 193.16S Category: A 
NOC: 00095 
Penalty: By Death, only if one or more aggravating circumBtances are found and if any mitisating circumstances 
which are found do not outweigh the awavating eircwnst8nces. Otherwise, by imprisorunentin the NDOC for Life 
With or Without the Possibility of Parole. lfthe penalty is :fixed at Life With the PoSS11)ility of Parole, eligibility 
for parole beaitts when a. minimum of 20 years have been served or a definite term of SO years with eligtmllty for 
parole after 20 years has been served, plus an equal' and consecutiv"e sentence for Use of a Deadly Weapon. 

-- Found guilty by Jury Verdict 

Physical Identifien: 
Sex: M Race: B 
Hair: Black Eyes: Brown 
Scan: None 
Tattoos: None 
Aliases: James M. Montell 
Additional SSNs: None 
Additional DOBs: None 

W- PJ,EA NEGOTIATIONS 

Height: 5'1 l Weight 180 

Social History: The defendant refuted to be inteniewed on May 02, 1007. Tberdore the followiDg social 
history was obtained from the original Presentenu Report that was prepared on December 05, 1996. 

Childhood: His father abandoned the family while he was an infant ~ his mo1her was killed by a police officer 
when he was two years old. He was then raised ·by his xnaterna1 grandmother who provided a good family life. 

Immediate Family Members- Names and Addresses: 

Unknown 

tlarttal StatUs; Single 

Prior Man-iagesJLong Tenn Relationships: He was involved in a longterm relationship with the victim m the 
instant offense. 

2 
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PAGE 03/07 
c..., -
9ResENTI:NCE INVESTIGATION REPORT 
~a.MES MONTELL CHAPPELL 
~-Cl31341 
f--' . 
f-'.hildren : Tiu-ee, age nineteen (son), seventeen (son) and fifteen (daughter) 
(1 

-

@ustody Status of Children: They have all been raised by their maternal grandmother. 
:i:-,. 
C) 
ofontbly Child Support Obligation: None 
·-,1 
,,D 

j;.::-mployment Status: NIA 

Number of Months Employecl In The 12 Months Prior To Instant Off,nse: 0 

Income: None 

Asuts1None 

Debts: None 

Other Sources: None 

Education: He completed high school through the tenth grade. 

Militery: No 

tlalth and Medical History: He had no health concerns 

Mental Health History: He attended domestic violence counseling in 1992. 

Gambling Hi.story: Unknown 

PAGE3 

Substance Abuse History: He began consuming alcohol at age thirteen and drank three times per week. He began 
using marijuana at twelve or thirteen and started using cocaine at age eighteen. He became heavily involved in 
cocaine use in gubsequeot years. He had a drug problem at the time of the instant offense. He was not high at the 
tj!lle h.e committed the offense but smoked cocaine )ater--that-day....He.had ne:ve:Lbeen involved in any substance 
abuse counseling. · ·-···· · ···- ··· 

Gan.g Activity/Affiliation: None 

V. CRJMTN'4L RECORD 

As of March 27, 2007, records of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (SCOPE)) the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation (FBI), the Nevada Criminal Justice Infonnation System (NCilS) and the National Crime Wormation 
Center (NCIC) reflect the following information: 

CONVICTIONS: 

&cARCERATIONS: 

FEL:2 

PRISON: 1 

GM: 1 

JAIL: 5 

OUTSTANDING WARRANTS AND LEVEL OF Oli'l'ENSE: 0 
-WARRANT NUMBER AND JUlUSDlCllON: NIA 
~EXTIUDITABLE: N/A 

MISD:6 

3 
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Li -
S1RESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT 
.gJiMES MONTl£LL CHAPPELL 
~-C131341 
(D 
f-, 
HUPERVISION IDSTORY: 
0 

PAGE 04/07 - PAGE4 

@:URRENT: Probation Terms: 0 Parole Terms: 0 

• 
§)>RIOR TERMS~ 
·-.l 
,{) 

.p.frobation: 
01Paro1e: 

Adylt: 

Arrest Date: 

05-15-1988 
(Lansing, MI) 

08-18-1988 
(Lansing, MI) 

·6-15-1993 
Wfucson. AZ) 

-

02-23-1994 
(Tucson, AZ) 

02-18-1995 
(LVMPD) 

09-01-1995 
(LVMPD) 

Revoked: I 
Revoked: 0 

Honorable:· l 
Honorable: 0 

Other: 0 
Other: 0 · 

Offense: 

Felony Stolen Vehicle (F) 

Assault Excluding Sexual (F) 

Disorderly Conduct~,{) 

Domestic Violence/ Assau.lt {M) 

1. Bura}ary (F) 
2. Under the Influence of Controlled 
Substance (F) 
3. Possession of Burglary Tools (OM) 
RMD: 02-27-1995 

1. Murder (F) 
2_ Grand Larceny Auto (F) 
RMD: 10-04-1995 
t. Burglary (F) 
2. Robbery With Deadly Weapon (F) 

Disposition: 

11-12-1988; Convicted Motor 
Vehicle/Unlawful Use (M) 6 months jail. 

09-20-1988; Convicted Assault or 
Assault and Battery (M) $1 SO fine, 15 
daysjail. 

10-12-1993; Convicted (M) community 
service, restitution. 

03-04-1994; Convicted (M) $2,500 fine, 
180 days jail, 12 months probation. 

1. Dismissed.. 
2. Convicted ITS Drugs (M) $500 fine. 
3. CC#C126882, 04-27-1995 Convicted 
Possession of Burglary Tools (OM) 1 
years CCDC, suspended, probation NTE 
2 years. 
06-27-1995; Probation violation. 
08-01-1995; Probation reinstated. 
09-02-1995; Probation violation. 
10-26-1995; Probation Revoked. 
06--20-1996; Expired sentence. 

Instaut Offense; CC#Cl31341 
12-30-l 996 sentenced on 
Count r-120/48 months NDOC, 
Count II - 180/72 months months 
NDOC plus an equal and c.onsecutive 
1 son2 months NDOC for the deadly 
Weapon enhancement, consecutive to 
Count I. 

In addition to the above the defendant was convicted of the following misdemeanor offense of Petty Larceny that 
was satisfied by a short jail term. 

4 
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-
gRESENTENCE INVESTIGAUON REPORT 
tuaES MONTELL CHAPPELL 
~-C131341 
f--, 

CillRT SERVICES PAGE 05/07 - PAGES 

f--',dditionaHy, the defendant was arrested or cited in Arizona and Nevada between May 15, 1988 and August 
SIJ, 1995 for the following offenses foJ"wbicb no dtspositiou ts noted~ pros~tton was not pursued or charges 
::ctiere dismissed: Obstruct Judicial, Congressional, Legis., Possession of Narcotic, Possession of Marijuana, Sell 
;;1arcotics, Possession ofDrug Paraphernalia (2), Trespassing, Failure to Appear, Under the Influence of Controlled 
'.:}ubstance, FT A - (24 ), Battery Domestic Violence (2), Petty Larceny (3 ), Possession of Narcotic Paraphernalia. 

'\.[) 

t,nstitutioual/SupervisionAdjustmeut; OnApril.27, 1996 the defendant was placed on probation in CC#C126882. 
He was charged with probation violation after he was cited for Possession of Narcotic Paraphernalia and Battery 
Domestic Violence. He was reinstated to probation end ordem:i to complete an in-patient substance abuse 
counseling program. On August 31, 1995 he was released from custody and on Septemb¢101, 1995 he was arrested 
for the instant offense. His probation was subsequently revoked. 

Supplemental lnfoJ"ntation: NIA 

YL QFFJ!:NSE SYNOPSIS 

Records of the Las Vegas MetropoUtan Police Dcparunent and the Clark County District Attomey,s Office reflect 
th.at the instant offense occurred substantially as follows: · 

AAu.gust 31, 1995, a friend of the victim contacted th~poJice Md advised them that she believed something w.as 
Wng with the victim, Deborah Panof. She stated she arrived at the victim's house and observed the defendant, 
James Montell Chappell, drivjng from the area in the victim's car. She was concerned because the victiro had a 
Protective Order stopping the defendant from corning to her house. She also stated that she knew the victiDl had 
forbidden the defendant from driving her car. 

Efforts to contact the victim were WlSU~ eibl' by telephone or by knocking on the door so an officer entered 
the victim's house through a window to conduct a welfare check. He found the victim on the floor in the living 
room. apparently deceased. The officer then called the Fire Rescue Unit and Homicide Detectives. 

Deteetives-&~ that.:t.be.potnt of entry imo the roohile bome~_m_h¢ the .tQJ1,9ter ~om V(indow as all 
the other doors were locked and all the windows were closed. The body of the victim was found laying on her back 
on the floor of the living room. There was a large amount of blood around. her uppe.r chest and face and numerous 
abrasions and contusions on her chin and W'O\Dld her eyes and cheekbones. She had multiple sta.b wounds to the 
neck, upper chest and pelvis area. Near the body, the officer found a steak knife believed to have been used to stab 
the victim. An autopsy later revealed that_ tp.~_yictilp had ff:CCived thirteen stab wounds, two to the pelvis and 
abdomen, and eleven to the chest and neck. The cause of death was listed as multiple stab wounds and considered 
to be a homicide. 

On September 11, 1995, an officer was dispatched to a local supermarket regarding a shoplifti:.0& incident Upon 
arrival, he observed the defendant, who had been detained after e.ttempting to shoplift several~- He identified 
himself as Ivri Marrell. It was later learned he was in fact Mr. Chappell who was wanted regarding the above 

aiwder. Two puncture wounds were observed on his band. The store security officers advised the defendant had a 
~et of keys, one of which belonged to a Toyota. When asked where the vehicle was he defendant replied "I parked 

it in back of the apartments across the street". The detectives subsequently found the victim• s vehicle parked behind 
an apartment complex. Witnesses sta1ed that 1hey had observed the defendant parked the vehicle at that location on 
August 31, 1995. The defendant was then pJaced UDder arrest and transported to the Clark County Detention Center 
where he was booked accotdingly. 

5 
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~1 YIU, DEFENDANT'S STATEMENT 
'° 

PAGE 06/07 

PAGE6 

~n May 02, 2007. an attempt was made to interview the defendant at the High Desert State Prison. He refused to 
be inteIViewed. · 

IX, VICTIM INFQBMATIQNJSTATEMENJ: 

The victim, Deborah Panos, was a twcnty-sbc year old female, leaving behind three children. Her mother was 
interviewed in 1996 when the fuBt Presenrenve Report was prepared and stated there was no way to express her arief 
stating it is a "grief you live with every day". She lost her only child and has been raising her three grandchildren. 
She stated when the victim "finally got up the nerve after years and years of abuse~, he was released and committed 
the instant offense. "The SOB does not deserve to live" she related. Living with the loss is a '"very, very bard thing 
and her voice is in our mind all the time". It wa.s difficult bearinp; her grandchildren, especially the you.ogest, talk. 
about "Mommy being in heaven". She further related the defendant didn't have to commit the crime but could have 
gone back to stealing and using drugs. She stated he was arrested many times, even in Tuoson, Az, for violence to 

•
~ctim and the Court slapped his hand and told him to go to counseling. The defendant just laughed an~ did whllt 
WBnte:d to do. When asked about financial costs, she stated the cost was $11,434.90 to transport the body to 

Michigan for the funeral. (VC2 l 67293) 

An attempt was made to call the victim's mother on April 30, 2007 but the phone was busy all day. Additionally, 
she did not respond to a Victim Impact Jetter mailed to her. However, coot.act was made with the Aunt of the victim 
who indicated her sister was extremely ill and that they do not plan to attend sentencing. 

X..@NCLUSJQN 

The defendant's prior criminal history COD$i!ts of domestic violence, theft and drug related offenses. During the 
instant offense he violently kilJed his girlfriend mi 'the mother of bis children by stabbing her thirteen times during 
a domestic di$pute less than one day after he was released from custody after being arrested for a previous domestic 
battery. He was previously sentenced to prison on Counts I and n, and the jury has determined he should be 
sentenced to death for Count m. 

xt CUSTODY STATUSJ(;RUIT FOR DMJ BIBYED 

Custody Status: In Custody, High Desert State Prison 

CTS: 3,976 DAYS: 09-01-1995 to 05-10-2007 (CCDC/NDOC) 4.269 Days 
(293 days oredited to CC#Cl26882) 

-
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.~~/03/2007 15:48 7024862875 

- ~T SERVICES 

y - PAGE 07/07 

n PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT PAGE7 
g JAMES MONTELL CHAPPELL ~-#: C131341 
(D 

~ XII. RECQMM]i;NIMTIONS 
() 
O 190 Day Regimental Discipline Program: NIA 
?] :.,. 
(,) 

Deferred Sentence Per NRS 4!3.3363: N/ A 

FEES 
0 

::; Administrative Assessment: $25 
~ 
co 

Domestic Vkilence: NIA 

Chemical/Drug Analym N/A 

Extradltioa: NIA 

SENTENCE 

DNA: $150 and submit to 
testina 

COUNT I: BURGLARY-Sentenced on December 30, 1996 to a maximum tenn of 120 months with minimum 
parole eligibility of 48 months. 

COUNT U: ROBBERY Wim USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON-Sentenced on December 30, 1996 to a 
maximum tenn of 180 months with minimum parole eligibility of 72 months; plus an equal and consecutive 
maximum term of 180 months with minirn\llll parole eligibility of 72 montbs·for the Use of a Deadly Weapon, 
consecutive to Count I 

.OUNT ID: MlJRDER IN 'I BE r"'JRST DEGREE WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON: 

Minimum Term: NIA Mau:imuni Tenn: Death as Location: NDOC 
imposed by Jury on 03-21-2007 

Concurrent With: Count I Probation Recommended: N/A Probation Tenn, N/A 

Fint: NIA Restitution: $11,434.90 

,-«,, .. _,,_ ·---- ,_,, ..• ·----· ·-- . 

__ Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned hereby affinns this document does not contain the social 
security number of any person. 

X Pursuant-to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned hereby affirms this document cont.a.ins the social security 
number of a person as required by NRS 176.145. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

JOHN ALLAN GONSKA, CllIEF' 

PRE~~~ AND APPROVED BY: . 

// 11& 
~fes C. Combs for Kathleen Houlihan 

Parole and Probation Specialist IV 
Unit VII 
Southern Command, Las Yeps, Nevada 
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Badge# /t/. ·of71i1{c, 
l.D.# lJt.,,1 

Juror Questionnaire 

Dear Prospective Juror: 

\/\ C "f IM of­
QoM/;S"'i)C. 

..i I oLo €rt cG . 

+· 'fJ 

You have been placed under oath_ Please aru\.\'er all questions truthfully and completely, 
as though. the questions were being asked of you in open c-0urt. You may be asked additional 
questions m open court during the jury selection process. 

Some of the questions ask your opmiora. Be honest and state them, 1fyou need more 
room on any question, use the margins or the next-to-last page, which has been left blanlc 

The purpose of this questionnaire is to help the court and the lawyers in their attempt to 
select a fair and impartial jury to hear this case. The answers provided by you in trus document 
"hiJl be made available to counsel for both the state and defense. ·Your an.sviers may also become 
part of the court's permanent record1 and may, therefore, be a public document. 

A summa:ry of the case allegations and the procedure to be followed in this case are noted 
belo-\.v. The fact that these allegations have been made does not mean they are nec.e~sarily true, 
The State h.as the burden of proving the allegations beyond a reason.able doubt. 

Remen1her, you must fill out the questior.maire yourself, and ,vhen you are furishe,4 please 
sign the oath on the last page and leave the questionnaire ,,,...i:th a jury assistant, 

Summary of Case 
"' 

{.1n August 31, 1995, Deborah Panos was found dead in her trailer at 839 North Nellis, 
Las Vegas. She died of multiple stab wounds" The ne:%.1 day~ James Chappell, the father of 
Deborah's three children.., was arrested and charged vvith murder \;\'1th use of a deadly weaf}On and 
other charges related to the killing. The media covered the crime, and Mr, Chappell's arrest ,vas 
reported. 

Procedure 

This is a murder case ,vhere the State is seeking the death penalty. 

After the jury is empanelled., the trial v.'lli occur. The purpose of the trial is to dete1m:iuc:, 
based on legally presented evidence, if the State can prove the criminal charges beyond a 
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If the jury convicts f\.it. ChappeU off"'1utder in tht; First ])egree,. then the L""Wi is ftillu\ved 
by a Penalty heam1g \¾'.here the jury would hear evident:e related to punishment The jury \Vciuld 

determme the sentence, and \vcu1d chonse arnong the tblk:i\vmg: death; a lif~; sentence in priS(}n 
\vith the possibility ofparok; a llfe st11tence in prison v1ithout the pi)ssibillty cffparole; or a fi.>i:ed 
~entence of50 years w'ith the possibility ofparnle. 

' . 

If the jury finds Mr. Chapt){'.U Not Gtiihy; or finds him guilty of cln.1.rges other trum. First 
I)egree I\ilJrder. then !Kr penalty hearing •.vill occur, Ift1r. Chappell is fbu.nd bqiiky !Jf charge,-> 
other than Fir.st IJegree t~Ju.rde.1\ the Judge 1Nill sentence t,,fr, ChnppelL 

The p,<trties ~ntic.ipat.f that the trial t,f'tl:tls case could mst tv,ro vveekf; a possible penalty 
hearing could ia$.t an ad<lition~J \veek, AU the trial and perm.tty proceedings fu. thls ca/)e could last 
i total of th:re~ '\-'\ieeks, 

' t·-... ____ ,.,. .................................... t.:~:u ............................................................. __ ..,. ...... _,. .................................................................................................................................................................................. ___ _ 

-------~-~--••••••••··························••···········w······m 

2. iue you familiar v,dth this case;: Have you read 11..iedia report:§ about it? Do )'OU kno,v 
f)ebrirab Penns or .himes Chappell? __ rJ_·•·_O __________ ·,=---~~ 

.,....,., ................. .,,..,.,.., . ...,,. ............... -;.w ________ =---~-----------

Questions Abo11t \Tt>tt 

5. Chih.1ren 

'-

L
. ; ~.,, 

,:.,. 1· TI u,hs,t·. pal .. ri ,-,F :<h<> ,'.'·<'<n1·,~·.M ,J· .'' H<°l" ·li'.,,,.? :L:.iC IL". ~~.A ... 0,/'c ;'\ f'\, \ ~ ~ .&~. T~ :'Q i_ ·t v<l ~u"l; ....,,.,,.$·"..,M_~l ~ ~ ";,,,..!- ~ ''I.~ ),,J,,. · .;- ~ ~ .......... W ,...~-f .,.~ ...... -.:l t:.i::,.r-. _ _,.1 .::,,)'\.,.., t 
~ ~'· ------------------------------·-·-·.·.·.·.,..--.,,~-"--......., ............ ---

j 
I 

7, I-li.ghest educational grade complet~d I 'l .,./' ! v
1 
r 
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"12, Ha_ve you ever been in busine$$ for yourself! If yes, please cr.phrirt ____ _ 
A,.h) 

15, :00 you attend religious services? If yt:s, "<-Vhat cJiurcb or service, and ho\v nrlen? 
r..f'il 

························································---------------·--·- ----------------

--~--------------=---=---=---------------------------------------------------------------~ -------~~---------

1 ~ .Any relatives in la\v enfor~ment? If yes, -i;vhat is yout reiadon.ship,, and how often do 
you talk to the;l r,J-v 

19., Ever been a juror before'? If yes.1 what did you thlik uf the exr,~dence? ... "--~ 
r,,J 0 
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22. Do you. 1:w.ve any bias or ill feeling toward the police or the govern:r.rtent or 
prosecutors f1s a result ofany prinr e:l(.pt.trience ""ith lir~v eclorc.emt11t'? t>Ju 

---~··'"--··- ·--------------------~_,.. _____________ _ 
--------·········· .·-------=------- w-~-

'· 

Have }"OU or any one you k-nov>l been aiiectoo by domestic violence? Ho\v? 
·················-----~ [~) _______ _ 

Opinions, Interests, & \'""ie""·s 

,~ 
·-~~Lj' {\,,l) 
•• ......... ..._-,1l-------

..,._...,c-~,( 

----------------,,-"'----....... ,-.-.-----.----·--------------------------------~~~ 
~ .................... -· ------------------- -----------------------------·'"··=~ 

·----------~----.-.. ------'. ·-' · ..... ----,-

.. ·········•~~---• -~ - .••-----·-------------~ 
30" Public Defenders 

~ ......... ~.---~-
~---- ,.w ··---------------¥~---------~·················~~-

4 
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..... ~ ... ~ ... --' .. !' .. 8:e,""('"·-------------.:~~;;..·.,'~'"·--__ -a.;_r_-._:fi_-~_-_-_-_-.• _---__ ::_..-_-.--_✓_--_-_-_-_-__ -_· --=---=--=--=--=---=--=--=--=---- -- -----,=--=-----

--------------------------------------,aa ••• ,----------------------· · · · · · · ·- ·- - - ------- ------····- _, 

-- 1~ P'oiic,.. •"ffic;t:;·---:::ft-:-:·l/ 1~ ,\- Q,f-
,;_,_ ~ - .. ,.,_ ":~ _, $ ~ c.:_· _______ l..s..~~-r-t-~--~-~·------------~--A~~--

~ ' ' 
......... ()kX~-""""'"'~)Dt:_-..,,-~.,,;•·,.,3-l,i""'\-_ ------'---------------------------~~ 

---------------------------------------------------------- ---------.-.-----.---.,..,.,,..,.,..,..,.. ................ -.-.-.·-·-·-·-·-·-·---·-·---

-------------------·----·------
39.~ . 

1.t'h~ocence~: 

~-----------,-------- ---,--------- ,----------.. ·--·-···~-- ----

····························-·-·-------------------------=~ ----------------------~~------

~-
40, 'Thf statement: 'The Deat:h Penalty fa appropriate in sortie casJ';S,. but notm oth.ers: 

-';;;>s&.L.:c.~~---,Jll_,,' tjiU/ -----··---------- -- -- -------------- - - -

-------~---------- ..................... ·--------------------------------------------------

•------------••••••••••••••••un--------------------------------~ 
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-~-----------------------•w·"'"---·----------~-,.......... ..--------

46. The statemt11t: It 1naybe {)k for pecip1e ofrufferent races tv d..ate each other., but I -~ -- '' would have a hard time dealing '½ith my -chil~ d(ifug it: f\rO , ,,_J; __ £xr·1 . (th~. CV}t~-i!' 
-""'n" · -:t h~ a,. -:t-· n /> --·rt' ,-n, ( Ah : : , 1, 1&, :e· h ,i _4-'W",/ § 

. ,. ;"' •.- -·· '.-,- {"_,.0 l ;,.,,.,· ' \.4ct:........ ~. --'~i>tw."'"'~---~~~-''""" S.."' ,,.:, ,.;,¥ff,<--; ., . ·r· . ,! , " , / .! . • , 
Lf,} t ;t J i&fl&J -<li ;'iH1 iJ, ku~·¼Jt~ -~,....'.::~,k-,t,'.,--• Q iz_. ' ." ....... -----··"'~-' -~-

······-------······-·-·••·· .. ···-----=~---

--===-=--·---·~--'-- -- .. ---------~~~-------

4&. Do vou \Vfilit tu t.x.:;.tn11he iutv'? \Vhy yts {ff V-lhy n~/? 
jJ\~~:!2. ~;t:, . vJpibLd !i,-Li) ',ti '"j~•w••···_(Vl{<- ci~A.· ,/--.-_-T-2-,b.----... ---~--t-,:'.-_ .... -.... ·. 
['ll; i -·y» -~ ... i {';, \ J: A • ' .L . -,,.._ ., .,..,. ! t .\. ~J \ . .,, !s)8, n.Y' 
~0t✓.{L . '-,-:~ ....... ~: ... :-#. .... --t~.:'. 3 \..\ ,f-r'\ £;,.. ¥ 4-Y l-"k~t"'. ~---~1~~•:: .. :~~·-',;,,_· ......... , • · ,,_.~ -,.. . 
bi;.,..•Yl, , L 1 

·'· f'iv ,, .. 'I • ' ·' · ·' · ·4-4 ·· · 1- • Lf .;:..•,· ~ ''3,·.~lL!...\'g-::-:~~._: _________ . -,_~ Ut.. . (J;., , ,-1'. .. t,\. r- ~_...1 ____ , ____ t,t --- •~ "½·-· 1(!\...C? ""-" 
u 'i,t.r<f, ·, 1 - { i J ,_., ·· .J ·_ ·-·~----· · ~-- _•_wn-&{,..ttt{.-.... _._._._._._._._._._._._ . ..(✓.."<{~{)thJt\,x~: ~ ~·: > ...... "'~-=~.~---·~--~···-.-.... -.......................... -

49, Jf ts.tr. Chappell is convicted of firist de1crree n1uroer, and a penalty l~mg is hekl} 
w·ou1d ycru considet au fotrr 1:i,Jssfble sentences, those bemg tbe de11th penalty~ Ufe ·.vithout fue, 
po~sibility ofparole, life with th.e possibility of parole~ or a -fixed t-errn c1f 5(} years v-lith the 
possibility ofparok~ 

50, fu your present state of mind., can y<H.t, if ~elected al Il juror, con.sider ei.:ruaHy all four 
possible forms of punishment and stlecr tbe <:nte that yqu feel is the mnst a.ppropriate depending 
up·.o:u the faz:ts and th() latv'! 

- ' 1 ,..-.._ ... 

\:f•t''> 
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,. 

52. Are you a member of any orgami.ation that advocates or opposes the imposition of 
the death perutlty'? ___ __,L·::::..J]:..._ ___________________ _ 

Explanation Area 

Feel free to supplement any of your prior ansvvers, or ask any questions which you may have, 

7 
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Oath 

I S\.vear or affirm tlwt the responses given are true and accurate to the best of my 
knowledge and belief 

~ ... ~,,;,...,;_~_-_~,,,._· ~-
Signature Date 

Admonition 

You are instructed not to discuss this questionnain~ or ruiy aspect of this case -with anyone~ 
including other prospective jurors. You are further mstru,(,i:00 not to view, read, or listen to any 
media account of these proceedings. 

• 

A. William Maupm., District Judge 
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

***** 

' 
. 

A ellant 

Tracie K. Lindeman 
Clerk of Supreme Court 

vs. 

Respondent. 

APPEAL FROM DENIAL OF PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS 
CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION) AND SENTENCE OF DEATH 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
THE HONORABLE JUDGE CAROLYN ELLSWORTH, PRESIDING 

------------------------------
APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF 

------------------------------

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT 

CHRISTOPHER R. ORAM, ESQ. 
Attorney at Law 
Nevada Bar No. 004349 
520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Telephone: (702) 384-5563 

ATTORNEY FOR 
RESPONDENT 
S'l'EVE WOLFSON, ESQ. 
District Attorney 
200 Lewis A venue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
(702) 671-2500 

Docket 61967 Document 2014-00607 
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ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

I. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO HOLD AN 
EVIDENTIARY HEARING. 

II. STANDARD FOR INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL. 

III. MR. CIIAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTI'IE ASSISTANCE OF 
COUNSEL DURING 'I'HE 'I'HIRD PENAL'I'Y PHASE IN 
VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES 
CONSTITUTION. 

IV. MR. CHAPPEl,I, RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
PENALTY PHASE TRIAL COUNSEL AND liPPELLI\TE COUNSEL 
FOR FAILURE TO OBJECT TO THE CUMULATIVE VICTIM 
IMPACT PANEL IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, 
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE JINITED STATES 
CONSTITUTION. 

V. PENAL TY PHASE COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING 
TO OBJECT TO IMPROPER PROSECUTORIAL ARGUMENTS 
DURING THE PENALTY PHASE IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, 
SIX'I'H, AND F'OUR'I'EEN'I'H AMENDMEN'I'S 'I'O THE UNITED 
STATES CONSTITUTION. 

VI. PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL AND PENALT}T PHASE APPELLATE 
COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO RAISE SEVERAL 
INSTANCES OF IMPROPER PROSECUTORIAL ARGUMENT 
WIIICII SIIOULD IIAVE BEEN RAISED SIMULTANEOUSLY IN MR. 
CHAPPELL'S APPEAL IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, 
EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED 
STATES CONSTITUTION. 

VII. MR. CHAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL AND APPELLATE COUNSEL FOR 
FAILURE TO OBJECT TO IMPROPER IMPEACHMENT IN 
VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH 

viii 
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AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION. 

VIII. THE DISTRICT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN 
ALLOWING THE ADMISSION OF EVIDENCE OF SEVERAL BAD 
ACTS THUS VIOLATING APPELLANT'S FIFTH, SIXTH AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND WARRANTING 
REVERSAL OF HIS PENALTY PHASE. 

IX. 'I'HE DEA'I'H PENAL'I'Y IS UNCONS'I'I'I'U'I'IONAL. 

X. MR. CHAPPELL'S CONVICTION AND DEATH SENTENCE ARE 
INVALID UNDER THE STATE AND FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL 
GUARANTEES OF DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION, TRIAL 
BEFORE AN IMPARTIAi, JITRY AND A REl,IABI4E SENTENCE 
BECAUSE THE PROCEEDINGS AGAINST HIM VIOLATED 
INTERNATIONAL LAW. U.S. CONST. AMENDS. V, VI VIII AND 
XIV; NEV. CONST. ART. I SECS. 3, 6 AND 8; ART IV, SEC. 21. 

XI. CHAPPELL'S CONVICTION AND SENTENCE ARE INVALID 
UNDER THE STATE AND FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL 
GUARANTEE OF DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE 
LAWS, EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND RELIABLE 
SENTENCE BECAUSE THE .JURY INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN AT 
TRIAL WERE FAULTY AND WERE NO'I' 'I'HE SUBJECT OF 
CONTEMPORANEOUS OBJECTION BY TRIAL COUNSEL, NOT 
RAISED ON DIRECT APPEAL BY APPELLATE COUNSEL, NOT 
RAISED BY PENALTY PHASE APPELLATE COUNSEL, AND NOT 
RE-RAISED BY PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL. 

XII. MR. CIIAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTi\NCE OF 
COUNSEL BASED UPON CUMULATIVE ERROR. 

' lX 
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.JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT 

Argument on the petition was held and Mr. Chappell's Petition for Writ of 

Habeas Corpus was denied on October 19, 2012 (21 ROA 4706). The F1nd1ngs of 

Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order was filed on November 16, 2012 (20 ROA 

4527). Mr. Chappell filed a timely notice of appeal on October 22, 2012 (20 ROA 

4515). This Opening Brief follows. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Appellant James Chappell was charged, on October 11, 1995, via 

Information v.1ith one count each of burglary, robbery ·.vith use of a deadly 

weapon, and open murder with use of a deadly weapon (1 ROA 38). The State 

based its murder charge on alternative theories of felony murder and premeditated 

and de]iberate murder (1 ROA 39) On November 8, 1995, the State fi]ed its 

Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty (1 ROA 44). It charged aggravating 

circumstances of murder in the course of a robbery, murder in the course of 

burglary, murder while the person was engaged in sexual assault or the attempt 

thereof, and torture or depravity of mind (1 ROA 44-45). Prior to trial, Chappell 

filed a motion to dismiss several of the aggravating circumstances (1 ROA 250). 

He argued in part that the aggravating circumstance of sexual assault should be 

dismissed because Chappell was not charged with sexual assault and no evidence 
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was presented during the preliminary hearing that would support the aggravating 

circumstance (1 ROA 256). The State opposed the motion, but did not address the 

sexual assault issue (2 ROA 309-319). The Court denied the motion. 

The jury trial began on October 8, 1996, and was presided over by the 

Honorable A. William Maupin (2 ROA 355). The jury was instructed on theories 

of premeditated murder and felony mu1de1 (7 ROA 1703, 1721, 1722). Thejuty 

was also instructed on robbery in general (7 ROA 1711). On October 16, 1996, the 

jury returned verdicts of guilty on charges of burglary, robbery, and first degree 

murder (7 ROA 1747-1749). No special verdict form ,vas given to the jury, so it is 

unknown as to whether the jurors relied upon the premeditation theory, the felony 

murder theory, or both in finding Chappell guilty of first degree murder. 

The penalty phase of the first trial began on October 21, 1996 (7 ROA 

1757). On October 24, 1996, the jury returned its verdicts in which it found 

mitigating circumstances of murder committed while the defendant was under the 

influence of extreme mental or emotion disturbance and "any other mitigating 

circumstances" (9 ROA 2126, 2170-2171). It found aggravating circumstances of 

burglary, robbery, sexual assault, and torture or depravity of mind and returned a 

verdict of death (9 ROA 2127-2129, 2167-2169). Formal sentencing took place on 

December 30, 1996 (9 ROA 2179). The district court sentenced Chappell to the 
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maximum terms for burglary and robbery with use of a deadly weapon and ordered 

that those sentences run consecutively to the death sentence (9 ROA 2188). 

'l'he Judgment of conviction was filed on December 31, 1996 (9 ROA 2190). 

Chappell filed a timely notice of appeal on January 17, 1997, which was docketed 

as number 29884 (9 ROA 2200). On December 30, 1998, this Court issued its 

opinion affirming the conviction (9 ROA 2273), Chappell v. State, 114 Nev. 1403, 

972 P.2d 838 (1998). This concluded that the district court erred in failing to hold 

a Petrocelh hearing, but found adID1ssion of evidence of uncharged misconduct to 

be harmless. Id. at 1406, 972 P.2d at 840. It also concluded that there ,vas 

sufficient evidence to support the aggravating circumstances of burglary, robbery 

and sexual assault, but insufficient evidence to support the aggravating 

circumstance of torture or depravity of mind Id at 1407, 972 P.2d at 841. In 

addressing the robbery aggravating circumstance, this Court noted Chappell's 

argument that the evidence showed that he took Panos' car as an afterthought and 

therefore could not be guilty of robbery, but rejected that argument because this 

Court had held "that in robbery cases it is irrelevant when the intent to steal the 

property is formed." Id. at 1408, 972 P .2d at 841. Although this Court found 

torture or depravity of mind aggravating circumstance to be invalid, it re-weighed 

the remaining three aggravating circumstances and the two mitigating 
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circumstances, found the aggravating circumstances clearly outweighed the 

mitigating circumstances, and found that a sentence of death was proper. Id. at 

1410-1411, 558 P.2d at 842. 'I'h1s Court also reJected other issues raised by 

Chappell on appeal. Id. This Court denied rehearing on March 17, 1999 (9 ROA 

2288). 

Chappell's petition for certiorari was denied on October 4, 1999. Chappell 

v. Nevada, 528 U.S. 853 (1999). This Court's remittitur issued on November 4, 

1999 (10 ROA 2353). 

Meanwhile, on October 19, 1999, Chappell filed a proper person post-

conviction petition for writ of habeas corpus (9 ROA 2258). A supplemental 

petition was filed on April 30, 2002 (10 ROA 2417). Among other issues, 

Chappell contended that his conviction was invalid because the jury instruction 

defining premeditation and deliberation was constitutionally infirm as it did not 

provide a rational distinction between first and second degree murder (10 ROA 

2456-2459)(citing Byford v. State, 116 Nev. 215, 994 P.2d 700 (2000)). He also 

asserted that the sentence of death was unconstitutional because of the use of 

overlapping aggravating circumstances (10 ROA 2465). The State filed its 

response to the petition on June 19, 2002 (10 ROA 2481). The evidentiary hearing 

took place before the Honorable Michael Douglas on September 13, 2002 (11 
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ROA 2554). Subsequently, on June 3, 2004, the district court entered its Findings 

of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order (11 ROA 2745). It denied the petition as to 

the guilt phase issues, granted the petition as to the sentence, and ordered a new 

sentencing hearing (11 ROA 2748, 2278). 

On June 18, 2004, the State filed its notice of appeal to this Court (I I ROA 

2757). On June 24, 2004, Chappell filed a notiee of cross appeal (11 ROt\. 2761). 

On April 7, 2006, this Court issued its Order of Affirmance in which it upheld the 

district court's decision (11 ROA 2783). Of relevance to this petition, is this 

Court's conclusion that there was no merit to the arguments presented concerning 

jury instructions (11 ROA 2790)(citing Garner v. State, 116 Nev. 770, 788-789, 6 

P.3d 1013, 1025 (2000)). This Court also found the aggravating circumstances of 

burglary and robbery to be invalid under McConnell v. State, 120 Nev. 1043, 102 

P.3d 606 (2004)(11 ROA 2792-2795). The remittitur issued on may 4, 2006 (11 

ROA 2797). 

The second penalty phase began on March 12, 2007 (19 ROA 3932). 

Following closing arguments, the jury returned their verdicts (15 ROA 3737, 

3821 ). They found the aggravating circumstance of murder committed during the 

perpetration of a sexual assault (15 ROA 3737, 3822). The mitigating special 

verdict form listed the following mitigators: Chappell suffered from substance 
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abuse, he had no father figure in his life, he was raised in an abusive household, 

was the victim of physical abuse as a child, he was born to a drug/alcohol addicted 

mother, he suffered from a learning disability, and was raised in a depressed 

housing area (15 ROA 3739-3740, 3822-3823). The jury did not find the 

mitigating circumstance that Chappell's mother was killed when he was very 

young, that he was the victim of mental abuse as a child, and other mitigating 

circumstances that were asserted to exist by Chappell's counsel (15 ROA 3755). 

The jury found that the mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the aggravating 

circumstance (15 ROA 3738, 3822-3823). The special verdict form for the 

weighing equation did not indicate that it was the State's burden to establish 

beyond a reasonable doubt that the mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the 

aggravating circumstances (15 ROA 3738). The jury returned a sentence of death 

(15 ROA 3741). 

Formal sentencing took place on may 10, 2007 (19 ROA 4015, 4018). The 

judgment of conviction was filed the same day (15 ROA 3854). The district court 

ordered the judgment stayed pending appeal (19 ROA 4019; 15 ROA 3861). A 

timely notice of appeal was filed on June 8, 2007 (16 ROA 3872). 

The Opening Brief was filed on June 9, 2008. was filed on October 23, 

2008. This Court filed its Order of Affirmance on October 20, 2009. The Order 

6 



AA04157

n 
0 
?="! 

0 
(Jl 

(Jl 

• 

Denying Rehearing was filed on December 16, 2009. On May 11, 2010, the 

Petition for Writ of Certiorari was denied. On June 8, 2010, this Court filed its 

remittitur. 

Chappell filed a timely Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus on June 22, 

2010. A supplemental brief was filed on February 15, 2012 (20 ROA 4562). The 

State's Response was filed on May 16, 2012 (20 ROA 4431). A Reply brief was 

filed on July 30, 2012 (20 ROA 4491). Argument on the petition was held and Mr. 

Chappell's Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus was denied on October 19, 2012 

(21 ROA 4706). The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Lav; and Order was filed on 

November 16, 2012 (20 ROA 4527). Mr. Chappell filed a timely notice of appeal 

on October 22, 2012 (20 ROA 4515). This Opening Brief follows. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

The statement of facts are enunciated in Mr. Chappell' s supplemental brief 

(20 ROA 4569-4582). 

I. 

ARGUMENT 

MR. CHAPPELL IS ENTITLED TO A REVERSAL OF THE 
DISTRICT COURT'S DENIAL OF THE POST-CONVICTION WRIT 
BASED UPON THE DISTRICT COURT'S REFUSAL TO GRAN'I' AN 
EVIDENTIARY HEARING. 

On February 15, 2012, Mr. Chappell hied a sixty-two page supplemental 

brief in support of defendant's writ of habeas corpus. Mr. Chappell specifically 
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requested the district court entertain an evidentiary hearing so that he could 

ineffective assistance. 

On February 15, 2012, Mr. Chappell filed a 1notion for the authotization to 

obtain expert services and payment of fees at state expense (20 ROA pp. 4485). 

In the motion, Mr. Chappell requested penruss1on to retain an expert on the 

effects of fetal alcohol disorder. There \Vas evidence that Mr. Chappell' s mother 

may have been addicted to drugs and alcohol. Yet, there was no indication of the 

voluminous file that counsel investigated the possibility of fetal alcohol syndronre. 

Mr. Chappell also requested permission to obtain a fuU neurological examination 

of Mr. Chappell including but not limited to a PET Scan. 

Additionally, Mr. Chappell filed a motion for the appointment of an 

investigator (20 ROA 4550). 

At the conclusion of the briefing, a status check was held on August 29, 

2012. At the August 29, 2012 hearing, Mr. Chappell and the State agreed that the 

district court should entertain oral argument on the briefs and the motions for the 

appointment of an investigator and experts (20 ROA 4415). 

Oral argument was heard on October 19, 2012. During the argument, the 

district court indicated that she was "not persuaded" that there was ineffective 

assistance of counsel (20 ROA 4418). At the conclusion of the relatively brief oral 
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argument, the district court denied Mr. Chappell's request for the appointment of 

experts and an investigator. Mr. Chappell was denied the opportunity to present 

ev1 

Mr. Chappell would respectfully request that this Court consider the denial 

of his reasonable requests to supplement the record proving ineffective assistance 

of counsel. Mr. Chappell's issues enunciated within this b1ief establish that he was 

entitled to his reasonable requests for experts/investigator and an evidentiary 

eanng. 

A petitioner is entitled to an evidentiary hearing \Vhere the petitioner raises 

a colorable claim of ineffective assistance. Smith v. McCormick, 914 F.2d 1153, 

1170 (9th Cir.1990); Hendricks v. Vasquez, 974 F.2d 1099, 1103, 1109-10 (9th 

Cir 1992) See also Morris v California, 966 E 2d 448, 454 (9th Cir.1991) 

(remand for evidentiary hearing required where allegations in petitioner's affidavit 

raise inference of deficient performance); Harich v. Wainwright, 813 F.2d 1082, 

1090 (11th Cir.1987) ("[W]here a petitioner raises a colorable claim of ineffective 

assistance, and where there has not been a state or federal hearing on this claim, 

we must remand to the district court for an evidentiary hearing."); Porter v. 

Wainwright, 805 F.2d 930 (11th Cir. 1986) (without the aid of an evidentiary 

hearing, the court cannot conclude whether attorneys properly investigated a case 
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or whether their decisions concerning evidence were made for tactical reasons). 

In the instant case, an evidentiary hearing was necessary to question 

counsel. Mr. Chappell's counsel fell below a standard of reasonableness. More 

importantly, based on the failures of counsel, Mr. Chappell was severely 

preJud1ced, pursuant to Strickland v.Washington. 466 U. S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 205, 

Under the facts presented here, an evidentiary hearing was mandated to 

detennine whether the performance of counsel were effective, to determine the 

prejudicial impact of the errors and omissions noted in the petition, and to 

ascertain the truth in this case. 

II. STANDARD OF REVIEW FOR INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
COUNSEL. 
To state a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel that is sufficient to 

invalidate a judgment of conviction, petitioner must demonstrate that: 

1. counsel's performance fell below an objective standard of 
reasonableness, 

2. counsel's errors were so severe that they rendered the verdict 
unreliable. 

Lozada v. State, 110 Nev. 349, 353, 871 P. 2d 944, 946 (1994). (Citing 

Strickland v. Washington. 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 205, (1984)). Once the 

defendant establishes that counsels performance was deficient, the defendant must 

next show that, but for counsels error the result of the trial would probably have 

10 
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been different. Strickland. 466 U.S. at. 694, 104 S. Ct. 2068; Davis v. State, 107 

Nev. 600,601,602,817 P. 2d 1169, 1170 (1991). The defendant must also 

denmnstrate errors were so egregious as to render the result of the trial unreliable 

or the proceeding fundamentally unfair. State v. Love. 109 Nev. 1136, 1145, 865 

P.2d 322, 328 (1993), c1t1ng Lockhart v. Fretwell, 506 0. S. 364,113 S. Ct. 838 

122 2d, 180 (1993); Strickland, 466 U. S. at 687 104 S. Ct. at 2064. 

This Court has held a defendant has a right to effective assistance of 

appellate counsel on direct appeal. Kirksey v. Nevada, 112 Nev. 980, 923 P.2d 

1102 (1996) 

The constitutional right to effective assistance of counsel extends to a direct 

appeal. Burke v. State, 110 Nev. 1366, 1368, 887 P.2d 267,268 (1994). A claim of 

ineffective assistance of appellate counsel is reviewed under the "reasonably 

effective assistance" test set forth in Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 80 

L. Ed. 2d 674, 104 S.Ct. 2052 (1984). 

In the instant case, Mr. Chappell's proceedings were fundamentally unfair. 

The defendant received ineffective assistance of counsel. Based upon the 

following arguments: 

Ill 

III. MR. CHAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
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COUNSEL DURING THE THIRD PENALTY PHASE IN 
VIOLA'I'ION OF' 'I'HE F'IF"l'H, SIX'fH, EIGH'l'H AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES 
CONSTITUTION. 

In the instant case, penalty phase counsel failed to properly investigate and 

prepare for the penalty phase. There are multiple instances identified by Mr. 

Chappell included in this section. 

a1 ure to o ta1n a . . . can 
2. Failure to test Mr. Chappell for the effects of fetal alcohol 

a1 ure o proper y prepare 
Grey, and Dr. Danton 

6. Failure to present lay witnesses 

Pretrial investigation is a critical area in any criminal case and the failure to 

accomplish the investigation has been held to constitute ineffective assistance of 

counsel. In Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 537 P.2d 473 (1975), this Court held, 

It is still recognized that a primary requirement is that 
counsel. .. conduct careful factual and legal investigation and inquiries 
with a view towards developing matters of defense in order that he 
make informed decisions on his clients behalf both at the pleadings 
stage ... and at trial. Jackson, 92 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474. 

Federal courts are in accord that pretrial investigation and preparation are 

key to effective assistance of counsel. See, U.S. v. Tucker, 716 F.2d 576 (1983). In 

U.S. v. Baynes, 687 F.2d 659 (1982), the federal court explained, 

12 
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Defense counsel, whether appointed or retained is obligated to inquire 
thoroughly into all potential exculpatory defenses in evidence, mere 
possibility that investigation might have produced nothing of 
consequences for the defense does not serve as justification for trial 
defense counsels failure to perforrn such investigations in the fi1st 
place. The fact that defense counsel may have performed impressively 
at trial would not have excused failure to investigate claims that 
might have led to complete exoneration of the defendant. 

Counsel's complete failure to properly investigate renders his performance 

ineffective. 

[F]ailure to conduct a reasonable investigation constitutes deficient 
pe1fonnance. The Third Circuit has held that "[i]neffectiveness is 
generally clear in the context of complete failure to investigate 
because counsel can hardly be said to have made a strategic choice 
when s/he [sic] has not yet obtained the faets on ·which such a 
decision could be made." See U.S. v. Gray, 878 F.2d 702, 711 (3d 
Cir.1989). A lawyer has a duty to "investigate what information ... 
potential eye-witnesses possess[ ], even if he later decide[s] not to put 
them on the stand." Id. at 712. See also Hoots v. Allsbrook, 785 F.2d 
1214, 1220 (4th Cir.1986) ("Neglect even to interview available 
witnesses to a crime simply cannot be ascribed to trial strategy and 
tactics."); v. Montgomery. 709 F.2d 690, 701 (7th Cir.1983) ... 
("Essential to effective representation ... is the independent duty to 
investigate and prepare."). 

In State of Nevada v. Love, 865 P.2d 322, 109 Nev. 1136, (1993), this Court 

considered the issue of ineffective assistance of counsel for failure of trial counsel 

to properly investigate and interview prospective witnesses. 

In Love, the District Court reversed a murder conviction of Rickey Love 

based upon trial counsel's failure to call potential witnesses coupled with the 
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failure to personally interview witnesses so as to make an intelligent tactical 

decision and making an alleged tactical decision on misrepresentations of other 

witnesses testimony. Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 113'/. 

A. FAILURE TO PRODUCE TESTIMONY FROM JAMES FORD 
AND IVORY MORRELL 

During the original post-conviction, counsel alleged that trial counsel had 

been ineffective for failure to produce several mitigation witnesses. Specifically, 

post-conviction counsel complained that James C. Ford and Ivory Morrell (friends 

of James Chappell) were not called to testify. At the conclusion of the post-

conviction hearings, the district court granted the writ in part and denied the writ 

in part. The district court concluded that Mr. Chappell received ineffective 

assistance of penalty phase counsel for the failure to call mitigation witnesses. 

This decision was upheld on appeal from the first post-conviction. Thereafter, 

post-conviction counsel represented Mr. Chappell at the instant penalty phase. 

Interestingly enough, neither James C. Ford nor Ivory Morrell testified as to the 

mitigation evidence that they could have provided. 

On March 19, 2007, penalty phase counsel advised the court that Mr. 

Morrell and Mr. Ford would not be able to testify (15 ROA 3669). Counsel 

explained that Mr. Morrell and Mr. Ford had been present since "Tuesday night of 
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last week" (15 ROA 3669). On the Friday before, both witnesses were in a 

situation where they would lose employment (15 ROA 3669). In fact, Mr. Ford's 

district supervisor stated that he would be fired if he was not present at work on 

Monday (the day that counsel was making the representations (15 ROA 3669). 

Penalty phase counsel was concerned that the employment depression in Lansing, 

Michigan was so severe that it necessitated letting the witnesses ptoceed back to 

Michigan. Counsel stated, "it was our decision to allow them - - we had them here 

an we cou poena on em causing ose e1r wor 

made the decision to allow them to return to Michigan, so that they will not be 

testifying" (15 ROA 3669). 

In essence, counsel weighed the decision to relieve the two mitigation 

witnesses of their obligation to testify based on employment hardship versus the 

defendant's opportunity to have his life spared at a penalty phase. Nothing could 

be more important in the penalty phase. Penalty phase counsel had argued to the 

district court that trial counsel from the first trial was ineffective for failure to call 

these two witnesses. Yet, the two witnesses were then released. The difficulty with 

the issue is compounded by a review of the third penalty phase. Interestingly 

"-, ) 

enough, the defense called a few witnesses out of order, in the State's case in 

15 



AA04166

n 
0 
?="! 

0 
(Jl 

0 

(.0 

chief. Curiously, no attempts were made to put Mr. Ford and Mr. Morrell on the 

stand out of order. Most certainly, the district court would have accommodated the 

defense request, had defense counsel simply orally infonned the court of the 

dilemma. Then, the witnesses would have undoubtedly provided the mitigation 

evidence which was so obviously necessary. 

For instanee, Dr. Eteoffs testimony was taken out of order. Yet, penalty 

phase counsel failed to make this request even though the district court and this 

Court had deterrnined first penalty phase counsel to be ineffective for failure to 

call these witnesses (amongst other mitigation that was not presented). To the 

original post conviction, counsel provided the following synopsis of James C. 

Ford. 

Cha 
and he was around Debra and Chappell during the first five years of 
our relationship. He also knew about Chappell's employment history 
and could have testified at both the trial and enalty phase (10 ROA 
2417). 

Post conviction counsel explained, "Mr. Ivory Morrell [sic] was also a 

friend of Chappell and Debra in Michigan and stayed in contact with them in 

• 

Chappell" (10 ROA 2431). The affidavits of these two individuals are as important 

today as they were during the original petition (11 ROA 2683). Penalty phase 
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counsel knew that this Court recognized the significance of these two individuals 

potential testimony. Upon their affidavits, Mr. Chappell received a new penalty 

phase. It was clearly ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to present these 

witnesses. The same analyses that was provided by this Court and the district court 

almost a decade ago applies today. More importantly, penalty phase counsel was 

aware of the significant influence of the potential testirnony of the two witnesses. 

The prosecution was so concerned with the failure to present mitigation 

witnesses, that the prosecutor raised the issue to the trial court (16 ROA 3803). 

The prosecutor stated, 

I went back and reviewed the court's order which was the basis for 
the reversal of the penalty phase and the reason why we were in the 
proceeding, the decision by Judge Douglas, I believe, confirmed by 
the Supreme Court in the order of affirmance that the defense failed 
to call certain witnesses that would have made a difference in the 
outcome of the original case. 

There were eight or nine witnesses that were detailed in the briefs and 
the decision. For the record, my notation on that would indicate that 
would be Shirley Serrelly, James Ford, Ivory Morrell, Chris Bardo, 
David Greene, Benjamin Dean, Claira Axom, Barbara Dean, and 
Ernestine Harvey. Of those nine names the defendant only called . .!-.,;t~""' 
of them, by my understanding. There were five of them that were not 
called, no affidavits were submitted no rs were written in, no 
tes 1 ony ~s given in summary by third parties (16 ROA 380 -
3804). 

The prosecutor did note that Claira Axom' s prior testimony was read into 
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the court record (16 ROA 3803). 

Next, a review of the entire file portrays an extremely deficient investigation 

of a time when Mr. Chappell lived in Arizona. During the penally phase, the State 

provided witnesses from Arizona who testified to very damning events by Mr. 

investigation were conducted in Arizona in order to assist Mr. Chappell at the 

This Court in Doleman v. State, 112 Nev. 843 921 P.2d 278 (1996) 

concluded: 

We conclude that the failure of Doleman's trial counsel to reasonably 
investigate the potential testimony of certain witnesses at Doleman's 
penalty hearing constituted ineffective assistance of counsel. In this 
case, the court found that trial counsel's failure to call witnesses from 
an institution where the convicted individual had attended school, 
who would have testified as to the convicted individual's ability to 
function in structured environments and adhere to institutional rules, 
constituted a violation of the reasonable effective assistance standard. 

Defense counsel's failure to investigate the facts can render a result 

"unreliable"Buffalo v. State, 111 Nev. 1139, 901 P.2d 647 (1995). 

The defense called their mitigation investigator who attempted to tell the 

jury the potential testimony of Ford and Morrell. Unfortunately, the testimony of a 
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mitigation investigator does not equate to the mitigation witnesses themselves. 

B. FAILURE TO OBTAIN AN EXPERT 

In the instant case, the sole aggravator found by the jury was that the murder 

was committed while Chappell was engaged in the commission of a sexual assault. 

On appeal from the penalty phase, appellate counsel argued that there was 

insufficient evidence to establish the sole agg1avator beyond a reasonable doubt. 

This Court explained, 

Our review of the record reveals sufficient evidence to establish the 
sexual assault aggravator beyond a reasonable doubt as determined by 
a rational trier of fact. See, Wilkins v. State, 96 Nev. 367, 374, 609 
P.2d 309,313 (1980); See also, Origel-Candido v. State, 114 Nev. 
378, 381, 956 P.2d 1378, 1380 (1989); Jackson v. Virginia, 443 U.S. 
307, 319 (1979). 

One of the factors considered by the this Court was Chappell' s assertion 

that he did not ejaculate into the victim during their sexual encounter, even when 

matching DNA was recovered from her vagina (Order of Affirmance, pp.3). In 

fact, this issue was vehemently argued to the jury by the prosecution. During his 

sworn testimony, Mr. Chappell admitted that he had vaginal sexual intercourse 

and oral sex with Debra Panos, before he killed her. Mr. Chappell testified that the 

sexual encounters were consensual but denied ejaculation. The State argued to the 

jury that this proved Mr. Chappell was a liar and had sexually assaulted the v1ct1m. 
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Apparently, this Court used this fact to determine there was sufficient evidence to 

convict of sexual assault. 

Without the sexual assault aggravator, Mr. Chappell is not eligible for a 

sentence of death. Ms. Panos was found stabbed to death fully clothed. The knife 

wounds went through her clothing and into her body. Ms. Panos was not naked 

and therefore this provides proof of a prior consensual sexual encounter. This fact 

also corroborates Mr. Chappell's testimony that after the consensual sexual 

encounter he located letters he perceived as proof that she was unfaithful and went 

into a blind rage. 

Counsel should have provided expert testimony that pre-ejaculation fluid 

may contain sperm. It has long been recognized in the medical community, a 

women can become pregnant even when ejaculation does not occur (Dr. Roger 

Wharms, M.D., Mayo clinic). 

During the testimony of Detective James Vaccaro, he was questioned 

whether the results of DNA of James Chappell was found in Debra's vaginal 

cavity of Debra. Detective Vaccaro concluded, "I do know that the results were 

that the DNA of James Chappell was found in the form of semen inside the vagin 

of Debra Panos". The detective was then asked, "the fact that its in the form of 

semen would indicate that he ejaculated into her body"? The detective indicated 
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"yes" (14 ROA 3425). 

Penalty phase counsel was ineffective for failing to provide expert 

testimony that sperm could be located in the vaginal cavity of the victim when the 

defendant sincerely believed he had not ejaculated. The simple fact which is 

provided to most high school students in health class, could have dispelled the 

belief that Mr. Chappell was lying and therefore sexually assaulted the victirn. Mr. 

Chappell has specifically requested funding for an expert in this area. It was 

ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to obtain this expert testimony. 

C. FAILURE TO OBTAIN A P.E.T. SCAN 

In the instant case, Dr. Etcoff examined and tested Mr. Chappell. Mr. 

Chappell had an extremely low IQ. There was evidence that Mr. Chappell's 

mother may have been addicted to drugs and alcohol. A proper investigatj an 

should have been conducted to determine whether James was born to a mother 

who was ingesting narcotics and/or alcohol during her pregnancy. There is no 

indication in the voluminous file that counsel investi ated the ossibilit of fetal 

alcohol syndrome. Additionally, Mr. Chappell's father was involved in controlled 

substances and criminal activities. Every one of Mr. Chappell' s siblings were 

involved with controlled substances. 

During closing argument, defense counsel explained, "his mother was 
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addicted to drugs and alcohol and it's quite possible she was using either drugs 

and/or alcohol while she was pregnant (16 ROA 3788). Fetal Alcohol Spectrum 

-------Disorders are a group of disorders that can occur in a person who's 1nothe1 d1ank 

alcohol during pregnancy. The effects can include physical problems and 

problems with behavior and learning. There was evidence that Mr. Chappell' s 

mother may have been addieted to drugs and alcohol. A proper investigation 

should have been conducted to determine whether James was born to a mother 

who was ingesting narcotics and/or alcohol during her pregnancy. The1e is no 

indication in the voluminous file that counsel investigated the possibility of fetal 

alcohol syndrome. 

This Court in Riley v. State, 110 Nev. 638, 650, 878 P.2d 272, 280 (1994) 

explained, "even though we declined to reverse, we recognized that a defendant 

may be prejudiced by counsel's failure to investigate overall mental capabilities 

when a pretrial psychological evaluation indicates that the defendant may have 

serious mental health problems". 

Mr. Chappell had been sentenced to death by the first jury. Therefore, it was 

incumbent upon first post-conviction counsel (penalty phase trial counsel) to 

request funding for a P.E.T. scan and/or brain imaging of the defendant. 

Mr. Chappell specifically requests funding to determine whether Mr. 
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Chappell suffered from fetal alcohol syndrome and requests permission for brain 

. . 
1mag1ng. 

D. FAILURE 'I'O PROPERLY PREPARE EXPERT WITNESSES PRIOR 
TO PENALTY PHASE 

The defense called Dr. Etcoff as a mitigation witness. Dr. Etcoff had 

interviewed Mr. Chappell for two hours almost a decade before his second penalty 

2,base tes\imony. On cross-examination, it became painfully obvious that Dr. 

Etcoff had not been properly prepared. It was obvious that the defense had failed 

to provide a mountain of relevant evidence to Dr. Etcoff. On cross-examination, 

Dr. Etcoff admitted he had relied upon Mr. Chappell's statements. In fact, Dr. 

Etcoff believed that the couple v;as splitting up ,,vhich had occurred in the last few 

months prior to the victim's death (15 ROA 3550). Dr. Etcoff admitted that h id 

not know that the domestic violence had been going on for a le 

hat the roblems in the relationshi 

occurred shortly before the murder because Mr. Chappell told him so (15 ROA 

3551 ). Dr. Etcoff admitted that he was unaware that the problems had been --
provided evidence that the domestic violence was occurring on a weekly basis 

which resulted in injuries to Debra Panos (15 ROA 3551). 

23 
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Dr. Etcoff admitted that this information would be important in formulating 

his opinion (15 ROA 3551). However, Dr. Etcoff was unaware of these facts. Dr. 

Etcoff admitted that he was unaware of the incident on June 1, where the 

defendant had pinned the victim down and placed a knife to her throat (15 ROA 

3552). Dr. Etcoff admitted that he had not interviewed any of the witnesses 

associated with the years of domestic violence (15 ROA 3553). Dr. Etcoff 

admitted that the defense had not provided him any of this information prior to his 

testimony (15 ROA 3553). 

that the defense had not provided any additional information (15 ROA 3554). Dr. 

Etcoff admitted that the information was relevant for a psychologist. Yet, Mr. 

Etcoff freely admitted that he was now relying on very limited data because of the 

failure of the defense to provide him with the information (15 ROA 3554). Dr. 

Etcoff admitted he was not aware that Mr. Chappell had allegedly threatened to 

kill Debra the day before (15 ROA 3555). Dr. Etcoff admitted that he was not 

provided information that Debra had been shaking curled up in the fetal position 

shortly before the murder (15 ROA 3556). Dr. Etcoff admitted on cross­

examination that Mr. Chappell's story regarding consensual sex did not make 

sense (15 ROA 3556). Dr. Etcoff admitted that he believed the story didn't make 
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sense now that he had an opportunity to be cross-examined regarding all the 

information he was unaware of (15 ROA 3556). 

because there was semen found in Debra's vagina when Mr. Chappell denied 

ejaculation (15ROA 3557). Having concluded that Mr. Chappell's story was 

"bogus", Dr. Etcoff further concluded that the defense had not even provided him 

photos in the case (15 ROA 3557). At the conclusion of cross- examination, Dr. 

Etcoff explained that Mr. Chappell's statements that the fight occurred when he 

located the letters in Debra's car makes less sense (15 ROA 3558). 

On redirect examination, defense counsel asked: 

Q: And you knew he had a long history of domestic violence with 
Debbie? 

A: I don't know if I knew. I don't believe I knew he had a long 
history of domestic violence and what it entailed, I don't 
believe I knew that stuff 15 ROA 3576 . 

In essence, Dr. Etcoff provided opinions to the jury on direct examination 

that were entirely refuted after cross examination. Dr. Etcoff apparently provided 

opinions that he withdrew based upon his lack of knowledge of the case. The 

excerpts from the penalty phase demonstrate that Dr. Etcoff was not provided 

relevant information to provide his opinion. Surely, in pre trial interv1ew1ng and/or 
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preparation defense counsel would have provided Dr. Etcoff' s with the long 

history of domestic violence. That fact was uncontradicted during the penalty 

phase. Numerous witnesses descnbed years of domestic violence. 1' et, the 

defenses expert was unaware of these facts. 

During the direct examination of Dr. Etcoff, he was asked if it was common 

procedure to interview people associated with the defendant rather than just 

talking to the defendant ( 14 ROA 34 77). Dr. Etcoff replied, 

You want to, as a psycholog1st, you want 1f someone's mother, or 
brother, or sister, or wife, or someone who knows them well is around 

public defender Brooks if anyone in the family was available or could 
they be brought to Las Vegas so I could interview them, but that 

' ~~-,... he time 

was Mr. Chappell (14 ROA 3477). 

Dr. Etcoff was then asked by penalty phase counsel if he got an accurate 

evaluation from Mr. Chappell and Dr. Etcoff replied that it was "as accurate as you 

can get". The Court sustained the State's objection (14 ROA 3477). 

Here, more than ten ears after Dr. Etcoff had requested permission to speak 

to the defendant's family, penalty phase counsel never made family members 

available to Dr. Etcoff 
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The lack of pre trial preparation was evident and devastating to Mr. 

Chappell. By the conclusion of cross-examination, Dr. Etcoff admitted that Mr. 

Chappell' s story regarding consensual sex made no sense and was in fact "bogus". 

Dr. Etcoff apparently admitted that Mr. Chappell's story that he did not ejaculate 

was also unfounded. This was at a direct result of the failure to properly prepare 

the witness with accurate infonnation. 

Dr. William Danton is a clinical psychology at the University of Ne da, 

During Dr. Danton's direct examination, he explained different hypotheses 

for why Debra may have had sex with Mr. Chappell on the day of the murder. 

However, Dr. Danton stated "the only issue about that is if there were affairs with 

other men, that doesn't fit well with that hypothesis Of course, the other 

hypothesis is forced. He forced her to have sex" (14 ROA 3327). Here, the defense 

expert provided approximately four possible reasons for a sexual encounter with 

Mr. Chappell on the day of the murder. Dr. Danton concluded that one scenario 

would be forced sexual activity, providing the jury with the conclusion that rape 

was a certain possibility. 

Dr. Danton discussed domestic violence during his testimony. 

Unbelievably, Dr. Danton testified that he first met with Mr. Chappell (for two 

-.. 
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hours) the night before his testimony on March 15, 2007 (15 ROA 3321). Here, 

the jury is aware that the case had been pending for years. Dr. Etcoff testified that 

he had evaluated Mr. Chappell ten years prior to his testimony. However, the jury 

learns that one of three defense experts analyzed the defendant for the first time 

the night before his testimony. Again, this expert was not properly prepared to 

testify. Was the defense preparing to call Dr. Danton irregardless of his intervieVv' 

with the defendant? Did the defense not prepare prior to trial in an effort to present 

a domestic violence expert? Wny is the expert analyzing the defendant for the first 

time in the middle of the penalty phase? This fact establishes lack of pretrial 

preparation. 

During Dr. Danton's testimony, he surmised that Mr. Chappel may have 

blacked out during the actual murder. This testimony would corroborate Mr. 

Chappel' s trial testimony wherein he claimed he did not remember the actual facts 

of the stabbing. However, a juror asked a question of Dr. Danton. The juror asked 

"first off, in your opinion do you think that Mr. Chappell blacked out? If you have 

enough information to answer the question". (14 ROA 3371). Dr. Danton stated 

that he would be more on the side that Mr. Chappell did in fact black out (14 ROA 

3371). However, Dr. Danton then stated, "although I have to, in all honesty, I 

don't have enough data to conclusively say he blacked out. There is testing tha 

28 



AA04179

n 
0 
?="! 

0 
(Jl 

0 

• - -
could be done that might establish that, but I haven't done it" (14 ROA 3371). 

Additionally, Dr. Etcoff was extensively questioned as to whether he really 

believed 1f Mr. Chappell had blacked out. The State fevenshly argued that Mr. 

Chappell was lying about his testimony that he had blacked out during the actual 

murder. During Dr. Danton's testimony, he was later confronted with Dr. Etcoff's 

opinion that Mr. Chappell had not blacked out. Again, Dr. Danton confinned, "to 

my knowledge no tests were done that might specifically speak to that question" 

(14 ROA 3373). Here, the defense witnesses appear to be directly contradicting 

each other. Yet, the testing had not been conducted. More importantly, it is clear 

that defense counsel had not properly pretrialed the expert witnesses, otherwise 

counsel would have noticed that their witnesses were contradicting each other. 

Yet, defense counsel failed to confer with Dr Danton and ensure that the testing 

was aware of was conducted. Further proof of the failure to properly prepare for 

the penalty phase. 

The defense called Dr. Grey who testified that he had not seen the DNA 

I 

report (13 ROA 3230). The following is an excerpt from cross-examination: 
.......... 

Q: 

A: 
Q: 
A: 

So you didn't read the report that talks about the presence of 
sperm as well? 
I did not see that. 
But that would be conclusive that there was ejaculation? 
Yes (13 ROA 3230). 
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Again, penalty phase counsel failed to properly prepare their expert 

witnesses. If Dr. Grey had been given an opportunity to review the report and 

ISCUSS 

More importantly, this is more evidence that penalty phase counsel should have 

obtained an expert to establish that semen can be present without ejaculation. 

The following expert demonstrate further evidence of the failure to properly 

prepare Dr. Grey occurred during cross examination: 

Q: And that is based on what the defendants's version of events 
were? 

l\: Again, the specifics of hov; that information ,vas gathered I do 

Q: So you didn't look at the actual photographs or look at the 
evidence that was seized fro the scene in order to come to your 
conclusion? 

A: The only pictures I saw were the ones related to the victims 
position (13 ROA 3230). 

Dr. Grey also admitted that he had not been informed by the defense that 

Debra had been threatened in court the day before (13 ROA 3231). Additionally, 

Dr. Grey stated that he was unaware that Debra was shaking and afraid in the fetal 

position shortly before the murder (13 ROA 3231). Dr. Grey admitted that these 

threats were not taken into account regarding the issue of sexual assault (13 ROA 

3231 ). Dr. Grey was unaware that Mr. Chappell had testified that he had pinned 

Debra down and that there was a knife present (13 ROA 3232). Dr. Grey admitted 
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that he had not read Mr. Chappell's testimony (13 ROA 3232). 

There is a pattern of lack of preparation throughout the penalty phase where 

in experts do not appear to have the information necessary to provide accurate 

opinions. On cross-examination this lack of preparation was devastating to Mr. 

Chappell. 

E. FAILURE TO PROPERL'i PREPARE A LAY MITIGATION 
WITNESS 

The defense called Benjamin Dean as a mitigation witness (15 ROA 3706). 

Mr. Dean attended school with Mr. Chappel (15 ROA 3706). Not only did Mr. 

Dean grow up with Mr. Chappell but he also knew Debra (15 ROA 3709). On 

direct examination, Mr. Dean ,vas asked about the couple's relationship and he 

stated, "I didn't see any problems with them ... " (15 ROA 3708). However, on 

cross-examination Mr. Dean was severely impeached with his prior affidavit. On 

cross-examination Mr. Dean was asked whether he believed Debra was controlling 

and manipulating. Mr. Dean responded indicating he had never said that (15 ROA 

3709). On cross-examination Mr. Dean was asked whether Debra wanted to keep 

Mr. Chappell away from his old friends. Mr. Dean denied saying that (15 ROA 

3709). Mr. Dean denied ever stating that Debra was verbally abusive to James. 

However, having denied making any of these statements the prosecution then 
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showed Mr. Dean his signed affidavit from March of 2003 (15 ROA 3709). In the 

affidavit, Mr. Dean affirmed that Debra was controlling (15 ROA 3709). The 

affidavit described Debra as manipulative and that she did not hke his old friends 

(15 ROA 3709). The affidavit stated that Debra was abusive (15 ROA 3709). Mr. 

Dean had no credible answer for why his previous affidavit described Debra in 

such a poor light yet he denied making any of those statenrents in front of the jury. 

Obviously, penalty phase counsel did not properly pretrial Mr. Dean. The 

hrst portion of the pretnal should have been to review Mr. Dean's prior affidavit. 

Furthermore, based on the direct examination of Mr. Dean it appears penalty phase 

counsel may have been unaware of Mr. Dean's prior affidavit. This was a part of a 

larger pattern of the failure to prepare. This is conclusive evidence that counsel 

proceeded to trial on a day to day basis without properly preparing witnesses in an 

effort to spare Mr. Chappell' s life. 

Mr. Chappell is entitled to a new penalty phase due to ineffective assistance 
of counsel. 

IV. MR. CHAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
PENALTY PHASE TRIAL COUNSEL AND APPELLATE COUNSEL 
FOR FAILURE TO OBJECT TO THE CUMULATIVE VICTIM 
IMPACT PANEL IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, 
EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED 
STATES CONSTITUTION. 

On March 15, 2007, defense counsel specifically objected to victim impact 
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statements being provided by witnesses that are not family members. (14 ROA 

3271-3273). In response, the district court permitted victim impact statements 

from people other than faffilly members but specifically stated, .. as I said 

yesterday, to the extent we get to something overly cumulative in this presentation, 

I'll cut it off' (14 ROA 3273). On appeal, appellate counsel argued that the distnct 

db . . h . . d " . . . . court errey pe11111tt1ng t e prosecution to 1ntro ace excessive v1cttm nnpact 

testimony" (Order of Affirmance pp. 18). Specifically, appellate counsel 

complained that non-faffilly members provided extensive impact evidence and that 

the State had failed to include in the notice mandated by Supreme Court Rule 

250(4)(f). 

First, on appeal, this Court explained, "however, Chappell did not object on 

the grounds of insufficient notice and thus the second claim is reviewed for plain 

error effecting his substantial rights". See, Archanian v. State, 122 Nev. 1019, 

1031, 145 P.3d 1008, 1017 (2006). The failure to trial penalty phase counsel to 

object mandated a higher standard of review on appeal. Trial penalty phase 

counsel was therefore ineffective for failing to object. 

Additionally, appellate counsel failed to inform the Supreme Court that the 

victim impact statements were overly cumulative. For instance, the State provided 

live testimony of a witness and then having questioning the witness, asked the 
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witness to read a statement that had been prepared prior to testimony. The written 

statements appeared to explain the same victim impact that had already been 

testified to. 

Mr. Mike Pollard previously testified at the first trial. His testimony was 

read to the jury in its entirety (13 ROA 3114). Over the defense objection, the 

3678). The State admitted, "your honor, earlier in the case we read some 

testimony. We were unable to locate Mr. Mike Pollard. Later that day he - - we got 

a call from him so he's available. We Vv'ould like to call him for a fe1.v brief 

questions with regard to impact" (15 ROA 3678). Unfortunately, Mr. Pollard's 

live testimony mirrored his testimony that was read in terms of the victim impact. 

This was objected to by trial penalty counsel but oat raised on appeal. This is 

proof that the district court permitted overly cumulative presentation of victim 

impact that was not even associated with the victims family. 

In both Mr. Pollard's live testimony and his previously read testimony, he 

indicated that he worked at GE Capital ( 15 ROA 3679; 13 ROA 3115). In both 

testimonies he indicated he met Debra at work (15 ROA 3679, 13 ROA 3115). In 

both testimonies he indicated that he had become close friends with the victim (15 

ROA 3679,13 ROA 3116). In both testimonies, Mr. Pollard discussed that Debra 
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had been on his sofa shortly before the murder (15 ROA 3679, 13 ROA 3131). In 

his live testimony, Mr. Pollard indicated that he had felt saddened that Debra's 

children would grow up without a mother (15 ROA 3679). In his hve testimony, 

he described Debra as "a very sweet person" who was very friendly (15 ROA 

3679). In his live testimony, Mr. Pollard explained that he ended up quitting his 

job because he could not concentrate and that he had to rnove out of Nevada, 

based on the victim impact (15 ROA 3679). In his previously read testimony, he 

described Debra as a kind hearted person who was very fnendly (13 ROA 3134). 

In his previously read testimony he described hov✓ Debra loved her children very 

much (13 ROA 3134). Mr. Pollard described Debra as kind hearted and happy go 

lucky (13 ROA 3134). 

Moreover, cumulative impact testimony is present during the testimony of 

Carol Monson (15 ROA 3681). Ms. Monson was Debra's Aunt. Ms. Monson 

testified regarding victim impact for approximately ten pages. Thereafter, Ms. 

Monson was permitted to read letters from other witnesses including Christina 

Reese, Ms. Dorris Waskowski (15 ROA 3684). Having read the letters from Ms. 

Reese and Ms. Waskowski, the State had Ms. Monson read further updated letters 

from both of these witnesses (Reese and Waskowski). If that wasn't sufficiently 

cumulative, the State had Ms. Monson read her own letter that is almost four 
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further pages of text (15 ROA 3681-3686). Here, Ms. Monson was permitted to 

provide live testimony explaining the impact Debra's death had upon her. Then, 

she was permitted to read two prior letters written by individuals who had been 

impacted by Debra's death. Then, Ms. Monson was asked to read updated letters 

from those two individuals. Then, Ms. Monson was asked to read a letter that she 

had prepared. 

The district court claimed it would preclude cumulative victim impact 

statements. Here, the cumulative effect was overwhelming. This was not raised on 

appeal to this Court. 

"A district court's decision to admit particular evidence during the penalty 

phase is within the sound discretion of the district court and will not be disturbed 

absent an abuse of that discretion" Johnson v. State, 122 Nev. 1344, 1353, 148 

P.3d 767, 774 (2006) (quoting, McConnell v. State, 120 Nev. 1043, 1057, 102 

P.3d 606, 616 (2004)(quotation marks omitted). In the instant case, the district 

court abused its discretion when it permitted this continuously cumulative victim 

impact. This was specifically objected to by counsel at the penalty phase. On 

appeal, appellate counsel complained that the district court had permitted an 

excessive amount of victim impact. The supreme Court disagreed. On appeal, this 

Court held that individuals outside the victims families can present victim impact. 
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See, Wesley v. State, 112 Nev. 503, 519, 916 P.2d793, 804 (1996). However, the 

Court cannot permit people to provide live testimony and then have their 

testimony read into evidence and then provide bve testimony which mirrors the 

previously read testimony, regarding victim impact. The court cannot permit 

individuals to provide live testimony regarding the impact and thereafter read 

lengthy statements mino1ing the itnpact. Clearly, the district court permitted 

overly cumulative victim impact over Mr. Chappell's objection. 

It was ineffective assistance of trial counsel to fail to object to the notice 

requirement v1hich 1tvas raised on direct appeal. It 1tvas ineffective assistance of 

appellate counsel from the second penalty phase for failure to inform the supreme 

court regarding the extent to the cumulative victim impact that was presented. Had 

this Court known the extent of the error, Mr. Chappe11's penalty phase would have 

been reversed. 

V. PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING 
TO OBJECT TO IMPROPER PROSECUTORIAL ARGUMENTS 
DURING THE PENALTY PHASE IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, 
SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED 
STATES CONSTITUTION . 

Specifically, in appellant's Opening Brief on appeal from the second penalty 

phase, appellate counsel complained of excessive prosecutorial misconduct. On 

appeal, counsel noted that trial counsel did not object to this misconduct and 
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therefore the court had to consider the matter for plain error. U.S. v. Olano, 507 

U.S. 525, 731 (1993); U.S. v. Leon. v. Reyes, 177 F.3d 816,821 (9th Cir. 1999). 

The following is a list of arguments raised by penalty phase appellate counsel 

which were not objected to at the penalty phase. 
1. Misstating the role of nritigating circa1nstances 
2. "Don't let the defendant fool you" 
3. Justice and Mercy arguments 

This Court specifically noted that Mr. Chappell failed to object to the 

comparative \Vorth, role of the mitigating circumstances, the mercy argument, and 

the argument that Chappell conned the jury. This Court considered these 

arguments for plain error. Penalty phase counsel 1nade numerous e1101s that taken 

as a whole must result in reversal 

VI. PENAL TY PHASE COUNSEL AND PENAL TY PHASE APPELLATE 
COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO RAISE 
SEVERAL INSTANCES OF IMPROPER PROSECUTORIAL 
ARGUMENT WHICH SHOULD HA VE BEEN RAISED 
SIMULTANEOUSLY IN MR. CHAPPELL'S APPEAL IN 
VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES 
CONSTITUTION. 

During the cross-examination of Dr. Etcoff, testimony was elicited that Mr. 

Chappell had complained he had been arrested for a domestic violence incident in 

front of his children (15 ROA 3541-3542). The prosecutor questioned Dr. Etcoff 

stating: 
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Q: Because it probably marked his otherwise sterling reputation he 

had with his children at that point to see the police for the tenth 
time taking their father off in handcuffs (15 ROA 3542). 

Defense counsel objected and the court sustained the objection. This issue 

-
was not raised on appeal. 

rovides, Evidence of other crimes, wrongs, or acts is not 

adnrissible to prove the character of a person in 01de1 to show that the acted in 

conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other purposes, such as 

proof of motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or 

absence of mistake or accident. 

NRS 48.045 states, "[E]vidence of other crimes, wrongs, or acts is not 

admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in 

conformity therewith See, Taylor v State, 109 Nev. 849, 853, 858 P.2d 843, 846 

(1993). See also, Beck v. State, 105 Nev. 910, 784 P.2d 983 (1989). However, an 

exception to this general rule exists. Prior bad act evidence is admissible in order 

to prove motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or 

absence of mistake or accident. See, NRS 48.045(2). It is within the trial court's 

sound discretion whether evidence of a prior bad act is admissible .... Cipriano v. 

State, 111 Nev. 534, 541, 894 P.2d 347, 352 (1995). See also, Crawford v. State, 

107 Nev. 345, 348, 811 P.2d 67, 69 (1991). 
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In the instant case, there is no evidence that Mr. Chappell was arrested ten 

times in front of his children. However, undoubtedly the jury would have believed 

that the children were exposed to approximately ten arrests because the prosecutor 

posed the question in that manner. First, it is improper for a prosecutor to elude to 

facts outside of the record which deny the defendant a right to a fair hearing. 

Agard v. Po1tuondo, 117 F.3d 696, 711 (2nd Cir. 1997)(holding that alluding to 

facts that are not in evidence is prejudicial and not at all probative)(cert. granted 

on other grounds, 119 Sup. Ct. 1248 (1999). This Court has frequently condemned 

prosecutors from eluding to facts outside of the record. See, EG, Guy v. State, 108 

Nev. 770, 780, 839 P.2d 578, 585 (1992)(cert. denied, 507 U.S. 109 (1993); 

Sandbum v. State, 107 Nev. 399, 408-409, 812 P.2d 1279, 1286 (1999); Jimimez 

v State, 106 Mev. 769, 772, 801 P.2d 1366, 1368 (1990); Collier v. State, 101 

Nev. 473,478, 705 P.2d 1126, 1129 (1985). 

There was absolutely no proof that Mr. Chappell had been arrested ten times 

in front of his children. It was highly improper for the prosecutor to make such as 

assertion. The average juror has confidence that the obligations of the prosecutor 

will be faithfully observed. Consequently, improper suggestions, insinuations, and 

especially assertions of personal knowledge are apt to carry much weight against 

the accused when they should properly carry none. 

40 



AA04191

n 
0 
?="! 

0 
(Jl 

0 

• - -
This issue was not raised on appeal from the penalty phase. This question 

was highly improper. The statement violated NRS 48.045(b) and has been 

denounced by both state and federal courts. Had this issue been raised on appeal, 

this Court would have reversed Mr. Chappell's sentence of death. 

Next, during closing argument, the prosecution described how Mr. Chappell 

"choose evil" (16 ROA 3778). The prosecution also stated that Mr. Chappell is "a 
, ....----
despicable human being" (16 ROA 3779). This comments were neither objected to 

at the penalty phase nor raised on appeal. The attorneys were therefore ineffective. 

It is improper for prosecutors to ridicule or disparage the defendant. Indeed "the 

prosecutor's obligation to desist from the use of pejorative language and 

inflammatory rhetoric is as every bit as solemn as his obligation to attempt to 

bring the guilty to account" JI S v Rodriguez-Estrada, 877 F.2d 153, 159 (1 st
- Cir. 

1989). 

This Court has long recognized that a prosecutor has a duty not to ridicule 

or belittle the defendant. See. Earl v. State, 111 Nev. 1304, 904 P.2d 1029, 1033 

(1995), Jones v. State, 113 Nev. 454, 937 P.2d 55, 62 (1997). In U.S. v. 

Weatherless, 734 F.2d 179, 181 (4th Cir. 1984), the Court stated that it was beneath 

the standard of a prosecutor to refer to the accused as a "sick man". (Cert denied, 

469 U.S. 1088 (1984)). Court have held it improper for a prosecutor to 
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characterize defendants as "evil men". See, People v. Hawkins. 410 N.E. 2d 309 

(Illinois 1980). A prosecutor referring to the defendant as a maniac exceeded the 

bounds of propriety. People v. Terrell, 310 NE 2d 791, 795 (Illinois Ap. Ct. 1994). 

Improper for a prosecutor to refer to the defendant as "slime". Biondo v. State, 533 

South 2d 910-911 (FALA 1988). Reversing conviction where prosecutor referred 

to the defendant as "crud". Patterson v. State, 747 P.2d 535, 537-38 (Alaska, 

1987). Condemning prosecutor's remarks referring to the defendant as a "rabid 

animal". Jones v. State, 113 Nev. 454, 468-69 937 P.2d at 62. 

In the instant case, the comments made by the prosecutor taken as a \¥hole 

must result in a reversal. Here, the prosecutor stated that the defendant had been 

arrested ten times in front of his children, which hurt his "sterling reputation". The 

defendant was referred to as a "despicable human being". The defendant "choose 

evil". These comments were not objected to during the penalty phase or on appeal 

from the penalty phase. If this Court had been aware that these comments had been 

made (and not isolated) the result of the appeal from the penalty phase would have 

resulted in reversal. Mr. Chappell received ineffective assistance of penalty phase 

trial counsel and appellate counsel. 

VII. MR. CHAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL AND APPELLATE COUNSEL FOR 
FAILURE TO OBJECT TO IMPROPER IMPEACHMENT IN 
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VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND FOURTEENTH 
AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION. 

Mr. Chappell called Fred Scott Dean as a mitigation witness. Mr. Dean was 

important to Chappell's mitigation because he had known Mr. Chappell 

throughout his life (15 ROA 3696-3697). Mr. Dean admitted that he had been 

convicted of federal drug trafficking and drug possession (State and Federal 

convictions) (15 ROA 3701). However, on cross-examination, the prosecutor 

elicited the follov;ing testimony from Mr. Dean: 

Q· How long were you prison for? 
A: Twelve years. 
Q: That's a long time. 
A: Yes sir. 
Q: What kind of charges? 
A: Like I said drug possession, and the other one was interstate 

dru traffickin . 
Q: Were there other charges that were dismissed as part of your 

deal there? 
A: There was no rett much deal. That was just - - it was plead to 

the lesser charge versus the charge that I was charged with. 
Yes. 

Q: So you plead to a lesser charge? 
A: Yes. 
Q: And the lesser charge was? 
A: 12-30 - well, it was 20-30 the judge sentenced me to 12-30. 
Q: And that was a drug charge? 
A: Yes sir. 
Q: What was the more serious charge that was reduced/ 

was trying to t 1n o ow t ey tit e 1t, possession o rugs 
over 65 grams. 
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Q: 

Q: 

Q: 
A: 
Q: 

A: 
Q: 
A: 

-
Was this cocaine? 

es sir. 
65 grams is a lot of cocain. 

A: Yes sir. 
So this was drug trafficking or this was trafficking quantity? 
Yes sir. 
And the minimum sentence would have been a lot more severe 
if you hadn't done the deal? 
When you say deal, what do you mean by that? 
Taking the lesser plea. 
I would have been worse, yes sir (15 ROA 3702). 

NRS 50.095 impeachment by evidence of conviction of a crime: 

1. The purpose of attacking the credibility of a witness, evidence that 
the witness has been convicted of a crime is admissible but only if the 
crime was punishable by death or imprisonment for more than 1 year 
under the law under which the witness was convicted. 

This Court and the federal courts have made it abundantly clear that 

impeachment with a felony conviction cannot go into the facts in details of the 

conviction. Here, Mr. Dean freely admitted that he had drug convictions. The 

prosecutor went into significant detail. This was highly improper. 

For example, in Jacobs v. State, 91 Nev. 155, 532 P.2d 1034 (1975), this 

Court held that an inquiry into the credibility of a witness may be attacked by 

evidence that a witness has been convicted of a crime however it was error to 

allow questioning concerning the actual term that was imposed. Although a 

witness may be impeached with evidence of prior conv1ct1ons, the details and 
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circumstances of the prior crimes are not an appropriate subject of inquiry. Shults 

v. State, 96 Nev. 742, 616 P.2d 3 88 (1980). 

The prosecutor elicited numerous answers which were in violation of the 

statute and case law. This statute mirrors the federal statutes on point. Neither 

counsel for Mr. Chappell at the penalty phase or on appeal objected. Mr. Chappell 

1eceived ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to object to this issue. 

Pursuant to the prejudice standard enunciated in Strickland, the result of the 

appeal would have mandated reversal had this issue been properly raised. 

VIII. THE DISTRICT COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR IN 
ALLOWING THE ADMISSION OF EVIDENCE OF SE-.-iERAL BAD 
ACTS THUS VIOLATING APPELLANT'S FIFTH, SIXTH AND 
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS AND WARRANTING 
REVERSAL OF HIS PENAL TY PHASE. 

During the State's case in chief, I ,adonna Jackson was called as a witness. 

Ms. Jackson knew Mr. Chappell from the Vera Johnson Housing project (13 ROA 

3198). Over defense counsel's object, Ms. Jackson was allowed to testify that Mr. 

Chappell made money "by stealing" (13 ROA 3203). Defense counsel objected 

and the court overruled the objection. The State is required to place the defendant 

on notice of evidence to be used at the penalty phase. There is no indication in the 

record that Mr. Chappell was on notice that Ms. Jackson would provide her 

opinion that Mr. Chappell was a thief. See, Nunnery v. State, 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 
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69(October 27, 2011). 

NRS 48.045(2) provides, Evidence of other crimes, wrongs, or acts is not 

adnnss1ble to prove the character of a person in order to show that the acted in 

conformity therewith. It may, however, be admissible for other purposes, such as 

proof of motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or 

absence of nristake 01 accident. 

Once the court's ruled that evidence is probative of one of the permissible 

issues under NRS 48.045(2), the court must decide whether the probative value of 

the evidence is substantially out•.veighed by its prejudicial effect. 

NRS 48.045 states, "[E]vidence of other crimes, wrongs, or acts is not 

admissible to prove the character of a person in order to show that he acted in 

conformity therewith See, Taylor v. State, 109 Nev. 849,. 853, 858 P.2d 843, 846 

(1993). See also, Beck v. State, 105 Nev. 910, 784 P.2d 983 (1989). However, an 

exception to this general rule exists. Prior bad act evidence is admissible in order 

to prove motive, opportunity, intent, preparation, plan, knowledge, identity, or 

absence of mistake or accident. See, NRS 48.045(2). It is within the trial court's 

sound discretion whether evidence of a prior bad act is admissible .... Cipriano v. 

State, 111 Nev. 534, 541, 894 P.2d 347, 352 (1995). See also, Crawford v. State, 

107 Nev. 345, 348, 811 P.2d 67, 69 (1991). 
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"The duty placed upon the trial court to strike a balance between the 

prejudicial effect of such evidence on the one hand, and its probative value on the 

other is a grave one to be resolved by the exercise of judicial discretion .... Of 

course the discretion reposed in the trial judge is not unlimited, but an appellate 

court will respect the lower court's view unless it is manifestly wrong." Bonacci v. 

State, 96 Nev. 894, 620 P.2d 1244 (1980), citing, Brown v. State, 81 Nev. 397, 

400,404 P.2d 428 (1965). 

In the instant case, Mr. Chappell should not have had to defend against 

unfounded allegations made during the penalty phase. It ,vas ineffective assistance 

of appellate counsel for failure to raise this issue. 
IX. THE DEATH PENALTY IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL 1 

Mr. Chappell's state and federal constitutional rights to due process, equal 

protection, right to be free form cruel and unusual punishment, and right to a fair 

penalty hearing were violated because the death penalty is unconstitutional. U.S. 

Const. Amend. V, VI, VII, XIV; Nevada Const. Art. I, Sec. 3, 6 and 8; Art. IV, 

Sec. 21. 

Nevada law requires that execution be inflicted by an injection of a lethal 

'Mr. Chappell acknowledges that this Court has consistently denied this 

issue. However, Mr. Chappell presents this issue to preserve it for federal review. 
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drug. NRS 176.355(1). Competent physicians cannot administer the lethal 

injection, because the ethical standards of the American Medical Association 

proh1b1t phys1c1ans from part1c1pating in an execution other than to certify that a 

death has occurred. American Medical Association, House of Delegates, 

Resolution 5 (1992); American Medical Association, Judicial Council, Current 

Opinion 2.06 (1980). Non-physician staff from the Deparllnent of Conections 

will have the responsibility of locating veins and injecting needles which are 

connected to the lethal 1nJection machine. 

In recent executions in states employing lethal injection, prolonged and 

unnecessary pain has been suffered by the condemned individual by difficulty in 

inserting needles and by unexpected chemical reactions among the drugs or 

violent reactions to them by the condemned individual 

The following lethal injection executions, among others, have produced 

prolonged and unnecessary pain: Stephen Peter Morin: March 13, 1985 (Texas), 

Randy Woolls: August 20, 1986 (Texas), Raymond Landry: December 13, 1988 

(Texas), Stephen McCoy: May 24, 1989 (Texas), Rickey Ray Rector: January 24, 

1992 (Arkansas), Robyn Lee Parks: March 10, 1992 (Oklahoma), Billy Wayne 

White: April 23, 1992 (Texas), Justin Lee May: May 7, 1992 (Texas) 

John Wayne Gacy: May 19, 1994 (Illinois), and Tommie Smith: July 18, 1996 
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(Indiana). 

Because of inability of the State of Nevada to carry out Mr. Chappell's 

execution without the infliction of cruel and unusual punishment, the sentence 

must be vacated. 

A. NEV ADA'S DEATH PENAL TY SCHEME DOES NOT 
NARROW THE CLASS OF PERSONS ELIGIBLE FOR THE 
DEATII PENALTY. 

Under contemporary standards of decency, death is not an appropriate 

punishment for a substantial portion of convicted first-degree murderers. 

Woodson, 428 U.S. at 296. l· .. capital sentencing scheme must genuinely narrow 

the class of persons eligible for the death penalty. Hollaway, 116 Nev. 732, 6P.3d 

at 996; Arave, 507 U.S. at 474; Zant, 462 U.S. at 877; McConnell, 121 Nev. At 30, 

107 P.3d at 1289. Despite the Supreme Court's requirement for restrictive use of 

the death sentence, Nevada law permits broad imposition of the death penalty for 

virtually and all first-degree murderers. As a result, in 2001, Nevada had the 

second most persons on death row per capita in the nation. James S. Liebman, A 

Broken System: Error Rates in Capital Cases, 1973-1995 (2000); U.S. Dept. Of 

Justice, Bureau of Justice Statistics Bulletin, Capital Punishment 2001; U.S. 

Census Bureau, State population Estimates: April 2000 to July 2001, 

http://eire.census.gov/pspest/date/states/tables/ST-eest2002-01. php. Professor 
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Liebman found that from 1973 through 1995, the national average of death 

sentences per 100,000 population, in states that have the death penalty, was 3.90. 

Liebman, at App. E-11. 

Mr. Chappell recognizes that this Court has repeatedly affirmed the 

constitutionality of Nevada's death penalty scheme. See Leonard. 117 Nev. at 83, 

17 P.3d at 416 and cases cited therein. 

B. THE DEATH PENALTY IS CRUEL AND UNUSUAL 
PUNISIIMENT. 

Mr. Chappell's death sentence is invalid under the state and federal 

constitutional guarantees of due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence 

because the death penalty is cruel and unusual punishment and under the Eighth 

and Fourteenth Amendments. He recognizes that this Court has found the death 

penalty to be constitutional, but urges this Court to overrule its prior decisions and 

presents this issue to preserve it for federal review. 

Under the federal constitution, the death penalty is cruel and unusual in all 

circumstances. See Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 227 (Brennan, J., dissenting); 

id. at 231 (Marshall, J., dissenting); contra, id. at 188-195 (Opn. of Stewart, 

Powell and Stevens, JJ.); id. at 276 (White, J., concurring in judgment). since 

stare decisis is not consistently adhered to in capital cases, e.g., Payne v. 
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Tennessee, 111 S.Ct. 2597 (1991), this court and the federal courts should 

reevaluate the constitutional validity of the death penalty. 

1'he death penalty 1s also 1nvahd under the Nevada Constitution, which 

prohibits the imposition of "cruel or unusual" punishments. Nev. Const. Art. 1 § 

6. While the Nevada case law has ignored the difference in terminology, and had 

treated this provision as the equivalent of the federal constitutional prohibition 

against "cruel and unusual punishments, e.g. Bishop v. State, 95 Nev. 511, 517-

518, 597 P.2d 273 (1979), 1t has been recognized that the language of the 

constitution affords greater protection than the federal charter: "under this 

provision, if the punishment is either cruel or unusual, it is prohibited. "Mickle v. 

Henrichs, 262 F. 687 (D. Nev. 1918). While the infliction of the death penalty 

may not have been considered "cruel" at the time of the adoption of the 

constitution in 1864, "the evolving standards of decency that make the progress of 

a maturing society. "Trop v. Dulles, 356 U.S. 86, 101 (1958) have led in the 

recognition even by the staunchest advocates of its permissibility in the abstract, 

that killing as a means of punishment is always cruel. See (Furman v. Georgia, 

408 U.S. 238,312 (White, J., concurring); See Walton v. Arizona, 110 S.Ct. 3047, 

3066 (1990) (Scalia, J., concurring). Accordingly, under the disjunctive language 

of the Nevada Constitution, the death penalty cannot be upheld. 
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C. EXECUTIVE CLEMENCY IS UNAVAILABLE. 

Mr. Chappell's death sentence is invalid because Nevada has no real 

mechanism to provide for clemency in capital cases. Nevada law provides that 

prisoners sentenced to death may apply for clemency to the State Board of Pardons 

Commissioners. See NRS 213.010. Executive clemency is an essential safeguard 

in a state's decision to deprive an individual of life, as indicated by the fact that 

ever of the 38 states that has the death penalty also has clemency procedures. Ohio 

Adult parole Authority v. Woodward, 523 U.S. 272, 282 n. 4 (1998) (Stevens, J., 

concurring in part, dissenting in part). Having established clemency as a 

safeguard, these states must also ensure that their clemency proceedings comport 

with due process. Evitts v. Lucey, 469 U.S. 387,401 (1985). Nevada's clemency 

statutes, NRS 213.005-213.100, do not ensure that death penalty inmates receive 

procedural due process. See Mathews v. Eldrige, 424 U.S. 319, 335 (1976). As a 

practical matter, Nevada does not grant clemency to death penalty inmates. Since 

1973, well over 100 people have been sentenced to death in Nevada. Bureau of 

Justice Statistics Report, Capital Punishment 2006 (December 2007 NCJ 220219). 

The failure to have a functioning clemency procedure makes Nevada's death 

penalty scheme unconstitutional, requiring the vacation of Mr. Chappell's 

sentence. 
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X. MR. CHAPPELL'S CONVICTION AND DEATH SENTENCE ARE 
INVALID UNDER THE STATE AND FEDERAL 
CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES OF DUE PROCESS, EQUAL 
PROTECTION, TRIAL BEFORE AN IMPARTIAL ,JURY AND A 
RELIABLE SENTENCE BECAUSE THE PROCEEDINGS AGAINST 
HIM VIOLATED INTERNATIONAL LAW. U.S. CONST. AMENDS. 
V, VI VIII AND XIV; NEV. CONST. ART. I SECS. 3, 6 AND 8; ART 
IV, SEC. 21. 2 

1. Both the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and the 

International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights recognize the right to life. 

Universal Declaration of Harnan Rights, G.A. Res. 217, U.N. Doc. A/810, Art. 3 

(1948) [hereinafter "UDHR"]; International Covenant on Civil and Political 

Rights, adopted December 19, 1966, Art. 6, 999 0.N.T.S. 171 (entered into force 

March 23, 1976) [hereinafter "ICCPR"]. The ICCPR provides that "[n]o one shall 

be arbitrarily deprived of his life." ICCPR, Art. 6. 

2. The United States Government and the State of Nevada are required 

to abide by norms of international law The Paquet Habana, 20 S Ct. 290 

(l 900)("international law is part of our law and must be ascertained and 

administered by the courts of justice of appropriate jurisdictions"). The 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution specifically requires the State 

2 Mr. Chappell acknowledges that this Court has consistently denied this 

issue. However, Mr. Chappell presents this issue to preserve it for federal review. 
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of Nevada to honor the United States' treaty obligations. U.S. Constitution, Art. 

VI. 

3. Nevada is bound by the ICCPR because the United States has signed 

and ratified the treaty. In addition, under Article 4 of the ICCPR no country is 

allowed to derogate from Article 6. Nevada is bound by the UDCR because the 

document is a fundamental part of Customary International Law. Therefore, 

Nevada has an obligation not to take life arbitrarily. 

XI. CHAPPELL'S CONVICTION AND SEN'I'ENCE ARE INVALID 
UNDER THE STATE AND FEDERAL CONSTITUTIONAL 
GUARANTEE OF DUE PROCESS, EQUAL PROTECTION OF THE 
LAWS, EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AND RELIABLE 
SENTENCE BECAUSE THE .JURY INSTRUCTIONS GIVEN AT 
TRIAL WERE FAULTY AND WERE NOT THE SUBJECT OF 
CONTEMPORANEOUS OBJECTION BY TRIAL COUNSEL, NOT 
RAISED ON DIRECT APPEAL BY APPELLATE COUNSEL, NOT 
RAISED BY PENALTY PHASE APPELLATE COUNSEL, AND NOT 
RE-RAISED BY PENALTY PHASE COUNSEL. 

In the instant case, Mr. Chappell is entitled to a reversal of bis conviction 

based upon an unconstitutional instruction being used to convict Mr. Chappell of 

first degree murder. 

The jury instruction given defining premeditation and deliberation was 

constitutionally infirm and denied Mr. Chappell due process and equal protection 

under the United States and Nevada Constitutions. The instruction failed to 

54 



AA04205

n 
0 
?="! 

0 
(Jl 

0 

-
provide the jury with any rational or meaningful guidance as to the concept of 

premeditation and deliberation and thereby eliminated any rational distinction 

between hrst and second degree murder. The instruction given does not require 

any premeditation at all and thus violates the constitutional guarantee of due 

process of law because it is so bereft of meaning as to the definition of two 

elenrents of the statutory offense of first degree murder as to allow virtually 

unlimited prosecutorial discretion in charging decisions. 

'l'he United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit considered an 

identical issue in Chambers v. E.K. McDaniel, 549 F.3d 1191, (9th Cir. 2008). In 

Chambers, the Court held that the defendant's federal constitutional right to due 

process was violated because the instruction given to convict him of first degree 

murder was missing an essential element and that the error was not harmless. 549 

F.3d 1191, 1193. In Chambers, the defendant argued that the Nevada State Court's 

rejection of his due process argument regarding the jury instruction on 

premeditation "resulted in a decision that was contrary to, or involved an 

unreasonable application of, clearly established Federal law, as determined by the 

Supreme Court of the United States" Id. at 1199. 

In Chambers, the Ninth Circuit explained, 

In Polk v. Sandoval, 503 F.3d 903,911 (9th Cir. 2007), we held that 
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the same jury instruction on premeditation at issue here was 
constitutionally defective, and the Nevada court's fmlure to correct 
the error was contrary to clearly established federal law, as 
determined by the Supreme Court. Id. (Internal quotation marks 
omitted) 

In the instant case, an instruction lacking an essential element of first degree 

murder was used to convict Mr. Chappell. 

The Byford instruction states, 

Murder of the first degree is murder which is perpetrated by 
means of any kind of v1illful, deliberate, and premeditated killing. All 
three elements willfulness, deliberation, and premeditation must be 
proven beyond a reasonable doubt before an accused can be 
convicted of first degree murder. 

Willfulness is the intent to kill. There need be not appreciable 
space of time between the formation of the intent to kill and the act of 

Deliberation is the process of determining upon a course of 
action to kill as a result of though, including weighing the reasons for 
and against the action and considering the consequences of the 
actions. 

A deliberate determination may be arrived at in a short period 
of time. But in all cases the determination must not be formed in 
passion, or if formed in passion, it must be carried out after there has 
been time for the passion to subside and deliberation to occur. A mere 
unconsidered and rash impulse is not deliberate, even though it 
includes the intent to kill. 

Premeditation is a design, a determination to kill, distinctly 
formed in the mind by the time of the killing. 

Premeditation need not be for a day, an hour, or even a minute. 
It may be as instantaneous as successive thoughts of the mind. For if 
the jury believes from the evidence that the act constituted the killing 
has been preceded by and has been the result of premeditation, no 
matter how rapidly the act follows the premeditation, it is 
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premeditated. 

'l'he law does not undertake to measure in units of time the 
length of the period during which the thought must be pondered 
before it can ripen into tan intent to kill which is truly deliberate and 
premeditated. The time will vary with different individuals and under 
varying circumstances. 

The true test is not the duration of time, but rather the extent of 
the reflection. A cold, calculated judgment and decision rnay be 
arrived at in a short period of time, but a mere unconsidered and rash 
impulse, even though it includes an intent to kill, is not deliberation 
and premeditation as will fix an unlawful killing as murder in the first 

egree. 

At trial, Mr. Chappell was given the follo-·wing instruction: 

Premeditation is a design, a determination to kill, formed in the 
mind of the killer at any moment before or at the time of killing. 

Premeditation need not be for a day, an hour or even a minute. 
It may be as instantaneous as successive thoughts of the mind If the 
jury believes from the evidence that the act constituting the killing 
was preceded by and is the result of premeditation , no matter how 
rapidly the premeditation is followed by the act constituting the 
killing, it is willful, deliberate and premeditated murder 
(Instruction 22). 

In Chambers, the Court explained, "[E[ ven though a constitutional error 

occurred, Chambers is not entitled to relief unless he can show that "the error had 

substantial and injurious effect or influence in determining the jury's verdict." Id. 

at 1200. If there is grave doubt as to whether the error has such an effect the 

petitioner is entitled to the writ. Coleman v. Calderon, 210 F.3d 1047, 1051 (9th 

Cir. 2000). 
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In Chambers the Court concluded, 

Chambers' federal constitutional due process right was violated by the 
instructions given by the trial court at his murder trial, as they 
permitted the Jury to convict him of hrst-degree murder without 
finding separately all three elements of that crime: willfulness, 
deliberation, and premeditation. The error was not harmless. The 
Nevada Supreme Court's decision denying Chambers' petition for an 
extraordinary writ and rejecting his due process claim was contrary to 
clearly established federal law. 549 F.3d 1191 (9th Cir. 2008). 

In the instant case, the Kazalyn 116 Nev. 215, 994 P.2d 700 (2000) 

instruction given during Mr. Chappell' s trial may well have caused a jury to return 

a verdict of first degree murder when a verdict less than first degree murder was 

probable. Hence, had the correct jury instruction been provided, a reasonable juror 

could have found that Mr. Chappell was acting rashly, rather than a cold 

calculated judgement after premeditation and deliberation had occurred. 

Therefore, the fact that all three elements of first degree murder were not 

enunciated to the jury in the form of an instruction mandates that Mr. Chappell 

should receive a new trial. Trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object to the 

giving of the Kazalyn instruction, direct appeal counsel was ineffective for failing 

to raise this issue on direct appeal, penalty phase counsel should have re-raised 

this issue before the district court prior to Mr. Chappell's third penalty phase, and 

counsel on appeal from the penalty phase was ineffective for failing to raise this 
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issue. 

XII. MR. CHAPPELL RECEIVED INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF 
COUNSEL BASED UPON CUMULATIVE ERROR. 

In Dechant v. State, 10 P.3d 108, 116 Nev. 918 (2000), this Court reversed 

the murder conviction of Amy Dechant based upon the cumulative effect of the 

errors at trial. In Dechant, this Court provided, "[W]e have stated that if the 

cumulative effect of errors comm1tted at tnal denies the appellant his right to a fair 

trial, this Court •will reverse the conviction. Id. at 113 citing Big Pond v. State, 

101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289 (1985). The Court explained that there are 

certain factors in deciding whether error is hannless or prejudicial including 

whether 1) the issue of guilt or innocence is close, 2) the quantity and character of 

the area and 3) the gravity of the crime charged. Id. 

Based on the foregoing, Mr. Chappell would respectfully request that this 

Court reverse his conviction based upon cumulative errors of trial and appellate 

counsel. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 
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CONCLUSION 

Based on the foregoing, Mr. Chappell respectfully requests this Court order 

reversal of his convictions. 

DATED this 6th day of January, 2014. 

Respectfully submitted: 

/s/ Christopher R. Oram, Esq. 
CHRIS'l'OPHER R. ORAM, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 004349 
520 S. Fourth Street, 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
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County, Arizona. l 1,:vas a coworker of Deborah ".Debbie" Panos, \Ve both \.Vorked at the 

Tucson Police l)ep.:irtn1enl's (TPI)) Con1munications Division during the l990s. I retired 

frorn the division a little more than five vears acro. .. '" 

2. I first met Debbie ,,.vhen she cmne to v,·ork at the TPD's cornrnunications diviskm in the 

eady l 990s. Debbie V,•·as a Public Service ()perator (PS()), and I ,vas a Public Service 

Dispatcher (.PSD), Debbie -;,vas uood. at her ·•1ob and verv reliable throuQ"hout n1ost of her ' . ~... " ~ .__..,. 

,. L. ~~ ~ ... I., ~ ~ time at tue Communicauons 1)1v1ston. 

3. I first met .hunes and their sons,. JP and Anthony, at a sudal go1.thering shortly aHer 

Debbie staated \:,,,'ork1ng at frie IJh··ision. l was ver}' hnpn;:ssed with Jame.sand the \Vay he 

cared fi.1r the children, Ja.rne~, corrirriunicate<l with his sons in a very loving manner and 

he played with thi~~n, \Vhen one of the boys teH down, Jarnes in1mediat1:.:ly rushed to his 

side, picked hin1 up and dusted hin1 on: and made sure that he \Vas alright. \:Vhen it came 

tin1e for the children to eat, Jmn·es fixed both of then1 plates and patiently fed the1n, and 

then cleaned thein up aHer>,;Vtlrdtt JP and Anthony vvere both very well behaved, and I 

could tell th,1.t James and Debbie had done a great job ,vith instilling rnanners and a sense 

of respect in both children, Jarnes and the b,:rvs were also itnrnacu!atel.v dean. as \Vas 
~ -~ 'I>' .-

Debbie. I used to tell Dtbble that sh{.: and lu.:r fmnHv nh:<,,·avs looked Hke t.hev :Stepoi::d out 
~ ~ ~ ' ~ 

of a fashion magazine, l 'Nas so irnprcssed by rny first encounter ',.cvith Ja1nes that 1 r:mHed 

Debbie a1,1de the next day at wnrk to tdJ ht~r about. it It's a rare thing to find a n-tan, like 

Jarnes \V~ts back then., \-Vho \vas so loving and gentle as a caregiver and partner. I told 

Debbie that she i•,1as lucky, r sa\V James and the boys on several other occasions for 

a!most a year afrer rny initial encounter, and James V./as the same loving father to the boys 

and eating partner t(} Debbie, 
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4. James v,,,as vvorking at a tnst~f;,.1od .restaura.nt '>Vhen r first m.et hirn. Oebbk and James 

only had one vehicle, \Vhich they shared. To help the:n1 out, l began driving Debbie to 

and from V.'ork rn.!causti '>".'e v.-'orked the sa.n1t~ shift .most days .. Jan1t~s used the car to go to 

work and care for the children v,ihile Debbie \'Vas at \Vork, There \Vere endless 

opportunities for ovt~r-time at the 'TPlYs Corninunication l)ivisJon because v,:e \.Vere 

a.h,vays shi:Jrt stat1ed, l)t::bbie frequently volunteered lo work Qve:rtime to earn extra 

inoney fbr the tlunHy. f)ebhie told n1e that she '>vould not have been able to '>Vork so 

rruich overtirne had it not been for Jmnes's v,:-iHinrrness and abi!itv to take ca.re nfthe ...... "' 

chHdren on hls own, \Vhen Jrunes lost his job at th,: fast~tbod: restat1rant, he becarne a 

stayyat-home dad and Debbie worked rnore overtime hours HJ make ends rneet Frorn all 

of Debbie's early accounts, James did an a\vesorne job caring for the kids and taking care 

of the hcn1sehn!d \Vhile Debbie '.vas at work. 

5. There came a time v,.rhen our col.league [)ina Freeman invited Debbie and rne to travel to 

San Diego for a brief \.veekend getav..:ay, along \-Vith l)ina's late friend Robin. Debbie 

initially had no intentions of goi11g along at first, untH James insisted that she go, James 

told Dc:bbk that she s,vorkecl hard, she deserved to have a break, and he 'Nouldn't take 

"no" tbr an ans\¥er. I-le assured Debbie that he and the boys wnuld be aJdght, and that 

she should go enjoy herself l \Vas impressed by .larnes's concern and trust in l)d:ibie to 

take a trip out of state \Vithout hhn. i\t the thne he ,vas not a jeakius person,. This was 

the only leisurdy trip that Debbie took during the time that I !rnev•<' her, 

things bet\veen them began to take turn a turn fbr tb:: v.rorse after ahout eight or nine 

inonths. James vvas \.vorking again, b1Jt he never had any money and could not explain 

v.,hy, Jarnes started demanding that f)ebbie give him increasingly more rnoney, to the 

point when~ ,twas inh.:i·fering with Debbie's ability· to p;1y th,.-)ir biH:;:. fkihbie told Jan1es 

«..,,,,,·a·'" ti•11"'., h~it 11"' b"'•~'~"n"' 'H-"'-'f"'"dx,-,, ""d S"''•k·,~ '1p ,, ,.t,r,~•>1<>111nn \.' 1''\I t,-~'"''l"'l" 11,,,-}i~,...... .),, ,...,; .~ ... (~ ,..l:S~-.· S 1/1,,., _'>,;,~,u. ~- "-"'bb 1>,.,;-...- .. H.f~ ~u. ·-}''-·· v ~--t -.~ :tJ.-c .. -...u"~ -~ f"} '}<'J."'" .,,,.,..)1·~ ... ~K\.L_t '];.;. 

I)ebble told me that she bdkvcd that Jan1es '>-Vas on drugs and she did not knos,v \Vhat to 

do .. 
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7, \Vhen l.kbb1e became pregnant with their daughter, Chante!, things changed for the 

better. James \Vas not acting aggres.sive!:;,i and went back to being the caring person that 

he ,vas, Jarnes also stopped derna:n<ling rnciney from Debbie, Debbie seerned happy 

again and they both looked forvvard to having their third t:hild. Bowev<.~r, the 

il:nprovements in their re!ationshlp proved to be short lived. 

8, Jmnes foll back into his drug bablt afh::r Chantel -.,vas born. a:nd his aggressive behaviors 

became worse·. This \Vas the thne period \Vhen Debbie began sho,vlng up to vvork vlith 

bruises 011 her person, },.t first, l)ebbie made excuses for her injudes by teHing me that 

she slipped and fell, bm:nped into things1 and other things that nm.de no sense. 

Eventua!ly, J)ebbie told rne the truth about her injuries and that she was being abused by 

Janu~s. The first question that l had 1-vas \.Vhether James \Vas abusing the chi!d!"~n as v,rell, 

but Debbie insisted that Jarnes had never dotie anvthitui to hurt thdt children, I then told 
~ """ 

r) i: ' • • 1... ,l d · ... I' ..1 ' J. 1· bb' · ' · ' ' .. 1;.~or:i1z~ that Snf.! nee ... ,e to tile a po ice report arn:.i mave ames. )e .. m reJectect tnese 

sttg·$gestions because she believed that she could. i,~,·urk through Jan1e8's problems. Debbie ....... ~~ ~ 

had an eternal hope that Jan1t:s would ftet better and return to being the lovin2 man that . - ~ ~ 

she once knev,. Debbie often told me that James v,1as the love of her lite and she cou.!d 

nut imagine him not being in the Hves oftheir children. 

9, \Vhen l dropped Debbie home one day and sa"v .fon1es frw the first thne in a vvhHe, his 

appearance and demeanor had totally changed. He •.vas no longer tbe pleasant, clean and 

normal. person that I knew. He ,;,vas now grungy, unkempt, and displayed empty and 

angry expressions on his face. Jmnes. look !ike many drug addicts that you'd see v .... a!king 

the streets. 

!O. Debbie also bet;an to chang_e, She ~vent from. being a r.io8ilive, upbeat and talkative ~ ..... , ,._ t . ,\ 

person, to being \Vithdra\vn, sad, and cranky, Debbie's ernotional state started effecting 

her job performance, There \Vere tln-ws \.\,..hen she'd snap and sta.ri yelling at caikrs in 

need of police assistance, and her supervisor had to talk tn her. 
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l l. A!thom,~h then) \Vas. no no!icv rc2:ardiruz the associations ofTPI) Corn111unications staff. it ..,._. :-.. ;,' ...... ....... . 

'Nas a.enera!lv frovvned Uf.lOn tor an emp· iovee tn be involved vvith t)eooJe \Vho conunitted 
- y ,,,. t :,,. 

crin1es or w-c:re engaging in don1estic vioknce, \Vhen Jam.es \Vas stopped and arrested 
t 'l J , • I) l' ' , . • !' ;-i~ ' 11· ' , :i D L. ' Tt ' \.ViH e (Jnvm.g eotne scar, H1e po ice iYfiJCers hanri mg nie case questwnet · eutne. ·. ius 

,~·as ver,,r embarr:asslng for Ikbbie, Debbie \.Vas not asked to !eave the Cornrnunication 
V -

I)ivision, as for us 1 knov..-, but I had tlx~ sense that she was pushed out 

i·") ''fll"" r\.••bb1<> l'"l,J 'TI'' (''fhrn• p1
-~"" ·t'l· ""'l('<C""'•'' t(' l "" .... ,..,,...,.,~s ''hp. "'l<'" t"ld. n1e tlv>f ~'1'e ·1~-,.-~ l"-•~ li~ <,..,.dL,r~_.,_h ... ~-1 __ ,._J.i._...,.._] ____ \,..~ ___ lalt•3 \_.~..._.. __ .,;> ~t . ..._., :LAx~V~~-~ ... , .. :~•~~~<~,._.;_,l:i: ,~,:--~-- b<~~~-~ -s,c;~.,i 

broken up V\ihh Jarnes, But Debbie ended up rnoving Jarnes to Las Vegas to make sure 

that he vvas still a part ofthe children"'::, lives. Debbie also thought that Jan1es had a better 

chance of overcornlng his drug addiction if she couid get hirn av-iay frorn his negative 

associations in Tucson. I to!d Debbie that this \.Va1:< a bad idea because Jmnes ,,voul.d find 

the'. sa1ne associations and proh!e:ms in Las Vegas, In fo.ct, I \varned Debbie th.at the 

had rnore vice. I ,vas ulthnate!y unable to change Debbk's rnind and she \.Vent ahead 

1,vith her plans. 

13. I briefly spoke \vith Debbie by phone on a ftwv occasions :after she moved to Las 'Vegas. 

l)ebbie told me that she vvas \vorkl11g and everything w-as alright Debbie did not rnention 

anything about Jarm:$ and I did not ask. 

14, I frJund out about Debbie's death short!y afrer the incident occurred in 1995., I later took 

time off fron1 vvork to attended Jmnes's entire trial ln 1996. I spoke ·with Debbie's 

rnotller, but [ \Vas not approached by the State or defense attorneys. 

15. 1vl"1 onlv contact -.,vith anyone related to Jarnes • s case was with Herbert .Dun11it of the .,j ~ ~ 

Federal Pub!k I)etencler Office, I-fad 1 been contacted by Jarnes1s previous counsel 1 

wou!d have pro\'·ided them '>Vith the lntorrnatlon that I have given in this declaration and 1 

,,.,ou!d have testified to it 
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t declare under penalty of per-jury that the fbregoing is true and correct to the best of my 
a knowledge and that this dec.taration \Vas executed in Pima County, ,~sizona, on August -~L ___ , 

l 

Rosen1ary Pacheco 
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lJeclaration of f)ina Rkhan:lson 

l. .¾.·fv na_rne is Dina Richardson.. l'Av Ia.st name used to be Freenian.. I testified at lmnes 
,, .J • 

J;:.nrws's tk>fens,;_> tearn prior to or at ~d!Ja~r triaL If I had been intervievved,. I could 

have 1:;rovided the follov-rin~~ additional evidenn~. i c~ 

I·),:,l'-irp":st- 1·_:,,~,..,,,s {r),,:b'!-y't,-·' ""'"''.:l 'I 1'1"'t '"t th,.-, 'rll'"~n-•1 Pol'·'tr"" Y"<,c,n•,;1•t1·11""~t ,.,_.t.,,,,."<> 1-.,,❖t.. qi ._ .-•• <::. • '-- ~- ,_.d_ t. ._ _ ..:,_:;__~-- n,, '-· \ :t. -....": -• ~. -- ,r.:_-,,~ {~-~ ~)-J. t -- -~- _ ....__ __ l:< __ '--~~ ~-'-· J. _. _ .,___...._. ,>.~ ~ . -- . ,i;._, '-· :j_j't,. J.~· U . '-- .. _ \,._._. t _ 1 ~· l' ,b.~ 1 ....:. _,, L 'S.._t ( "-· I 

us ,vorked at thi:.: 911 call center. \'Ve v-.rorked together fuH-tir.n.e for alrnost the i3;ntLre 

~1-'l"' ·n· ,.n:1.,,,-;,:, l!,;,,:.,-l .,,,1 'f· ·u,-'"<'l>l D<>.h1)'1.t" c.··,,-1c1 1 h<>1,_··•,>,1><> f,.,,,·,1,--l>:< t .t ).-..._. .._ ... "-· :s...~ t .. A~-· £_{. ',,; \,.,., \..l _I,_{, ...... ;;.11, ... _... , -~ , ... ~- l- ., "'-~ ,.,_l \., "-· .... ~ . ..:. .:'!,"-•· .t .i,. -~·.'\..·.S. ,,~,.:,, ~ 

She strived to provide a better life for James, ivho had lived through a very difficult 

childhoocL Debhtf' v.ras co1n1nitted to Janw-s and 1o\ted hitn onf' 1u1ndri:.•d percent 

playing vvith the childn:Tt I ne,.rer sai·v Ja1rws say o:r do anything inappropriate -..-vith 

tht:• chi.hlrE•n. The chi.IdrE':rt t-Vf.'f.'£' clean" fed., and attt~nd.ed to,. largely because of 

Jan1t::s 

5. I rarely m.bi.>r.acted. vvith Ja.m.es in~person,. only no-s;v and again at our children's 

respedivr bilthday parties. l1ur.u\g these rare interactions Jmnes \.Vas reserved i.Uld 

·usuaUv enm:1\"!J:.;d v,rith h1re kids .. not the ad1.11t'i. ,., '-,.,• '-·' 

6. Debbie \.Vas Vf:>ry protective o:f J<1:n-ies. Ad o:ne of the ch:ildren•'s birthday parties at a 

Page 1 of3 



AA04223

8, Debbie and Ja1TH'f.{ s relationship beca.n1e prog:ress:ively rno:re vQ1atile du.ri.ng the 

couple'\; tin)e in Tucson, Th.is escalation St">Bn1ced to parallel Jan1;;_!s··s baUooning; d:rug 

itddiction. 

9. Vvith n':'ga.rd tc1 the n~latlonship r.iaJance beh-vee11 Debbie and Jar.nes., on the one hand 

J;:tmes's heh<1vior se.2n1ed to control the .2ntlre :farnHy dy:t'la.mk. H.ov,teve:r .. I)ehhie 

c:arne and \vent fr<.10:1 horrte .and \•vork as she i:ileased .. even thou~-1-l she had y-ot1n2.· 
.,;, '~} • ;;;.._1 

children. Furtht>r1nore, Dt~hbh2 took one or 1nore VcK:atinns ,,vithout Jarnes. FoJ 

instance, Debbk:, anoth,;::r CO½'Orkt:r, ;;1nd I SlX:nt a 1on,, ~Nfc:ekend in San Diegro . ' ~ 0 ' 

visiti:ng n1y brother and spending tin1e at the beach.. 

10. Debbie fell u1 lo,.te 1,-vith Las Vegas dttting a trip she 1nade there a fev✓ weeks before 

her job and rn.ove the children to Las \h:gas \Vithout Jarnes a.nd vlifh financial help 

frotn her n1oth.er, A .... veek or hvo l?€fort:: sl1e 1vas supposed to leave tO\•\•'n .. Debbie 

inforrned rne that Jarnes ,,,,ras going to 1nove to Las Vegas after all. Debbie tvas: fully 

convi.n.ced that if _f,mtl.c:S got ~-rtvay from drug co:n.:ne-ctk,ns i:n Tucson, he ,;vou.ld also 

k'ave behind his crack addiction, .As it turned out that dichi't happen, 

J 1, Jan1es apparently rnade nev.' drug connections in Las \ 1egas, V\11.ile ½'a.Hing to testify 
_ , . _ _ , ... - _ . .. (µJJi, C./lt;-~ OP J,[)n1e, r-----.J?\ry----... 

at Jan1es· s tnal m 19•;!6_, I encountered t½-·o te . · ·• · ·' · who '!;Vere also , __ , ~~ _) 
✓- ~ ------~ 

t.. ,.# -----V<li.'tifrng ln testify. They knev,,,- Jan1es fro1:n th _ stn~ets. ()ne of the ,,vo1nen indicated 

that she had }ust been released on a robbery charge and had appeared in. cotlft 

league,"· They had pulled 1ne a,,,vay froffi. the ,;.vo1nen as a courtesy so I did not have 

to deal with the:n:t, The detectives reiterated to 1ne that one of the ,;,voi.nen had been 

. ·I''"·<s ,l (,- ,, ·. 'J ,,. .. ,bh••'>•'h·· --,,- ••"1"1 ' . ·t-h -\, .• re 1:'.d ...• eu: .. L, oa, FU_ on (A n,, . ,_ e.1 y ,_ . <ltt,,e eax11er 1n .ue Ltay, 

12. ln 1ny opinion, if Debbie had survived,. she \VOl:Ud .ha.\.'e forgiven Ja1nes a. long tin1e 

ago, [\.'bbie also would be absc,lutdv li:vid about "f;_unes's death sentence. Debbie - ~ . 

V' .. ,,, ·i rl h "'\'"' --·v«'trt1ed J",,_...,_..,<>,,' <' "'~,c;,J,- <• a" ,, fu..-,,-,>-l -)I" S'). l-.," h·> ,:t• t"--ibr1'""'"'ncr ... n,·3 ,· 3 ~" .... . ')' l_.1 t:-",...t~ ._ .. _ ·il(l. •' c ~- t_ ... ~_ -t.::> --'.>. _ _., "' • ~-~'..,..t x_;;:_,, b o.t_. l.S:x_ •. l L:.} ... _, ~- .:i. _ 1. 1. .... _. ssl_ . _ il "--· .l -~ u.-._. _.-,ot_ ~-1-~ . A . .. u.;r).t.A -J'~) -c;t . •'i..-t \..-3.t u.t;. 

use. 
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13, On J-u .. n.1:< 23., 2016 ... Ta.rruny Sniith, an investigator f-roni the CHI.ice of the Fed1:'tal 

Public i)efender in Las Veiras, int€rvie'i-ved m.€ at n1v hon1e in TucsrJn. Prior to mv ,;,.;, . ..., ... 

n1.eeting ovHh 1'v1s. Snuth,. I had ne\lel' be,~n contacted by a.n attorneys or invi:.•stigators 

I)i:na K, Richardson 
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Declaration of .,\.ngela 1\.1:itchell 

1, 1\ngeia Mitchell, hereb:v declare as foHo,·vs: 

L rvty nmne is Angela :tv1itcheH and I arn sixty years old. I currently reside in Pin1a County, 

A.dzona. I was a cov.,orker of the late Deborah ,sDebbie'' Panos. V-/e both ,volked at the 

Tl1cson Poliet: L)t~p1:11iment's (TPL)) Corn1nunications l)ivision during the 1990s, 

2. Debbie and I 1,:vere hired by the TPD's C1:Jmmunications Division at the san1e- titne, and 

went through the training progra:tn together. \Ve becarne friends aln1ost instantly. I did 

not have a driver's license at the ti1ne, so Debbie occasionally drove 1ne to and from 

·work. 

3. I visited v,lith Debbie and her fmnily '.\rhen they 1ived at t11e River Oaks A.partrnents on 

East Broad\vay Boule·,,tard and at the Spdng Hills Apartrn:ents on East Lakeside Parkway, 

I rnay have visited Debbie at her f:nnily' s trailer ho1ne on \Vest Ajo \Vay on one 

occasiono Debbk~ and I '\Jstx! to go out to eat; attended \vork related gatherings and 

parties, and \Ve son1ethnes -..vent to the 1novies. 

4. James '<N,rs. a stay at home dad when ! first met Debbie, which was hls primary responslblllty 

throughout much of the tlrne that i kne\v and interacted vvlth them, James was a quiet person 

arid did not say much when! 1,-,1as arotind, but he was a good caregiver in earlier times. James 

kept the house and the children dean, and he fed and cared for the chlidren while D{~bbie was 

at work, Debbie seemed happy and did not comp!aln about any problems ln her household, 

James was very dean and Debbie kept h!m and the children dressed in nke name-brand~ 

doth!ng, James 'h'anted for nothing and Debbie 1Nas able to work as much as she needed to 

without having to worry about cleaning the house, bathing the chUdren., or having to cook when 

she got horne. Things seemed to be golng well with Debbie and James for the first year and a 

ha!f to twn years that! knew them. 

5, A .. fter about one and a halftci t'\.,'O years into 1ny friendship vrl.th IJehbie, Jan1es developed 

a drinking problem. He WllS drinking fr.irty once bottles ofnialt liq1,.,or beer on a dai1y 
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basis, Jrune:s drank ,vith neighbors and by hi111self in their apartn1ent I sav;, Jaines 

drinking beer during some of 1ny visits to the far11ily home. This is the time \.vhen James 

began slacking off on his household duties, He stopped keeping the houst:'. dean and 

Debbie tvas ofte.11 corning home to a n1essy kitchen, which 1.vas the source ofargurnents. 

I told Debbie that she should consider a different approach ,vhen dealing with her 

dissatisfaction, because she spoke to Jan1es in a man.11er that probably nu:ide hin1 ft~el 

srnaU and less of a rnan, '>-vhich is a huge hang~up for rnany Black rnen \Vho don 1t have 

much going on for then1selves and suffer from addiction. 1 suggestt~d that l)t~bbie rtifrain 

from yelling at him, and try having a calm discussion. about her conce.ms to av·oid 

conflicts, 

6. \Vithin rnonths of developing a drinking proble1n, Ja:rnes began smoking crack a:nd 

spending a lot of ti1ne outside of the houst\ according to Y.'hat I)ebbie toid. rne. Jarnes 

vvas no longer taking care of his household responsibilities and he started acting 

aggressively and violently to,varcls Debbie, Jaic"nes demand{!d money frorn Debbie and 

often took funds that '>Vere intended to pay their bills, Jame-.-s stole food and vai."'ious iterns 

in the house and sold thern on the street to get n1oney to purchase crack. This Vlas the 

tin1e ">vhen Debbie started sho,ving up to -..vork w·ith bniises, Debbie \Vas honest ,vith 1ne 

and told 111.e th.at Jan1es '.Vas abusing her. 

7. I told Debbie to leave Jm11(~S fron1 the rnornent that she told rne that he was abusing her, 

because I kne->rv frorn experience th.at things 1,,vould not get b;;::tter, t'1y first husband; who 

-i;vas a!so nm11ed '"Jan1es'\ trned to abuse n1e. Like Jrunes and Debbit\ -..ve had three 

d:dldren and so there were a fe,v :r:mrallels, I told Debbie that if a t:nan hlts you once he'll 

never stop. I suggested. that Debbie look into the eyes of her children to develop the 

stn~ngth to leave; like 1 did, and riot turn back, IJebbie ah:vays responded b)' telling 1ne 

that she kne\v I was right or "J hear ¥/hat you're sayini\ hut that she loved Jmne.s and 

\Vanted hin1 to be in the lives of their children. Jaines nt~vtir did anything to harrn the 

children fron1 ·what I observed and heaxd fn)i:n Debbie. Debbie stn'I<· sornething in Ja.n1es 

that no one else did. So1nefhing that \Vas \:-Vorth holding onto and she \Vas detem1ined to 

fix hin1, 
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8. I recall James going hon1e to !v1ichigai.'1 at one point in the n1idd1e of their tin1e in Tucson, 

but I)ebbie told 1ne that he \Vas onlv visith1g, Debbie never to1d 1ne that thev had broken . " 

up. Debbie \Vas a kind and S\Veet person, hut she only told people things that she \Vanted 

thetn to kno\v. 

9. Debbie's la,\lt year in Tucson ,vas the roughest period for her because Jarnes grew 

increasing parru1oid.. Jarnes den1anded that Debbie corne straight home fn)rn 'Nork and 

told her to stop spending thne ,¥ith n:lany of her friends and colleagues. James acted like 

he ,vas afraid that Debbie 111:ight 1neet son1eon.e else and leave hhn, \Vhich ,-s..ras ridicu1ous 

becaust~ Debbie was devoted to hin1, even as he seeined to be losing his n1iud, I havt.~ 

experience \vith being around crack addicted perlph\ and it \Vas clear to rne that the drugs 

vtere taking over his 111.ind, I had s11nr1athy for Jan1es because I kno\V drugs can take :•,rou 

out of your rig.ht mind. If James had been in a better environment, things rnight have 

gone better frJr hin1 and Debbie. 

10. Near tl1e end of I)ebbie's time in Tucson; everyone at the job pretty 1nuch kne\V ·what \Vas 

going on in Dehbie~s hon1e. One of the supervisors even ·went as far as to provide Debbie 

¥lith co1n1se1ing resources that she could take advantage of: Ho\.vever; Debbie never 

follo\ve<l UP . • 

11. Looking back, 1 feel that the Connnunicatio-n Division could have done rnore to assist 

Debbie. Everyone kne\i/ her struggles, but no one stepped up to provide Debbie V>'ith 

meaningful assistanc.ie or even an intervention. The Police Department as a -..vhole had a 

cu1ture of keeping a. Ud on. do.tT1estic disputes amongst its ernployees, including police. 

officers, in an effort to prevent lovtxl ones from being a1Tested Cff the ernp1oyees possibly· 

losing their jobs. l \vish 1nore could have been done for I)ehbie. 

12. I ,vas happy ,vheu Debbie told rne that slR~ 'was brea.1dng up \Vifh Jan.II'.$ in the faU of 

1994> and rn.oving to Las \1egas. I)ebbie to!d Ine that she \\.'tu1ted to have a fresh sta.rt fbr 

herself and their children, and I ,vas proud of her. 1 did not stay in touch \Vith I1ebbie 

after she lett Tucson and had no id.ea that she t,1ok Ja.~-nes to I.as Vegas until it \Vas 

announced on the job that she had passed, 
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13. No one had ever reached out to me in regards to James' s case until 1ny recent 

conversation with Eierbert I)uzant of the Federal Public Defender Offit'-e. I-lad I been 

contacted by Jmnes's. previous counsel I \vould have pruvided then1 v,•ith the infom1ation 

that 1 have given in this declaration and I \-vuul.d have testified to it 

1 declare under pe:nalty of perjury that the foregoing ls true and correct to the hest of n1y 

k..'1fJ\.Vlt>:dge and that this declaration \.Vas executed in Pima County, ,1\rizona~ on i\ugust 9, 2016, 

Angela 11itcheH 
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1 

L 

3 

4 

5 

IAS VEGAS, NEVADA; M:::NDAY, MARCH 19, 2 007 

9:00 A.M. 

PROCEEDINGS 

* * * * * 

6 THE COOR!': Let's go on the record in 
7 C-131341, State of Nevada versus Jarres Chappell. 

8 '!he record will reflect the presence of 
9 Mr. Chappell, with is attorneys, the State's attorneys, 

10 outside the presence of the jury. 

11 Mr. Schieck, do you want to mke a record 
12 at all regarding -- I knew we' re getting ready to read in 
13 Mr, Chapp:;11' s testinony frcm the underlying trial. 

14 MR, SCHIO::K: Yes, your Honor. 
15 I need to make a record foll!l:!lly that we 
15 will cbject to the reading of Mr. Chappell' s testinony 
11 fran his first trial. 
18 The basis of that cbjection -- I' 11 will 
19 inform the court candidly that the Nevada Suprerre Court 
20 has indicated that prior sworn testinony is achnissible in 
2l a subsequent trial, and that the waiver of your 5th 
22 l>Iren<irent right to rera.in silent, once waive, is always 
23 waived for purposes of that particular test.im::my. 
24 lbwever, there is a line of case law that 
25 talks about introducing that test.im:my in violation of 

1 other constitutional rights, and it's our contention, and 

2 we would like to preserve for the record, that 
3 Mr. Chappell received ineffective assistance of counsel at 
4 the first trial when the trial counsel put Mr. Chawell on 
5 the stand and alla'1ed him to testify as he did during that 
6 proceeding. 
J Pqain, this is just to preserve that issue 
a so that if at a later date it needs to te raised, it can 
9 be raised. 

10 We did not raise that as ineffective 
11 assistance of counsel in our post-conviction in state 
12 court that I p:;rsonally was involved in filing. So to the 
13 extent that it's raised in trn.t proceeding, IMY, quite 
14 candidly, was raised as part of our later proceeding. I 
i5 wanted to preserve that at this point in tine. 
16 Mditionally, if I ma.y proceed, your 

17 Honor. There is an issue -- and this begins on page 64 of 
18 the staterrent. This is on the State's cross-examination. 
19 I was going to read it into the record. 
20 THE OXlRI': Okay. Page 64? 

21 
22 

23 

24 

MR. SCHIFCK: Yes, your Honer. 
THE COORT: Thank you. 
MR. SCHIEI:K: Near the l::ottan: 
QJestion: It's the second question fran 

25 the tottan, where the questioning l::egins -- "you had a 

5 

6 

1 substantial perio:i of tine to think about tcday, haven't 
2 yoo"? 

3 Answer: "Yes, sir." 
4 "You've known quite awhile, haven't ','JU, 

5 that at sare point you'd take the witness stand and give 
6 the jury your version of what happened"? 
7 

8 

Answer: "Yes, sir. 11 

And proceeds that he had given a let )f 
9 attention to .mat he was goirq to say. 

lJ It's our contention that reference to the 
11 fact that Mr. Chawell had a period of tine to prei:;ari, 
12 \oklat he was going to say was an inplied reference to his 
13 right to ranain silent, the fact that he had not 
H previously mde a statEm::nt to authorities concerning the 
15 infoll!l:!tion he was testifying to the jury about. 
16 This was raised as a claim of ineffective 
17 counsel on aweal in affect, assistance of awellate 
18 counsel in our post-conviction and our petition was denied 
19 by then Judge D:mglas, now Justice Couglas, and was ncit a 
20 basis for relief on aweal fran the i:ost-conviction 
21 proceeding. 
22 For the record, I wanted to preserve that 
23 issue, still contained, his test.iroony we're going to iead 
21 to this jury, to the extent there is ever found to be 
25 error that it was admitted at the first trial, it's 01.r 

1 contention it's error to adnit it at the second trial --
2 penalty hearing. 
3 THE COORT: Mr. CMens or Ms. Wecker~y. 
~ MR. <llENS: We c:bn't have anything to 'l.OO 

5 to that. 

5 THE COORT: I do agree, and I appreciate 
7 your candor, Mr. Schleck, that the case law does allow for 
B the use of prior testinony in a subsequent proceeding. 
9 But even though the D?fendant was called as a witness )Y 

1 o his own attorneys at the tine trial, I think the Ste. te is 
11 all0'"'2<i to use that test:inony in this proceeding 
12 regardless of whether he's called to testify again c,r 
13 not, 
H In tem of the ineffective argi...-rent f Jr 
15 allowing him to testify at the underlying trial, I kno·v 
16 that that was not raised and I do think that there is ,1 

11 bar at this point in tine. I' 11 also note the matter did 
18 proceed up on direct appeal where it was affimed, the:1 on 
19 i:ost-conviction, where the penalty phase was reversed, 
20 there were issues involving the trial phase that were 
21 ad:iressed in that post-conviction. And Jud}e couglas 
22 found that the trial phase was basically error, for lack 
23 of a better ..urd. 
24 He didn't reverse the trial. He just 
25 reversed the penalty phase. Then that went up on apsie<1l 
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-----------------'------9 
1 by the State as to the reversal of the penalty hearing and 
2 the defense cross-appealed as to the non-reversal in the 
3 trial phase, an::! on those appeals, Judge D:Juglas' rulings 
4 were affimed, So the trial phase stays with the 
5 conviction, and the penalty [base stays with the reversal, 
6 an::l that's why we' re here tcday. 
7 And the issue of the questions that were 
8 just brought up on page 64, of State's cross-examination, 
9 that was part of what was raised before Judge D:luglas, and 

10 he didn't find merit to granting any post-conviction 
11 relief on that issue. And, again, it was appealed and 

12 that was affimed. 
13 So I think it r,,uuld be ai::prqiriate to 
14 allow in the reading of that, along with the rest of 
15 defer.dant' s testim::iny. 
:6 MR. SCHID:K: Your Honor, we've also 
17 agreed during the reading we would skip the portions where 
18 the court took breaks on the record and adrronished the 
19 jury. 
20 There's one on page 30 and there's another 
21 one at page 77, where apparently one of the jurors had 
2 2 requested a brief recess . And we' re going to skip those 

23 portions. 
24 In my perusal of the testirrony, I don't 
25 see really any objections that we need to worry about. I 

1 didn't see any objections at all. 
2 THE CTXlRI': Okay. 
3 MR. OIIENS: I did notice when I was 
4 reading that, that portion he was reading is underlined in 
5 here. 
6 TilE COURI': 64 through 65. 
7 MR. SCHIEJ::K: It's underlined on my copy. 
8 I assurre that that was underlined by Mr. Brooks. 
9 MR. CWENS: It could have been defense. 

10 It was initial on post-conviction and this cares out of 
11 the record on ai:peal. So I didn't notice a lot of other 
12 underlying here. There's a couple of ran::ian lines. 
13 If the court -- the jury is not going to 
14 take a cqiy of this back to the jury rcan with them, if 

15 the court could just adronish than that any notations are 
16 to be igrored, underlining is of no consequence. 
17 THE COOR!': I will do that. 
18 MR. SCHIEJ::K: I can represent those are 
19 prior to my having a copy of the transcript. I highlight, 
20 not underline for the very reason you can't erase the 
21 underline. 
22 l'.'e've also agreed that as it is 
23 Mr. Chappell was a defense witness that we v.{)uld be 
24 reading the direct exa.'llination and the State would be 
25 reading the cross-examination, even though this is being 

9 

10 

introduced during the State's case in chief at the penalty 
2 hearing. 
3 TilE <XXJRl': I will 11'13.ke sure the j·.iry 
~ realizes it's part of the State's case in chief. 
s !bes any!:x::dy have anything else? 
~ No. Okay. 
" ' 
8 

9 

(Jury brought in.) 

Good rrorning, ladies and gentlemen. 
On the record in C-131341 State of Nevada 

l O versus Jarres Chai::pell. 
11 The record will reflect the presence of 
Li Mr. Chappell with his attorneys, the State's attorneys are 
13 present, ~•re in the presence of our jury. 
H We're going to continue on with thE! 
15 State's case in chief. Mr. Owens, I un:ierstan:i ~ are 
1E going to read S(l[E testilTooy this oorning. 
17 MR. G'IENS: This is a witness fran the 
18 prior hearing, Jeri F.arnst. I have a reader for her 
19 testim::iny. And we prcp::,se to read that fran the prior 
20 transcript. 
2l THE COURI': All right. 
22 THE CLERK: You do solamly swear to 
23 faithfully and accurately read the resi;onse set forth in 
2~ this transcript, so help you God. 

2 5 TilE READER : I oo . 

1 'IllE <XXJRl': Jeri, J-E-R-I -- Earnst, 
2 E-A-R-N-S-T, having been duly Sv.{)rn testified as 
3 follows. 
4 

5 BY MR, ™ENS: 
6 Q. 

7 

B 

9 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

10 E-A-R-N-S-T. 

11 Q. 

12 

13 

14 

15 Tucson. 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Mr. Owens. 

Will you state your narre, please. 
My narre is Jeri F.amst. 
Please spell your narre for the record. 
Jeri, J-E-R-I, last narre Earnst, 

Are you 6!ployed? 
Yes, I am. 
~rat is your business or occupation? 
I'm a r:olice officer with the City of 

16 Q. Officer Earnst, how long have you been 
11 rnployed with the Tucson Police Cepartrnent? 
18 A. With the 'Tucson police department, slightly 
19 over 17 years, with a total of 20 years, plus, of law 
20 enforcement now. 

Q. 20 years, plus, in all? 
22 A. Yes, sir. 
23 Q. Were you an officer with the Tucson p:ilice 
2~ departrrent in Tucson, Arizona on February 23ra, 19%? 
2) A. Yes, I was, 

11 

12 
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1 Q. en that date did you have occasion in the 

2 City of Tucson to 1!13.ke contact with a citizen identified 
3 to you as Cebra Panos? 

4 A. Yes, I did. 
5 Q. ~lhere is it that you 1!13.de contact with 

6 Ms. Panos? 
7 A. That would be at Fry's SU[elll\3.rket. A 

8 grocery story at 16th and Ajo. 

9 o. 16th am? 

10 

11 

12 

A. A-J-0. 

Q. Ajo, I'm sorry. I went to school there. 

Approxirrately what tirre was it that you rrade 

13 contact with Ms. Panos at that intersection? 

14 A. That w::iuld be about 9: 30 at night, when we 

15 actually arrived at that location. 
16 Q. You said it was at a store? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. You said it was Frys? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. Will you spell that also. 

21 A. F-R-Y-S. 

22 Q. What was your purpose of lll3.king contact with 

23 Cebra Panos? 

24 A. I had teen advised by an officer at that 

25 works in an off-duty capacity at that location that he had 

1 a danestic violence victim at that location that needed a 
2 unifonred officer to resi;ord. 

3 Q. Who was the officer you si;oke with that was 

4 off duty? 

5 A. That was Fd Niekowski. 

6 Q. Will yoo si:ell Niedkowski, please. 
7 A. No. 

8 Q. Would N-I-E-D-K-0-W-S-K-I be pretty close? 

9 A. Okay. 

10 THE COIJRI': Two tries is all that you 

11 get. 

12 BY MR. OOENS: 

13 

13 Q. As a result of conversation you had with the 

14 off-duty officer did you then contact Ms. Panos? 

15 A. Yes, I did. She was present .men he was 
16 relating the infoII1Etion to rre as to what -- hew he'd teen 
17 contacted by her. 

1B Q. So you resfOrded to the location of the Frys 

19 store and an off-duty officer ard the alleged victim were 

20 both at that location? 
21 A. Yes, sir. 
22 Q. Inside or outside the store? 
23 A. Cl..ltside the store. 
24 Q. Did you then conduct satE sort of interview 
25 of Cebra Par:os? 

14 

1 A. Yes. I then walked her away fran the cro..d 

2 ard over to where I had parked~ vehicle to speak with 
3 her in private. 

Q. Tell us what occurred at that tirre? 
5 A. 
5 

7 BY MR. OOENS: 

She related to re that -­
MR. SCHIEJ::K: Cbject. 

8 Q. Before you go into what she related, will 

9 you describe how she acted when you walked the short 

:o distance away? 

:1 A. She was standing off ard not doing a,ything 

:2 at first, ..ten Officer Nie::1.Mski advised rre of what had 

:3 happened I then needed to speak with her to detemLi.ne 

14 ..tether I had enough to pursue this for an investigation 

15 or an arrest. 
16 Q. 

l; with her? 
So you apparently went off a short distance 

18 A. Yes, I did. 

19 Q. What I'm aski.Pg you is when you went a short 

20 distance away and the two of you began to talk one-to-one, 
21 00,1 did she act? 

22 A. She started crying. 

23 Q. How long did you si:end talking with her? 

24 A. I was with her out there probably 20 
25 minutes, rraybe 25 before we went. 

1 Q. You said that she started crying. Did she 
2 cry throughout the interview? 

3 A. Yes, she did. 

Was she, to you, obviously upset? 

Yes, she was. 

15 

4 

5 

6 

Q. 
A. 
Q. What, if anything, in ad:iition to thE cryin;J 

7 caused you to conclude that this irdi victual was up~et? 

8 A. She was afraid. She did not want to go 
9 back. I asked her --

10 KR. SCHIECK: I'm going to object to 

11 hearsay ard to lack of foundation for excited utterance. 
12 MR. OOENS: I think we have shown a 
13 foundation, your Honor. 

14 MR. SCHIECK: l\'e object to lack of 
15 foundation. We don't knaw how IT'Jch tiJTe passed since the 

16 actual event. 

17 'IHE COURI': That would be my next 
18 concern. 
19 BY MR. CYI/ENS : 

20 Q. We will ad::iress that. Did you learn in 
2: connection with the investigation ..ten the alleged event 
22 had occurred? 

23 A. At approxirrately half hour before ~ 3rrival 
24 at Frys, which nakes it right around 9 :00 o'clock. 
25 Q. So it was your UJXierstanding that you were 

16 

STATE vs. CHAPPELL 3/19/2007 



AA04236

__________________________ 17 

1 speaking with a lady aoout thirty minutes after the event 

2 had hawened? 
3 A, That's correct. 

4 MR. SCHIEX::K: Cefense oould cbject. CUr 

s p:>sition is that thirty minutes is clearly enough tine for 

6 the victim to reflect on what has happened, which takes 

1 the stateuent that she rukes outside the excited utterance 

8 rule. 
g TIIE CCUR!': case law searJS to clearly 

10 indicate that the tine frame is acceptable for the 

11 actnission of a statarent of excited utterance uooer NRS 

12 51.095. 

13 MR. CWENS: Thank you. 
14 BY MR. cwrns: 
15 Q. You testified when you tegan to talk with 

16 her she started to cry? 

17 A. Yes, she did. 
18 Q. Was she enotional throughout the 

19 interview? 

20 

21 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, she was. 

What did you ask her and what, if anything, 

22 do yoo renallber her saying to you? 

23 A. I asked her what happened. She said that 

24 she had a fight with her ooyfrieoo. This was her live-in 

25 ooyfriend, father of her children. 'That she had care hare 
17 

1 and found that he had sold the new dresser that she oought 

2 for her daughter, and she was very upset alxlut that and 
3 confronted him about it. She had descrited him -- that he 

4 had hit her, not in any specific area, but had knocked her 

5 to the floor. 
6 Q. She told you that her ooyfriend hit her and 

7 knocked her da..m? 

8 A. 'That's correct. Then she stated that when 

9 she was trying to get up he kicked her several tines in 

10 the leg and her right leg was extrarely sore. 

11 Q. Did she carplain to you at that tine that 

12 the leg was sore still? 
13 A. Yes, she did. She did refused rredical 

14 attention. 
15 Q. Did she continue to be enotional as she was 

16 giving you this account? 

11 A. Yes, she was. 
1B Q. You said that she was crying? 

19 

20 

21 
22 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Yes, she was. 

Did you see tears or her face? 
Yes. 
DJ you know how it happened that the p:>lice 

23 were contacted? 

24 A. She nade -- she had driven fran the trailer. 
25 When she grabbed the kids and got in the car and left, had 

18 

driven straight to Frys because of the fact that s:ie knew 

2 an off-duty officer worked at that location and tint 

J specifically what she had done up there to do is go up 

~ there and nake contact with him. 

5 Q. The off-duty officer apparently had a second 

£ job at Frys store? 
-; A. Yeah. They arploy us in our JX)lice capacity 

8 to work just strictly in that particular function :hat 

9 evening. 
lC Q. Did Ms. Panos identify to you the nan~ of 

11 her ooyf rieoo? 

12 A. She did. 
l3 Q. Who had cannitted the acts of violence upon 

14 her? 

1~ A. 

H Q. 
17 lived? 

H A. 
Vi Q. 

2C A. 

Yes, she did. 

Did you learn where it was that they 

Yes, I did. 

1'1hat was the address that you listened? 

1655 West Ajo, I think it was space nunt:er 

21 80, if I recall properly. 

22 Q. As a result of the infoilll3.tion that you had 

23 learned fran Ms. Panos, did you resp:>nd to 1655 West Ajo, 

24 space 80? 

25 A. Yes, I did, along with another officer. 

Q. How soon after the interview of Debra Panos 

2 was it? 

3 A. Irnrediately at the conclusion ..t.ere l left 

4 her with Officer Niedkowski there at Frys, She did not 

5 want to go near the trailer while he was still there. 

6 Q. You rmntioned earlier she expressed being 
1 afraid of the ooyf riend? 

e A. 'That's correct. 

19 

9 Q. Did it sean to be genuine fear to yo... as you 

10 cbserved her mmner? 

11 A. Yes. She oould not get in the car. I asked 
12 her if she wanted to show rre where it was or give rre the 

13 keys to get in the door, and she said that she w:iuld not 
14 go back over there. 

15 Q. Yoo said that you were contacted by sare 
16 other officers or other officers? 

l7 A. Cne other officer. 
18 Q. Who was the other officer? 
19 A. M3rk Vernon. 

2J Q. Vernon? 

21 A, Yes. 
22 Q. v-e-r-n-o-n? 

23 A, 'That one I can spell. Yes. 
24 Q. I take it you and Officer Vernon proceeded 
25 to the ad:lress she had given ycu? 

20 
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2 

A. 
Q, 

That's correct. 

Did you Jrake contact at that location with 
3 an individual identified as Jarres Chappell? 
4 A. Yes, I did. 

5 Q. Explain what hapi;ened when you apprcached 
6 the residence? 
7 A. He was sitting inside watching TV. 

a Q. Could you see into the trailer? 
9 A. Yes, I could. And I looked inside to 

10 observe that he was sitting inside watching TV, and we 
11 knocked a couple of tim:s first and announced we were the 
12 police and he finally said just care in. He dido' t ever 
13 get up fran the couch to care out and let us in. 
14 Q. Did you observe anyone else in the 
15 trailer? 

No, I did not. 16 

17 

A. 
Q. Could you actually see that as you waited at 

18 the front door the irilividual that was inside was sinple 
19 watching television? 
20 A. That's what it a~red that he was doing. 
21 The TV was on, and he was sitting in front of it look at 
22 it. 

23 

24 

25 but --

l 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Did Mr. Chappell seem to be upset? 
Well, he was when the police were there, 

Upset by the arrival of the !X)lice? 
That's correct. 
Did you explain why you were there? 
Yes, I did. 
Did he ITBke any type of acknc,,iledgrrent 

6 regarding the incident? 
7 A. When I was reading over my report on the 
a slip that I had for the booking, it says adnissions rrade, 
9 I've got, yes, circled. I don't recall what was said. 

10 Q. You do not recall the si;ecifics? 
11 A. Not si;ecifically. 
12 Q. Was he taken into custcdy? 

Yes, he was. 
For what, darestic battery? 
Yes. And he also had oo warrants. 

21 

13 

14 

15 

16 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. And as far as you know fran the cursory note 

17 written on your booking report, there was sare 
18 ackoowledgrent by the defendant in connection with your 
19 contact with him that he had done sarething to her? 
20 A. That's correct. 
21 Q, May we have the courts indulgence. 
22 What do you rarerber about the derreanor of the 
23 about that you subject, Mr. Chappell, that evening? 
24 A. Extrerely cocky, 

25 Q. You sad what? 
22 

t 

1 A. Extrerely cocky. 

2 Q. itiat oo you Ill2all by that? 
3 A. It was like all right, your here, what do 

4 you got to do, you know, let's get it done and go away. 
5 No, it dido' t seem there was any type of surprise that we 

6 were there. It was just like he didn't even care enough 
7 to get off the couch and let us in. 
8 Q. Officer Eamst, while you were still having 
9 contact with the victim, Cebra Panos, did you give her any 

1:l type of advise ab:Jut calling 911, or he getting in touch 
11 with i:olice? 
12 A. Yeah. I advised her that if she felt like 
13 she needed to talk she could call tre. I prov:i ded her my 
u pager mnrber, which is always on and told her if she 
15 didn't want to call 911, based on the fact that's what she 
16 did for a living, that she could call rre and I woul:i see 
17 if there was sanething I could do to help her out or get 
18 her into a shelter away fran the situation, whatever she 
19 needed. 
20 Q. 
2: her out? 
22 A. 

23 Q, 

24 

25 

1 

2 

j 

4 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

So you certainly did offer help -- to help 

Yes, sir. 

You gave her your pager ntnber? 
Yes, I did. 

Did she ever call you back after that --

No, she didn1t. 
-- and ask you to assist? 
No. 

MR. (lo/ENS: Thank you, '!hat concludes 
5 direct, your Honor. 
E THE CCURT: Cross. 
7 MR. SCHIErK: Thank you. 
8 BY MR. SCHIECK: 

23 

9 Q. Officer Earnst, you're still with the Tucson 
10 Police Departnent? 
11 A. Yes. 
12 Q. And you work hw many days a week? 
13 A. Kim of depends. I'm at a different 
14 function OCM. 

15 Q. Since this t.i.rre back in 1994, when this 
16 tiawened, you have prcrebly resp:mded to ho.i many Cells? 
17 A. Shortly after that I went into the current 
18 assigrnent I 'm in, so I haven't responded to that lll;lly 
19 call since. 
20 Q, D::l you ever find that you have responc.ed to 
21 so many calls in the past that they tend to run 
22 tcgether? 
23 A. I have had those nights. 
24 Q. D::l you rely a lot on your officer rep:rts to 
25 :rareitier what happened? 

24 
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1 A. Sare of it, unless there's sarething special 

2 that stands out in my mind. 
3 Q. Apparently this case stoo::i out in your 

4 mind? 

s A. She was one of our erployees, yes. 
6 Q. I would like to just sh™ you one thing real 
1 quickly. I think this is your report. Is there any 
a rrention in your rep::,rt that she was actually crying during 
9 the tirre that yoo were talking her? It did indicate that 

10 she was crying earlier when she got hit by Jam2s, is there 
11 anything in your re(X)rt about her crying at that tine? 
12 A. No. 
13 Q. So this is scmething that you rararbered, 
1 i but you do not include in your rep::,rt? 
15 A. I rerramer thinking hC1,i gocd she was holding 
16 herself together while she was talking to the other 
17 officer. 
18 Q. Sc apparently she contacted Officer 
19 Niedkowski first? 
20 A. Right. 
21 Q. And after she talked to the officer this 
22 case, do 'P}. kn™ how long she talked to him? 
23 A. I believe he called us at 21:28. I think 
24 that she must have got there about ten minutes prior. 
25 Q. I don't think in military terms, like 

1 9:30? 
2 

3 

A. 
Q. 

9:28, and I arrived at 9:30. 
Sc what tine do you estimate the actual act 

4 of hitting on her occurred? 
5 A. 1·:ell, that's what she told rre it was right 
6 at 9:00 o'clock. 
1 Q. Roughly 9 :00 o'clock? 
8 A. Right. 

9 

10 tirre? 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Q. 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

So yoo started talking to her about what 

9:30. 
H™ long did you talk to her? 
Probably 25 minutes. 
I'm sorry? 
About 25 minutes -- 20, 25. 
You testified here that she refused medical 

17 care; is that correct? 
18 A. That's correct. 
19 Q. In your mind is there a difference between 
2 o refusing rredical care and not requiring rredical care? 
21 A. It would be hard to tell. I have no way to 
22 look J:::elc,,, the skin, you know. That's sarething an 
23 individual would have to determine. 
24 Q. In your officer's rep::,rt did you irrlicate 
25 that she refused rredical care, or her wounds did not 

25 

26 

+ 

1 require medical care in your rep::,rt? 

2 A. I said that she did not. The victi.ro was 
3 carplaining of pain in her right leg, but do not require 

rredical attention. That's her ..ords, not mine. I can't 
5 1113.ke that determination for pecple. 
6 MR. SCHIEr:K: Thank you very II'Jch. No 
1 further questions. 

S THE CXXJRI' : Pecii.rect . 

9 

:o 
: : discharged? 

MR. 0:/ENS: No redirect, your Honor. 
THE caJRl': M3.y this witness be 

:2 All right. Thank you. 
:3 THE CCURT: Thank you, 1113.'am. You 1113.y 
:i step down. It's my understarrling we're going to do 
: 5 another reading at this tirre. 
:6 M.S. WECKERLY: We have one live wi:ness 
P we' 11 put on. 
18 

19 

THE COURT': All right. 

THE CLERK: You do solerrru.y swear :he 
20 test:inony you are about to give in this action shall be 
2 l the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so 
22 help you G::d. 

23 THE WITNESS; I do. 
THE CLERK: Be seated. State and spell 

25 your narre for the record. 

1 THE WITNESS: Officer Dan Giersdor::, 
2 G-I -E-R-S-D-0-R-F. 

3 BY M.S • l'/Er:KERLY: 

i Q. Ha,,, are you arployed, sir? 

6 

' 

I'm a (X)lice officer with LVMPD, 

Hcr,1 long have you i.-orked for Metro? 
Just over 14 years nc,,,. 

27 

c 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. Atx:I were you working for Metro in January of 

G 1995? 

JC A. Yes, I was. 
11 Q. I 1-0uld like to direct your attention to 
12 January 9th of 1995. On that date were you dispatched to 
13 a rrobile hane at 839 North Lamb? 
14 A. Yes, I was. 
15 Q. 
lE Nevada? 
17 A. 
18 Q. 
19 Hare Park? 
20 A. 
21 Q. 
22 location? 
23 A. 
2~ area. 
2::, Q. 

That's obviously in Las Vegas, Clark County, 

Yes, 1113.' am. 
Would that have been the Ballerina M:Jbile 

Yes, it was. 
CO recall about what t:irre you arrived at the 

About 11 :30 at night. P-oughly in that 

l'/ere you the first agency to respond, or had 
28 
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1 sareone else responded ahead of you? 
2 A. Fire and nroical had already been disµ,tche:i 
3 and arri ve:i prior to rre arriving. I was first µ,trolm3n 
4 on the scene. 
5 Q. 

6 it? 
7 

6 

A. 
Q. 

9 you do first? 

So there was an arrbulance there, I take 

Yes, rra' a:n. 
When you first got to the location what did 

10 A. Upon arrival it's a long awroach to the 
11 trailer where I was, and as I drove in I could see the 
12 ambulance and I could see two rred teches outside and a 
13 farale being loaded in the back of an arroolance. So when 
14 I responded I drove right up to the ambulance and 

15 contacte:i then first. 
16 Q. When you rrade contact with the ambulance, 
17 did you speak to the wcmm who was t:eing loaded into the 
18 arrbulance, I guess, on a gurney? 

19 A. Yes, I did, 

20 Q. can you describe her aprearance physically 
21 what you saw her? 
22 A. When I saw her she was strawed down onto 
23 the bed with the safety restraints on. She had the white 
24 sheet pulled up to aoout mid level of her chest. She was 
25 laying on her back. Her face was sr,,ollen an::! covere:i in 

1 blood. And the sarre with her hair. It was all up over 
2 her head on the pilla,,r and it was soake:i with blood. 
3 Q. Could you see if she had -- obviously 

29 

4 there's blood -- but could you see what her injuries where 
5 on her face? 
6 A. Yes, She had twc really pre:ianinant injury 
7 on her face at the tilre. She had a large cut that was 
8 over her eye and her nose was swollen to a point that it 
9 looked like it just covered the front half of her face. 

10 Q. So her nose would have l::een extremely 
11 enlarge:i t:ecause of swelling? 
12 A. Yeah. Her nose would have been about the 
13 size of my closed fist at the tine on her face. rt was 
14 that swollen. 
15 Q. And also you rrentione:i there was a 
16 laceration, a bleeding injury on the top of her eye? 
17 A. Right. It was over -- I believe it was over 
18 her right eye. There was a lot of blood caning out of her 
19 head and face still. 
20 Q. Did you speak with this waran? 
21 

22 

23 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Yes, I did. 
What did she tell you? 
She state:i that she had gotten into a fight 

24 with her live-in boyfriend ard that he had hit her in the 
25 face with a cup. 

30 

1 Q, When she was speaking with you, what was her 
2 derreanor arotionall y? 
3 A. She was extrarely upset, crying, heai,y 
4 breathing, a bit irrational. Yc:u could tell she ;.as 
) aootionally distraught. And she had trouble just trying 
5 to get her rressage across to rre. 
7 Q, Was it hard for her to talk because Jf being 
l aootional or t:ecause of her injury? 
3 A. The arotional played a part. But I .Jelive 

10 because of the injuries it Ul3de it hard to breathe and 

11 speak and everything she said was nuffle:i. Kind of a 
12 SJT13.ll gurgle sow1d you get fron that type of a fac:: 
13 injury. 
14 

15 

16 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

So fran the bleeding fran her nose? 
Yes, lffi' am. 

After she relate:i to you that her l::o:tfriend 
11 had hit her, did you attarpt to ruke contact with :he 
~a lxiyfriend? 
:9 A. Yes, I did. 
20 Q. And was he out in the arrbulance area at that 
2: p:iint with her? 
22 A. No, rm' am. I asked her initially where he 
23 was, and she said she believe::i he was still within the 
21 rrd:iile hare -- in the trailer within the IOObile hare park. 
2 5 At this ti1re I 11Ede contact with him inside the trailer 

l still. 
2 Q. 

3 with him? 

31 

H™ did you go aoout trying to rrake r.ontact 

4 A. Walked up to arow1d the side of the trailer, 
5 the door was open to the trailer. Knocked on the door and 

6 you can look into the open door, and I could see tl1e male 
i half sitting in the living roan with his back to me 
E watching TV. 
9 Q. Did he appear to be by himself inside the 

1c trailer watching TV? 
11 A, Yes, he was alone. 
12 Q. When you were knocking did you announce you 
13 were a police officer? 
14 A. Yes. 
15 Q. ~/ere you speaking in a fairly audible loud 
16 voice? 
17 A. Yes. 
18 Q. After you knocked and announced you were a 
19 police officer, what did the irdividual do that yoL were 
20 trying to talk to? 
21 A. Initially, I stepped up to him and I asked 
22 him what happened, and he was just sitting in his chair 
23 eating a bowl of cereal. And he replie:i to rre, sarething 
24 to the effect, I hit that bitch in the face. 
25 Q. When you were speaking to him, how would you 
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1 descrite him errotionall y? 

2 A. Extrarely turned off. Extranely calm and 

3 cold. Ahrost like he was just -- a casual conversation to 
4 him, but with no kind of EmJtion at all in his voice. 
5 Q, Did he ever express to you concern about the 
6 waran in the ambulance? 
7 A. None whatsoever. 

8 Q, I take it you arrested him for this 
9 incident? 

10 

11 

A, Yes, I did. 

M.5. WECKERLY: Thank you. Your Honor, 
12 I'll pass the witness. 
13 THE COURI': Thank you. Mr. Patrick or 

14 Mr. Schleck. 
15 CROSS-EXAMINATIOO 
16 BY MR. PATRICK: 

17 Q, Good rrorning, officer. 

18 

19 

20 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Good rrorning, sir, 

You testified at James' last trial? 
Yes, I did. 

21 Q. Did you have a chance to review your 
2 2 testiroony before today? 
23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. Did you have a chance to review any other 
25 records regarding that incident? 
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1 A. I reviewed the tffi!X)rary custody record, the 
2 written declaration of arrest, and the dictated arrest 
3 rep;:irt. 
4 Q. Did you review the records fran Mercy 

s lirrbulance? 
6 A. No. I don't have access to those. 
7 Q. Now, I believe you just said that Debra told 

8 you that James hit her with a cup? 

9 A. 
10 Q. 
11 A. 
12 Q. 
13 A. 
14 evidence. 

15 

16 

Q. 
A. 

Yes. 
Did you locate a cup? 

Yes, I did. 
That was booked into evidence? 
I don't believe it was booked into 

What did you do with it? 
we just left it there, 

11 Q. Did you ask Debbie how long her and James 
18 had been together? 
19 A. Yes, I did. 
20 Q. What did she tell you? 

21 A. She told me that they'd been together in a 
22 relationship for ai::proxirrl:!tely 9 years. 
23 Q. Did she rrention if they had any kids 

2 4 together? 
25 A. Yes, she did. She told me they had three 
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l kids in ccnnon. 

2 Q. Were the kids in the arrloulance? 
3 A. The kids weren't at the residence that 
4 night. 
J Q. Now, you testified today that James told you 
5 scrrething about, he hit that bitch in the face? 
7 A. Yes, sir, I did. 

8 Q. That was not part of your testiroony last 
9 tirre, correct? 

' 10 A. I don't believe it was. I don't think I was 
. 11 asked that question. 

12 Q. Now, when you went in and talked to James 
13 was he cClllbative? 

, 14 A. Absolutely not, 

15 
. 16 

17 

Q, 

A . 

Q. 

He was cooperative? 
Extrarely. 

Did you have an opp;:irtunity to perform any 
18 field sobriety tests on him? 

. : ~ A. We don't nomall y do field sobriety :es ts on 

I 

20 a darestic arrest. 
2: MR. PATRICK: That's all I have, 
22 THE COURI': Ms. Weckerly. 

23 REDIRECT EXAMINATIOO 

24 BY MS. WECKERLY: 

25 Q. Sir, over the years did this inciden: stick 

1 out in your mind? 
2 A. Yes, it did, extrarely. 
3 Q. Why is that? 

A. At the tirre of this arrest I had onlv been 
s on the department less than two years. I was only on the 
6 street for a year. But the reason it sticks out so ruch 
, in my mind is because I rrake darestic violence arrests 
8 pretty ruch daily. It's a really ccnnon crirre, But I 

9 have never met anybody that was so cold and erootionally 
10 turned off over that type of battery in my life. 
11 So the reason that this arrest sticks out tlie rrost 
12 is the way his dareanor was, cold. He was -- it ctlilled 
13 me, and I still think about it and still see it every 

' 14 day. 

15 

· lE your Honor. 
17 

' 18 

19 

20 

MS. WECKERLY: Thank you. That's all, 

'IHE COURI': Mr. Patrick. 
MR. SCHIECK: Nothing else, your Honor. 
MR. CMENS: Court's indulgence a narent. 
MS. WECKERLY: May I approach, briefly. 

21 THE COURT: Sure. 
22 BY MS. WErKERLY: 

23 Q. Sir, having shown defense counsel what's 
24 been achltted as State's Exhibit D-9, does this appear to 

I 

' 25 be a medical record fran OC -- University Medical 
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: Center? 

2 A. That's what it looks like tone. 
3 Q. Just looking at the adnit date, does it 
4 appear to be 1/9/95 the sarre date as this incident we've 
5 just been discussing with you? 
6 A. Yes, it does. 
7 MS , WECKERLY: Thank you. No other 

B questions, your Honor. 
9 THE~: Thank you. Mr. Patrick. 

:o ~- PATRICK: N"o, Judge. 

11 THE ~: All right. Officer, thank you 

12 for your tiID2. You lll3Y step d™Il, 
13 THE WITNESS: Thank you, Judge, 

14 THE COOR1': The State lll3Y call their next 
15 witness. 
16 MR. cmrns: We have another reader for 
17 Officer Williams, your Honor. 
18 THE ~: All right. 

19 'IllE CLERK: You cb solarnly s1o.12ar to 

20 faithfully and accurately read the resr:onses set forth in 
21 this transcript, so help you G:xl. 

22 THE READER: I do. 

2 3 THE COURI' : The name is not on this 
24 transcript for the record. What's the name of the person 
25 testifying. 

2 

3 

4 BY MR. OWENS: 

MR. a-irns: Allen l'lilliams. 
THE COURI': Allen Williams. Thank you. 
All right, Mr. o..ens or Ms • Weckerly. 

5 Q. Sir, what is your occupation and 

6 assignrrent? 
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7 A. I'm a r:olice officer assigned to patrol with 
B the I.as Vegas M2trop:ilitan Police D2µ:lrt:rrent. 

9 Q. How long have you been a ]))lice officer? 
10 A. Approxilll3tely 5-and-a-half years. 

11 Q. What divisions have you worked on in your 
12 5-and-a-half years? 

13 A. Patrol. 
14 Q. On June 1st of 1995, at approxilll3tely 10:08 
15 p.m., 1o.12re you dispatched by a 911 call to 839 North Larrb, 

16 space nurrber 125? 
17 A. Yes, I was. 
18 Q. That's the Ballerina M:::tile Hare trailer 
19 park? 
20 A. Correct. 
21 Q. That's here in Las Vegas, Clark County, 
22 Nevada? 
23 A. Yes. 
24 Q. lfuen you arrived at that location did you 
25 rore into contact with a person by the narre of cebra 
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1 Panos? 

2 

3 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, I did. 

Can you describ:! what her dareanor was like 
4 when you IIB.de contact? 
5 A. She appeared to be pretty frighten cJld 

6 crying. 
7 Q. As she was crying did she tell you 11hy she 
8 surmoned you? 
9 A. Yes, she did. 

10 Q. Why was that? 
11 A. She stated that she had gotten into an 
12 argurrent with her ooyfrien::i. I don't recall what the 
13 argurrent was over. He began yelling at her. He tecaroo 
14 angry and threw her down on the bed. He then clinibed on 
15 top of her, pinning her aI!ll.5 down with his knees ml 

16 pulled out a knife and held it to her throat and began 
17 threatening her with it. 

1B Q. Did sarething haw,en that caused him to step 
19 threatening her with this knife? 

20 A. She stated there was a knock on the door and 

21 that's when he stopped. 
22 Q. Was that a knock by her rcamate? 

23 A. I don't recall off-hand. 
24 Q. 
25 ooyfrien::i? 

Did you also cane into contact with her 

Yes, I did. 

What was his name? 
His narre was Jarres Chappell. 
You see him here in court tcday? 
Yes, I do. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. Can you r:oint to him and describe an article 

7 of clothing for the record? 
B A. The gentlaren in the grey suit. 
9 Q. What color shirt is he wearing? 

10 A. Yellow. 

11 MR. OOENS: Your Honor, IIB.y the rncord 
12 reflect the witness identified the defen::iant. 
13 THE COURI': It will. 
l4 BY MR. OWENS: 

15 Q. Did cebra tell you ha,.r w..ich tinE had passed 
16 between the tirre the call was rrade to the p:ilice 
17 departnent and the tinE you arrived? 
18 A. It was a brief anount of tinE. I wruld have 

19 to refer to my rep:irt to tell you exactly. 

20 Q. Would you like to refer to it --
21 

22 

A. 
Q. 

23 your arrival? 

Yes. 
-- for when the incident occurred pi:ior to 

24 A. Approxilll3tely 5 to 10 minutes. 
25 Q. Prior to y•'Jr arrival? 
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, 
i 

2 

A. 
Q. 

Yes. 

Did you arrest the defendant for battery 
3 drnEstic violence? 

4 A. Yes, I did. 
s Q. Did yoo transp::irt him to the city jail? 

6 A. Yes, I did. 

1 Q. That r,,,uuld conclude direct, your Honor. 

8 

9 

MR. PATRICK: No questions, yoor Honor. 

THE COORr: All right. May the witness ne 

10 discharged. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MR. ONENS: Yes, Judge. 

THE CCORI': The witness will be excused. 

'I11ank yoo, sir. 

THE CXXJRI': For pllI}X)ses of the record, 

15 the testirrony will be !lBrked as a court exhibit and I ' 11 
16 write Allen Williams narre at the top of it so that we !mew 

11 who this is . 

18 t1l.. 0/IENS : Thank you. 
19 THE CCURI' : The State nay call its next 

20 witness. 
21 MR. CWENS: The next thing we want to do 

22 is read the testirrony of the Defendant fran the fomer 

23 trial in this natter. We have a reader here to read the 
24 part of the Defeooant. 

25 'IHE CWRI': Care up Mr. Stanton. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

MR. CWENS: May we approach, your Honor. 
THE COORT: Yes. 

(Discussion held at the bench.) 

THE CLEPK: You swear to faithfully and 

5 accurately read the responses set forth in this 

6 transcript, so help you Gcd. 

7 THE READER: I do. 

8 THE COORr: IEt rre clarify sare things . 
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9 This is a long transcript, that's why I'm giving ycu all 

:o ccpies so you c.an read along. It's not an exhibit at this 
11 tirre. It's not going to go reek with the jury when you 

12 delil::erate. 

13 SO you are still going to obviously have 
14 to be listening to, if you' re are not going to have the 
:s transcript when you go reek. 

Thirdly, the State is still in their case 
17 in chief here, so they' re the ones proffering the use of 
18 this. But the testirrony actIBlly occurred with the 

19 defendant being examined first by his attorney, so 

20 Mr. Schleck or Mr. Patrick will be reading direct 

21 examination first and the State will read the 
22 cross-examination. 

23 

24 

25 BY MR. SCHIE.CK: 

Mr. Schleck or Mr. Patrick. 
MR. SC:HIECK: Thank you, your Honor, 
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1 Q. JarrEs, could yea state your narre for the 

2 record and spell your last narre, please. 
3 A. Janes Chappell, C-H-A-P-P-E-1-L. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

H 

15 

16 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q, 

Janes, where are you fran originally? 

Lansing, Michigan. 

Did you gra,1 up in Lansing, Michigar;? 

Yes, sir. 

Where did you rreet Debra Panos? 

J.W. Sexton High School. 
You were a student there? 

Yes, sir. 

Was she a student there? 

Yes, sir. 

Hew old were you when you net her? 

16. 
What happened when you rret her? 

11 A. We had about a 5 minute conversation. She 

18 gave ne her phone m.mer and that was it. The first tirr.e 
19 we s€€n each other. 

20 Q. What do you rrean, that was it? 

21 A. The bill had rank for us to go to class, so 
22 we couldn't talk for that long. 

23 Q. Did you all becare involved with each 

24 other? 

25 

1 

2 

3 

4 her? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

l3 tirre? 

A. 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

Did you becx:ne lovers? 

Yes, sir. 

And you subsequently had children with 

Yes, sir. 

When did you all have your first child? 

April 23rd, 1988. 
What was the name of that child? 

Jarres t-bnte Panos. 

1·:nere was that child oom? 
5µ9.rra,J Hospital, in Lansing, Michiqan. 

Were you and Debra living together at that 
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14 A. Not when she was pregnant and had the child, 
15 no. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Did you love her at that tirre? 

Yes, sir. 

Did she love you? 

Yes, sir. 

She was a white person, correct? 
Yes, sir. 
And yoo' re black? 

Yes. 

Hew did her family react to your 
25 relationship with her? 
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1 A. They hated it. 

2 Q. Did they hate the relationship, or did they 

3 hate you, or ooth? 

4 A. Both. 

s Q. Did you ever get along with them when they 

6 were in I.an.sing? 

1 A. Never. 

8 Q. Did you have ooch contact with her parents 

9 there in I.an.sing? 

10 A. We carre in contact a couple of tine. 

11 Q. What kind of contact would you have with her 

12 parents? 

13 A. They caught l1E in their house. 

14 Q, What were you ooing in their house? 

15 A. Staying the night with D2bbie. 

16 Q, Did Debbie want you to sperd the night with 

17 her? 

18 A. Yes, sir. 

19 Q. Arrl you wanted to spend the night with 
20 her? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Did you graduate fran high school in 

23 I.an.sing? 

24 A. No, I did not. 

25 Q. l•Jlat happened to your education? 
45 

1 A. I got suspended a couple of ti.rres and my 

2 gramirother took rre out of there and made be go to adult 

3 education. 
4 Q. Did you ever end up finishing high school or 

s getting a GED? 

6 A. 

1 

8 

9 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

No. 

What were your plans in teilllS of a job? 

I had many jcbs in Michigan. 

What kind of jobs did you have? 

10 A. M:Jst of them were restaurant jobs. I had a 

1: janitorial jcb at the high school at one tine. 

:2 Q. What kind of restaurant did you work -- did 

13 you do? 

14 A. Would you like rne to narres the 

15 restaurants . 

16 Q. If you can. 
17 A. I 1o.Urk at Taco Bell, Ponderosa Steak House. 

18 I worked in the cafeteria at the adult education high 

19 school, a restaurant called Qupies, a restaurant called 

20 Chedders. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

These are all in I.an.sing? 
Burger King. 

These are all in I.an.sing? 
Yes, sir. 

Did you have trouble keeping your i.urk at 
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1 these places? 

2 A. Yeah. I had sare prcblffilS. 

3 Q. How care you had a problem keeping your 

4 jobs? 

5 A. 
6 arOlllld with. 
7 

8 

9 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

10 yourself? 

11 A. 

12 Q. 

13 A. 

I guess it was the frien::ls I was har:ging 

l•Jlat kind of frien::ls did you have? 

M:lst of then were drug dealers. 

Were you using drugs during those times 

Yes, sir. 

How about Debra, was she using drug,? 

She said she tried TI1:1rijuana once, but she 

14 didn't like it and I've neVtr ever seen her do no drugs. 

15 Q. Did she knew that you were doing -- using 

16 drugs? 

n A. Yes, she did. 

18 Q. Did her family knew that you were doing 

19 drugs? 

20 A. I don't think in Michigan. I don't think 
21 they -- I don't think they knew that. 

22 Q. New, her parents, both her m::ither and 

23 father, lived in Lansing, correct -- is that right:? 

24 A. Yes, sir. 

25 Q. There cane a tine when her parents roved 

1 away? 

2 A. 

3 Q. 

A, 

Yes. 

Where did her parents m::ive to? 

Tucson, Arizona. 

5 Q. What did Debbie do -- Debra Panos do when 

6 they rroved off to Arizona? 
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7 A. She stayed with ne because they WOU.:.dn't let 

8 her keep the child. They said if she didn't give up the 

9 child for adoption she couldn't live with thffi,. 

10 Q. Did they stick with that p::,sition or not? 

11 A. For a couple of rronths. 

12 Q. Then what happened? 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

l7 approximately? 

They sent for her to care to Arizona. 

Did she go to Arizona? 

Yes, sir. 

Do you recall when she went to Arizona, 

18 A. JP was an infant, so about 2 rronths. He was 

19 about 2 rronths old, so it was about June of '98 -·· '88, I 

20 ITEall. 

21 Q, How did you feel about her going to Arizona 
22 with your son? 

23 A. Pardon ne? 
24 Q. Ha. do you feel about her going to Arizona 
25 with your son? 
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: A. I was extrEID=ly hurt, but I wanted the test 

2 for her and him so I Jmew that they would l:e all right out 

3 there with her roother. 
4 Q. She rroved to 'I\Jcson, Did she keep in touch 

s with ycu? Arrl when I say she, I mean Debra Panos? 
6 A. She had to sneak around. They put a lock 

7 box on the lTl:!.ilbox. 

8 Q. lfuat do you [[Eail they put a lock on the 

9 lTl:!.ilbox? 

10 A. She couldn't go to the lll'l.il box to get the 

11 lll'l.il out. They were always around her when she tried to 

12 do sarething. 
13 Q. Could she talk to you on the telephone? 

14 A. She wuld go to the ru.11 and she oould sneak 
15 away frcrn them while they were in the store and she would 

16 call rre fran the lll'l.ll. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q, 

A. 
Q, 

A, 

Q, 

l\'ould you ever call her at her house? 

No. 

HCM care? 

She wouldn' t give rre the m.IDiber. 

Do ycu think she didn't want you calling 

22 there when her parents were there? 

23 A. Exactly. Yes, sir. 

24 Q. There carre a time when you went dCMn to 

25 Tucson and stayed with Debbie; is that right? 

1 

2 

3 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Yes. 
Descr.il:e how that happened? 
Her rrother and her step father took our two 

~ children. Anthony was lx>rn when she carre back to rre, 
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5 after she had went out to Arizona the first time. She got 
6 pregnant back there and she went back, her rran and her 

7 step father drove fran Arizona to Michigan with the two 
8 children and she sent for rre to care out there . 

9 

10 

11 

Q, 

A. 
Q, 

12 Debra lived? 

So her parents weren't hare? 

No. 

HCM long were they gone fran the house where 

13 A. He were gone for like 2 oonths. 

14 Q, Arrl you went out and stayed in that house 

15 while they were gone? 
16 A. Yes, sir. 

17 Q. Hw did you get to Tucson? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 
Q. 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 
Q, 

Plane. 

\'1ho paid for the ticket? 

Debra Panos. 

Mlere did you fly out fran? 
Cetroit. 
You recall the airline? 

Southwest Airlines. 
Mlere did you fly to? 

1 

2 

3 

4 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 

Phoenix, Arizona. 

How did you get frCll\ Phoenix to Tucwn? 

A shuttle bus. 

So you stayed in the Panos house -- excuse 

s rre. So ycu stayed in the Panos' hare in Tucson? 
6 A, Yes, sir, 

7 Q. Hw long did that go on? 

3 A. For al:xlut 2 IT(lnths. 

9 Q. Did there care a time when you all -- when 

lJ ycu all had a second child? 
11 

12 

A. 
Q. 

She had Anthony in Tucson. 

I apologize, tut did Debra previously car:e 
13 back and visit you in Michigan? 

14 A. Yes, she did. 
15 Q, Is that when she got pregnant with y.Jur 

16 second child? 

:s 
:9 
20 

21 

22 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 

Sorry, when was your secord child to.en? 
February 15th, 1990. 
And that child's name? 

Anthony Michael Panos. 

So you're stayir:g in the house with Debra 
23 and neither of your two kids are there; is that co:rect? 
24 A. No, sir. 

2: Q. Mlere are the two kids? 

A. Her rrm and step dad were on their way back 
2 to Michigan with them. They traveled with the two 
3 children. 

4 Q. Were you intending to stay in Tucson with 
5 Debra at this tirre or not? 

6 

7 

A. 
Q. 

a returned? 

9 A, 

Yes, sir. 

What did you guys do when her parent, 

He had gotten rre a furnished studio 

1 o apartJrent before they arrived. 

11 Q. And is that where you started living? 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

11 

18 

19 

20 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A, 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Did you get any kind of job? 

Yes, sir. 

Mlere did you work? 

I worked at the Smugglers in the hotel. 

What did you do there? 

I was a dishwasher ar.d abuser. 
How long did you keep that job? 

Alx>ut 4 m:mths . 

Mly did you lc;se that job? 
22 A. Because Jarres junior told his gran:irother 
23 that I was out there ar.d she kicked DeJiJie out and Debbie 
2~ carre to stay with rre at the studio, and a neighbor 
25 downstairs told the office that there was a whole e:1tire 
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1 family in the studio so we had to get a two tedrocm 

2 apartrrent. And M:bie's joo was better than mine, so I 
3 had to stay hare and watch the children. 
4 Q, Where was she working at that tine? 

5 

6 

A. 
Q. 

The census bureau. 
Helping to take the census? 

7 A. Yes, sir. 
8 Q. Ncr~ there carre a tine when you left her, 
9 didn't you, and went back to Michigan? 

10 A, Yes, sir. 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

H A. 
15 Q, 

16 A. 

17 Q, 

18 than? 
19 A. 

Why did you leave? 
Because her rrother and her step father. 
What do you rrean by that? 
They were always in our business. 
Had you still not reconciled with them? 
No. 
Did you ever go over and socialize with 

They wouldn't allow I:ebbie to show rre where 
20 they lived, and I never even tried to firrl out where they 
21 lived. 

22 

23 

Q. 
A. 

But you had stayed out there, didn't you? 
They had rroved after they carre back. They 

24 rroved to a different house. 
25 Q. 

1 A. 

2 Q. 

3 get their? 
4 A. 
5 Q, 

6 A. 

1 Q, 

8 things? 

9 A. 

So you eventually went back to Michigan? 

Yes, sir. 
When you went back to Michigan, how did you 

Plane. 
How did you afford that? 
I:ebra paid for it. 
v/hy is it that I:ebra keeps paying for 

She w::iuld always say she was going to do it 
10 and I didn't argue with her. I didn't argue with her and 

11 try to change her mind. 
12 Q. Did you go back to Tucson after awhile in 
13 Michigan? 

14 A. 

15 Q. 

16 A. 

17 Q, 

18 A. 

19 there. 
20 Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Co you recall when you went back there? 
It was in '91 saretirre. 
And this tine why did you go back there? 
Because Deooie had begged rre to care back 

You guys were keeping in touch still? 
21 A. Yes, sir. 
22 Q. How were you keeping in touch? 
23 A. She had her own place where she could call 
24 any tirre she wanted t. She called a lot. We talked a 
25 lot. 
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1 Q. Were you glad that she was keeping the 
2 relationship alive? 
3 A. Yes, sir, very lllllch. 
4 Q. When you 1-Rnt back what hai:pened? 
s A. I got a joo. 
6 

7 

8 

9 

Where at? 
Ponchos Mexican Buffet. 
v~t were you <bing there? 
Prep o::ioking. 

10 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q, What was your plan now that you were back in 

:1 Tucson again? 
:2 A. To be with my w:::mm and my children and get 
i 3 1113.rried. 
H Q, How care you didn't get rrarried? 
15 A. Because we planned on getting 1113.rried in las 
16 Vegas. 
li Q. 

le A. 

19 Q. 

That was a long-term plan? 
Yes, sir. 
Could you afford to just care up there to 

20 I.as Vegas and get rrarried? 
21 A. Not at that tirre. 
22 Q. Were you planning on staying in Tucson, now, 
23 pemanently or not? 
24 A. Yes, sir. 
25 Q. How did you get I:ebra pregnant again --

1 excuse rre. Did you get Debra pregnant again? 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

? 

A, 

Q, 

A. 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 

~lhen did she have her third child? 
June 26, 1992. 
Which child was this? 
Chantelle Panos. 
Had her parents beccne rrore accepting of 

8 your relationship with their daughter after three 

9 children? 
10 A. I rerrerber calling her rrother after the 
11 baby, I watched her have the baby. She was the only one 
12 I'd seen care out. I callee! her rother and \oR talked for 
13 a little while. Her nm carre around after that. 
14 

15 recess. 
16 

17 gentlerren. 
18 BY MR. SCHIECK: 

MR. SCHIECK: We' re going to skip the 

THE CC;JRI': Top of page 31, ladies arl 

l 9 Q. Jarres, I think we have you in Tucson right 
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20 now. You had your third child with Debra, and you' re live 
21 with her there; is that right? 
22 A. Yes, sir. 
23 Q. Now we heard a lot of testirrony during this 
24 trial about your job situation. You testified you tad 
25 sare joos. Did you have jcbs in Tucson during this period 
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1 of tirre? 
2 A. 
3 Q. 

4 

5 

6 

A. 
Q. 
A. 

Seven exactly. 
seven different jobs? 
Yes, sir. 
Why so 1113.l1Y different jcbs? 
Srne tecause of our baby sitting situation. 

7 Sare tecause they gave me lousy raises and a couple I just 
8 didn't like. 
9 Q. 

10 A. 
11 Q. 

12 

13 

A. 
Q. 

Was Cebra w::irking during this tirre? 
Yes, sir. 
Did Debra pretty much always have a job? 
Yes, sir. 
Was she the one that always br0t.,ght in the 

14 rroney other than yourself? 
15 A. Yes, sir. 
16 Q. ~:ere ym using drugs while were ym in 
11 Tucson? 
18 

19 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Were you doing drugs m::ire when you were in 

20 Michigan or about the same? 
21 A. I would say about the same, sir. 
22 Q. You testified that you srroked, I think it 
23 was nari juana, in Michigan; is that correct? 
24 A. Yes, sir. 
25 Q. Had you been doing cocaine in Michigan? 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 

9 problBTIS? 
10 A. 

11 Q. 

I did it a couple of tirres, yes. 
Did you start doing cocaine in Tucson? 
No. I did it in Michigan first. 
But did you do it in Tucson also? 
Yes, sir. 
Did this interfere ll01ch with your work? 
No. 

You never lost a job because of your drug 

No. 
~:e heard testirrony durir.g the State's case 

12 regarding a battery in Tucson where you and Cebra were 
13 living in a trailer and she v.12nt to either 7/11 or Circle 
14 K or sar:ething and told thffil that she had been beaten up 
1s and the police carre and arrested you. Did that haw,en? 
16 A. Yes, sir. 
17 Q. Why did it haw,en? 
16 A. Because I had returned a dresser that she 
19 had bought. I returned it back to the store. 
20 Q. Why did you do that? 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Because I needed rroney at the tiID2. 
What did you need m::iney for? 
For sar:e drugs. 
She got mad at you? 
Yes. 
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1 Q. And you reacted by hitting her? 
2 A. We argued for a little i.hile, and ste said a 
3 couple of things that made me upset. 
4 Q. How do you feel about the fact that you hit 
5 her? 
6 

7 

A. 
Q. 

Extrarely bad. 
You guys eventually decided to leave Tucson 

8 a lllJve to I.as Vegas? 
9 A. Yes, sir. 

: o Q. Now sarebocly says that she cane to 1:l.s Vegas 
1: and you follcwed her to I.as Vegas, is that true or 
12 false? 
13 A. N ' o, sir. 

14 Q. How did you guys wined up caning to Las 

1~ Vegas? 
lE A. ~;re cane and visited first for a week. Me, 

17 her, and Chantelle stayed at Circus Circus, and we both 
18 looked for a job. We both looked for a har.e together. 
19 Q. Did you all find a place to stay? 
20 A. 

21 Q. 

22 A. 

23 Q. 

24 Vegas? 
25 A. 

1 exactly. 
2 Q. 

3 A. 

' " 
5 

6 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Yes, sir. 
Where did you find a place? 
839 North Larrti, space 125. 
l·lnen did you all actually lllJve to La~ 

If I'm not mistaken it was Cctober 1st, 

Of what year? 
Of 1994, sir. 
Did you all care up here at the sarre t:irre? 
Yes, sir. 
Hew did you care up here? 
We flew out of Tucson on Reno Air. 

You flew directly to Las Vegas? 
Yes, sir. 
Did you have a car at that tine? 
Yes, sir. 
Where was the car? 
We had a couple drive our U-Haul, and the 

14 car was on the back of it. They drove it fran Arizona to 
15 Las Vegas. They were SUFPJSei to rreet us here. 
16 Q. Why did you all lllJve to Las Vegas from 
17 Tucson? 
18 A. One reason was because her job. They 
19 started getting in our private lives, trying to control 
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' 20 her private life. She was upset about that and her rrother 
2 l was the one that suggested caning to Las Vegas . 
22 Q. CO you kncr,i why Las Vegas was rrentionE<.i? 

. 23 A. We had two choices, I.as Vegas or Lansing, 
24 Michigan. 
25 Q. Why I.as Vegas? 
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1 A. Her rrother talked her into coning to Las 
2 Vegas. It was oore her m:ither's decision than it was 
3 hers. 
4 Q. I'm going to show you a photograph the State 
s introduced as State's Exhibit No. 1. It show the trailer 
6 where Cebra died. Is that the trailer that you and she 
7 lived together in? 
B A. Yes, sir. 
9 Q. I think we' re going to post the exhibits as 

10 we go along, your Honor? 
11 THE COURT: All right. 

12 MR. SCHIErK: For the record, your Honor, 
13 I'm going to put nmJ::er one up. 
14 THE COOR!' : Thank you. 

15 BY MR. SCHIE.CK: 

16 Q. was that your hare in I.as Vegas? 

17 

18 

A. 
Q. 

Yes, sir. 
That's where you lived fran roughly Octcber 

19 1st of '94 until the time that she died, except for the 
20 times you were in jail? 
21 A. Yes, sir. 

22 

23 
24 

25 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Did you firrl work in Las Vegas? 
Yes, sir. 
Where did you work? 

Ethel M. Chocolate Factory. 

~;tere is that? 

Cut there around Sunset. 
Ha,/ long did you work out there? 
Alxlut a rronth and a half. 
Hcr.r care you lost that job? 

Because day care had cost too rnxh when we 
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7 first got here and Cebra was working two jobs. I told her 
B I wuld stay hare with the kids. I called them three 
9 times and they terminated rre. 

10 Q. They fired you? 

11 

12 

13 Vegas? 

A. 
Q. 

14 A. 
15 Q. 

Yes, sir. 
Did you start doing drugs here in Las 

Yes, sir. 

Did you start hanging out at the Vera 
16 Johnson projects doing drugs there? 
17 A. Yes, sir. 
18 Q. Did that interfere with yCllr ability to be a 
19 good father? 
20 A. No, it did not. 
21 Q. Did it interfere much with your relationship 
22 with Cebra? 
23 A. I'm sure it did close to the end, but not at 
2 4 the beginning Ylhen we got here. 
25 Q. Coing back for just a second. Dina Freeman 
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1 testified about this phone conversation while you were 
2 still living in Arizona where she's got you saying in the 
3 backgrowxi to Cebra, I'm going to do an O.J. SiRpson on 
1 your ass . Did you ever say that? 
5 A. Honestly, no. I did not say that. 
6 Q. Did you ever threaten her in front of Dina 
7 Freeiran or on the telephone? 
s A. Never. Never. Never. 
9 Q. Did you ever talk about O.J. SlJll)son in 

:o front of Dina? 
A. No, sir, I did not. 

12 Q. So she's not telling the truth Yihen :,he 
13 testified to that? 
H A. No, she lied u!Xler oath, sir. 
15 Q. You heard testimony regarding Cebra 
16 receiving a broken nose on January 9, 1995 here in Las 
1, Vegas. Tell us what happened then. 
1 E A. We were l::oth in the dining roon. I forget 
19 what we were talking about. We were talking about doing 
2c sarething together and we got into an argurrent or 
21 sarething. I'm not sure exactly what it was, and she had 
22 went ard laid down on the couch. And I was talking to her 
23 as she was laying down and she said sarething back to l!E, 

24 smething snart. I don't rerrernber her exact words, but I 
25 took a cup. It was like one of those theilffil coffee cups 
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1 ard I threw it and it carre over the top of her heac. and it 
2 hit her right here. She got up and she ran to the 
3 bathroon. I ran in there after her. She was covering her 
l face. She said I think ITrf nose is broken. I said let !lE 

J see. She reroved her han:::! ard she had a gash right 
6 here. 
7 

8 

9 

10 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. 

Are you indicating the side of your nose? 
Yes . Right here. 
Was she bloo:iy? 

It wasn't caning out at that time. It was 
11 open, but when I looked at it it looked like it was just a 
12 piece of rreat right here. You could see in the inside. 
13 No blood was gushing out at the tine. 
14 Q. \'fuo called 911? 
15 A. I did, sir. 
16 Q. Now, the rrEdical records that were 
17 introduced by the State into evidence indicated a rmark 
lS by Cebra Panos that said, she had been beaten l::efore, but 

19 never like this. How you do respon::i to that? 
28 A. I couldn't picture her saying that. I threw 
21 a cup. That's all I did. I did not try to hit her in the 
22 face. It accidentally hit her in her nose and broke her 
23 nose. I'm sorry, but there's nothing I coold do al:out it. 
24 I called 911 and got the arrbulance there. The police carre 
25 and they slamred ire all over the place, took rre to :\ail in 
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: front of my children in my boxers and my socks. They 

2 ~ren't even listening to rre. 'Tuey thought I was lying. 

3 I showed them the cup. 

4 Q. Jarres, yoo. have another allegation that you 
s attacked her on June 1st of 1995. You w1:re arrested again 
6 for danestic battery. What happened at that tirre? 
7 A. \~ell, Cebra had been gone all day the 
8 previous day before that and she went to work the next 
9 day. After she got off work she went sarewhere else, so I 

10 didn't see her for a long tine. \'lhen she carre hare 

11 another friend arrived. I guess they were talking about 
12 doing sarething else. We started arguirq and we went in 
13 the bedrCXIll and I pinned her down and I sh<Y,,Bj her a 

14 knife. When I realized what -- and when I realized that 
:s doing that wasn't going to get nothing out of her, I got 

16 rid of it. Claire knocked on the door. 
Who is Claire? 

One of her so-called friends fran Arizona. 
Was she living with yoo? 

Yes. 

How long did she live there? 

I would say ar:proxifil3tel y 2 m:inths, sir. 

Go ahead. I'm sorry. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q, 

A. 
Q, 

A. 
Q. 
A. 
Q. 
A. I let Cebbie up. She ~t ootside with both 

25 Claire and her other friend that was there. And then I 

1 went outside. Then the cops pulled up, and I went to 

2 jail. 

3 Q. Did yoo plead guilty to dll!estic battery in 
that case, eventually? 

s A. Yes, sir. 
6 Q, That was June 1st of '95. How rruch of the 
7 sunmer did you spend in jail? 

8 A. Could I just tell you the first tirre I w1:nt 
9 to jail when I got out when I went back. 

10 Q. Sure, if you want to. 
11 A. First tine I 1o.1?nt to jail was February 28, 

12 1995 I stayed in jail until May 10. Cebbie carre and 
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13 picked me up, took n:e hClll'!. When I got out, there was two 
14 friends living there. 
15 Q. When you say two frien::ls, role friends or 
16 fare.le friends? 

17 A. Farale frien::ls. I went back to jail for 
18 that danestic violence on June 1st, 1995, got out June 
19 7th. Claire carre and picked me up, took me back hare. 
20 And we were back together. Then I went back to jail June 
21 26th on Chantelle's birthday -- her third birthday. 
22 Q. When did you get out of jail that time? 
23 

24 31st. 
25 

A. 

Q. 

I didn't get out of jail until August 

Na,,,, fran that smner, let's say June 26th, 
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l when yoo got arrested until the ti.rte got released on 

2 August 31st, did cebra accept yoor phone calls? 
3 A. Yes, sir. 

4 Q. Ho,,r often i-.uuld you call her, ar:proxinately, 
s if you can renmber? 

6 A. Sa!Etimes a couple ti.Ires a day. 
1 Q. Did she ever tell you this relationship was 
8 over? 

9 A. Never. Never. 
10 Q. Did anyl:x:dy else ever tell you the 

11 relationship was over? 

:2 A. No, sir. 

:3 Q, Did yoo ever call that trailer and get mad 

14 because of who answered the phone? 
15 A. Yes, sir. 

16 Q. What was going on? 
I 7 A. There was nU11erous different WCitEn answering 
1 e the phone. Saretirres the children \,1JU]_d pick up the 
19 phone, knock it over, and the phone l>Kluld just be sitting 

20 on the floor and I coold hear stuff in the background. 
2i Q. What would yoo hear? 

22 A. Music, people, voices. Another time there 
23 was rren answering the phone. 
24 Q. Did you know these men? 

25 A. Absolutely not. 

l 

2 

3 

Q. 
A. 
Q. 

Did that rrake you mad? 

Yes, it did. 

ll'hy did it make you rrad? 
4 A. Because when we m:ived here Cebbie told me 

s that I cooldn't answer the phone because her rrother i.ou.ld 

6 get upset about it. I gave her that respect. Aro :hen I 
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7 turn around and go to jail and there's all kinds of i:eople 
B I don't even know answering our phone, hanging up on me. 
9 Q. Hw did you feel about the idea of other rren 

lC being in the trailer when you called yoor hare? 

i 1 A. I was stunned, hurt, afraid. 
12 

13 

14 

Q. 
A. 
Q, 

15 children? 

What were you afraid of? 
My children. 

rlhat were you afraid of about your 

16 A. We had nmeroos baby sitters in Arizona that 
17 w:JU.ldn't feed oor kids saretimes. Sare even hit than. 
18 Q, You say that you l>Kluld talk to cebra en the 
19 telephone. Did she ever care to visit you that sUimer in 
20 jail? 

21 A. Between June 26 and August 31st, is that 
22 what you' re talking about. 

. 23 Q. Yes, sir. 

24 A. No, she didn't. 
25 Q. [):) yoo knew why she didn't care to visit 
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1 I. INTRODUCTION 

2 In this capital case, Appellant James Chappell challenges the constitutionality of his 

3 sentence of death, which occurred as the result of a second penalty phase trial which 

4 followed a finding of ineffective assistance of counsel for the penalty phase of his first trial. 

5 Chappell was convicted of murdering his long-time girlfriend, who was also the mother of 

6 his three children. The only aggravating circumstance for the second penalty phase trial was 

7 murder committed during the perpetration of a sexual assault. As there was insufficient 

8 evidence to establish this aggravating circumstance, the sentence of death must be vacated 

9 and a sentence less than death imposed. In the alternative, Chappell is entitled to a new 

10 penalty hearing because of the substantial constitutional violations which occurred during 

11 the penalty trial. Finally, this Court should revisit two issues previously considered 

12 concerning the guilt phase of Chappell's trial based upon new authority which establishes 

13 that this Court's prior rulings were erroneous. 

14 II. 

15 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This is a direct appeal from a judgment of conviction, pursuant to a jury verdict, 

16 imposing a sentence of death based upon a conviction for one count of first degree murder. 

17 III. 

18 A. 

19 
B. 

20 

21 C. 

22 
D. 

23 

24 E. 

25 
F. 

26 

27 
G. 

28 

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES 

Whether Chappell' s Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed Because 
The Jury Was Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of The Capital Offense 

Whether Chappell' s Conviction For First Degree Murder Must Be Reversed Because 
The Jury Was Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of Felony Murder 

Whether Chappell's Sentence of Death Must Be Vacated Because NRS 177.055(3) 
Is Unconstitutional 

Whether Chappell Was Entitled To Review By The District Attorney's Death Review 
Committee 

Whether Chappell's Death Sentence Is Unconstitutional Because of the Trial Court 
Failed to Dismiss Jurors For Cause Who Would Always Impose A Sentence of Death 

Whether Chap_p_ell' s Conviction Is Unconstitutional Because The State Was Pennitted 
To Introduce Unreliable Hearsay Evidence Durip.g The Penalty Hearing In Support 
of The Aggravating Circumstance and as Other Matter Evidence 

Whether The District Court Erroneously Admitted Presentence Investigation Reports 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

H. 

I. 

J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

0. 

P. 

IV. 

Whether The District Court Allowed Improper Victim Impact Testimony 

Wh~ther The District Court Erred In Allowing Admission of Chappell's Prior 
Testimony 

Whether The State Committed Prosecutorial Misconduct By Making Arguments 
Based Upon Comparative Worth Arguments 

Whether The State Committed Extensive Prosecutorial Misconduct 

Whether The District Court Failed To Instruct The Jury_ That The State Was Required 
To Establish Beyond On Beyond a Reasonable Doubt That Mitigating Circumstances 
Did Not Outweigh Aggravating Circumstances 

Whether The J:i:i_ry' s Failure to Find Mitigati_!i_g Circumstances Was Clearly Erroneous 
and Requires That the Death Sentence Be Vacated 

Whether There Is Insufficient Evidence To Support The Sexual Assault Aggravator 

Whether The Sexual Assault Aggravating Circumstance Is Invalid Under McConnell 
v. State 

Whether The Judgment Must Be Reversed Because of Cumulative Error. 

PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

14 Appellant James Chappell was charged, on October 11, 1995, via Information with 

15 one count each of burglary, robbery with use of a deadly weapon, and open murder with use 

16 of a deadly weapon. I ROA 38. The State based its murder charge on alternative theories 

17 of felony murder and premeditated and deliberate murder. I ROA 39. On November 8, 

18 1995, the State filed its Notice of Intent to Seek Death Penalty. I ROA 44. It charged 

19 aggravating circumstances of murder in the course of a robbery, murder in the course of a 

20 burglary, murder while the person was engaged in sexual assault or the attempt thereof, and 

21 torture or depravity of mind. I ROA 44-45. Prior to trial, Chappell filed a motion to dismiss 

22 several of the aggravating circumstances. I ROA 250. He argued in part that the aggravating 

23 circumstance of sexual assault should be dismissed because Chappell was not charged with 

24 sexual assault and no evidence was presented during the preliminary hearing that would 

25 support the aggravating circumstance. I ROA 256. The State opposed the motion, but did 

26 not address the sexual assault issue. II ROA 309-19. The Court denied the motion. 

27 The jury trial began on October 8, 1996, and was presided over by the Honorable A. 

28 William Maupin. II ROA 3 5 5. The jury was instructed on theories of premeditated murder 
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1 and felony murder. VII ROA 1703, 1721, 1722. The premeditation instruction informed the 

2 jury that "[p]remeditation need not be for a day, an hour or even a minute. It may be as 

3 instantaneous as successive thoughts of the mind. For if the jury believes from the evidence 

4 that the act constituting the killing as been preceded by and has been the result of 

5 premeditation, no matter how rapidly the premeditation is followed by the act constituting 

6 the killing, it is willful, deliberate and premeditated murder." VII ROA 1722. The jury was 

7 also instructed on robbery in general and was instructed specifically that a "taking constitutes 

8 robbery whenever it appears that, although the taking was fully completed without the 

9 knowledge of the person from whom taken, such knowledge was prevented by the use of 

10 fear." VII ROA 1711. On October 16, 1996, the jury returned verdicts of guilty on charges 

11 of burglary, robbery and first degree murder. VII ROA 1747-49. No special verdict form 

12 was given to the jury, so it is unknown as to whether the jurors relied upon the premeditation 

13 theory, the felony murder theory, or both in finding Chappell guilty of first degree murder. 

14 The penalty phase of the first trial began on October 21, 1996. VII ROA 1757. On 

15 October 24, 1996, the jury returned its verdicts in which it found mitigating circumstances 

16 of murder committed while the defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or 

17 emotion disturbance and "any other mitigating circumstances." IX ROA 2126, 2170-71. It 

18 found aggravating circumstances of burglary, robbery, sexual assault, and torture or depravity 

19 of mind and returned a verdict for death. IX ROA 2127-29, 2167-69. Formal sentencing 

20 took place on December 30, 1996. IX ROA 2179. The district court sentenced Chappell to 

21 the maximum terms for burglary and robbery with use of a deadly weapon and ordered that 

22 those sentences run consecutively to the death sentence. IX ROA 2188. 

23 The judgment of conviction was filed on December 31, 1996. IX ROA 2190. 

24 Chappell filed a timely notice of appeal to this Court on January 17, 1997, which was 

25 docketed as number 29884. IX ROA 2200. On December 30, 1998, this Court issued its 

26 opinion affirming the conviction. IX ROA 2273; Chappell v. State, 114 Nev. 1403, 972 P .2d 

27 838 ( 1998). This Court concluded that the district court erred in failing to hold a Petrocelli 

28 hearing, but found admission of evidence uncharged misconduct to be harmless. Id. at 1406, 
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1 972 P.2d at 840. It also concluded that there was sufficient evidence to support the 

2 aggravating circumstances of burglary, robbery and sexual assault, but insufficient evidence 

3 to support the aggravating circumstance of torture or depravity of mind. Id. at 1407, 972 

4 P .2d at 841. In addressing the robbery aggravating circumstance, this Court noted Chappell' s 

5 argument that the evidence showed that he took Panos' s car as an afterthought and therefore 

6 could not be guilty of robbery, but rejected that argument because this Court had held ''that 

7 in robbery cases it is irrelevant when the intent to steal the property is formed." Id. at 1408, 

8 972 P .2d at 841. Although this Court found the torture or depravity of mind aggravating 

9 circumstance to be invalid, it reweighed the remaining three aggravating circumstances and 

10 the two mitigating circumstances, found the aggravating clearly outweighed the mitigating, 

11 and that a sentence of death was proper. Id. at 1410-11, 558 P.2d at 842. The Court also 

12 rejected other issues raised by Chappell on appeal. Id. This Court denied rehearing on 

13 March 17, 1999. IX ROA 2288. 

14 Chappell' s petition for certiorari was denied on October 4, 1999. Chappell v. Nevada, 

15 528 U.S. 853 (1999). This Court's remittitur issued on November 4, 1999. X ROA 2353. 

16 Meanwhile, on October 19, 1999, Chappell filed a proper person post-conviction 

17 petition for a writ of habeas corpus. IX ROA 225 8. The post-conviction matter was assigned 

18 to the Honorable Mark Gibbons. X ROA 2354. A supplemental petition was filed on April 

19 30, 2002. X ROA 2417. Among other issues, Chappell contended that his conviction was 

20 invalid because the jury instruction defining premeditation and deliberation was 

21 constitutionally infirm as it did not provide a rational distinction between first and second 

22 degree murder. X ROA 2456-59 (citing Byford v. State, 116 Nev. 215, 994 P.2d 700 

23 (2000)). He also asserted that the sentence of death was unconstitutional because of the use 

24 of overlapping aggravating circumstances. X ROA 2465. The State filed its response to the 

25 petition on June 19, 2002. X ROA 2481. The evidentiary hearing took place before the 

26 Honorable Michael Douglas on September 13, 2002. XI ROA 2554. Subsequently, on June 

27 3, 2004, the district court entered its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order. XI 

28 ROA 2745. It denied the petition as to the guilt phase issues, granted the petition as to the 
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1 sentence, and ordered a new sentencing hearing. XI ROA 2748, 2778. 1 On June 18, 2004, 

2 the State filed a notice of appeal to this Court. XI ROA 27 57. On June 24, 2004, Chappell 

3 filed a notice of cross-appeal. XI ROA 2761. On April 7, 2006, this Court issued its Order 

4 of Affirmance in which it upheld the district court's decision. XI ROA 2783. Of relevance 

5 to this appeal is this Court's conclusion that there was no merit to the arguments presented 

6 concemingjuryinstructions. XIROA2790n.20(citingGarnerv. State, 116Nev. 770, 788-

7 89, 6 P.3d 1013, 1025 (2000)). This Court also found the aggravating circumstances of 

8 burglary and robbery to be invalid under McConnell v. State, 120 Nev. 1043, 102 P.3d 606 

9 (2004). XI ROA2792-95. The remittitur issued on May 4, 2006. XI ROA 2797. 

10 Prior to the second penalty hearing, several pretrial motions were filed which are 

11 relevant to this appeal.2 Chappell filed a motion to strike the sexual assault aggravator. XII 

12 ROA 2801. The State opposed the motion. XII ROA 2890. The district court denied the 

13 motion. XII ROA 2905, 3019; XV ROA 3840. 

14 Chappell filed a motion to remand for consideration by the Clark County District 

15 Attorney's Death Review Committee. XII ROA 2817. The State opposed the motion. XII 

16 ROA 2884. The district court denied the motion. XII ROA 2905, 3015; XV ROA 3837. 

17 Chappell filed a motion for discovery of potential penalty hearing evidence. XII ROA 

18 2826. The State opposed the motion. XII ROA 2888. The district court denied the motion. 

19 XII ROA 3026. On February 23, 2007, the State filed its notice of evidence in support of 

20 aggravating circumstances. XII ROA 3032. 

21 Jury selection began on March 12, 2007. XIX ROA 3932. During the course of the 

22 trial, Chappell objected to the use of hearsay evidence during the penalty hearing on 

23 

24 1The parties stipulated that these were the findings, conclusions and order of Judge 

25 Douglas and agreed that the order should be executed by the Chief Judge of the Eighth 
Judicial District Court due to Judge Douglas's appointment to this Court. XI ROA 2748. 

26 

27 
2Judge Cherry briefly presided over the case and heard procedural matters, such as the 

setting of the trial date. XII ROA 2912, 2915, 2921. It appears that he may have reviewed 
28 the pretrial motions, but he did not rule upon them. XII ROA 2919, 2922. 
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1 Confrontation Clause grounds and noted that this Court had recently rejected this argument, 

2 but presented it so as it preserve the issue for further review. XIII ROA 3050. Chappell also 

3 objected to the presentation of victim impact evidence by persons who were not family 

4 members of Panos. XIII ROA 3107-08, 3177; XV ROA 3678. The district court found that 

5 it had discretion to admit victim impact evidence from non-family members. XIII ROA 

6 3272-73. Over an objection by defense counsel, the district court permitted the State to use 

7 Chappell's testimony from the first trial. XV ROA 3632. Defense counsel had argued that 

8 the testimony was the result of ineffective assistance of counsel. The district court also 

9 overruled defense counsel's objection to questions asked by the prosecution and answered 

10 by Chappell concerning the allegation that Chappell had a lot of time to think about his 

11 testimony and to decide what he would say. XV ROA 3632. Chappell's counsel argued that 

12 this was a comment on Chappell's right to remain silent but the district court rejected the 

13 argument after noting that the claim was found to be without merit in post-conviction 

14 proceedings. XV ROA 3632-33. 

15 Jury instructions were read in open court on March 21, 2007. XV ROA 3742. 

16 Following closing arguments, the jury returned their verdicts. XV ROA 3737, 3821. They 

17 found the aggravating circumstance of murder committed during the perpetration of a sexual 

18 assault. XV ROA 3737, 3822. The mitigating special verdict form listed the following 

19 mitigators: ( 1) Chappell suffered from substance abuse; (2) he has had no father figure in his 

20 life; (3) he was raised in an abusive household; (4) was the victim of physical abuse as a 

21 child; (5) he was born to a drug/alcohol addicted mother; (6) he suffered from a learning 

22 disability; and (7) was raised in a depressed housing area. XV ROA 3739-40, 3822-23. The 

23 jury did not find the mitigating circumstance that Chappell' smother was killed when he was 

24 very young, that he was the victim of mental abuse as a child, and other mitigating 

25 circumstances that were asserted to exist by Chappell's counsel. XV ROA 3755. The jury 

26 found that the mitigating circumstances did not outweigh the aggravating circumstance. XV 

27 ROA 3738, 3822-23. The special verdict form for the weighing equation did not indicate 

28 that it was the State's burden to establish beyond a reasonable doubt that the mitigating 
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1 circumstances did not outweigh the aggravating circumstance. XV ROA 3738. The jury 

2 returned a sentence of death. XV ROA 3 7 41. 

3 Formal sentencing took place on May 10, 2007. XIX ROA 4015, 4018. The 

4 judgment of conviction was filed the same day. XV ROA 3 854. The district court ordered 

5 the judgment stayed pending appeal. XIX ROA 4019; XV ROA 3861. A timely notice of 

6 appeal was filed on June 8, 2007. XIX ROA 3872. This Opening Brief now follows. 

7 V. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

8 The State alleged that Chappell killed his girlfriend, Deborah Panos, who was also the 

9 mother of his three children, because she intended to end their relationship. IV ROA 864. 

10 In support of this theory, the State claimed that Chappell had a history of violence toward 

11 Panos and that on August 31, 1995, after he was released from jail, he entered her trailer 

12 through a window, had a fight with Panos that resulted in her being beaten and stabbed to 

13 death, and then stole her car and social security cards belonging to her and their children. IV 

14 ROA 864-86 (guilt phase opening statement). The State also noted that Chappell's semen 

15 was found in Panos's body. IV ROA 887-88. It asserted that Chappell was guilty of 

16 burglary, robbery with use of a deadly weapon, and first degree murder with use of a deadly 

17 weapon. IV ROA 889. It relied upon theories of both premeditated murder and felony 

18 murder in urging the jury to return a verdict of first-degree murder. VII ROA 1627-29 

19 ( closing argument). In support of the felony-murder by robbery theory, the State relied upon 

20 Chappell's taking of Panos's car and social security card, which occurred after her death. 

21 VII ROA 1623-24, 1629. In support of its premeditation theory, the State relied upon Jury 

22 Instruction Number 22 which stated that "premeditation need not be for a day, an hour, or 

23 even a minute. It may be an instantaneous as successive thoughts of the mind." VII ROA 

24 1630. See also VII ROA 1689. The State also argued that evidence of premeditation existed 

25 because Panos was stabbed 13 times, he did not seek medical attention for her after she had 

26 been stabbed, and he got high on crack cocaine following her death. VII ROA 1635-36. 

27 Chappell acknowledged responsibility for Panos' s death, but asserted that he did not 

28 commit the offense of burglary because he lived in the trailer and entered through a window 
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1 only because he did not have a key, and no one was home when he arrived at the trailer after 

2 having been in jail. IV ROA 892 ( opening statement). The defense case was that Panos 

3 arrived home and was happy to see him, they had consensual sex, and then later had an 

4 argument because Chappell was jealous over the fact that Panos was seeing other men while 

5 Chappell was in jail. IV ROA 892-93. Later, Chappell discovered a letter by another man 

6 that implied sexual things to Panos, he went into a fit of rage, and killed Panos by stabbing 

7 her. IV ROA 894. Chappell contended that the evidence did not support a finding of first 

8 degree murder, that he took the car after Panos was dead because he did not know what to 

9 do besides leaving, and he was not guilty of burglary because he entered his home without 

10 any intent to commit an offense. IV ROA 892, 895. He asked the jury to return a verdicts 

11 of guilty on the lesser included charges of voluntary manslaughter with use of a deadly 

12 weapon and grand larceny auto. IV ROA 896; VII ROA 1660. During closing arguments, 

13 Chappell' s counsel noted that he took full responsibility for killing Panos and therefore the 

14 issue at hand concerned premeditation, deliberation and intent. IV ROA 1641, 1645. 

15 The State and Chappell's trial counsel entered into a stipulation as to certain facts 

16 concerning August 31, 1995: Chappell entered a trailer rented to Panos through a window; 

17 Chappell engaged in sexual intercourse with Panos; Chappell caused the death of Panos by 

18 stabbing her with a kitchen knife and the act was not an accident; and Chappell was jealous 

19 of Panos because he believed she was giving attention to or receiving attention from other 

20 men. IV ROA 844-45, 850; VI ROA 1312-13. 

21 Evidence introduced at trial which is relevant to this appeal includes the following: 

22 A "sexual assault kit," which consisted of samples of biological evidence was taken from 

23 Panos's body. IV ROA 998. There was no testimony by either the coroner or the crime 

24 scene analyst assigned to assist with the autopsy which suggested in any way that there was 

25 bruising, cuts or other trauma in the area of Panos' s vagina. IV App 962-1003. Panos was 

26 fully clothed when her body was discovered. IV ROA 996, 1024. 

27 Chappell and Panos began dating in high school and had three children together. V 

28 ROA 1231, 1279; VI ROA 1367-68. They began their relationship in Michigan and 
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1 continueditastheylivedinArizonaandNevada. VROA 1234-35, VI ROA 1368, 1372-74, 

2 1383. There were previous occasions in which the two fought, broke-up and then reunited. 

3 VROA 1235-40, 1257, 1311, 1321; VI ROA 1357, 1376-78, 1390. Chappell was possessive 

4 of Panos. V ROA 1247. Panos loved Chappell. V ROA 1250. 

5 Chappell testified that after he was released from jail, he returned home to the trailer 

6 that he shared with Panos. VI ROA 1397. He climbed through the window because he had 

7 called shortly before and Panos did not answer and he had lost his key to the trailer. VI ROA 

8 1397. Upon entering, he learned that Panos was in fact already home. They talked and 

9 everything was okay between them. VI ROA 1398. They then had sex on the couch. He 

10 began to think that she had been messing around on him, so he grabbed her and asked her 

11 who she had been with. VI ROA 1399. She said she had not been with anyone else and then 

12 performed oral sex on Chappell. VI ROA 1400. The sexual acts were consensual and he did 

13 not pressure her into having sex with him. VI ROA 1400. They got dressed, called the 

14 daycare center, and then left the trailer to pick up the children. VI ROA 1401-03. While in 

15 the car he found a letter to Panos from another man and read about the man having sex with 

16 her. VI ROA 1404-05. He was shocked and devastated, so he returned the car to their home, 

17 went back inside with her, and stabbed her with the knife. VI ROA 1405. Chappell did not 

18 recall details about the stabbing, did not know how many times he stabbed her or hit her and 

19 did not know why he killed her. VI ROA 1406. He was very upset, blacked out during the 

20 attack and then left immediately when he realized what had happened. VI ROA 1407, 1464. 

21 The letter that he read in the car was found next to her body. VI ROA 1407. 

22 Dr. Lewis Etcoff, a psychologist, testified that Chappell was remorseful over Panos's 

23 death and sad over her death. VI ROA 1543. He noted that Chappell had an IQ of 80, which 

24 means that 91 out of 100 people have more intellectual skills. VI ROA 1546. His language 

25 score was especially low. VI ROA 1548-49. Dr. Etcoff described Chappell's personality 

26 issues, which includes low self-worth, little self-respect, social awkwardness, distrust of 

27 others, and fear of humiliation and rejection. VI ROA 1553. He had no relationship with 

28 his father and his mother died before he was three years old. He had a personality 
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1 characteristic of being hugely frightened and enormously afraid of being abandoned in a 

2 relationship, and was paranoid as a result. VI ROA 1554, 1571. 

3 As noted above, the first jury considered this evidence and returned verdicts of guilty 

4 on the charges of first degree murder, robbery and burglary. 

5 The testimony presented by the State during the second penalty hearing largely 

6 followed the evidence presented at the first trial, though a significant amount of hearsay 

7 evidence was also admitted that was not presented during the guilt phase of the first trial. 

8 Michele Mancha testified that she worked with Panos and they were friends. XIII 

9 ROA 3089. Panos confided in her and told her about various incidents concerning Chappell: 

10 he broke her nose with a plastic cup; he took things of value from her trailer after climbing 

11 in through her window as he did not have a key to the trailer; he slapped her in the face while 

12 in the parking lot of her work. XIII ROA 3089-95. Mancha believed that Panos was trying 

13 to distance herself from Chappell. XIII ROA 3092. She testified that in June 1995, Panos 

14 said that Chappell choked her and the next day Mancha saw marks on her neck. XIII ROA 

15 3096-97. Mancha also reported that Panos told her in June 1995 that Chappell sat on her and 

16 put a knife to her throat. XIII ROA 3098. She next asserted that Panos planned to move 

17 from her trailer and thought she had 90 days to do so as Chappell was supposed to be in 

18 custody, but he was let out less than 24 hours later. XIII ROA 3099. They had also planned 

19 to send Chappell back to Michigan, but he refused to go unless he could take his daughter 

20 with him. XIII ROA 3099. She asserted that Panos called the jail everyday to make sure that 

21 Chappell was still in custody and she was in the process of leaving her trailer and moving 

22 with the children. XIII ROA 3101. 

23 Mancha also testified about court proceedings, even though she was not present at 

24 those proceedings. XIII ROA 3102. She asserted that Panos had a restraining order against 

25 Chappell and that Panos had been subpoenaed to testify against Chappell based upon the 

26 choking incident. XIII ROA 3103. Mancha claimed that Panos told her that Chappell 

27 threatened to kill Panos after she told him that it was over, that he was supposed to go to a 

28 90-day drug rehabilitation program, and that they had time to get her possessions from the 
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1 trailer and move. XIII ROA 3103-04. Mancha stated that they were all scared and she tried 

2 to call Chappell's probation officer, Charlene Sumner, to tell her about the threat to Panos. 

3 XIII ROA 3105. On cross-examination Mancha acknowledged that Chappell had a problem 

4 with drugs and that he stole stuff from the trailer to buy drugs. XIII ROA 3109. 

5 The Court permitted Mancha to give victim impact testimony, over an objection by 

6 the defense. XIII ROA 3107-08. She testified about her feelings at the time she learned that 

7 Panos had been killed, informed the jury that she was a wreck for days after, and that even 

8 ten years later it was still awful and that she misses Panos every day. XIII ROA 3108. 

9 Mike Pollard's testimony from the first penalty hearing wa.s read into the record. XIII 

10 ROA 3114. He testified that he worked with Panos and was friends with her. XIII ROA 

11 3115-16. He did not ever meet Chappell, but he did see Chappell slap Panos while in the 

12 parking lot of her employer. XIII ROA 3118. This incident happened after the time that he 

13 broke her nose. XIII ROA 3119. There were other times when Panos was upset and Pollard 

14 believed this to be because of conversations or interactions with Chappell. XIII ROA 3120. 

15 Pollard asserted that Panos told him she was planning to move from her trailer and wanted 

16 to be gone before Chappell was released from custody. XIII ROA 3125. Pollard recited 

17 incidents in which Panos told him that Chappell took items from her and their children and 

18 either returned them to stores to receive cash or sold the items to other people. XIII ROA 

19 3125. Pollard asserted that Panos was concerned about Chappell's release and that she 

20 repeatedly called the jail to find out when he would be released. XIII ROA 3128. Pollard 

21 claimed that Panos had tried to get Chappell to leave the state and had purchased a ticket for 

22 him to go to Michigan. XIII ROA 3128. Pollard also testified that Panos realized that 

23 Chappell would not leave, so she was planning to move out of the trailer even though she 

24 was in the process of buying it. XIII ROA 3129. 

25 Pollard saw Panos on August 31, 1995. XIII ROA 3129. They got off work around 

26 noon and planned to barbecue at a park. XIII. ROA 3131. She left Pollard's house and 

27 returned about 20 minutes later. XIII ROA 3131. Pollard claimed that she sat in a ball, held 

28 her knees and shivered. XIII ROA 3131. She said that Chappell was out and that he had left 
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-
1 a message on her voice mail. XIII ROA 3131. Pollard told her to wait a few minutes until 

2 he was out of the shower and he planned to go with her to her trailer so she could pick up 

3 clothing, pick up the children from daycare, and then stay with him for a few days. XIII 

4 ROA 3132. She had stayed with Pollard in the past when she was afraid. XIII ROA 3132. 

5 Nonetheless, when Pollard got out of the shower, Panos was gone. XIII ROA 3133. He did 

6 not have a car so he could not follow her. XIII ROA 3133. He tried to phone her, but did 

7 not get a response. XIII ROA 3133. Pollard never met Chappell because he was always in 

8 and out of jail, but he was aware of claims that Chappell took Panos's furniture, televisions 

9 and VCRs. XIII ROA 3135. 

10 After Pollard's testimony was read, he was located and then called as a witness for the 

11 purpose of giving victim impact evidence. XV ROA 3678. This testimony was given over 

12 a defense objection. XV ROA 3678. He testified that upon learning of Panos's death he was 

13 saddened for Panos and especially sad for her kids because they had to grow up without a 

14 mother. XV ROA 3679. He quit his job because he could no longer concentrate when he 

15 looked over and saw her empty desk. XV ROA 3679. He moved out of Nevada and still 

16 thinks of Panos and is still angry over the fact that if she would have waited for him he might 

17 have been able to save her. XV ROA 3679. 

18 Lisa Larsen (formerly Duran), a co-worker and friend of Panos's, testified that she 

19 lived with Panos in the summer of 1995. XIII ROA 3169. She recalled the incidents in 

20 which Chappell slapped Panos, he broke her nose, and she arrived at work with bruises on 

21 her arms. XIII ROA 3170. She asked Panos why she did not get out of the relationship and 

22 Panos responded that she could not because her kids needed their father. XIII ROA 3170. 

23 Chappell was incarcerated during most of the summer of 1995. XIII ROA 3170. Panos 

24 instructed Larsen to accept his telephone calls and try not to make him angry. XIII ROA 

25 3170. Larsen recited details from telephone calls and noted once incident in which Chappell 

26 asked "what other nigger she was laying up with underneath" when told that Panos was not 

27 home. XIII ROA 3171. After Larsen responded that she would not tell him anything like 

28 that, he told her to tell Panos that he called and that when he got out, she was not going to 
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1 have any kind of life or anything. XIII ROA 3171. In a later call, Chappell told Larsen that 

2 once he got out, Panos would not have any friends and that he was upset because Panos had 

3 stopped accepting his calls and writing. XIII ROA 3171. Larsen also described Panos' s plan 

4 to move from her trailer before Chappell got out of custody. XIII ROA 3172. 

5 Larsen testified that on August 30, 1995, Panos told Larsen she had been to court and 

6 she told Chappell it was done, it was over with, and she wanted to get on with her life. XIII 

7 ROA 3172. The next day Panos and Larsen planned to meet at the trailer in the afternoon. 

8 XIII ROA 3172. She saw Chappell driving Panos's car, tried to reach Panos by telephone, 

9 then went to the trailer and eventually called the police. XIII ROA 3173. 

10 Over a defense objection, Larsen testified that she shut down after Panos' s death, went 

11 to therapy for about a year, and learned information about domestic violence because she felt 

12 guilty that she did not help Panos after she told Larsen that Chappell was going to get her. 

13 XIII ROA 3177. She could not be in the house anymore and could not be at work because 

14 she was reminded of Panos. Larsen was afraid that Chappell would get out of custody and 

15 then come after her, so she started seeing a therapist and got on medication. XIII ROA3 l 78. 

16 This caused her to miss seven or eight months of work. XIII ROA 3178. Although Panos 

17 was killed almost a decade earlier, Larsen still has anger issues. XIII ROA 3178. 

18 On cross-examination Larsen acknowledged that Panos was planning to move in with 

19 J.R., who was a man that she had been dating while Chappell was in custody. XIII ROA 

20 3182. On occasions, Panos had told Larsen that she loved Chappell. XIII ROA 3183. 

21 Charmaine Smith, a Parole and Probation Officer, testified that she was assigned to 

22 be Chappell' s probation officer on April 27, 1995. XIII ROA 3 23 5. He had been convicted 

23 of the gross misdemeanor offense of possession of burglary tools. XII ROA 3235. He was 

24 allowed to plead to that offense afte r being charged with two felonies and a gross 

25 misdemeanor. XIII ROA 3235. Smith claimed that Chappell did not report for probation and 

26 did not meet the conditions of his probation. XIII ROA 3236. She talked with Panos three 

27 or four times. XIII ROA 3236. Panos came to her office on one occasion and was upset 

28 because of Chappell and she said she was in fear for her life. XIII ROA 3236. Smith recited 
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1 allegations that Panos told her that Chappell once straddled her and held a knife to her. XIII 

2 ROA 3236. Smith suggested that Panos move away and return to Arizona. 

3 Based upon Chappell' s failure to comply with the terms of his probation, Smith sought 

4 revocation of his grant of probation. XIII ROA 3237. The court reinstated Chappell to his 

5 probation with an added condition that he enroll and successfully complete an impatient 

6 substance abuse program. XIII ROA 323 7. The judge ordered that he be released only to 

7 the Department of Parole and Probation and then the department was to take him to the 

8 impatient treatment program. XIII ROA 3 23 7. Smith explained the 90 day program to Panos 

9 when they were in court. XIII ROA 3237. On cross-examination Smith testified that 

10 Chappell listed Panos's address as his address. XIII ROA 3239. 

11 William Duffy, a former Parole and Probation Officer, testified about his failure to 

12 place Chappell in the custody of an impatient drug treatment center, as ordered by the court 

13 as a condition of Chappell's release from custody. XIV ROA 3407-13. 

14 Latrona Smith, a daycare director, testified about her conversation with Panos on the 

15 day she was killed. XIII ROA 3190. Smith asserted that Panos called, was crying, and asked 

16 her to call Panos with some kind of excuse so that she could leave the house. She called 

17 Panos five minutes later and Panos said she was on her way. XIII ROA 3191-92. 

18 The testimony of Deborah Turner was read into the record. XIII ROA 3194. She 

19 testified that on the afternoon Panos was killed, Chappell sold shrimp and a pie to her and 

20 she rented the car he was driving for $15. XIII ROA 3195. His demeanor did not seem 

21 different than other days when she had seen him. XIII ROA 3196. On cross-examination 

22 Turner acknowledged that Chappell was a crack head. XIII ROA 3197. She was aware of 

23 other occasions in which ChappeU rented out the car for an hour or two in exchange for rock 

24 cocaine. XIII ROA 3198. 

25 The testimony of Ladonna Jackson was read into the record. XIII ROA 3198. She 

26 saw him on the afternoon of August 31, 1995, and he behaved as he usually did. XIII ROA 

27 3201. She testified about renting Chappell's car and the fact that he made his money 

28 stealing. XIII ROA 3203. He also traded items that he stole for crack. XIII ROA 3204. She 
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1 testified that Chappell sold his children's diapers because he wanted drugs (but she did not 

2 provide explanation as to how she knew the diapers belonged to his kids). XIII ROA 3204. 

3 Kimberly Sempson testified that she detained Chappell on charges of shoplifting on 

4 August 31, 1995. XIII ROA 3205. She saw him drop a social security card. XIII ROA 

5 3207. On cross-examination she noted that Chappell had a small metal pipe in his pocket 

6 that was probably used to smoke crack. XIII ROA 3207. 

7 Paul Osuch, a L VMPD detective, testified that in September, 199 5, he was dispatched 

8 to the Lucky store at Lamb and Bonanza on a shoplifting call. XIV ROA 3275. He decided 

9 to arrest Chappell, who was the suspect in the shoplifting case, because he had drug 

10 paraphernalia in his possession. XIV ROA 3276. He mentioned the killing at the trailer 

11 park, which was nearby, and noticed that Chappell became nervous. XIV ROA 3276. He 

12 later saw four social security cards that had been in Chappell's possession and noticed the 

13 last name of Panos on the cards. Osuch confirmed that this one the last name of the person 

14 killed at the trailer and notified the homicide detectives. XIV ROA 3284. 

15 Detective James Vaccaro testified as to details concerning his investigation. XIV 

16 ROA 3413-25. Relevant to this appeal are the facts that a sexual assault kit was collected 

17 at the autopsy, XIV ROA 3420; he knew that Chappell stated he had both consensual vaginal 

18 and consensual oral intercourse with Panos, XIV ROA 3415; a tom up letter was found near 

19 Panos's body, XIV ROA 3423-24; the letter was written to Panos from someone named 

20 Devon and a portion of the letter was found outside, XIV ROA 3429; Chappell's DNA was 

21 found inside of Panos's vagina, XIV ROA 3425; and letters from Chappell to Panos during 

22 the period of his incarceration were recovered, XIV ROA 3426-27. He also testified that the 

23 presence of semen indicated that Chappell ejaculated into Panos. XIV ROA 3425. 

24 Russell Lee testified about his discovery of Panos' s body inside the trailer. XIII ROA 

25 3186. She was dressed and he observed a puncture mark in her clothing. XIII ROA 3187. 

26 Dr. Green, a pathologist, testified as to details concerning Panos's injuries. XV ROA 

27 3670. She had bruises on her neck and face, right arm, shoulder, right hand and the back of 

28 her right wrists. XV ROA 3671. She also had 13 stab wounds. XV ROA 3671. The cause 

15 



AA04039

1 of death was knife wounds to the neck. XV ROA 3674. He believes the bruises were 

2 probably caused 15 to 30 minutes prior to the stabbings. XV ROA 3674. 

3 Substantial evidence was also presented by the State concerning allegations about 

4 matters took place prior to the events of August 31, 1995: 

5 Clair McGuire testified she worked with Panos in Tucson in the 1990s. XIII ROA 

6 3242. She met Chappell and knew him to be Panos's boyfriend. XIII ROA 3243. She 

7 sometimes saw bruises on Panos' s body and once saw Chappell trip Panos and push her into 

8 the wall. XIII ROA 3243. While Panos worked several jobs, she recalled that Chappell only 

9 had one job and was there less than a month. XIII ROA 3244. Panos had worked as a 911 

10 operator but had to quit because she was involved with Chappell and she was not allowed to 

11 hang around with people who had a criminal record. XIII ROA 3244. McGuire visited with 

12 Panos in Las Vegas in March of 1995. XIII ROA 3244. She noticed that Panos did not have 

13 very much furniture and she said that Panos said that Chappell had taken it out of the house. 

14 XIII ROA 3244. She assumed he was selling it to get money for drugs. XIII ROA 3245. 

15 She also said that Panos said that new jackets she purchased for the kids had disappeared. 

16 McGuire moved to Las Vegas in May 1995, and stayed with Panos. XIII ROA 3245. 

17 When she returned from a trip to Tucson she noticed that someone had been through her 

18 boxes and some items were missing. XIII ROA 3245. She discussed the missing items with 

19 Chappell and he said that he knew where they were and that for a small amount of money he 

20 would be able to return them to her. XIII ROA 3245. She did not give him the money. XIII 

21 ROA 3245. To her knowledge, Chappell did not have a key to the trailer. XIII ROA 3245. 

22 He stayed at the trailer on and off and would sometimes break in. XIII ROA 3246. She 

23 claimed that Panos was upset on one occasion in which Chappell tried to come into the trailer 

24 and noted that there was another occasion in which she talked with Panos on the telephone, 

25 Panos said that Chappell had gotten out of jail and wanted Panos to come home to the trailer, 

26 but Panos stayed at a friend's house instead. XIII ROA 3246. McGuire said that Panos told 

27 her that Chappell would rape McGuire and bum the house down so that Panos did not have 

28 a house to come home to. XIII ROA 3246. McGuire locked all of the doors and windows 
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1 and was still on the telephone with Panos when she heard Chappell trying to come inside the 

2 house through the front window. XIII ROA 3246. They used three-way calling to call 911 

3 and then McGuire told Chappell that the police were at the door after Chappell came into her 

4 locked bedroom. XIII ROA 3246. The officers could not get inside because the doors were 

5 locked. XIII ROA 3247. Chappell then talked with Panos on the telephone as McGuire 

6 unlocked the door. XIII ROA 3247. The police entered and arrested Chappell. XIII ROA 

7 3 24 7. She noticed that there was a knife next to her bed and it was not there before he came 

8 in. XIII ROA 3247. There was another incident in June 1995 in which Chappell was angry 

9 and told Panos to go into her bedroom with him. XIII ROA 3247. McGuire called 911 and 

10 the police came to the trailer. XIII ROA 3247. Panos told them that Chappell held a knife 

11 to her throat and pinned her down while sitting on top of her chest. XIII ROA 3247. The 

12 police arrested Chappell. XIII ROA 3247. 

13 Over a defense objection, McGuire testified that it was a very frightening situation and 

14 she could not believe that anybody could be in that situation for such a long period of time. 

15 XIII ROA 3248. She recalled that Panos was fun, happy, and she would do anything for her 

16 kids. XIII ROA 3248. 

1 7 On cross-examination, McGuire testified that Chappell never threatened her and did 

18 not threaten her on the night he came into her bedroom. XIII ROA 3248. She did not ever 

19 see the knife in his hands. XIII ROA 3249. In regards to the incident in which McGuire 

20 claimed that Chappell pinned down Panos, McGuire acknowledged that she was unaware that 

21 when Panos wrote her statement to the police about that matter that she did not state that 

22 Chappell pinned her down or that he had a knife. XIII ROA 3249. 

23 The testimony of Detective Paul Weidner, of the Lansing Michigan Police 

24 Department, was read into the record. XIII ROA 3251. He testified that on August 18, 1988, 

25 he arrested Chappell for assault. XIII ROA 3251. The arrest was based upon the allegation 

26 that Chappell and a friend threw a brick at a man's car and threw a brick or rock at the man 

27 after he got out of his car. XIII ROA 3252. Chappell gave a statement in which he said that 

28 his friend threw a brick at the car, but did not hit it, after the man drove his car down an alley 
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1 and almost ran them over. XIII ROA 3253. The man came out of his house with a bat and 

2 said "come on, you niggers, I'm not afraid of you" and then the friend threw a brick at the 

3 man and knocked him down. XIII ROA 3253. The friend picked up the man's bat when he 

4 went back into his house and then the man came out of the house with a gun. XIII ROA 

5 3253. Other friends were present when this happened, but some of them ~an off when the 

6 police arrived. XIII ROA 3253. The man identified Chappell as the person who threw a 

7 brick. XIII ROA 3253. The officer was not called to testify at court and did not know the 

8 disposition of the charges. XIII ROA 3253. The officer did not personally witness anything. 

9 XIII ROA 3253. Another witness to the incident reported that it was another man, not 

10 Chappell, who threw the brick at the man. XIII ROA 3253. There were no injuries to the 

11 man who was hit. XIII ROA 3253. 

12 Dina Richardson testified that she knew Panos for five or six years in Tucson and they 

13 both worked with the police department in the 911 department. XIV ROA 3294. She 

14 learned of Panos' s murder after being contacted by the Tucson Police Department out of 

15 concern that they had not yet caught the person who murdered Panos and they thought he 

16 might try to look for Richardson or Panos's mother. XIV ROA 3295. She met Chappell 

17 through Panos but did not spend much time with him. XIV ROA 3295. Richardson's 

18 perception of the relationship between Chappell and Panos was that he ran the relationship, 

19 was controlling, and she did what he wanted her to do. XIV ROA 3296. She noted an 

20 incident in which Panos asserted that Chappell sold t-shirts which Panos had purchased in 

21 San Diego and times when Panos came to work with bruises. XIV ROA 3298. Richardson 

22 claimed that Panos eventually told her that she had been assaulted by Chappell and it usually 

23 happened when he was high on drugs or wanted to be high on drugs and if she did not give 

24 him money, they would end up in an argument and he would assault her. XIV ROA 3299. 

25 Richardson testified about a time in 1994 when Panos called her and claimed that 

26 Chappell had left her stranded at a grocery store after it refused to cash a check. XIV ROA 

27 3300. She was then able to cash the check and she took the money to Richardson before 

28 going home to her kids because she believed that Chappell would beat her up if she came 
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1 home with the cash. XIV ROA 3301. Richardson recalled another time in 1994 when she 

2 was on the telephone with Panos and she could hear Chappell calling Panos names in the 

3 background because he was upset that she dated another man while he was in Michigan. 

4 XIV ROA 3301. She heard Chappell say that he did not care what she did, but she could not 

5 fuck around in front of his children or he would kill her ass. XIV ROA 3302. She recalled 

6 another telephone call around August 1994 in which she heard him in the background as he 

7 told Panos that he wanted the car or wanted some money or was going to do an O .J. Simpson 

8 on her ass. XIV ROA 3302. 

9 Panos decided to move to Las Vegas and told Richardson that she was doing so 

10 because she wanted to have a new start and felt that if she brought Chappell here with her 

11 that he would not know anyone, he would get off the drugs, and they would live happily ever 

12 after. XIV ROA 3303. In November 1994, Richardson was talking on the telephone with 

13 Panos and heard Chappell say that he wanted her car keys or he was going to do an O.J. 

14 Simpson on her ass. XIV ROA 3303. She also heard the voices of their children in the 

15 background. XIV ROA 3303. Richardson heard things about Chappell from officers at the 

16 police department. She recalled a time or two when she heard that he was stopped in high 

17 drug activity areas. XIV ROA 3305. She also heard that there was also a domestic violence 

18 call. XIV ROA 3306. 

19 Over objection, Richardson gave a victim impact statement and testified that Panos' s 

20 death was devastating for her as they had daily contact and were friends. XIV ROA 3307. 

21 She talked with her department psychologist and attended a debriefing with about 40 other 

22 people who were affected by Panos's death so they could all talk about their feelings. XIV 

23 ROA 3307. There is a portrait of Panos that hangs in the police department briefing room 

24 that is in her honor. XIV ROA 3307. 

25 On cross-examination Richardson testified that based upon her experiences with 911 

26 she is aware of how dangerous domestic violence incidents can be, but she did not ever call 

27 the police after talking with Panos or hearing the telephone calls with Chappell speaking in 

28 the background. XIV ROA 3309. There were times when Chappell would leave messages 
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1 on Richardson's answering machine and would say things like "I love you Debbie, please 

2 come home." XIV ROA 3310. She also saw Chappell in person at some birthday parties. 

3 XIV ROA 3310. Richardson thought that Chappell was more violent when he was on drugs. 

4 XIV ROA 3310. She was unaware of details concerning Panos's urging of Chappell to move 

5 back to Tucson from Lansing Michigan and the fact that Panos visited Chappell in Lansing 

6 and became pregnant with their third child during that visit. XIV ROA 3312. She testified 

7 that Panos left the children with Chappell when she went on vacation to San Diego. XIV 

8 ROA 3313. When Panos stayed the night at Richardson's house, the children stayed home 

9 with Chappell. XIV ROA 3315. 

10 Tanya Hobson testified that in 1995 she worked at Safe Nest, which was a temporary 

11 shelter for domestic violence victims. XIV ROA 3454. She assisted Panos in obtaining a 

12 temporary protective order on January 9, 1995 after Panos claimed that Chappell hit her. 

13 XIV ROA 3460. A hearing date was scheduled for January 11, 1995, but Panos did not 

14 appear. XIV ROA 3464. It is not unusual for a person to fail to appear at the hearing 

15 because of reconciliation with the other party. XIV ROA 3464. The protective order became 

16 void after she did not appear. XIV ROA 3465. On cross-examination Hobson testified that 

17 the application for the protective order was taken over the telephone and she did not conduct 

18 any investigation concerning the allegations. XIV ROA 3467. 

19 The testimony of Jeri Earnst was read. XV ROA 3633. He was a police officer in 

20 Tucson and had contact with Panos in 1994. XV ROA 3634. She told him that she had a 

21 fight with her boyfriend because he sold a new dresser that she had purchased for their 

22 daughter and he hit her and knocked her to the floor. XV ROA 3635. She refused to get 

23 medical help. XV ROA 3635. She would not return to her trailer until Chappell was gone. 

24 XV ROA 3635. He was arrested for domestic violence. XV ROA 3636. Earnst offered to 

25 help Panos get into a shelter, but she never called him. XV ROA 3636. 

26 Officer Dan Giersdorf testified that he was dispatched to the trailer on January 9, 

27 1995. XV ROA 363 7. He saw Panos being loaded into an ambulance and saw that she had 

28 a large cut over her eye and a swollen nose. XV ROA 3638. She stated that she got into a 
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1 fight with Chappell and he hit her in the face with a cup. XV ROA 3638. Giersdorfwent 

2 inside the trailer and Chappell said that he "hit that bitch in the face." XV ROA 3638. 

3 Chappell was then arrested. XV ROA 3639. On cross-examination, he testified that Panos 

4 stated that she had been in her relationship with Chappell for nine years and they had three 

5 children together. XV ROA 3639. In his previous testimony he did not state that Chappell 

6 referred to Panos as a bitch. Giersdorft did not perform a field sobriety test. XV ROA 3639. 

7 The testimony of Officer Allen Williams was read. XV ROA 3640. He testified 

8 about the June 1, 1995, incident in which it was alleged that Panos said that she got into an 

9 argument with her boyfriend, he pinned her arms down with his knee and threatened her with 

10 a knife. XV ROA 3640. He arrested Chappell for domestic violence. XV ROA 3641. 

11 The State presented additional victim impact evidence through Panos's aunt, Carol 

12 Monson. XV ROA 3681. She testified that they had a very close family and always did 

13 everything together. XV ROA 3681. Panos was a sweet person, very giving, generous and 

14 would think of others before herself. XV ROA 3681. She loved elderly people and was 

15 close with her grandmother. XV ROA 3682. Monson described how she learned of Panos' s 

16 death, her immediate reaction, and the reaction in the following days. XV ROA 3682-83. 

17 She described the impact of the loss on Panos' s mother and other family members and the 

18 toll on her marriage. She read letters from other family members that were written both at 

19 the time of the first trial and at the time of the current hearing. XV ROA 3683-84. These 

20 letters referenced family get-togethers, Christmas and birthdays. XV ROA 3685. Monson 

21 also read her own letter, which also referenced past family gatherings at birthdays and 

22 holidays and discussed the fact that Panos's children had a difficult time handling the fact 

23 that their mother was not there for birthdays, holidays, school events and other major things 

24 that occurred in their growing years.3 XV ROA 3685-86. 

25 Norma Penfield, Panos's mother, also gave a victim impact statement. XV ROA 

26 

27 3During pretrial proceedings the district court ordered that the State talk to Monson 
28 and explain the legalities of what she could and could not say. XV ROA 3843. 
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1 3686. She discussed Panos's childhood, her love for children and older people, and her 

2 personality. XV ROA 3687. Penfield asserted that Panos moved to Las Vegas because the 

3 police advised her to leave Arizona for her own safety. XV ROA 3687. Penfield noted the 

4 financial assistance that she gave to Panos. XV ROA 3687. She then told the jury about how 

5 she learned of Panos's death, how she acquired custody of the children, and Panos's funeral. 

6 XV ROA 3688. She discussed the reactions on Panos's three children to her death and noted 

7 that her daughter Chantelle, who was then three years old said she wanted to die so she could 

8 go to heaven and be with her mom. XV ROA 3688. She testified that the children do not 

9 want any mention of Chappell, they get angry, and the oldest child signed a letter stating that 

10 he did not want any contact with Chappell. XV ROA 3688. Penfield also read a letter that 

11 she prepared. XV ROA 3689. She remarked that Panos' s death was brutal and senseless and 

12 she could not image how one human being could be so harmful to another. XV ROA 3689. 

13 In response to questions from jurors, Penfield testified that Panos always had excuses 

14 for helping out Chappell and that Penfield told Panos to get away but Panos did not listen. 

15 XV ROA 3690. 

16 Chappell' s testimony from the first trial was then read to the jury. XV ROA 3641-68. 

17 The testimony is set forth above and is not repeated here. The State read in an exchange, 

18 which is set forth in the argument section below, concerning the fact that Chappell has had 

19 a lot of time to think about his testimony. XV ROA 3654. Chappell's counsel had objected 

20 to this testimony. XV ROA 3632, but the district court found the testimony to be admissible. 

21 XV ROA 3632. 

22 Chappell's counsel called several witnesses to testify on his behalf. Dr. Todd Grey, 

23 a chief medical examiner for the state of Utah, testified that he reviewed the autopsy report, 

24 investigative reports of the Coroner's office, photographs on Panos's body at the scene of 

25 death, a transcript of the testimony of the autopsy doctor, and transcripts of the opening and 

26 closing statements of the prosecution and defense from the first trial. XIII ROA 3225. It was 

27 clear that Panos died as the result of multiple stab wounds. XIII ROA 3225. In making an 

28 assessment as to whether she was sexually assaulted prior to her death, Grey considered the 
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1 DNA recovered from Panos' s vagina, the description of the vaginal area in the autopsy report 

2 and the autopsy photographs. XIII ROA 3225-26. He did not find any evidence of sexual 

3 assault during the course of the homicide. XIII ROA 3226. Coroner Green's report did not 

4 denote any findings that would indicate a sexual assault. If such findings were present, Dr. 

5 Green would have noted them in his report. XIII ROA 3226. Photographs of the scene of 

6 death supported his conclusion as Panos was fully dressed and there were stab wounds in the 

7 clothing that matched stab wounds to the body, all of which indicated that she was fully 

8 clothed when she was killed. XIII ROA 3226. There was no evidence that she was killed 

9 while being raped and no evidence of a sexual assault. XIII ROA 3227. On cross-

IO examination Grey explained that he was using the medical definition of sexual assault, which 

11 would be forceful penetration. XIII ROA 3228. Bruises on Panos's upper body could have 

12 been caused 15 minutes or more prior to her death. XIII ROA3234. 

13 Dr. William Danton, a clinical psychologist, testified that he reviewed Dr. Etcoffs 

14 report and talked with Chappell. XIV ROA 3321. He explained the circle of domestic 

15 violence and noted that typically the abuser controls the finances in the relationship. XIV 

16 ROA 3322. He also explained the "motorcycle syndrome" in which some women have a 

17 cold or distant relationships with their fathers, they want love and attention, and then 

18 unconsciously seek out cold and distant men because of the need to have the need for love 

19 and approval, rather than actual love and approval. XIV ROA 3323. If the man in this type 

20 of relationship converts and determines that he loves the woman and wants to be with her, 

21 then the woman rejects the man. XIV ROA 3323. He then analyzed the relationship between 

22 Panos and Chappell and explained Chappell's drug use in this context. XIV ROA 3324. 

23 Because of Chappell's borderline personality disorder, the threat of abandonment or less 

24 could be so intense for him that he would be prone to using drugs. XIV ROA 3325. Dr. 

25 Danton also explained the reasons why a person might stay in an abusive relationship and 

26 why such a person might engage in sex with the other person in the relationship. XIV ROA 

27 3325. The primary reason is that the person still loves the other person. XIV ROA 3325. 

28 Other reasons might include feelings of guilt, appeasement, helplessness, or force. XIV 

23 



AA04047

- -
1 ROA 3326-27. Based upon his review of materials in this case, he believed that 

2 guilt/appeasement theory made the most sense. XIV ROA 3327. He also noted that 

3 Chappell described a relationship with Panos which was very poor in communication but 

4 which was good physically, and noted that this situation would be consistent with Chappell' s 

5 very low IQ. XIV ROA 3328. 

6 Dr. Danton further explained that Chappell had a sense of abandonment which was 

7 caused in part by the death of his mother at age two, the lack of a father figure, and the fact 

8 that his grandmother had a lot of kids to take care of and used corporal punishment. XIV 

9 ROA 33 29. The early loss of his mother resulted in an abandonment anxiety, which happens 

10 with borderline personality and the person becoming very dependant on external anchors too 

11 feel okay. XIV ROA 3329. He would also rely on others to soothe because he is not able 

12 to soothe himself on the inside, resulting in a dependant personality type. XIV ROA 3329. 

13 Chappell would use sex as a type of soothing. XIV ROA 3330. Panos could have used sex 

14 as a way to calm Chappell down if he was angry and might do so even if there was not an 

15 immediate coercive threat. XIV ROA 3330. 

16 On cross-examination Dr. Danton recited details of his conversation with Chappell, 

17 including his recitation of facts concerning the night Panos was killed. XIV ROA 3345-49. 

18 Chappell told him that they initially argued, but then they talked and she then initiated sex. 

19 XIV ROA 3349. Chappell stated that they first had vaginal sex, he then became upset 

20 because he believed that she had had sex with another man, and she then offered fellatio. 

21 XIV ROA 3351. She then went to the bathroom, cleaned up and talked to the woman from 

22 the day care center. XIV ROA 3352. They then went to the car where Chappell discovered 

23 a sexually explicit letter and went into a rage. XIV ROA 3354. 

24 Dr. Lewis Etcoff, a psychologist, testified about his evaluation of Chappell prior to 

25 the first trial. XIV ROA 3476. Etcofflearned ofChappell's childhood history and noted the 

26 following facts: Chappell's father had no involvement in his life, though he did have a 

27 criminal record and a lot of other behavioral and substance related problems. XIV ROA 

28 3481. Chappell first met his father when he was 10 years old, at which time his father asked 
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1 him to help rob a bank. XIV ROA 3481. Chappell declined to do so. XIV ROA 3482. 

2 Chappell's mother died in an automobile accident when he was about two and a half years 

3 old. XIV ROA 3482. He then moved with his siblings to the home of his grandmother, who 

4 was physically abusive and neglectful. XIV ROA 3482. His school records support a 

5 finding that he was psychologically disturbed early on and had difficulty forming 

6 attachments. XIV ROA 3483. School records further indicated that he was placed in special 

7 education classes very early on. XIV ROA 3483. Records from a social worker stated that 

8 in only grade two, Chappell was moody, had trouble fitting in with other kids, was not 

9 performing well at academic subjects, was wetting himself and sucking his fingers, which 

10 are indicative of a serious anxiety and possibly an attachment disorder. XIV ROA 3484. He 

11 was evaluated again in fourth grade, at which time he was functioning on a second grade 

12 level and he did not play with other kids. He built a relationship with a new teacher, but she 

13 suddenly left and he regressed to his old behaviors of not talking to anyone. The school 

14 isolated him to get his work done and recognized that he had a great deal of difficulty in 

15 forming meaningful relationships. XIV ROA 3485. The social worker recommended that 

16 he be placed in a smaller classroom and that he receive individual therapy outside of the 

17 school setting. XIV ROA 3485. He was classified as severely learning disabled and placed 

18 in a special class. There was no record indicating that he received the recommended therapy. 

19 XIV ROA 3486. 

20 Chappell was later evaluated by a school psychologist when he was in high school. 

21 XIV ROA 3486. The psychologist noted that Chappell was in an emotionally handicapped 

22 classroom and that he felt he had little hope of succeeding lin life, especially in academics, 

23 and that he did not appear to have coping skills to deal with problems he encountered. XIV 

24 ROA 3486. He further noted that Chappell had a low self-concept, distrusted others, and had 

25 problems with attendance and motivation. XIV ROA 3487. 

26 These findings were consistent with Etcoffs evaluation. XIV ROA 3487. Etcoff 

27 further noted that Chappell began using alcohol at 13 or 14 years old and was using rock 

28 cocaine on a regular basis by age 18. XIV ROA 3488. He became hooked on crack cocaine. 
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1 Etcoff informed the jury that with regular use of cocaine, there is a real good likelihood that 

2 the person will get psychotic, have paranoid delusions, become frazzled, and have trouble 

3 sleeping. XIV ROA 3488. It is a psychologically destructive drug which makes the person 

4 out of control of his behaviors and thoughts and can make the person think that things are 

5 real when in fact, they are not. XIV ROA 3488. Chappell had a verbal IQ of 77, which is 

6 lower than 94 out of 100 people his age. XIV ROA 3490. His overall IQ was 80, which is 

7 lower than 91 out of 100 people his age. XIV ROA 3491. Chappell's language deficit had 

8 an effect on his ability to think things through rather than just act, especially in stressful 

9 situations. XIV ROA 3493. Additional tests were conducted on Chappell which resulted in 

10 findings that he felt worthless, inadequate, was guilt ridden, sensitive to humiliation, had low 

11 self-esteem, and did not trust others. XIV ROA 3501. He was dependent on others, 

12 mistrustful, apprehensive, and easily humiliated. XIV ROA 3501. He was extremely 

13 dependant on Panos for his emotional support. XIV ROA 3502. Etcoff believed that 

14 Chappell was especially anxious because he was dependant on a woman who starting 

15 withdrawing from him, which would also result in the withdrawal of their three children from 

16 his life, and he was using cocaine. XIV ROA 3503. His drug use would help suppress his 

17 emotions and suppress disturbing memories. XIV ROA 3503. 

18 Chappell described his relationship with Panos to Etcoff. XIV ROA 3504. He loved 

19 her and believed that she loved him, but acknowledged that they were having problems and 

20 that he had been abusive. XIV ROA 3504. He felt that she began to withdraw from their 

21 relationship when he was in jail on burglary charges and he concocted fantasies of her doing 

22 things that made him really upset. XIV ROA 3504. By the time of his release, he worked 

23 himself into a very irrational frenzy as he believed that Panos had cheated on him, and just 

24 as his mother had left him, the only person in his life he could depend on was also leaving 

25 and he lost it. XIV ROA 3505. His thoughts in jail would be especially painful for him to 

26 handle because he was not able to suppress them with drugs. XIV ROA 3506. 

27 When Chappell met with Etcoff he broke down crying, was remorseful and was a 

28 wreck. XIV ROA 3506. He was angry at himself and very emotional. XIV ROA 3507. 
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1 Etcoffbelieved that if Chappell could tum back the clock and undue his actions he would as 

2 he now knows that it was the worst thing he could have done for her, their children, and 

3 himself. XIV ROA 3507. Etcoffbelieves that Chappell was delusional when he stated that 

4 he did not ejaculate when he had vaginal sex with Panos. XV ROA 3587. 

5 During cross-examination the State focused on impeaching Etcoff s testimony on 

6 direct examination that Chappell's free will was limited because of his IQ, mental state and 

7 experiences. XV ROA 3518-25. The State also focused upon the fact that information 

8 concerning Chappell's criminal history and full details concerning his relationship with 

9 Panos were not given to Etcoff. XV ROA 3548-56. 

10 Chappell' solder brother Rick testified that their mother was killed in 1973, when Rick 

11 was about three and a half and Chappell was two years old. XV ROA 3690. They have an 

12 older brother, an older sister and one younger sister. XV ROA 3691. Their father was not 

13 around much and did not live with them. XV ROA 3691. After their mother was killed they 

14 lived with their grandma in Lansing Michigan. XV ROA 3691. Rick lived there until he was 

15 around 14 years old, when he went to a juvenile boys facility. XV ROA 3691. 

16 Their grandmother was very abusive and hit Rick with broom sticks, a bed board, 

17 extension cords and her hands. XV ROA 3691-92. Rick did not know if his grandmother 

18 also beat Chappell with extension cords. XV ROA 3692. Chappell was beat with bed 

19 boards, branches or switches and belts. XV ROA 3693. There was no real father figure in 

20 their home, though they did have a couple of uncles. XV ROA 3691. Their home was not 

21 nurturing. XV ROA 3693. In addition, their grandmother worked a lot and had a lot of other 

22 personal time to herself. XV ROA 3693. She provided a shelter, food and clothing for the 

23 children but did not talk with them, help with schoolwork, get involved in activities or with 

24 friends. XV ROA 3693. There was not much supervision in their home, though their two 

25 uncles would sometimes stay with them. XV ROA 3694. Their uncle Anthony was killed, 

26 which was difficult on all of them, including Chappell. XV ROA 3694. 

27 They did not speak about their mother in their home. Rick was told to shut-up when 

28 he asked questions about her. XV ROA 3694. They learned from people on the streets that 
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1 their mother had a drug problem. XV ROA 3694. His grandmother talked about their father 

2 and was really negative, saying that he was a "no good nigger" and that he was always a liar, 

3 he was no good, and ''you're going to be just like your dad." XV ROA 3694. 

4 Chappell did not do well in school and attended a special education school for his 

5 elementary education. XV ROA 3692. Rick was unable to help Chappell with his 

6 schoolwork because he had his own problems with homework and their grandmother also 

7 refused to help them with schoolwork. XV ROA 3692. Chappell also had problems with his 

8 urine and problems with his development. XV ROA 3693. 

9 The neighborhood they lived in was a low income area that eventually had a lot of 

10 vacant houses as no one wanted to live in that neighborhood. Eventually his grandmother 

11 had to leave her house because the housing project was condemned. XV ROA 3692. 

12 Chappell had a few friends from the neighborhood. XV ROA 3693. Drugs were 

13 easily accessible in the neighborhood and Rick started using drugs when he was around nine 

14 years old. XV ROA 3693. He did not know Chappell to be involved with drugs prior to the 

15 time that Rick left for the boys school. XV ROA 3693. Rick and their sister Carla both had 

16 problems with cocaine and he believes their sister Mira had problems with alcohol and 

17 marijuana. XV ROA 3695. Rick was on parole for an armed robbery offense and also had 

18 a stolen vehicle offense. XV ROA 3693. He believes that Chappell was internally angry and 

19 that it took a lot for him to express his anger. XV ROA 3695. He did not communicate to 

20 express himself or talk about his problems. XV ROA 3695. There was no adult in the house 

21 to go to if they had problems. XV ROA 3695. 

22 Rick knew Panos, saw her together with Chappell, saw that they got along and did not 

23 ever see him get violent with her while in Lansing. XV ROA 3694. Chappell lived with 

24 Rick and his wife for a few weeks after he returned from Tucson. XV ROA 3696. Panos 

25 called Chappell and sent him money so that he could return to Tucson. XV ROA 3696. 

26 Fred Dean was a friend of Chappell's from Lansing Michigan. XV ROA 3697. They 

27 were about the same age and lived near each other. XV ROA 3697. They were not in the 

28 same class because Chappell attended special education classes. XV ROA 3697. As 
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1 children they hung out together almost every day. XV ROA 3698. Chappell was not allowed 

2 to have friends over to his house until after his grandmother was gone. XV ROA 3698. The 

3 only supervision was by Chappell' s brother Ricky. XV ROA 3698. Chappell' s uncles would 

4 sometimes be there. XV ROA 3699. One of his uncles was killed near the neighborhood 

5 after he was stabbed to death. XV ROA 3699. He recalled that Chappell's grandmother 

6 would whoop him with an extension cord. XV ROA 3699. Chappell and Fred spent time 

7 trying to get alcohol and marijuana while they were in junior high and high school. XV ROA 

8 3699. Fred recalled that Chappell met Panos after he moved to South Lansing from the 

9 housing project. XV ROA 3 700. Chappell still visited Fred after moving away from the old 

10 neighborhood and he socialized with Chappell and Panos as she was often with Chappell and 

11 their group. XV ROA 3700. 

12 Benjamin Dean, who is Fred's brother, also knew Chappell as they grew up near each 

13 other in Lansing. XV ROA 3706. As children they hung out at Chappell's house because 

14 there were no adults there. They knew his grandmother's work and bingo and horse track 

15 schedule and would leave before she returned. XV ROA 3707. As teenagers they would 

16 smoke weed and sometimes drink. XV ROA 3707. Chappell started using marijuana around 

17 age 13 or 14. XV ROA 3708. Benjamin recalled that Chappell was in special education 

18 classes during elementary school. XV ROA 3 708. Benjamin knew Panos and saw her with 

19 Chappell. XV ROA 3708. He did not see any problems between them. XV ROA 3709. 

20 Charles Dean, who is a brother of Benjamin and Fred, testified that he knew Chappell 

21 from Lansing. XV ROA 3718. The neighborhood they lived in abutted the train tracks, was 

22 one of the worse off of the neighborhood areas, and was a pretty bad place to live. XV ROA 

23 3 719. Their friends and neighbors James Ford and Ivory Morrell were in Las Vegas to testify 

24 for Chappell but had to return to Michigan. XV ROA 3708, 3719. 

25 Mira Chappell King testified that she is Chappell's younger sister. XV ROA 3710. 

26 She lived with Chappell and their siblings with their grandmother. XV ROA 3 710. They had 

27 necessities but their grandmother did not give them affection or attention, kiss them, say "I 

28 love you," tuck them into bed or things like that. XV ROA 3170. Their grandmother was 
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1 rarely at home as she worked and went to the horse races and bingo. XV ROA 3 711. Their 

2 neighborhood consisted of run down houses and many of the houses were empty and 

3 abandoned. XV ROA 3711. Their grandmother used extension cords and switches to 

4 discipline Chappell and his siblings. XV ROA 3 711. She never had anything nice to say and 

5 always said "stupid" and "idiot." XV ROA 3 712. Chappell went to special education classes 

6 and was teased by his friends because of that. XV ROA 3712. Their grandmother did not 

7 put much effort into helping Chappell and did not help the four children with their 

8 homework. XV ROA 3712. While they were growing up she did not see Chappell have any 

9 problems with being violent. XV ROA 3712. Their grandmother did not talk about their 

10 mother or explain how she was killed. XV ROA 3712. 

11 Mira saw Chappell and Panos while they were dating in high school. XV ROA 3 714. 

12 They later lived together with Chappell and Mira's grandmother. XV ROA 3 714. They lived 

13 together when Chappell and Panos's oldest child was a baby. XV ROA 3715. She saw 

14 Chappell as being very loving to the baby, cooked for him, watched him and cared for him 

15 while Panos worked. XV ROA 3715. 

16 All four siblings had problems with drugs. They all used marijuana and alcohol as 

17 teenagers. XV ROA 3714. As she was growing up she saw Chappell be argumentative, but 

18 not violent. XV ROA 3 715. She also learned that their mother had been involved with 

19 drugs. XV ROA 3715. 

20 Marabel Rosales, a defense investigator, testified that Ford and Morrell had been 

21 present in Las Vegas to testify but had to return to Michigan because of job commitments and 

22 fear that they would be fired if they did not return. XVI ROA 3767. They were both very 

23 upset and very disappointed that they could not testify. XVI ROA 3767. They would have 

24 testified that they knew Chappell as a child and as a teenager. XVI ROA 3767. They also 

25 knew Chappell when he was dating Panos. XVI ROA 3 7 6 7. There was great animosity from 

26 Panos's parents because Chappell was black, so they had to sneak around to date and then 

27 Panos was kicked out of her parent's home after JP was born. XVI ROA 3768. Chappell 

28 and Panos then lived with Ford for awhile. XVI ROA 3768. Chappell was a great father to 
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1 JP, he loved his son, took care of him, made sure that he was fed and pretty much lived for 

2 his son. XVI ROA 3768. After hearing about everything that happened in Las Vegas and 

3 Tucson, they said that he was not the person they knew in Lansing. XVI ROA 3768. On 

4 cross-examination Rosales was questioned about an affidavit which Ford had signed in which 

5 he stated that Panos was very controlling of Chappell, he had heard her screaming and 

6 recalled an incident in which she referred to Chappell using "the N word." XVI ROA 3768. 

7 Chappell gave a statement in allocution in which he expressed his remorse. XVI ROA 

8 3769. 

9 In its rebuttal case the State presented a reading of the prior testimony of Chappell' s 

10 grandmother, Clara Axam. XVI ROA 3 771. She testified that Chappell' s mother was killed 

11 in a car accident when he was two years old and that he had a hard reaction to her death. 

12 XVI ROA 3771. He did not talk for a year or more after her death. XVI ROA 3771. 

13 Chappell treated his grandmother well as a child and was not violent, but was slow and did 

14 not understand things as fast as a normal child. XVI ROA 3 771. He was sent to special 

15 education classes in fifth grade and stayed there until high school. XVI ROA 3 771. Axam 

16 knew Panos and felt that she was a very nice lady. XVI ROA 3 771. Axam believed that 

17 Chappell should be punished based upon what happened to Panos but wanted Chappell to 

18 continue to be a part of her life. XVI ROA 3772. 

19 The State introduced a presentence investigation report (PSI) for a gross misdemeanor 

20 offense, a PSI for this case, and a prison visiting log. XVI ROA 3772. Trial counsel did not 

21 object to the admission of the two PSis, but did object to admission ofChappell's statements 

22 that were given during the PSI interviews.4 XVI ROA 3770. The reports include 

23 information about arrests for which Chappell was not convicted and his statement. There 

24 was no indication that Chappell was given Miranda warnings prior to his interview for the 

25 presentence investigation report, no indication that his counsel was present, and no indication 

26 

27 4The presentence reports are included in the Record on Appeal near the end of 
28 unnumbered Volume XVIII, immediately prior to the district court's minutes. 
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1 that the statement was not required. Page 5 of the 1996 report includes a statement by 

2 Panos' s mother in which she stated "The SOB does not deserve to live." 

3 Norma Penfield, Panos's mother, then took the stand again in response to the 

4 testimony that Penfield did not like Chappell because of his race. XVI ROA 3772. She 

5 stated that she did not like Chappell because he did not support Panos or the kids and because 

6 of his actions. XVI ROA 3772. 

7 VI. 

8 A. 

9 

10 

ARGUMENT 

Chapwll's Conviction For First Dei:ree Murder Must Be Reversed Because The 
Jury as Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of The Capital Offense 

The failure of the trial court to instruct the jury on the element of deliberation violated 

Chappell' s rights to due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence under the state and 
11 

12 

13 

14 

federal constitutions. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 3, 6, 8; 

Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

The premeditation and deliberation instruction used at the guilt phase of Chappell's 

trial for first-degree murder (the Kazalyn instruction), VII ROA 1722, misstated the law and 
15 

allowed the jury to issue a finding of guilt, and ultimately impose the death penalty, in an 
16 

unconstitutional manner. 5 The concept of "instantaneous" premeditation creates a reasonable 
17 

18 
5This issue is properly presented in this appeal as Chappell is on direct appeal and 

19 doesnotyethaveafinaljudgment. SeeJohnsonv. State, 118Nev. 787, 802n.31, 59P.3d 
20 450, 460 n. 31 (2002) (a conviction becomes final when judgment has been entered, the 

availability of appeal has been exhausted, and a petition for certiorari to the Supreme Court 
21 

has been denied or the time for such a petition has expired) ( citing Griffith v. Kentuck;y. 4 79 
22 U.S. 314, 321 n.6 (1987)); Doyle v. State, 116 Nev. 148, 157, 995 P.2d 465,471 (2000) 

23 
(same); Berman v. U.S., 302 U.S. 211,212 (1937) ("Final judgment in a criminal case means 
sentence. The sentence is the judgment"). See also NRS 176.105 ("If a defendant is found 

24 guilty and is sentenced as provided by law, the judgment of conviction must set forth: (a) The 

25 
plea; (b) The verdict or finding; ( c) The adjudication and sentence, including the date of the 
sentence, any term of imprisonment, the amount and terms of any fine, restitution or 

26 administrative assessment, a reference to the statute under which the defendant is sentenced 

27 
and, if necessary to determine eligibility for parole, the applicable provision of the statute; 
and ( d) The exact amount of credit granted for time spent in confinement before conviction, 

28 if any." A judgment of conviction is not final until there is a written judgment setting forth 
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1 likelihood of convictions and sentences for first-degree murder without any rational basis for 

2 distinguishing it from second degree murder. See NRS 200.030; State v. Thompson, 65 P.3d 

3 420, 425-29 (Ariz. 2003) (defining premeditation simply as "instantaneous" constitutes due 

4 process violation). The definition of first-degree murder is contrary to the statutory 

5 definition of first degree murder because it fails to include both the elements of 

6 "premeditation and deliberation" contained in NRS 200.030(1); Byford, 116 Nev. 215,994 

7 P.2d at 712-13; cf. Laird v. Hom, 414 F.3d 419, 425-28 (3rd Cir. 2005) (due process 

8 violation from jury instruction omitting intent element of offense). 

9 This Court has held that Byford is not a constitutional ruling and is not to be given 

10 retroactive application. Gamer, 116 Nev. at 782, 6 P.3d at 1025. This Court's holding in 

11 Gamer, however, should be reconsidered in light of the recent decision of the Ninth Circuit 

12 Court of Appeals in Polk v. Sandoval, 503 F.3d 903 (9th Cir. 2007). In Polk, the Ninth 

13 Circuit held that this Court's holdings in Byford and Gamer, that no constitutional violations 

14 occurred due to the use of the Kazalyn instruction, was contrary to clearly established federal 

15 constitutional law as determined by the United States Supreme Court. Polk, 503 F .3d at 909-

16 11 (citing Sandstrom v. Montana, 442 U.S. 510, 521 (1979); Francis v. Franklin, 471 U.S. 

17 307, 326 (1985); In re Winship, 397 U.S. 858 (1970)). If Gamer is not overruled by this 

18 Court, defendants will have no choice but to pursue their federal constitutional claims in 

19 federal court, where they will obtain relief from their judgments upon a showing of prejudice. 

20 This process will result in unnecessary delay and expense, will deprive this Court of the 

21 opportunity to make the first assessment of prejudice, and will greatly delay the time for 

22 retrials. Accordingly, reconsideration is warranted.6 

23 

24 the plea; the verdict or finding; and the adjudication and sentence, including the date of 
25 sentence and a reference to the statute under which the defendant is sentenced. Bradley v. 

26 
State, 109 Nev. 1090, 1094, 864 P.2d 1272, 1275 (1993) (citing NRS 176.035(1)). 

27 
6Chappell recognizes that this Court found this issue to be without merit during the 

post-conviction appeal. XI ROA 2790. Reconsideration is warranted, however, based upon 
28 the Ninth Circuit's subsequent decision in Polk and because it would be a fundamental 
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1 Reconsideration is also warranted because this Court's holdings in Byford and Garner 

2 that constitutional rights were not implicated by the Kazalyn instruction were erroneous. A 

3 ruling that a definition confuses the distinction between first degree, capital-eligible murder, 

4 and second degree murder, is necessarily a ruling that implicates the federal constitutional 

5 guarantees cited. Consequently, the State is given virtually unlimited discretion in charging 

6 because there is no way to distinguish between first and second degree murder, Byford, 994 

7 P.2d at 713, and it is also likely that the jury will arbitrarily convict similarly situated 

8 defendants for first-degree murder and impose the death penalty in violation of the equal 

9 protection guarantee of the constitution. 

10 Chappell was prejudiced by the use of the Kazalyn instruction. The record reflects 

11 that Chappell, a man with a low IQ and substantial mental or personality disabilities, killed 

12 his long time girlfriend, who was the mother of their three children, during the heat of an 

13 argument over a letter to her from another man that Chappell discovered shortly before she 

14 was killed. IV ROA. 892-94; VI ROA. 1403-05, 1546. He used a common kitchen knife 

15 that was found in their home and did not bring a weapon with him. The first trial jury found 

16 a mitigating circumstance of murder committed while the defendant was under the influence 

17 of extreme mental or emotion disturbance, thus establishing that the jury had significant 

18 concerns about Chappell's mental state at the time of the offense. IX ROA 2126, 2170-71. 

19 Had the jury been properly instructed, there is a reasonable likelihood that they would have 

20 found him guilty of a lesser offense of second-degree murder or voluntarily manslaughter. 

21 The State was relieved of its burden of proving each of the material elements of felony 

22 murder. Chappell's conviction must therefore be reversed. Sandstrom, 442 U.S. at 521; 

23 Francis, 471 U.S. at 326; In re Winship. 397 U.S. 858. Under these circumstances, the State 

24 cannot establish beyond a reasonable doubt that the unconstitutional jury instruction did not 

25 

26 miscarriage of justice not to do so. See Arizona v. California, 460 U.S. 605,618 n.8 (1983) 

27 (it is not improper to depart from the law of the case if a court believes its prior holding is 
"clearly erroneous and would work a manifest injustice"); Leslie v. Warden, 118 Nev. 773, 

28 780, 59 P.3d 440,445 (2002); Tien Fu Hsu v. County of Clark, 173 P.3d 724 (Nev. 2007). 
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1 contribute to the jury's verdict. See Chapman v. California, 386 U.S. 18 (1967); Neder v. 

2 U.S., 527 U.S. 1, 18 (1999).7 

3 B. 

4 

5 

Chap,Wll's Conviction For First De~ree Murder Must Be Reversed Because The 
Jury as Not Properly Instructed On The Elements Of Felony Murder 

The failure of the trial court to instruct the jury on the element of felony murder 

violated Chappell' s rights to due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence under the 
6 

state and federal constitutions.8 U.S. Const. Amends. V, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 
7 

8 

9 

3, 6, 8; Art. IV Sec. 21. 

The State charged Chappell with felony murder based in part upon robbery, argued 

that he was guilty of felony murder based upon robbery, obtained an instruction on felony 
10 

murder, and obtained a verdict of first degree murder which was likely premised on the 
11 

robbery allegation. I ROA 3 8-39; VII ROA 1711, 17 4 7-49. The felony murder theory was 
12 

13 

14 7lt is anticipated that the State will argue that Chappell's conviction may still stand 

15 based upon a belief that the first jury may have found Chappell guilty under a theory of 
felony murder. The jury did not return a special verdict, so it is impossible to know the basis 

16 of the jury's decision. This Court has recently issued conflicting decisions on the standard 

17 to be utilized in this situation. Cf. Nay v. State, 167 P.3d 430 (Nev. 2007) (using a "beyond 
a reasonable doubt" standard and citing Neder v. U.S., 527 U.S. 1 (1999)) with Bolden v. 

18 State, 124 P.3d 191 (Nev. 2005) (using a "absolute certainty" standard and citing Keating v. 

19 Hood, 191 F.3d 1053 (9th Cir. 1999)). The Bolden standard is correct. Stromberg v. 
California, 283 U.S. 359 (1931); Ficklin v. Hatcher, 177 F.3d 1147, 1152 (9th Cir. 1999); 

20 Lara v. Ryan, 455 F.3d 1080, 1085-1086 (9th Cir. 2006). 

21 8Just as the lack of proper instruction on premeditation and deliberation issue is 
22 properly before this Court, so to is this issue. Chappell is on direct appeal and does not yet 

23 
have a final judgment. See Johnson, 118 Nev. at, 802 n.31, 59 P.3d at 460 n. 31; Griffith, 
479 U.S. at 321 n.6 (1987); Doyle, 116 Nev. at 157, 995 P.2d at 471; Berman, 302 U.S. at 

24 212; NRS 176.105. 

25 
Chappell recognizes that this Court found that felony murder could be premised on 

afterthought robbery, albeit in the context of the discussion of aggravating circumstances, on 
26 direct appeal. Chappell, 114 Nev. at 14087, 972 P.2d at 841. Consideration of this issue as 

27 it concerns the conviction for first degree murder is warranted because it would be a 
fundamental miscarriage of justice not to do so. See Arizona v. California, 460 U.S. at 618 

28 n.8; Leslie, 118 Nev. at 780, 59 P.3d at 445; Tien Fu Hsu, 173 P.3d 724. 
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1 premised on the theory that ( 1) Chappell entered the trailer through a window with intent to 

2 commit an offense; and (2) he took Panos's car after she had been killed. I ROA 39. The 

3 jury was specifically instructed that it could find Chappell guilty of robbery even if the intent 

4 to commit robbery was formed after the murder and it could find Chappell guilty of felony 

5 murder based upon that robbery. VII ROA 1711, 1721. See also VII ROA 1623, 1628-29 

6 (State's closing argument) 

7 On direct appeal this Court considered this issue in the context of reviewing the 

8 aggravating circumstance of the felony murder robbery. Chappell, 114 Nev. at 1408, P.2d 

9 at 841. It rejected Chappell's argument that the aggravating circumstance was invalid 

10 because the evidence showed that Chappell took the car as an afterthought and found that "it 

11 is irrelevant when the intent to steal the property is formed." Id. This theory, however, was 

12 soundly rejected in Nay v. State, 167 P.3d 430 (Nev. 2007) as Chappell was essentially 

13 overruled on this point. In Nay. this Court found that "[r]obbery does not support felony 

14 murder where the evidence shows that the accused kills a person and only later forms the 

15 intent to rob that person." Id. at 435. 

16 The jury here was instructed that it could find felony murder based upon afterthought 

17 robbery and the jury returned a verdict of guilty on the charge of first degree murder. As it 

18 is impossible to know which theory the jury relied upon in reaching its verdict, Chappell' s 

19 judgment of conviction cor the offense of first degree murder must be reversed. Bolden; 124 

20 F.3d 191; Stromberg. 283 U.S. 359; Ficklin, 177 F.3d at 1152; Lara, 455 F.3d at 1085. 

21 C. Chappell's Sentence of Death Must Be Vacated Because NRS 177.055(3) Is 
Unconstitutional 

22 

23 
NRS 177.055(3) is unconstitutional because it grants this Court the unfettered 

discretion to impose a sentence of less than death upon the finding of a constitutional 
24 

violation. This Court's failure to impose a lesser sentence here violated Chappell's rights to 
25 

due process, equal protection, and a reliable sentence and the state and federal constitutions. 
26 

U.S. Const. Amends. V, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 3, 6, 8; Art. IV Sec. 21. 
27 

28 
Chappell was sentenced to death by the first jury. IX ROA. 2127, 2167. On direct 
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1 appeal this Court struck the aggravator based on torture or depravity of mind, but affirmed 

2 Chappell's conviction and sentence. Chappell, 114 Nev. 1403, 972 P.2d 838. On appeal 

3 from the partial grant and partial denial of his post-conviction petition for a writ of habeas 

4 corpus, he raised constitutional issues concerning his conviction and death sentence. This 

5 Court did not address all of these issues, but did reverse his death sentence based upon a 

6 finding of ineffective assistance of trial counsel. XI ROA 2783-96. This Court did not elect 

7 to set aside Chappell's death sentence and impose a sentence of imprisonment for life 

8 without the possibility of parole, as it was entitled to pursuant to NRS 177.055(3). 

9 Chappell's sentence of death is unconstitutional because NRS 177.055(3) is invalid on its 

10 face and as applied under the facts of this case. 

11 NRS 177.055(3) grants this Court two options upon finding constitutional error in a 

12 capital case. It may a remand case for a new penalty hearing or set aside the death sentence 

13 and impose a sentence of life without the possibility of parole. This remand procedure 

14 provided this Court with complete and unfettered discretion to re-sentence Chappell to life 

15 imprisonment or to subject him to the risk of another death sentence after remand. See 

16 Johnson v. State 118 Nev. 787, 803-04, 59 P.3d 450, 461 (2002). The absence of standards 

17 and the absence of any rational narrowing of death eligibility in the statute renders NRS 

18 177.055(3)unconstitutional. 

19 NRS 177 .055(3) allows this Court to act as a sentencer, see Sochor v. Florida, 504 

20 U.S. 527,539 (1992). Under Furman v. Georgia, 408 U.S. 238 (1972), a sentencing scheme 

21 in a capital case must channel the discretion of the sentencing body, comport with 

22 contemporary standards of decency and allow the sentencer to make an individualized 

23 sentencing determination. Lewis v. Jeffers, 497 U.S. 764, 774 (1990); Barclay v. Florida, 

24 463 U.S. 939,960 (1983). The sentencing scheme ofNRS 177.055(3) fails to comport with 

25 any of Furman's constitutional principles: it does not supply any standards to channel the 

26 sentencer's discretion; its arbitrariness is offensive to contemporary standards of decency; 

27 and there are no criteria to allow the court to arrive at an individualized sentence by 

28 considering mitigators. The absence of any standards to guide the court's discretion is 

37 



AA04061

-
1 exacerbated by the inherent limitations on an appellate court's ability to weigh the mitigators 

2 presented to the jury. Caldwell v. Mississippi, 472 U.S. 320,330 (1985); Cabana v. Bullock, 

3 474 U.S. 376, 388 n.5 (1986). This procedure also violates the Eighth Amendment's 

4 requirement of meaningful appellate review of death sentences. Clemons v. Mississippi, 494 

5 U.S. 738, 749 (1990); Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862 875-76, 890 (1983). 

6 NRS 177 .055(3) grants this Court unfettered discretion to sentence a defendant to life 

7 imprisonment or to remand the case and allow the State to seek another death sentence. Such 

8 unfettered discretion is unconstitutional. See Harris v. Blodgett, 853 F.Supp. 1239, 1287-91 

9 (W.D. Wash. 1994); Ortega-Rodriguez v. U.S., 507 U.S. 234, 246-49 (1993); NAACP v. 

10 Alabama, 357 U.S. 449, 456-58 (1958). The failure to channel the Court's discretion violates 

11 the Eighth Amendment because it may literally mean the difference between life and death. 

12 Chappell' s sentence of death is unconstitutional because NRS 177 .05 5(3) is unconstitutional. 

13 D. 

14 

15 

Chappell Was Entitled To Review By The District Attorney's Death Review 
Committee 

Chappell' s state and federal constitutional rights to due process and equal protection, 

and his right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment were violated because the State 
16 

refused to submit this case for consideration before the District Attorney's Death Review 
17 

Committee, even though similarly situated defendants received such review. U.S. Const. 
18 

19 

20 

amend. V, VI, VIII, XIV; Nevada Const. Art. I, Sec. 3, 6 and 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

Chappell contended that the Committee should review the prosecution's original 1995 

decision to seek the death penalty because three of the four original aggravating 
21 

circumstances were no longer applicable and because Chappell had adjusted well to prison 
22 

and had not been subject to disciplinary actions during his decade of incarceration. XII ROA 
23 

2821. Despite the fact that over a decade had lapsed since Chappell was initially charged 
24 

with death penalty, the State refused to resubmit this matter to its Death Review Committee 
25 

and instead relied upon the original 1995 decision to seek death against him. XII ROA 2885 
26 

(citing Schoels v.State, 114 Nev. 981, 966 P.2d 735 (1998)). The district court denied 
27 

Chappell's motion. XII ROA 2905, 3015; XV ROA 3837. 
28 
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1 In evaluating whether a defendant should be subject to the death penalty, 

2 considerations of contemporary standards of decency must be considered. See Roper v. 

3 Simmons, 543 U.S. 551,594 (2005); Atkins v. Virginia, 536 U.S. 304,311 (2003); Woodson 

4 v. North Carolina, 428 U.S. 280, 301 (1976). The 1995 decision to seek the death penalty 

5 should not govern the 2007 prosecution as the intervening twelve years render the former 

6 decision dated and an unreliable reflection upon the contemporary standards of decency. 

7 The State relied upon the Separation of Powers doctrine in arguing that it should not 

8 have been required to submit this matter to further review by its Committee. XII ROA 2885. 

9 A prosecutor's discretion, however, is subject to constitutional constraints. U.S. v. 

10 Armstrong, 517 U.S. 456,464 (1996) (citing U.S. v. Batchelder, 442 U.S. 114, 125 (1979)). 

11 The Due Process Clause of the federal constitution prohibits a prosecutorial decision that is 

12 based on "'an unjustifiable standard such as race, religion, or other arbitrary 

13 classification[.]"' Id. (quoting Oyler v. Boles, 368 U.S. 448, 456 (1962)). Chappell 

14 respectfully submits that his due process rights, as well as his rights against cruel and unusual 

15 punishment, were violated by the State's arbitrary decision not to submit cases that were 

16 reversed on appeal for review by the prosecutor's death review committee. He further 

17 submits that the failure of the State to treat him in the same manner as other defendants who 

18 faced capital proceedings at the same time as his trial resulted in a violation of his rights to 

19 equal protection of the laws. 9 

20 E. 

21 

22 

Chappell's Death Sentence Is Unconstitutional Because of the Trial Court Failed 
to Dismiss Jurors For Cause Who Would Always Impose A Sentence of Death 

The trial court violated Chappell' s state and federal constitutional rights an impartial 

jury, and a reliable sentence by refusing challenges for cause of potential jurors who 
23 

indicated their firm intent to impose a sentence of death. U.S. Const. Amends. VI, VIII, 
24 

25 9The State's reliance on Schoels was misplaced. First, the State cited to a concurring 
26 opinion of one justice without noting that limitation in its opposition. See Schoels, 114 Nev. 

27 
at 990-91, P.2d at 741-42 (concurring opinion of Justice Shearing). In addition, the Schoels 
court did not address the issue of whether the State is required to reconsider its decision to 

28 seek the death penalty upon reversal of a sentence of death. 
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1 XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 3, 6, 8. 

2 The district court erred, and violated Chappell' s constitutional rights, by failing to 

3 grant a challenge for cause of prospective juror Bundren. The following exchange makes it 

4 clear that the potential juror would not consider sentences of life with or without the 

5 possibility of parole: 

6 MS. WECK.ERL Y [The Prosecuting Attorney]: You think you'd automatically pick out a 
punishment without hearing the information? 

7 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR [Ms. Bundren]: I think I would. 

8 
MS. WECK.ERL Y: And I take it, it didn't matter what the judge's instructions would be, you 

9 (sic) do it anyway? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'd do what I thought was right. 

11 MS. WECK.ERL Y: So there is no way you could see yourself looking at all four 
punishments in this situation? 

12 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I don't think so. I can't say positive, but I don't think so. 

13 
MS. WECK.ERL Y: That's sort of the question. 

14 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I really don't think so. I quite honestly cannot see how I could not 

15 punishment (sic) somebody that committed a murder. 

16 MS. WECK.ERL Y: You understand that not all murders are eligible for the death penalty? 

17 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm not familiar with things like that. I was just, off the 
questionnaire it said he used a weapon, things like that. And he murdered her, so that's what 

18 r would be going by. 

19 MS. WECKERLY: And there are people that commit first degree murder with a weapon that 
are not eligible, legally, for the death penalty. Is that something you could accept'! 

20 
PH: I would have to, if it's not an option. 

21 
MS. WECK.ERL Y: Okay. So in that type of situation, you're saying you'd follow the law? 

22 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I can follow the law, sure. 

23 
MS. WECK.ERL Y: And the law also tells you in and (sic) penalty hearing or this type of 

24 situation that you have to at least consider -- not telling you what wei~t you have to give 
certain pieces of information -- but you have to at least listen to information that's presented 

25 in a hearing like this. Would you oe able to do that? 

26 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could always listen. 

27 MS. WECK.ERL Y: After that, of course, the decision is left to you and your fellow jurors. 
I assume you can make a decision at that point? 

28 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could. 

2 MS.WECKERLY: Thank you, ma'am. Pass for cause, your Honor. 

3 THE COURT: Mr. Patrick. 

4 :tvµl. PATRICK: Ms. Bundren, Ms. Weckerly asked you, you said you would automatically 
pick a penalty. 

5 
JP: I would automatically pick a penalty -- just off the questionnaire. 

6 
MR. PA TRICK: What penalty would you automatically pick? 

7 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Death. 

8 
MR. PATRICK: In your questionnaire you said you've always thought this way about the 

9 death penalty? 

10 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I have. 

11 MR. PA TRICK: I think the last think you wrote on the questionnaire was that you are not 
open minded enough to think there's an excuse? 

12 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm very narrow minded about that. 

13 
MR. PATRICK: What you're telling us is your mind is made up? 

14 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It pretty much is. 

15 
MR. PATRICK: There's not much chance we'll change that, is there? 

16 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not by going off the questionnaire, no. 

17 
MR. PATRICK: We'd challenge for cause, your Honor. 

18 
THE COURT: Let me ask you a question, Ms. Bundren, because a couple of times you kind 

19 of put a caveat to your statement about saying, off the questionnaire. You understand there's 
going to be a hearing where witnesses, evidence is going to come in. Both sides have to 

20 present whatever they want to examine the witnesses on. And that's the evidence that you 're 
going to rely upon to make a decision, not --

21 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not the questionnaire. Right. 

22 
THE COURT: That being the case, can you listen to the evidence presented in the hearing. 

23 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could. 

24 
THE COURT: And after having listened to that evidence, is it your statement today that you 

25 would be able to consider all of the forms of punishment? 

26 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could if it was different from the statement. 

27 THE COURT: I don't know that it's different from the statement, but obviously it's more 
expansive. You're goin~ to get more information about things during the penalty hearing. 

28 So I don't want to say it s going to be different. I'm just going to say that I would expect 
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1 you'll receive more information about everything involved here. 

2 So what I need to know is if you'll be able to consider all forms of punishment. 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I could consider it. 

4 THE COURT: Okay, yes or no? 

5 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yes. 

6 19 ROA 3907-09. Chappell respectfully submits that it is clear from this exchange that 

7 prospective juror Bundren would always return a sentence of death in the case of first degree 

8 murder and that she would not sincerely consider the alternative sentences of life with or 

9 without the possibility of parole. The district court erred in failing to grant the defense 

10 motion for cause. 19 ROA 3916. Ms. Bundren sat on the jury which imposed the sentence 

11 of death against Chappell. 12 ROA 3046. 

12 Likewise, the district court erred in failing to grant a defense chalJenge for cause of 

13 prospective juror Hibbard as he was unwilling to consider mitigating circumstances other 

14 than insanity: 

15 MR. PA TRICK [ defense counsel]: Just because somebody was on drugs, would you still be 
able to keep an open mind about things they had to say? 

16 
PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If you're asking ifit mitigates what they do, no it doesn't. They 

1 7 have to control their actions and make decisions. They've got to be accountable for those 
decisions. 

18 
MR. PA TRICK: In your questionnaire when they asked you what your feelings were about 

19 the death penalty, you put, good. 

20 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: If the penalty meets the crime. That's what I'm trying to say, the 
penalty should fit the crime. 

21 
MR. PA TRICK: Again, on the mitigation, you were asked there's mitigating circumstances 

22 and aggravating circumstances. You wrote that you could listen to both sides of that/ 

23 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Yeah. Mitigation seems to be a broad spectrum now a days to 
justify a lot of things. I don't believe that mitigating circumstances for death penalty murder. 

24 I would have a hard time accepting mitigating circumstances for murder. 

25 MR. PATRICK: So anything in a person's background or any drug activity, doesn't make 
any difference to you? 

26 

27 

28 

PROSPECTIVE JUROR: No. 

MR. PATRICK: At all? 
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1 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: Not at all. 

2 MR. PATRICK: Would you say you'd vote automatically for the death penalty? 

3 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I would have to hear the facts. Murder is a pretty severe action. 
Unless there's insanity at the time of committing it, I don't know how you Justify that. 

4 
MR. PATRICK: So besides insanity, you wouldn't be able to find any mitigating 

5 circumstances? 

6 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: It would be difficult. 

7 MR. PATRICK: Court's indulgence. 

8 THE COURT: Okay. 

9 MR. PATRICK: I'll challenge at this time. 

10 THE COURT: Let me ask you a question, Mr. Hibbard. The question isn't so much whether 
you think there are mitigating circumstances for the murder that justify a crime. The question 

11 here is sentence, punisliment. Are there things out their in your mincf that you wouldbe able 
to consider that you think would be appropnate consideration as to mitigate what sentence 

12 somebody receives? 

13 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I think pretty hard about the victim, not so much the person. The 
victim doesn't have a lot of choices left. 

14 
THE COURT: In understand. But the question in terms of how he gets punished, both sides 

15 might be able to present evidence that they think --

16 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: The victim didn't choose his or her punishment. 

17 THE COURT: I realize that. Would you be able to consider things that the defense brings 
up that they argue in mitigation of what sentence somebody should receive, or are you saying 

18 you wouldn't consider tliose at all? 

19 PROSPECTIVE JUROR: I'm saying that I think that bringing up a cover for justifying 
committing murder is very difficult for me to understand. 

20 
THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

21 
19 ROA 3957-58. The court denied the challenge for cause after concluding the following: 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Well, I'm &oing to deny the challenge as to Mr. Hibbard. There's a 
difference - there s several levels of what they need to be able to do here. 
Number one is can they consider - do they recognize and consider all four 
forms of punishment. And he indicated he could. 

Two, will you follow the instructions of the court. He indicated he 
would. And will you consider all the evidence. He indicated he would. 
Whether somebody agrees or disagrees with whether or not they think, you 
know, prospectively some type of mitigation is a good or a bad thing they're 
going to give weiglit to is really kind of a little lower down because you can't 
tell tliem the evidence yet. So they're kind of having to guess, well, do I think 
there's mitigation for murder or not, without having lieard any facts of the 
case. 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

• • 
I don't think the jurors need to say your mitigation is going to be good 

or bad to make them eligible to sit on the case. It's important that they indicate 
they will consider all tlie evidence, consider all forms of punishment and are 
not foreclosed to imposing just one penalty or another. So I think that he 
sufficiently answering things, so I'll deny the challenge for cause as to Mr. 
Hibbard. 

19 ROA 3966. Chappell respectfully submits that it was clear from the record that 

prospective juror Hibbard was unwilling to consider mitigating evidence and that he was 
6 

therefore not eligible to serve on the jury. The district court erred in failing to grant the 
7 

defense challenge for cause of this juror. 
8 

9 
Finally, the district court erred in failing to grant a defense challenge for cause of 

potential juror Ramirez. Ramirez expressed his belief that the death penalty was not enforced 
10 

1 1 
enough; that he comes from Texas and the concept that certain factors would have to be 

considered before a sentence of death could be imposed was news to him; that it was hard 
12 

for him to say whether he would be able to follow the judge's instructions and hold the State 
13 

to its burden; that he believes in an eye for an eye; that he agreed with the system in Texas 
14 

where jurors did not have four choices as to the punishment, but only one choice which was 
15 

the death penalty; and he doubted that ifhe were in Chappell's position that he would want 
16 

17 
12 people like him sitting on the jury. 19 ROA 3976-78. Despite his strong convictions and 

the clear message that he would impose the death penalty, the district court denied the 
18 

defense challenge for cause. 19 ROA 3990. The district court erred in doing so. 
19 

20 
In Wainwright v. Witt, 469 U.S. 412 (1985), the United States Supreme Court held 

that "the proper standard for determining when a prospective juror may be excused for cause 
21 

because of his or her views on capital punishment ... is whether the juror's views would 
22 

'prevent or substantially impair the performance of his duties as a juror in accordance with 
23 

his instructions and his oath."' Id. at 424 (quoting Adams v. Texas, 448 U.S. 38, 45 (1980)). 
24 

It is apparent from voir dire that these three jurors should have been dismissed for cause 
25 

because their views would prevent or substantially impair the performance of their duties. 
26 

It is well settled that the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments guarantee a defendant on trial 
27 

for his life the right to an impartial jury. Witt, 469 U.S. at 424; Irvin v. Dowd, 366 U.S. 717, 
28 
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1 722 (1961). Because Juror Bundren actually sat on Chappell'sjury, his sentence of death 

2 must be overturned. Ross v. Oklahoma, 487 U.S. 81, 85 (1988). Likewise, Chappell was 

3 prejudiced by the failure to remove Hibbard and Ramirez from the jury panel because 

4 Chappell had to use his peremptory challenges against these prospective jurors and had they 

5 been removed for cause he could have used those challenges against other prospective jurors, 

6 such as Juror Bundren. Finally, Chappell was prejudiced because the examination of these 

7 jurors took place in the presence of the other potential jurors, and by failing to remove these 

8 jurors for cause the jurors who sat on Chappell' s jury received the implicit message that the 

9 views of these jurors were acceptable under the law. 

10 F. 

11 

12 

Chap9iell's Conviction Is Unconstitutional Because The State Was Permitted To 
Intro uce Unreliable Hearsay Evidence Durint: The Penal!y: Hearin& In Support 
of The Aeeravatin& Circumstance and as Other Matter Evidence 

Chappell's conviction and death sentence are invalid under state and federal 

13 constitutional guarantees of confrontation, cross-examination, compulsory process, due 

14 process of law, equal protection, and a reliable sentence due to the trial court's improper 

15 admission of testimonial hearsay statements. Likewise, Chappell's constitutional rights to 

16 due process, a fair penalty hearing, and a reliable trial were violated by the introduction of 

17 unreliable hearsay statements. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VIII &XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 

18 3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

19 Chappell was deprived of his constitutional rights due to the admission of testimonial 

20 hearsay statements by declarants that he received no opportunity to confront or cross-

21 examine. Out-of-court statements by witnesses that are testimonial are barred, under the 

22 Confrontation Clause, unless witnesses are unavailable and petitioner had prior opportunity 

23 to cross-examine them, regardless of whether such statements are deemed reliable by court. 

24 Considered singly and cumulatively, the introduction of inadmissible hearsay against 

25 petitioner was prejudicial. Charmaine Smith, a Parole and Probation Officer, testified that 

26 Panos told her that she was upset with Chappell and in fear for her life. XIII ROA 3236. She 

27 also reported a claim that Panos said Chappell had previously held a knife to her. XIII ROA 

28 3236. Detective Vaccaro testified about tests revealing the presence of DNA in Panos's 
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1 vagina and the meaning of those tests. XIV ROA 3425. Clair McGuire testified about 

2 statements that Panos made to police officers in which she stated that Chappell held a knife 

3 to her throat and pinned her down while sitting on top of her chest. XIII ROA 3247. 

4 Lansing Police Department Detective Weidner testified about statements made by a man who 

5 was allegedly assaulted by Chappell in 1988. XIII ROA 3251-53. These statements were 

6 introduced both as evidence of the alleged aggravating circumstance and as "other matter" 

7 or character evidence. 

8 Chappell was also deprived of his constitutional rights due to the admission of non-

9 testimonial hearsay statements. Chappell had no opportunity to confront or cross-examine 

10 the declarants of these statements. Moreover, much of this evidence was unreliable, highly 

11 suspect and impalpable. Substantial evidence of this nature was introduced during the 

12 second penalty phase trial. Specifically, Michele Mancha testified that Panos told her about 

13 various incidents involving Chappell, Panos's alleged plan to leave Chappell, Panos's report 

14 of calling the jail to ensure that Chappell was still in custody. XIII ROA 3089-3101. She 

15 was also permitted to testify as to Panos' s reports regarding court proceedings, even though 

16 Mancha was not present at those proceedings; report that Panos had a restraining order 

17 against Chappell, even though in fact that restraining order was no longer in effect as Panos 

18 did not appear for her court appearance; and report an alleged threat to Panos by Chappell, 

19 while he was in custody, during a court proceeding for which Mancha was not present. XIII 

20 ROA 3102-05. Mike Pollard also testified as to conversations he had with Panos in which 

21 she allegedly claimed that she was leaving Chappell, that he stole items from her and their 

22 children, and that Panos repeatedly called the jail because she was concerned about 

23 Chappell's release. XIII ROA 3114-29. Pollard also claimed that Panos said that she 

24 received a telephone message from Chappell and recited the contents of that alleged message. 

25 XIII ROA 3131. Lisa Larsen also presented testimony about her conversations with Panos, 

26 including Panos' s alleged plan to move before Chappell got out of custody and her alleged 

27 conversation with Chappell in court the day before she was killed. XIII ROA 3169-72. 

28 Latrona Smith testified that on the day Panos was killed, she called Smith and asked her to 
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1 call back with some kind of excuse so that she could leave the house. XIII ROA 3191-92. 

2 Clair McGuire testified about statements that Panos had to quit her job as a 911 operator in 

3 Tucson because of Chappell's criminal record and statements by Panos that Chappell had 

4 sold her furniture and their children's jackets to get money for drugs. XIII ROA 3244-45. 

5 McGuire further stated that Panos said that Chappell would rape McGuire and bum the house 

6 down so that Panos would not have a house to come home to. XIII ROA 3246. These 

7 statements were introduced both as evidence of the alleged aggravating circumstance and as 

8 "other matter" or character evidence. 

9 Chappell was prejudiced by this highly inflammatory and inadmissible evidence. 

10 Although this evidence was highly damaging, Chappell was not able to challenge it through 

11 cross-examination of the persons making the statements. 

12 The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides in relevant part: "In 

13 all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right ... to be confronted with the 

14 witnesses against him." The United States Supreme Court has repeatedly recognized that a 

15 defendant's Sixth Amendment right to confront his accusers "is most naturally read as a 

16 reference to the right of confrontation at common law, admitting only those exceptions 

17 established at the time of the founding." Crawford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36, 54 (2004). 

18 See also Salinger v. U.S., 272 U.S. 542, 548 (1926); U.S. v. Reid, 53 U.S. 361, 364-65 

19 (1851) (overruled on other grounds by Rosen v. U.S., 245 U.S. 467,470 (1918)). Under the 

20 common law, the rule governing testimony by deceased witnesses was clear: absent a prior 

21 opportunity for cross-examination, a deceased's statements were inadmissible. As 

22 incorporated into the Sixth Amendment, this rule recognized only two exceptions: when that 

23 testimony consisted of the "dying declaration of a party murdered," 1 Joseph Chitty, a 

24 Practical Treatise on the Criminal Law 390 (London 1819), and "when it can be proved on 

25 oath, that the witness is detained and kept back from appearing by the means and 

26 procurement of the prisoner." Geoffrey Gilbert, the Law ofEvidence 125 (6th ed. London 

27 1801); see also Crawford, 541 U.S. at 56 n.6 (dying declarations), 62 (forfeiture by 

28 wrongdoing). 
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1 A defendant's right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against him is a 

2 central procedural safeguard whose "very mission [is] to advance the accuracy of the truth-

3 determining process in criminal trials." Tennesseev. Street, 471 U.S. 409,415 (1985) ( citing 

4 Dutton v. Evans, 400 U.S. 74, 89 (1970)). It is "an essential and fundamental requirement 

5 for the kind of fair trial which is this country's constitutional goal." Pointer v. Texas, 380 

6 U.S. 400, 405 (1965). 

7 Chappell recognizes that in Summers v. State, 148 P.3d 778, 782 (Nev. 2006), this 

8 Court held in a 4-3 decision, that hearsay testimony is admissible in a capital penalty hearing. 

9 In doing so, this Court relied upon the United States Supreme Court's 1949 decision in 

10 Williams v. New York, 337 U.S. 241 (1949). Williams, however, should no longer be 

11 deemed controlling. This was a due process case decided nearly six decades ago that has 

12 been repeatedly limited by subsequent cases. "The United States Supreme Court has not 

13 addressed this precise issue [ of the application of Crawford to capital sentencing] but has 

14 given very clear indications that Williams v. New York is no longer viable. Summers, 148 

15 P.3d at 785 (Rose C.J.,joined by Maupin and Douglas, JJ., concurring in part and dissenting 

16 in part). Williams should not be given rigid adherence given the undeniable evolution of the 

17 United States Supreme Court's jurisprudence on this matter over the succeeding decades. 

18 Id. There are many strong arguments for reconsidering and limiting Williams' reach. First, 

19 when Williams was decided, the Supreme Court had not yet held that the Confrontation 

20 Clause applied to the states, thus the Court did not analyze the issue presented under the 

21 Confrontation Clause. Second, Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349 (1977), confirms that 

22 Williams has less sweeping application under the Court's post-Furman capital sentencing 

23 jurisprudence- indeed, the Eleventh Circuit has extended the Confrontation Clause to capital 

24 sentencing based on precisely this reading of Gardner. Proffitt v. Wainwright, 685 F.2d 

25 1227, 1253-54 (11th Cir. 1982). 

26 The precedential force of Williams, at least with respect to capital cases, cannot be 

27 evaluated outside the context of the Supreme Court's ongoing reevaluation of the Sixth 

28 Amendment in recent years. When Williams was issued, capital sentencing proceedings 
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1 looked nothing like today's proceedings. They were formally characterized as informal 

2 procedures, with extraordinary discretion, and the Supreme Court's holding was premised 

3 on the idea that there was no real distinction between capital sentencing and ordinary 

4 sentencing. Williams, 337 U.S. at 252. That premise is no longer valid. See Barefoot v. 

5 Estelle, 463 U.S. 880, 898-03 (1983) (upholding the admission of demonstrably unreliable 

6 evidence against a due process attack because of "the benefit of cross-examination" to 

7 expose the flaws in such testimony); Specht v. Patterson, 386 U.S. 605 (1967) (non-capital 

8 defendant was entitled to procedural protections, including the right of confrontation, in 

9 facing an enhanced sentence for his crime which was contingent on proof of additional facts 

10 in a separate proceeding); Bullington v. Missouri, 451 U.S. 430,446 (1981). 

11 Other courts recognize that Crawford applies to the eligibility phase of a capital 

12 penalty trial. See Russeau v. State, 171 S.W.3d 871 (Tex. Crim. App. 2005); State v. Bell, 

13 603 S.E.2d 93, 115-116 (N.C. 2004); U.S. v. Jordan, 357 F.Supp.2d 880 (E.D. Va. 2005); 

14 U.S. v. Johnson, 378 F.Supp.2d 1051, 1059-62 (N.D. Iowa 2005); State v. McGill, 140 P.3d 

15 930 (Ariz. 2006). Still other courts have found that the Confrontation Clause applies to both 

16 the eligibility and selection phases of a capital penalty trial. Proffitt, 685 F.2d at 1254-55; 

17 U.S. v. Brown, 441 F.3d 1330, 1361 (11th Cir. 2006); U.S. v. Mills, 446 F.Supp.2d 1115, 

18 1135 (C.D. Cal. 2006); Rodgers v. State, 948 So.2d 655,663 (Fla. 2007). 

19 Again, Chappell recognizes that in Summers, 148 P .3d at 779, this Court held, in a 4-3 

20 decision, that Crawford does not apply to the penalty phase of a capital trail. See also 

21 Johnson v. State, 148 P.3d 767, 773 (2006); Thomas v. State, 148 P.3d 727, 733-34 (2006). 

22 He respectfully submits that these decisions are erroneous, clearly contrary to controlling 

23 federal authority, and should be overruled. In the alternative, he presents this issue here so 

24 that it may be preserved for federal review. 

25 Chappell further contends that both the testimonial and non-testimonial hearsay 

26 statements which were introduced here were unreliable and rose to the level ofhighly suspect 

27 and impalpable evidence, which may not be introduced in a capital case. See Gallego v. 

28 State, 117 Nev. 348, 369, 23 P.3d 227,241 (2001); Leonard v. State, 114 Nev. 1196, 1214, 

49 



AA04073

-
1 969 P .2d 288, 289 ( 1998). Unverified and unreliable evidence of a suspect nature must not 

2 be allowed in a capital penalty hearing. D' Agostino v. State, 107 Nev. 1001, 1003-04, 823 

3 P.2d 283,285 (1991). As a matter of Due Process and the right to a fair trial, both of which 

4 are guaranteed by the state and federal constitutions, this evidence should not have been 

5 permitted. See Hicks v. Oklahoma, 447 U.S. 343 (1980) (a federal due process violation may 

6 be caused by depriving a person of a liberty interest under state law). 

7 Particularly prejudicial here was the repeated testimony by Panos's friends that 

8 Chappell threatened to kill her the day before she was murdered and that Panos told Chappell 

9 that their relationship was over and she wanted to get on with her life. XIII ROA 3103-04 

10 (Mancha); XIII ROA 3172 (Larsen). The friends were not present when these statements 

11 were allegedly made by Chappell, but were instead assertions by the friends of what they 

12 claim Panos said she heard Chappell say while they were in court. No evidence was 

13 introduced by any person who was present in court, including Chappell' s probation officer 

14 who was present for the court proceeding. XIII ROA 323 7. Although this testimony was 

15 highly damaging, it is highly suspect in that Panos did not make this statement to the 

16 probation officer, prosecutor, bailiff or judge at a time when they were agreeing that 

17 Chappell should be sent to a drug rehabilitation program rather than prison or jail. Had 

18 Chappell actually threatened to kill Panos in this context, it is probable that she would have 

19 told one of these people about his threat and urged them to keep him in custody. Likewise, 

20 this Court may take judicial notice of the fact that it is the general policy of the courts of this 

21 jurisdiction that inmates who are in custody are not allowed conversations with their 

22 girlfriends, or anyone else other than counsel, during court proceedings and it is therefore 

23 highly unlikely that such a conversation actually took place between Chappell and Panos. 

24 See Caballero v. Seventh Judicial Dist. Court, 167 P.3d 415, 419 n.21 (Nev. 2007); NRS 

25 47.130(a). The State relied extensively on this evidence during the closing arguments and 

26 relied upon this evidence in arguing that Panos would not have had consensual sex with 

27 Chappell as it asserted the existence of the aggravating circumstance. See e.g. 16 ROA 3 785. 

28 Reversal is warranted based upon the introduction of this highly prejudicial testimony. 
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2 
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The District Court Erroneously Admitted Presentence Investia:ation Reports 

Chappell's conviction and death sentence are invalid under state and federal 

3 constitutional guarantees of due process of law, equal protection, and a reliable sentence due 

4 to the trial court's improper admission of two presentence investigation reports. U.S. Const. 

5 Amends. V, VIII & XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

6 The State introduced a presentence investigation report for a gross misdemeanor 

7 offense and a presentence investigation report for this case as evidence. XVI ROA 3772. 

8 Introduction of this evidence was plain error as such evidence is not admissible under 

9 Nevada law. 

10 Shortly before the penalty phase trial, this Court reversed a defendant's conviction 

11 after it found that the prosecution committed plain error when it read a presentence report to 

12 the jury during the penalty phase of the defendant's trial. Herman v. State, 122 Nev._, 128 

13 P.3d 469 (2006). In Herman, the prosecutor read from the presentence report during the 

14 penalty phase, providing the jury with specific instances of his 17 prior arrests. Id. at_, 128 

15 P .3d at 4 7 4-7 5. On appeal, this Court noted that pursuant to NRS 17 5 .156( 5), a presentence 

16 report cannot be made part of the public record. Id. at_, 128 P.3d at 474. Although the 

17 State did not submit the presentence report as a formal copy, the fact that the report was 

18 "essentially read into the record and transcribed" was "tantamount to entering it into and 

19 making it part of the public record." Id. at_, 128 P.3d at 474. This Court also noted that 

20 "[w]hile some of these arrests tend to indicate a pattern of conduct by [the defendant], ... the 

21 totality of their presentation makes the recitation substantially more prejudicial than 

22 probative." Id. at_, 128 P.3d at 475. 

23 Chappell was prejudiced by the introduction of this evidence. The reports included 

24 information about arrests for which he was not convicted, including charges of possession 

25 of narcotics, criminal trespass, battery domestic violence and possession of narcotics for sale. 

26 XVIII ROA (1995 report). The 1996 report noted that Chappell had been arrested 17 times 

27 and convicted five times. XVIII ( 1996 report). The State also introduced written statements 

28 by Chappell that were included in the PSI and then used these statements against Chappell. 
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1 XVI ROA 3780; XVIII ROA (1995 and 1996 reports). The report included incorrect 

2 information, including a statement by Panos' s friend that she was worried when she saw 

3 Chappell driving near Panos's home because she "had a Protective Order stopping the 

4 defendant from coming to her house." XVIII ROA ( 1996 report at page 4 ). The report also 

5 includes a statement by the PSI author that Chappell "battered this woman repeatedly for 

6 several years and when she finally attempted to make him stop by complaining to the police 

7 and obtaining [a] Protective Order, he went to her house, entered through a bedroom 

8 window, and killed her with a steak knife." XVIII ROA (1996 report at page 7). The author 

9 was not called as a witness and did not have any direct knowledge of the events at issue. His 

10 opinion was not fairly supported by the evidence and should not have been presented to the 

11 jury. Most significantly, the 1996 report included a statement from Panos' s mother as to her 

12 thoughts on whether Chappell should receive the death penalty: "The SOB does not deserve 

13 to live." XVIII ROA (1996 report at page 5). It is well established that such evidence is not 

14 admissible and this statement would not have been before the jury had the PSI been excluded 

15 as evidence. SeeFloydv. State, 118Nev.156, 174, 118Nev.156,42P.3d249,261 (2002), 

16 Kaczmarek v. State, 120 Nev. 314, 339, 91 P.3d 16, 33 (2004). 

17 Chappell objected to the introduction ofhis statements on the grounds that no Miranda 

18 warnings were given prior to the time that they were obtained and it was unfair to introduce 

19 the statements under these circumstances. XVI ROA 3770. It does not appear that 

20 Chappell' s counsel from his first trial was present when this statement was given and there 

21 is no indication on the statement form that it is a voluntary or elective statement, that the 

22 defendant has the right to decline writing a statement, or that he has a right to consult with 

23 counsel while writing the statement. Under these circumstances, as well as the reasons set 

24 forth in Herman, the district court erred and violated Chappell' s constitutional rights by 

25 allowing these statements to be introduced at trial. 

26 H. The District Court Allowed Improper Victim Impact Testimony 

27 The trial court violated Chappell' s state and federal constitutional rights to a fair and 

28 reliable sentencing hearing, due process and right to be free from cruel and unusual 
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1 punishment by permitting the State to introduce excessive victim impact testimony. U.S. 

2 Const. Amends. VI, VIII, XIV. Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs 6, 8; Art. IV Sec. 21. 

3 An extraordinary amount of victim impact evidence was introduced against Chappell. 

4 As set forth in detail above, the jury heard victim impact evidence not only from Panos' s 

5 mother, who testified to the impact of Panos's death upon herself, her sister Carol Monson 

6 and brother-in-law Maynard Monson, and the three children of Panos and Chappell; but also 

7 heard victim impact testimony from Panos's aunt Carol Monson (who also testified as to 

8 impact on Panos' smother and other family members), cousin, friend Michele Mancha, friend 

9 Mike Pollard, friend Lisa Larsen, friend Clair McGuire, friend Dina Richardson (who also 

10 testified as to victim impact on 40 additional people at the Tucson Police Department). XIII 

11 ROA 3107-08, 3177-78, 3248; XIV ROA 3307; XV ROA 3678-79, 3681-89. In addition, 

12 letters from Panos's cousin and aunt were read into the record and admitted as exhibits. XV 

13 ROA 3694-85. These letters referenced family gatherings at birthdays and holidays. XV 

14 ROA 3685. Chappell objected to the presentation of victim impact evidence by persons who 

15 were not family members of Panos. XIII ROA 3107-08, 3177; XV ROA 3678. The district 

16 court found that it had discretion to admit victim impact evidence from non-family members. 

17 XIII ROA 3272-73. 

18 This victim impact evidence exceeded that for which notice was provided in the 

19 State's Notice in Evidence in Support of Aggravating Circumstances as the State only 

20 referenced victim impact evidence by Panos's mother, aunt and uncle, children and family 

21 members Al Granger, Christina Rees and Doris Wichtoski. XII ROA 303 7. The State made 

22 no mention of its intention to elicit victim impact testimony from Panos' s friends and co-

23 workers. "SCR250(4)(t) requires the State to file, no later than 15 days before trial, a notice 

24 of evidence in aggravation 'summarizing the evidence which the state intends to introduce 

25 at the penalty phase of trial ... and identifying the witnesses, documents, or other means by 

26 which the evidence will be introduced."' McConnell, 120 Nev. at 1071, 102 P.3d at 626. 

27 See also Mason v. State, 118 Nev. 554, 561-62, 51 P.3d 525 (2002) (finding that SCR 

28 250(4)(t) applies to any evidence which the State intends to introduce at the penalty phase 
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1 of trial and rejecting the State's 'substantial compliance' argument). "Consistent with the 

2 constitutional requirements of due process, defendant should be notified of any and all 

3 evidence to be presented during the penalty hearing." Emmons v. State, 107 Nev. 53, 62, 807 

4 P.2d 718, 724 (1991), modification on other grounds recognized by Harte v. State, 116 Nev. 

5 1054, 13 P.3d 420 (2000). Chappell's due process rights were violated by the admission of 

6 victim impact evidence from witnesses who were not identified as giving this evidence in the 

7 State's notice. 

8 Chappell's rights were further violated by the introduction of this evidence because 

9 it exceeded the limited scope of victim impact evidence allowed by Payne v. Tennessee, 501 

10 U.S. 808 (1991). This Court recognizes that in Payne, the United States Supreme Court held 

11 "that there is no per se Eighth Amendment bar to a capital jury's consideration of a 

12 prosecutor's argument or evidence related to the victim's personal characteristics or the 

13 emotional impact of the crime on the victim's family." Kaczmarek, 120 Nev. at 338, 91 P.3d 

14 at 33. This Court has held that "the district courts have discretion to admit such evidence 

15 under NRS 175.552, so long as it does not render the proceeding fundamentally unfair." Id. 

16 (citing Floyd, 118 Nev. at 174, 42 P.3d at 261). NRS 175.552(3)10 provides that "evidence 

17 may be presented concerning aggravating and mitigating circumstances relevant to the 

18 offense, defendant or victim and on any other matter which the court deems relevant to 

19 sentence, whether or not the evidence is ordinarily admissible." "Nevertheless, NRS 

20 48.035( 1) remains applicable in a capital penalty proceeding and provides that even relevant 

21 evidence 'is not admissible if its probative value is substantially outweighed by the danger 

22 of unfair prejudice, or confusion of the issues or of misleading the jury."' Floyg, 118 Nev. 

23 

24 10In contrast, NRS 176.015 limits victim impact evidence to the direct victim, the 

25 
surving spouse, parents or children of a person who was killed as a direct result of the 
commission of the crime, and any other relative or victim who requests in writing to be 

26 notified of the hearing. Chappell submits that it is a violation of his state and federal 

27 
constitutional rights to due process of law and equal protection to limit victim impact 
testimony for non-capital cases while not limiting victim impact evidence in capital cases. 

28 But see Hardison v. State, 104 Nev. 530, 763 P.2d 52 (1988). 
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1 at 17 4-75, 42 P .3d at 261. In Floyd this Court approved of the district court's ruling limiting 

2 victim impact witnesses to one per murder victim and prohibiting victim impact evidence 

3 from other people who were at the scene. Id. at 175, 42 P.3d at 262. 

4 Chappell recognizes that this Court has previously permitted victim impact testimony 

5 by neighbors, co-workers, and other persons outside of the victim's family. Wesleyv. State, 

6 112 Nev. 503, 519-20, 916 P.2d 793, 804 (1996); Lane v. State, 110 Nev. 1156, 1166, 881 

7 P.2d 1358, 1365 (1994). The testimony here, which was presented by both family and non-

8 family members, exceeded that in Wesley and Lane and should not have been permitted. In 

9 the alternative, Wesley and Lane should be overruled as to this issue in that they permitted 

10 victim impact testimony beyond that allowed by Payne. 

11 This evidence was unduly prejudicial to Chappell and therefore violated the due 

12 process clause. Payne, 501 U.S. at 825. As set forth in detail below, at pages 56 to 63, the 

13 State's closing argument built an entire theme around this evidence as it argued that Panos 

14 was a worthwhile person and Chappell was not. The evidence here went far beyond briefly 

15 portraying Panos's character to the jury and informing the jury of the impact of her loss, and 

16 instead became a primary focus of the penalty hearing. Chappell's sentence of death must 

1 7 therefore be vacated 

18 I. 

19 

The District Court Erred In Allowin~ Admission of Chappell's Prior Testimony 

The trial court violated Chappell's state and federal constitutional rights a fair and 

20 reliable sentencing hearing, due process, right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment 

21 and right to effective assistance of counsel by permitting the State to introduce Chappell's 

22 testimony from his original trial. U.S. Const. Amends. VI, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, 

23 Secs. 6, 8; Art. IV Sec. 21. 

24 Over Chappell's objection, the district court permitted the State to use his testimony 

25 from the first trial. XV ROA 3632. Defense counsel had argued that the testimony was the 

26 result of ineffective assistance of counsel. The district court did not hold a hearing regarding 

27 this issue or otherwise hear argument concerning the claim of ineffective assistance of 
,(' 

28 counsel, but instead permitted the State to introduce this evidence. It was error to do so. 
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1 Prior testimony is not admissible if it implicates a constitutional violation during the 

2 trial in which it was obtained. Byford, 116 Nev. at 225, 994 P.2d at 707; Harrison v. U.S., 

3 392 U.S. 219,222 (1968); U.S. v. Pelullo, 105 F.3d 117, 125 (3d Cir. 1997). An assertion 

4 of ineffective assistance of counsel is a claim of a constitutional violation under the Sixth 

5 Amendment. See Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668 (1984). Under these 

6 circumstances, the district court should have conducted a full inquiry concerning whether the 

7 decision to testify, and preparation for testimony at the first trial, were the result of the 

8 effective assistance of counsel. Its failure to do so warrants reversal of the sentence of death. 

9 J. 

10 

11 

The State Committed Prosecutorial Misconduct By Makin& Ar1:uments Based 
Upon Comparative Worth Ar1:uments 

The State violated Chappell' s state and federal constitutional rights a fair and reliable 

sentencing hearing, due process, right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment, and 
12 

right to be free from prosecutorial misconduct by making arguments comparing Chappell's 
13 

14 

15 

16 

worth to the worth of Panos. U.S. Const. Amends. VI, VIII, XIV. Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 

3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

Chappell's death sentence is unconstitutional because ofprosecutorial misconduct in 

argument at sentencing comparing his worth to that of the victim. During closing arguments 
17 

of the penalty phase the prosecutors made repeated and extensive comparisons between the 
18 

life of the defendant and the life of the victim in arguing that the death penalty should be 
19 

imposed against Chappell: 
20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Debbie loved life. She loved life. She loved people, but she was afraid. 
She was very scared and had a lot of reason to be afraid. 

Look how she chose to live her life over that then years of what was a 
living hell with the defendant. This thing of weekly beatings by him, the pain, 
the concern for her children. She had every reason to want to give up. She 
had every reason to take it out on other people, but how did slie respond to 
that. I don't think of all of the misery, but the beauty that still remains. A 
quote from a young woman that lived decades ago that suffered a lot of pain 
and anguish and fear for an extended period of time, as well. 

And yet the beauty that still remains. You know it really is a matter of 
J?erspective. It's a matter of how people pick themselves up and go on with 
their lives. And we've got the whole spectrum of that in this case. The whole 
spectrum. 

We have in Debbie Panos an individual who had every reason to be 
bitter and dysfunctional. Yet, what did we hear about her. She not only was 
up, she was a person that other people loved to be around. She loved people. 
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She worked at jobs. She worked two jobs. Sometime she worked three jobs 
to take care of her family, her three little children that she dearly loved. 

She was enough of a giver beyond this, outside of this sphere and 
difficulty she had, that people liked being around her. How did they describe 
her. That she was giving. That she was compassionate. That she would do 
anything for other people. 

Il was just the way that Debbie was. That was how she chose to be in 
her life. She was even a giving person with regard to the defendant, Mr. 
Chl!J)pell, the person that killed lier, the person that took her life. And what a 
difference we see there. He is the total opposite end, because he chose evil. 
He chose evil. 

He chose, rather than to make the best of his situation, to love other 
people, to be kind to other people, he chose to abuse other people, to take 
advantage of them. He chose to only think of himself. And in the end he 
chose to take the life of Debbie Panos. 

There are heroes in these lives that we've heard about. There are 
smaller heroes and there are greater heroes. We heard about a grandmother 
who received a call about the death of her daughter it cost her tlie anguish in 
her heart to fall to the floor and began screaming. The picked herself up, went 
and got her three little grandchildren and has raised them in a home of love and 
compassion. And what is really a great tribute to the life that Debbie led. 

What an amazing difference of choices we have in this case, ladies and 
gentleman. Debbie loved clowns. That makes sense, doesn't it. She liked 
things that made her happy. She liked things that made other people happy. 

We were told how she loved older _people. How she loved younger 
people. How she adored her own children. We saw the pictures how she lilced 
to dress up like a clown. We heard about how she liked to collect clowns. We 
heard about how she liked hanging out with people from work. How she liked 
to take her children and they woulo go on picnics, go the (sic) Disney land and 
all the other activities she had to work so liard as a single mother to be able to 
provide for them. And still deal with the things that the defendant QUt her 
through over this entire time. It's just stunning, what she went through. 

XVI ROA 3778-79. 

We've listened to days now, from people that knew him, both sides of 
this, and some people in the middle of it, some people that just went out there. 
The police, observed it. Weren't friends of Debbie. Weren't friend {sic) of 
his. Other individuals that saw this think, and the way that he was acting and 
the way Jle was treating Debbie. And there was nothing, nothing redeeming 
about this man that came out. 

We had days to present that. He's a despicable human being. We're 
talking about a guy that sells his baby's diapers. It's just appalling. You've 
got little children, they get some shoes from the shoe store. And this guy is out 
there taking all the children's shoes back. Their mother goes to Disneyland 
and gets shirts for the kids. Takes them home. The defendant takes the shirts 
out and sells them so he can get money form himself, take care of his needs, 
because he thinks he's more important and his needs should come first. 

26 XVI ROA 3 779. 

27 

28 

Opposition is a principle that has always been with us. And a lot of 
times, when you really think about it, it's tlie decisions we make against 
opposition that really define us, do (sic) they. It's choices that people make 
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in times of difficulty. Those are the people we call heroes. Like the 
grandmother here, maybe both grandmotliers, who stepped in a situation that 
w~s thrust upon them and stood up and did a very heroic thing for these 
children. 

The ripple affect (sic) of the defendant's actions are just amazin5. I 
mean, it's more than just Debbie's death and the horrible way she died. It s a 
horror, that she was gurgling in her own blood. There is no way to sugarcoat 
that. I don't care if it was 15 second (sic) of (sic) 15 minutes, it was a horror. 
And like her mother said on the stand or her aunt, probably the last thing she 
was thinking of was her children. What would she be thinldng. Who is going 
to take care of them. I'm not going the (sic) be there to take care of them. 1 
love them so much - the ripple effect. 

XVI ROA 3781-3782. 

There's nothing about this man that recommends to you mercy in this 
particular case. He had a mother that died at an early age. Are we prepared 
to immunize everybody from the death penalty that 1iad a mother that died at 
an early age or didn't know their father. maybe he had a father that wasn't 
nice to them, or say that's enough right there, not going to get the death 
penalty. 

Everybody has mothers. All mothers and father (sic) are different. All 
grandmothers, grandfathers are different. Some people have ups, some people 
have downs. And it's what you do with it, that makes all of the difference. 

But those things do not recommend and compel mercy. We have that 
phone off the hook. Debbie tried to crawl or get over to that area again, maybe 
after she set up the plan, she didn't get all the way outside the door. The 
mercy the defendant gave her, the Jury trial the defendant _gave her, the 
sentence the defendant gave her, ladies and gentlemen, this is Debbie Panos' 
parole ~Jigibility right liere, none. 

What about her family. What about her little children. Her daughter 
said she wanted to die so that she could be with her mother. The ripple affect 
(sic) in this, where is the parole for the rest of her family. They have no 

parole.Th , d . . D bb' . . . . Th ' . h ey can t go an v1s1t e 1e 1n an 1nstitution. ey can t give er 
presents that she could respond to. They can't have conversations with her. 
If you put the defendant in jail or (sic) tlie rest of his life, his family will still 
have tliose OQPOrtunities. We put the visitations (sic) logs in pertaining to this 
defendant. There's been just a few people that have come over the years to 
visit with him, but he has that access 1n the prison system. Where is that 
access for the family members that are left picking up the pieces of their lives. 

I don't care 1f it's ten minutes after the crime, ten years after the crime, 
the enormity of what he did is no different. Nothing has changed and we saw 
that as these peoRle where (sic) on the stand. We saw their anguish, even after 
all this time tlley re living with in Tucson. They keep her picture in the police 
department. 

Some of these people held up well. Some lost it right toward the end. 
It's amazing after this much time this woman's life still has this kind of affect 
on people. Made all the worse by the fact she was so violently taken from 
them. 

We're back to blame. We're back, hopefully, now to choice and 
accountabilicy, because that's what this is about. Choices the defendant made 
and you're liolding him accountable for those choices with the ultimate 
punishment here, and that is the death penalty. That is the penalty that is fair 
and appropriate. And anything else is selling short what he did. 
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It's time to put the blame where the defendant does not want to put it, 

to put it back on Mr. James Chappell and nobody else. And your verdict of the 
death penalty, will do that. And it will be a verdict that speaks to fairness in 
this case, and a verdict that speaks to equality under the law, and a verdict that 
speaks to being balanced with the totality of what he did in wrecking and 
destroying so many lives, and, yet, lives so different from his, these people 
~ave oeen able to stand up and do everything that he didn't do, and rise above 
It. 

XVI ROA 3786-87. 

The United States Supreme Court has concluded that a prosecutor may appropriately 

argue, and a jury may appropriately consider, "victim impact" evidence concerning the 
8 

victim's personal characteristics at a capital sentence hearing. Payne, 501 U.S. at 823. The 
9 

use of victim impact evidence in this case, however, far exceeded that authorized by Payne 
10 

11 
and Chappell is therefore entitled to a new penalty hearing. 

12 
In his closing arguments, the State repeatedly emphasized the comparative worth of 

the lives of the Panos and Chappell. The State consistently and systematically contrasted the 
13 

apparently virtuous and productive life of Panos with Chappell' s allegedly worthless 
14 

existence, and asked jurors to impose a death sentence on that basis. 
15 

16 
If the State had merely used victim impact evidence to illustrate the "victim's 

uniqueness as an individual human being," Payne, 501 U.S. at 823 (internal quotations 
17 

omitted), his actions would be beyond scrutiny. Likewise, the State could further have 
18 

independently challenged Chappell's character and criminal history, and there would be no 
19 

grounds for objection. The problem is that the State did not stop there. Instead, the State 
20 

21 
drew repeated comparisons between the value and worth of the victim's life and that of the 

defendant, an argument which was designed to secure a death sentence from the jury. The 
22 

way in which Panos led her life was repeatedly contrasted with the way Chappell had led his. 
23 

Likewise, the way in which Panos' s family and friends led their lives was also contrasted 
24 

with the way Chappell had led his. The State purposely contrasted the life of the victim with 
25 

the life of the defendant in order to exhort the jury to return a death sentence on the basis of 
26 

27 

28 

the latter's relative lack of worth. 
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1 Chappell is not challenging the fact that victim impact evidence has an important and 

2 legitimate place in capital sentencing proceedings. The United States Supreme Court in 

3 Payne v. Tennessee made it clear that "if the State chooses to permit the admission of victim 

4 impact evidence and prosecutorial argument on that subject, the Eighth Amendment erects 

5 no per se bar." Payne, 501 U.S. at 827. "A state may legitimately conclude that evidence 

6 about the victim and about the impact of the murder on the victim's family is relevant to the 

7 jury's decision as to whether or not the death penalty should be imposed." Id. Victim impact 

8 evidence, however, is limited in that it is supposed to allow the jury "a quick glimpse of the 

9 life" that a defendant "chose to extinguish"; it demonstrates the full impact of a crime, not 

10 only on the victim, but also on loved ones left behind. Id. at 822 (internal quotations 

11 omitted). While states plainly "remain free to devise new procedures and new remedies to 

12 meet felt needs," id. at 824-25, neither Payne nor any other Supreme Court case has held that 

13 victim impact evidence may be used without limit, constraint, or reference to the harm caused 

14 by the crime to those aggrieved. To the contrary, the Payne Court clearly limited the 

15 introduction and use of victim impact evidence by prohibiting victim impact evidence "that 

16 is so unduly prejudicial that it renders the trial fundamentally unfair." Id. at 825. 

17 Of particular importance to this case, the Supreme Court has disapproved of the use 

18 of victim impact evidence to make comparative human worth arguments. The Payne Court 

19 noted the concern "that the admission of victim impact evidence permits a jury to find that 

20 defendants whose victims were assets to their community are more deserving of punishment 

21 than those whose victims are perceived to be less worthy." Id. at 823. It concluded that "[a]s 

22 a general matter . . . victim impact evidence is not offered to encourage comparative 

23 judgments of this kind -- for instance, that the killer of a hardworking, devoted parent 

24 deserves the death penalty, but that the murderer of a reprobate does not." Id. at 823. It is 

25 designed to show instead each victim's "uniqueness as an individual human being," whatever 

26 the jury might think the loss to the community resulting from his death might be. Id. 

27 The Payne Court also set forth a framework for determining the legitimate and 

28 illegitimate uses of victim impact evidence. The Court found that "in the majority of cases 
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1 ... victim impact evidence serves entirely legitimate purposes." Id. at 825. But it also 

2 concluded that "in the event that evidence is introduced that is so unduly prejudicial that it 

3 renders the trial fundamentally unfair, the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment 

4 provides a mechanism for relief." Id. at 825. Victim impact evidence that emphasizes the 

5 harm a murder caused the victim, his family, and his loved ones is unquestionably legitimate. 

6 However, the comparative worth argument presented in this case, calling for a death sentence 

7 based on the relative value of Panos' s and Chappell' s lives, falls squarely within the category 

8 of prosecutorial conduct that may be so prejudicial that it renders a trial fundamentally unfair. 

9 Victim impact evidence must be used to further the traditional purposes of sentencing: 

10 that a sentence reflect such factors as the nature and severity of the crime, the criminal 

11 history of the defendant, the defendant's characteristics and history, and the consequences 

12 of the crime upon the unique lives of the victim and her family. To permit a sentence of 

13 death to be returned on the explicit and pointed comparative worth argument in this case 

14 pushes Payne so far that the major objective of victim impact evidence is lost, which is 

15 "informing the sentencing authority about the specific harm caused by the crime in question." 

16 Payne, 501 U.S. at 825. 

17 The comparison between Panos and Chappell that formed the focus of closing 

18 argument was intended to tell the jury that Panos' s life was put to good use, that Chappell' s 

19 was not, and that Chappell should be executed based upon their comparative worth or value. 

20 Arguments of comparative worth are not authorized by Payne and constituted prosecutorial 

21 misconduct. The comparative worth argument relied on here fell within the category of 

22 factors that the United States Supreme Court has prohibited as unduly prejudicial in the death 

23 penalty sentencing context. See Johnson v. Mississippi, 486 U.S. 578, 584-85 (1988) 

24 (quoting Zant, 462 U.S. at 885) (prohibiting death penalty decisions predicated on mere 

25 caprice or on factors that are constitutionally impermissible or totally irrelevant to the 

26 sentencing process). See also California v. Brown, 479 U.S. 538, 545(1987) (O'Connor, J., 

27 concurring). The argument here was not a permissible basis under the Due Process Clause 

28 on which to condemn Chappell to death. 
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1 In addition to violating the limits of Payne, the argument here also violated the 

2 Supreme Court's decision in Caldwell, 472 U.S. at 328-41. The law requires jurors to use 

3 a certain type of analysis in making their sentencing decision. By making a comparative 

4 value argument, the State encouraged jurors to use a different analysis. Urging jurors to 

5 misapply to the law infected the penalty phase hearing with arbitrariness in violation of the 

6 Eighth Amendment, in violation of Caldwell. 

7 The type of analysis required of a capital jury is well established and mandated by 

8 controlling authority by the United States Supreme Court as well as state statutes. Post-

9 Furman, the Supreme Court insists that state sentencing procedures not "create a substantial 

10 risk that the death penalty will be inflicted in an arbitrary and capricious manner." Lockett 

11 v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586,601 (1978). State sentencing schemes must provide a meaningful way 

12 to distinguish between "the cases in which [death] is imposed from the many cases in which 

13 it is not." Id. at 601 (citing Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 158 (1976)). In Nevada,jurors 

14 must determine unanimously and beyond a reasonable doubt whether aggravating 

15 circumstances exist, determine individually whether mitigating circumstances are present, 

16 and then determine unanimously and beyond a reasonable doubt that any mitigating 

1 7 circumstances do not outweigh the aggravating circumstances before a sentence of death may 

18 be considered. Johnson, 118 Nev. at 802-803, 59 P.3d 450; Archanian v. State, 145 P.3d 

19 1008, 1015 (Nev. 2006). Following that determination, jurors may consider "character" 

20 evidence or "other matter" evidence in determining the sentence to be imposed. Id. The 

21 State's comparative worth argument was contrary to this firmly established scheme in that 

22 it urged the jury to sentence Chappell to death for reasons contrary to this scheme. Instead 

23 of weighing aggravating and mitigating circumstances, the jurors were instead urged to 

24 weigh the value of Chappell' s life against the value of Panos' s life. Although such an 

25 argument could be made in the vast majority of murder cases, it does nothing to assist the 

26 jurors in determining if the defendant is one of the "worst of the worst," or one of the few 

27 first degree murderers who should receive the death penalty. Accordingly, no narrowing 

28 function is served by such an argument. See State v. Storey. 901 S.W.2d 886, 902 (Mo. 
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1 1995). The use of victim impact evidence in this manner taints the sentencing process with 

2 arbitrariness. See Hall v. Catoe, 601 S.E.2d 335, 340-41 (S.C. 2004); State v. Koskovich, 

3 776 A.2d 144, 182 (N.J. 2001) 

4 The comparative worth argument presented by the State also influenced the jurors to 

5 improperly use mitigation evidence. The law requires jurors to give consideration to 

6 mitigating evidence. McKoy v. North Carolina, 494 U.S. 433, 444 (1990); Mills v. 

7 Maryland, 486 U.S. 367, 375 (1988); Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586, 608 (1978). The 

8 arguments here minimized the importance of the mitigating evidence presented by Chappell 

9 and instead urged the jurors to find that Chappell should have risen above his circumstances 

10 and bettered his life, as had his victim Panos. Arguments which create the risk that jurors 

11 will misuse mitigation evidence violate Caldwell. 

12 Other courts recognize that arguments such as this are improper. See Hall, 601 S.E.2d 

13 at 341 (South Carolina court findsing that the prosecutor impermissibly compared the 

14 defendant's life to the victims' lives, the argument was emotionally inflammatory and 

15 directed the jurors to conduct an arbitrary balancing of worth, thus entitling the defendant to 

16 a new sentencing hearing); Koskovich, 776 A.2d at 182 (New Jersey court holds that the 

17 court's directive to jurors that they balance the victim's background against that of defendant 

18 was akin to asking the jury to compare the worth of each person, which is inherently 

19 prejudicial and might prompt jurors to impose the death penalty arbitrarily); State v. 

20 Muhammad, 678 A.2d 164, 179 (N.J. 1996) ("Victim impact testimony may not be used .. 

21 . as a means of weighing the worth of the defendant against the worth of the victim."); State 

22 v. Storey, 901 S.W.2d 886, 902 (Mo. 1995) (en bane) (finding ineffective assistance of 

23 counsel because of the failure to object to prosecutor's arguments: "Whose life is more 

24 important to you? Whose life has more value? The Defendant's or [the victim's]?"). See also 

25 State v. Gallion, 654 N.W.2d 446,454 (Wis. Ct. App. 2002) (expressing a concern for the 

26 use of comparative value arguments at jury sentencing proceedings as an unconstitutional use 

27 of victim impact evidence, although there is no death penalty in this jurisdiction). See also 

28 Note Tipping the Scales: Seeking Death Through Comparative Value Arguments, 63 Wash. 
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1 & Lee L. Rev. 379 (2006). 

2 The misconduct which occurred here was pervasive and constituted the theme of the 

3 prosecutor's closing argument. As a matter of plain error, this Court should reverse 

4 Chappell' s judgment based upon the extreme prejudice to the jury's deliberations caused by 

5 this patently improper argument. 

6 K. The State Committed Extensive Prosecutorial Misconduct 

7 The State violated Chappell' s state and federal constitutional rights a fair and reliable 

8 sentencing hearing, due process and right to be free from cruel and unusual punishment by 

9 committing prosecutorial misconduct throughout the closing arguments. U.S. Const. 

10 Amends. VI, VIII, XIV. Nev. Const. Art. I Secs. 3, 6, 8. 

11 In addition to the comparative worth arguments that are set forth above, the 

12 prosecutors committed additional misconduct which warrants reversal of Chappell's 

13 conviction. It is well established that misconduct by a prosecuting attorney during closing 

14 arguments may be grounds for reversal. See Berger v. U.S., 295 U.S. 78 91935). The 

15 prosecuting attorneys represent a sovereign whose obligation is to govern impartially and 

16 whose interest in a particular case is not necessarily to win, but to do justice. Berger, 295 

17 U.S. at 88. The prosecuting attorney may "prosecute with earnestness and vigor - indeed, 

18 he should do so. But, while he may strike hard blows, he is not at liberty to strike foul ones. 

19 It is as much his duty to refrain from improper methods calculated to produce a wrongful 

20 conviction as it is to use every legitimate means to bring about a just one." Id. A prosecutor 

21 should not use arguments to inflame the passions or prejudices of the jury. Viereck v. U.S., 

22 318 U.S. 236, 247-48 (1943). Although trial counsel did not object to this misconduct, this 

23 Court may consider this issue as a matter of plain error. U.S. v. Olano, 507 U.S. 725, 731 

24 (1993); U.S. v. Leon-Reyes, 177 F.3d 816,821 (9th Cir. 1999). 

25 

26 

Comment on Chappell's Ri2ht To Remain Silent 

The State introduced Chappell' s prior testimony, including a cross-examination by the 

27 State that constituted commentary on Chappell's right to remain silent.: 

28 Q You've had a substantial period of time to think about today, haven't you? 
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A 

Q 

- -
Yes, sir. 

You've known for quite awhile, haven't you, that at some point you would 
take the witness stand and give the jury your version of what happened? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Once you had made that decision, whenever it was, you've given a lot of 
attention to what you would tell the jury? 

I didn't make up anything, sir. 

I didn't say you made up anything, Mr. Chappell. Have you thought a lot 
about what you would te11 the jury'? 

No. 

Have you thought a lot about how you would act on the witness stand? 

No, sir. 

XV ROA 3654. Chappell's counsel argued that this was a comment on his right to remain 
12 

silent but the district court rejected the argument after noting that the claim was found to be 
13 

without merit in post-conviction proceedings. XV ROA 3632-33. The district court's 
14 

reliance upon these ruling was misplaced as the post-conviction rulings do not support this 
15 

conclusion. In its post-conviction ruling, the district court concluded that issues concerning 
16 

the guilt phase of the trial were without merit because of overwhelming evidence of guilt. 
17 

XI ROA 2746. The court did not rule on the merits of this issue. On appeal from the district 
18 

court's order granting in part and denying in part Chappell's post-conviction petition, this 
19 

Court noted "that overwhelming evidence supported Chappell' s conviction and that any 
20 

errors in ... the prosecutor's remarks were harmless beyond a reasonable doubt, whether 
21 

Chappell's trial counsel objected to them or not." XI ROA 2790. 
22 

23 
The use for impeachment purposes of a defendant's silence at the time of arrest and 

after receiving Miranda warnings violates the Due Process Clause of the F ourteenthAmendment. 
24 

Doyle v. Ohio, 426 U.S. 610 (1976). Likewise, this Court has found that the State may not 
25 

comment on a defendant's silence, even if no Miranda warnings are given. Coleman v. State, 
26 

111 Nev. 657, 662-63, 895 P.2d 653, 657 (1995). The prosecutor here committed 
27 

misconduct by introducing testimony which violated Chappell' s constitutional rights. 
28 
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Misstating Role of Mitigating Circumstances 

The prosecutor committed misconduct by misstating the role of mitigating 

3 circumstances, commenting on matters th at were not in evidence, and improperly minmizing 

4 the mitigating evidence that was presented: 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

People aren't perfect. Systems aren't perfect. But it's time, ladies and 
gentlemen, for the blame to stop and for there to be accountability. Yes, the 
defendant had difficulties in his early life. But they're not uncommon things. 
A lot of people grow up humbly. A lot of people grow up without a mother or 
a father or some other parent. There's grandparents raising kids all over the 
place these days. 

One commentator once said, pain is inevitable, but suffering is optional. 
We come back to the individuals we got in this case. In light of a11 these 
circumstances, yes, pain is inevitable. Everybody is going to have pain. 
Everybody is going to have difficulty. But how do we address that. Do we go 
around blaming everybody else and doing whatever we selfishly want to do, 
or do we rise above 1t. Because it's possible to become a better person, as a 
consequence of pain, not just get tlirough it. Everybody knows that. We 
know that. 

XVI ROA 3781. 

It's probably a certain prejudice that we all sort of internalize to some degree 
the idea that a murder oetween two people who knew each other isn't that bad. 
It's not as bad or scary as a stranger murder. Because if a stranger had climbed 
through Debbie Panos' window, raped her, had beat her up, stabbed her to 
death and then stole her car, there wouldn't by (sic) a whole lot of commentary 
about marijuana houses on the street he grew up on. There wouldn't be a 
whole lot of commentary about, well, maybe slie liked him, or maybe she 
wanted him back. Wouldn't we discussing that at all. We'd be discussing the 
violence of the act of that day. And that's what this case it about. 

XVI ROA 3797. 

Now certainly the fact that he had this troubled up-bringing and he was 
in an environment that apparently a lot of people were doing drugs than (sic), 
would make his life more difficult. But 1t doesn't mean tliat he didn't have 
chance, after chance, after chance to address the very drug problems that the 
defense now asks you to give him some credit for. 

It doesn't erase what he did. It's just part of his background. And most 
of us have a background that is less than iaeal. Most of us have had parents 
or were raised be (sic) people who didn't do a perfect job. But it ooesn't 
diminish what we do as adu1ts. It doesn't take away his actions. 

XVI ROA 3799. 

These arguments constituted misconduct. See Berger, 295 U.S. at 88 ( describing the 

role of prosecutors as unique because they are "representative not of an ordinary party to a 
27 

controversy, but a sovereignty whose obligation to govern impartially is as compelling as its 
28 
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1 obligation to govern at all" and a prosecutor is a "servant of the law" meaning prosecutors 

2 must "refrain from improper methods calculated to produce wrongful conviction"); U.S. v. 

3 Agurs, 427 U.S. 97, 110-11 (1976) (directing prosecutors to serve the "overriding interest" 

4 of justice before consideration of its secondary interest - vigorous prosecution); Caldwell, 

5 472 U.S. at 328-41 (holding that the Eighth Amendment protects defendants from 

6 prosecutorial arguments that misinform juries on their roles in sentencing phase of capital 

7 trials); Darden v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 168, 168 (1986) (noting protections given to 

8 defendants by the Due Process Clause's fair trial standards). 

9 Defendants have a constitutional right to the presentation and consideration by the jury 

10 of any facts that may mitigate the jury's finding that death is the appropriate punishment. 

11 Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586, 604 (1978). A Caldwell violation is established if the 

12 prosecutor argues in such a manner as to "foreclose the jury's consideration of ... mitigating 

13 evidence" because the jurors are misled on their duty to consider this evidence. Depew v. 

14 Anderson, 311 F.3d 742, 749 (6th Cir. 2002); Buchanan v. Angelone, 522 U.S. 269, 277 

15 (1998) (holding that a prosecutor's argument that undercut the defendant's mitigation case 

16 so significantly, and at times inaccurately, foreclosed the jury's consideration of mitigating 

17 evidence, thereby altering the jury's role assigned to it in violation of the Eighth 

18 Amendment). In addition to the Eighth Amendment Caldwell violation, the arguments here 

19 also violated Chappell's Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment rights. See Antwine v. Delo, 54 

20 F.3d 1357, 1371 (8th Cir. 1995); Darden, 477 U.S. at 181. 

21 

22 

"Don't Let The Defendant Fool You" Arguments 

Additional misconduct was committed as the prosecutors argued that the jurors would 

23 be conned by Chappell, and they would be taking the easy way out, if they imposed a 

24 sentence less than death 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Don't be coned. (sic) It's interesting, Dr. Etcoff in the beginning of his 
testimony said, you know, the defendant, he's just not sophisticated enough to 
lie. I would know that. Then we heard on cross-examination all of these 
things the defendant flat out liked to him about, that the doctor didn't know. 
An<fhere's a Ph.D. person who just got totally coned (sic) by the defendant, 
and he coned (sic) the system, and fie coned (sic) the system, and he coned 
(sic) Mr. Duffy, sat across from him for two hours saying he really wanted to 
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6 

7 

do something about that drug_problem enough that Duffy let him go, and he 
went straight out over to kill Debbie. 

He would like to see you coned (sic) in this case, ladies and gentlemen. 
Don't be coned. (sic) Don't sell it short. Please, don't go for the lesser things 
because it's easier. Do the right thing, even though it's the harder thing, and 
that would be an imposition of the death penalty. Because ladies and 
gentlemen, the evidence in this case indicates this is the appropriate penalty in 
tbis case. It is the only appropriate penalty in this case. 

XVI ROA 3786-87. 

And it wasn't just Dr. Duffy that got snowed by the defendant. Dr. 
Etcoff was snowed just as well .... 

8 XVIROA3801. 

9 Arguments that Chappell "conned" others constituted misconduct. See Cristy v. Hom, 

10 28 F.Supp.2d 307, 318-19 (W.D. Pa. 1998) (holding that an argument that labeled the 

11 defendant as "the Great Manipulator," to whom prison was just a "revolving door," only 

12 served to inflame the jurors). See also U.S. v. Gonzalez, 488 F.2d 833,836 (2d Cir. 1973) 

13 ( condemning remarks such as "you have to be born yesterday" to believe appellant's defense, 

14 and the defense is "an insult to your intelligence,"); U.S. v. Drummond, 481 F.2d 62, 64 (2d 

15 Cir. 1973) (condemning remarks such as the defendant's "testimony is so riddled with lies 

16 it insults the intelligence of 14 intelligent people sitting on the jury"). Inflammatory 

17 arguments of this type misdirect the focus of jurors away from the facts and the Jaw. Miller 

18 v. Lockhart, 65 F.3d 676,684 (8th Cir. 1995); Tucker v. Zant,724 F.2d 882, 889 (11th Cir. 

19 1984) (Due Process Clause does not tolerate misleading arguments). This argument was also 

20 improper and prejudicial because it was directed at the jurors and put them in the untenable . 

21 positionof"them"againstChappell. Peoplev.Payne, 187 A.D.2d245,248(N.Y.App.Div. 

22 1993) (improper to suggest that defendant was trying to "sucker us," because the "message 

23 was that although the defendant has rights, those rights must be carefully measured because 

24 it is 'us' against him."). 

25 

26 

27 mercy: 

28 

Justice and Mercy Arguments 

The prosecutor committed misconduct in arguing that the jury should not consider 
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18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

-
But you can make some corrections now. We can't bring Debbie back, but we 
can see that justice is done. We're going to talk about justice in a few minutes. 

XVI ROA 3780. 

So the question for you as jurors is not really do you have it in 
yourselves, or are you a merciful person because as jurors you are serving a 
oifferent role in this case. You don't just owe James Chappell the 
consideration of mercy, you owe the victims and the State of Nevada a just 
sentence as well. It's probably tempting in this case to g_ive life without, that 
seems like a realistic sentence. You probably would Teel like you are not 
giving him any breaks at all with a life without sentence. 

But you need to ask yourself, is that truly justice fo what he did over the 
years. What punishment reflects what he did to Debbie Panos., not just that 
clay, but over time. What punishment reflects how he degraded ner by calling 
her bitch and slut. What punishment compensates for breaking her nose. She 
had to go to work with tliat object on her nose after it was broken and tell her 
friends what happened. He humiliated her. What punishment compensates her 
for holding a knife to her in her own home so he could get information because 
he thought she was gone too long that day. 

This from the person who spent his days taking her money and g9_ing 
and getting high for tlie day. What punishment accounts for all of that. What 
punishment is justified for taking the life of a 26-year-old young woman, a 
mother of three. Or how about what punishment accounts for Norma 
Penfield's loss the (sic) day. She lost her daughter. James Chappell brutally 
murdered her only child that day. What compensates her. 

Has that changed for her over ten years. Does she still bear that loss, 
that burden ten years later. I mean, really the reality is it was easy for him after 
he got arrested on September 1st, '95. It was all done for him at that point. He 
didn't have to deal with the aftermath of the devastation he caused. He didn't 
have to look two little boys in the face and tell then (sic) their mother wasn't 
coming back. He didn't have to listen to an eight-year-old boy ask for sleeping 
pills. lie didn't have to listen to any of that. He didn't have to listen to a four­
year-old girl talk about -- asking her grandmother to sing like mom did. he 
oidn't have to see any of his children's faces when they wanted their mother 
over the years when the missed her. He didn't have to arrange, at all, for 
Debbie Panos; (sic) body to be transported to Michigan. He was spared all of 
that. Those pieces were picked up 6y Norma Penfield. 

He got to sit and worry about himself and formulate the best sp_in on 
events, the best version. And that's all he has ever done his whole life. He got 
to tell the doctors about his problems and his troubled childhood. It's so 
typical of how he spent his whole life. 

He sells those children's coats and shoes, and Debbie works three jobs 
so they can buy more. He beat Debbie in Tucson and she decides to move to 
Las Vegas so they can get a fresh start. He treats Debbie badly, and she tells 
her own mother, well, his grandmother wasn't nice to him, she threw him out. 
But the problem is what he did on that day, on August 31st, is so treacherous 
and so selfish and so evil there's truly no fixing what he did. 

XVI ROA 3802. 

We've all said and you all know at this point that the punishment should 
fit the crime. And when you consider the decade of torment that he inflicted 
on this woman, the loss tliat he imposed on three young children, the loss that 
he imposed on her mother, and liis attitude after the fact, there's only one 
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1 punishment and that's the death penalty. 

2 XVI ROA 3802. 

3 It was misconduct for the prosecutor to argue that mercy for Chappell was not an 

4 appropriate consideration. Presnell v. Zant, 959 F.2d 1524, 1529-31 (11th Cir. 1992); 

5 Peterkin v. Hom, 176 F.Supp.2d 342, 372-73 (E.D. Pa. 2001); Lesko v. Lehman, 925 F.2d 

6 1527, 1545-46 (3d Cir. 1991) (holding unconstitutional an argument that urged jurors to 

7 settle the score between the defendant and the victims). This Court has also condemned 

8 arguments of this type. Thomas v. State, 83 P.3d 818, 826 (Nev. 2004) (finding a 

9 prosecutor's argument was improper because it informed jurors that the "defendant is 

10 deserving of the same sympathy and compassion and mercy that he extended to [the 

11 victims]."). It was also misconduct to argue that the only manner to achieve justice for Panos 

12 and her family was to impose a sentence of death against Chappell. These arguments acted 

13 to inflame the emotions and passions of the jury. Young, 470 U.S. at 9 n.7 (citing ABA 

14 Standards of Criminal Justice 4-7.8); see also ABA Standards for Criminal Justice 3-5.8 

15 ("The prosecutor should not make arguments calculated to appeal to the prejudices of the 

16 jury); Floyg, 118 Nev. at 173, 42 P.3d at 261 ("any inclination to inject personal beliefs into 

17 arguments or to inflame the passions of the jury must be avoided. Such arguments clearly 

18 exceed the boundaries of proper prosecutorial conduct."). The prosecutor's comments here 

19 did nothing to aid the jury in determining whether the death penalty was an appropriate 

20 sentence under NRS 200.035, but instead urged the jurors to return a sentence of death as 

21 vindication, which was based upon the inflamed passions of the jury. 

22 Based upon each of these incidents of misconduct, as well as the cumulative impact 

23 of the misconduct, Chappell's sentence of death should be reversed. 

24 L. 

25 

26 

The District Court Failed To Instruct The Jury That The State Was Required 
To Establish · Beyond On Beyond a Reasonable Doubt That Mitigating 
Circumstances Did Not Outweigh Aggravating Circumstances 

Chappell's death sentence is invalid under the reliability guarantees of the Eighth 

27 Amendment, the federal due process clause, under Blakely v. Washington, 542 U.S. 296 

28 (2004), and under the Nevada constitution because the jury was not instructed that it was 
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1 required to find that aggravating circumstances must outweigh mitigating circumstances 

2 beyond a reasonable doubt. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, Secs. 

3 3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

4 The United States Supreme Court held in Blakely that any fact not found in the guilt 

5 phase jury instructions which operates to increase the penalty imposed above the statutory 

6 maximum must be submitted to the jury and proven beyond a reasonable doubt. Blakely. 542 

7 U.S. at 301-02. The factors necessary to support eligibility for the death penalty in Nevada, 

8 in addition to the conviction on all the elements of first degree murder, as (1) the existence 

9 of one or more aggravating factors, and (2) that the aggravating factors are not outweighed 

10 by the mitigation. NRS 200.030( 4 ); Johnson, 118 Nev. at 802-803, 59 P .3d 450; Archanian, 

11 145 P .3d at 1015. Those factors must be proved to and found by a jury beyond a reasonable 

12 doubt. Chappell' s jury was instructed that aggravating factors must be proved beyond a 

13 reasonable doubt: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

Instruction No. 6: 

The State has alleged that one aggravating circumstance is present in 
this case. 

The Defendant has alleged certain mitigating circusmtances are present 
in this case. It shall be your duty to determine: 

(a) whether the aggravating circumstance is found to exist; and 
(b) whether a mitigating circumstance or circumstances are found 

to exist; and 
( c) based upon these findings, whether the Defendant should be 

sentenced to a definite term of 100 years imprisonment, life 
imprisonment with or without the possibility of parole or death. 

The jury may consider a sentence of aeath only if (1) the jurors 
unanimously find at least one aggravating circumstance has been established 
beyond a reasonable doubt and Cl) the jurors unanimously find that there are 
no mitigating circumstances sufficient to outweigli the aggravating 
circumstance or circumstances found. 

A mitigating circumstance itself need no be agreed to unanimously; that 
is, any one juror can find a mitigating circumstance without the agreement of 
any other juror or jurors. The entire jury must agree unanimously, however, 
a~ to wliether the aggravating circumstances outweigh the mitigating 
circumstances. 

Otherwise, the punishment imposed shall be imprisonment in the State 
Prison for a definite term of 100 years imprisonment, with eligibilicy for parole 
beginning when a minimum of 40 years lias been served or life witli or without 
the possibility of parole. 

XV ROA 3747. The jury was not instructed, however, that it had to find that aggravation 
28 
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1 was not outweighed by mitigation beyond a reasonable doubt, or by any standard at all, in 

2 order to find Chappell eligible to receive the death penalty. Id. The law is now clear, 

3 however, that every fact necessary to imposition of an increased punishment must be proved 

4 to and found by a jury beyond a reasonable doubt. Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584,589,609 

5 (2002); Apprendi v. New Jersey. 530 U.S. 466,483 (2000); Johnson, 118 Nev. at 802-803. 

6 Other states are in accord. Whitfield v. State, 107 S.W.2d 253, 259 (Mo. 2003); Woldt v. 

7 People, 64 P.3d 256,265 (Colo. 2003). See also B. Stevenson, The Ultimate Authority on 

8 the Ultimate Punishment: The Requisite Role of the Jury in Capital Sentencing, 54 Ala. L. 

9 Rev. 1091, 1126-27, 1129 n.214 (2003). 

10 Chappell' s sentence must therefore be reversed, because an error with respect to the 

11 burden of proof is structural, which results in reversal without any attempt to analyze 

12 prejudice. Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S. 275, 281-282 (1993). In the alternative, Chappell 

13 was prejudiced by the instruction as the jury found seven mitigating circumstances, only one 

14 aggravating circumstance, and the State cannot establish beyond a reasonable doubt that the 

15 jury would have returned a death sentenced had it been properly instructed. 

16 M. 

17 

18 

The Jury's Failure to Find Miti&atin& Circumstances Was Clearly Erroneous 
and Requires That the Death Sentence Be Vacated 

The jury failed to find mitigating factors that were clearly established and uncontested. 

The jury's failure to find these mitigating circumstances was clearly erroneous and resulted 
19 

20 

21 

22 

in an unreliable sentence that must be vacated U.S. Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII, XN; Nev. 

Const. Art. I, Secs. 3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21. 

As noted above, one or more of the jurors found seven mitigating circumstances: 

Chappell suffered from substance abuse; he had no father figure in his life; he was raised in 
23 

an abusive household; he was the victim of physical abuse as a child; he was born to a 
24 

drug/alcohol addicted mother; he suffered from a learning disability; he was raised in a 
25 

depressed housing area. XV ROA 3739-40, 3822-23. The jury did not find the mitigating 
26 

circumstance that Chappell's mother was killed when he was very young, that he was the 
27 

victim of mental abuse as a child, and other mitigating circumstances that were asserted to 
28 
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1 exist by Chappell's counsel. XV ROA 3755. 

2 As set forth above, the evidence at the penalty phase trial was uncontested as to these 

3 mitigating circumstances. This evidence was clear, credible and uncontroverted. The jury's 

4 failure to find the existence of this mitigating factor was thus clearly erroneous and renders 

5 the death sentence unreliable. 

6 The United States Supreme Court has repeatedly recognized that evidence that a 

7 defendant suffered a difficult, abusive childhood and adolescence has significant mitigating 

8 value that must be considered by the trier of fact in determining whether a sentence of death 

9 is the appropriate punishment. Thus, in Eddings v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104 (1982), the 

10 Court reversed a death sentence where the trial judge refused as a matter of law to consider 

11 evidence of the defendant's troubled childhood. The Court declared: "Just as the State may 

12 not by statute preclude the sentencer from considering any mitigating factor, neither may the 

13 sentencer refuse to consider, as a matter of law, any relevant mitigating evidence .... The 

14 sentencer ... may determine the weight to be given relevant mitigating evidence. But they 

15 may not give it no weight by excluding such evidence from their consideration." Id. at 113-

16 14. The Eddings Court also expressly recognized that evidence of a defendant's turbulent 

17 childhood has mitigating weight that may not be ignored by the sentencer. lg. at 115 ( citation 

18 omitted). Similarly, in Parker v. Dugger, 498 U.S. 308 (1991), the Court reversed a death 

19 sentence on the grounds that the state supreme court had erred in concluding that the trial 

20 judge, in overriding the jury's recommendation of life, had failed to find nonstatutory 

21 mitigation. In that case, the defendant had presented the testimony of numerous witnesses 

22 indicating, inter alia, "a difficult childhood, including an abusive, alcoholic father .... " Id. at 

23 314. One factor supporting the Court's conclusion that the sentencing judge must have 

24 considered this nonstatutory mitigation was the fact that "substantial evidence, much of it 

25 uncontroverted, favoring mitigation" had been presented. Id. at 318. See also Hitchcock v. 

26 Dugger, 481 U.S. 393 (1987) (reversing death sentence where advisory jury and sentencing 

27 judge did not consider nonstatutory mitigating evidence); cf. Penr_y v. Lynaugh, 4 92 U.S. 3 02 

28 ( 19 89) ( reversing sentence on grounds that Texas special issues unconstitutionally precluded 
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1 jury from full consideration of evidence of childhood abuse and mental retardation). See also 

2 Smith v. McCormick, 914 F.2d 1153, 1168 (9th Cir. 1990). 

3 Several courts have recognized that a sentencer's failure to find mitigating 

4 circumstances that are plainly supported by the evidence is reversible error. Thus, in Nibert 

5 v. State, 574 So.2d 1059, 1062 (Fla. 1990), the Florida Supreme Court reversed a death 

6 sentence and remanded for imposition of a life sentence where the trial judge erroneously 

7 rejected mitigating evidence the reviewing court concluded demonstrated that the death 

8 sentence was disproportionate, observing: 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

Where uncontroverted evidence of a mitigating circumstance has been 
presented, a reasonable quantum of competent proof is required before the 
circumstance can be saicf to have been established. [citation omitted] Thus, 
when a reasonable quantum of evidence of a mitigating circumstance is 
presented, the trial court must find that the mitigating circumstance has been 
proved. 

Similarly, in Evans v. State, 598 N.E.2d 516,519 (Ind. 1992), the Indiana Supreme Court set 

aside a death sentence and remanded for the imposition of a life sentence on the grounds that 
14 

the trial court erroneously rejected several nonstatutory mitigating factors. The court 
15 

observed that the sentencer's rejection of uncontroverted mitigating evidence of parental 
16 

neglect, abnormal behavior, psychiatric disorder and of the defendant's immediate surrender 
17 

to authorities demonstrated that "the trial court's conclusion that the death penalty is 
18 

appropriate was arrived at without the required discrete and individualized consideration of 
19 

the character of the offender." Id. See also Magwood v. Smith, 791 F.2d 1438, 1449-50 
20 

21 
(11th Cir. 19 86) (habeas relief granted on grounds that the trial judge's rejection of mitigating 

circumstances was not fairly supported by the record); Gray v. Lucas, 710 F .2d 1048, 105 5 
22 

n. 5 ( 5th Cir. 1983) ( observing that had evidence of defendant's mental illness been presented 
23 

at the penalty phase, he "would most probably now be entitled to a peremptory instruction 
24 

to consider a mitigating circumstance that his capacity to conform his conduct to the 
25 

requirements of law was substantially impaired .... "); State v. Kirkley, 302 S.E.2d 144, 158 
26 

(N.C. 1983) ("when a mitigating factor is uncontroverted the trial judge must give a 
27 

peremptory instruction to the jury on that circumstance. The effect of this type of instruction 
28 
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1 is to remove the question of whether the mitigating circumstance exists from the jury's 

2 determination and to conclusively establish the existence of that factor."); Sanders v. State, 

3 585 A.2d 117, 134 (Del. 1990) (requiring jury instruction that a finding of "guilty but 

4 mentally ill" mitigates as a matter of law). 

5 Just as a jury's consideration of an improper aggravating factor skews its weighing 

6 process in assessing punishment and renders the sentence unreliable under the Eighth 

7 Amendment, see Stringer v. Black, 503 U.S. 222, 232 (1992), the erroneous failure to find 

8 and weigh relevant mitigation that is supported by the evidence infects the formal process 

9 of deciding whether death is the appropriate punishment. 

10 The failure of the jury to find clearly applicable mitigators mandates one of two 

11 findings: either (1) the jurors did not understand the jury instructions defining mitigating 

12 circumstances; or (2) the jurors did understand the instructions, but they elected to disregard 

13 the instructions and the law defining mitigation. In either event, Chappell was deprived of 

14 his rights to due process, equal protection, a reliable sentence, and right to be free from cruel 

15 and unusual punishment. 

16 N. 

17 

There Is Insufficient Evidence To Support The Sexual Assault Ai:&ravator 

The State alleged, and the jury found, the aggravating circumstance of murder 

18 committed in the perpetration of a sexual assault. There was insufficient evidence, however, 

19 to support the existence of this aggravating circumstance. Accordingly, Chappell's 

20 conviction is unconstitutional. U.S. Const. Amends. V, VI, VIII, XIV; Nev. Const. Art. I, 

21 Secs. 3, 6, 8; Art. IV, Sec. 21; In re Winship. 397 U.S. 358, 361-63 (1970). 

22 This Court holds that the prosecution has the burden of proving both "act and intent 

23 beyond a reasonable doubt and that the prosecution must establish proof of every element of 

24 the crime beyond a reasonable doubt." Chambers v. State, 113 Nev. 974,983,944 P.2d 805 

25 (1997). The same reasoning applies to aggravating circumstances. 

26 

27 

28 

NRS 200.366(1) defines sexual assault as: 

A person who subjects another ferson to sexual penetration, or who forces 
another person to make a sexua penetration on liimself or another, or on a 
beast, against the will of the victim or under conditions in which the 

75 



AA04099

1 

2 

-
perpetrator knows or should know that the victim is mentally or physicallr 
incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his conduct, is guilty of 
sexual assault. 

3 In order to find the sexual assault aggravator, the State must prove beyond a reasonable 

4 doubt: ( 1) forced sexual penetration (2) upon another person (3) against the will of the victim 

5 ( 4) or that the victim is physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his 

6 conduct. Consent is recognized as a defense to a claim of sexual assault as it negates the 

7 necessary elements of the offense. See Hardaway v. State, 112 Nev. 1208, 1211, 926 P.2d 

8 288,290(1996). 

9 Here, the State not only failed to prove any of the elements of a sexual assault, the 

10 State did not even charge Chappell with a sexual assault as an offense. The evidence 

11 presented during the second penalty hearing failed to establish, beyond a reasonable doubt, 

12 that Chappell sexually assaulted Panos. Moreover, the evidence failed to establish, beyond 

13 a reasonable doubt, that Panos was killed during the course of the alleged sexual assault. 

14 Chappell' s testimony from the first trial, which was presented by the State during the 

15 second penalty hearing, was that he had consensual intercourse with Panos prior to the 

16 circumstances that led to her death. VI ROA 1398-1400. Evidence presented during the 

17 penalty phase was consistent with his testimony. Both the coroner and the defense expert 

18 acknowledged that although Chappell' s DNA was found in Panos' s vagina, there was no 

19 evidence of bruising or other trauma to her vaginal area. IV App. 962-1003. Panos was fully 

20 clothed when her body was found and the stab wounds were inflicted while she was fully 

21 clothed. IV App. 996, I 024. Although evidence was presented that Chappell and Panos had 

22 difficulties in their relationship, the evidence also revealed that they had been together for 

23 nearly 10 years and they had reconciled numerous times following previous disputes during 

24 that 10 year period. VI ROA 1357, 1367, 1376-78, 1390. The evidence also revealed that 

25 Panos was aware that Chappell had been released from custody prior to the time that she 

26 returned to her trailer and that she went to her trailer alone rather than taking her friend with 

27 her. XIII ROA 3131-33. Under these circumstances, the State failed to establish beyond a 

28 reasonable doubt that Panos did not consent to sexual intercourse with Chappell. Likewise, 
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1 the State failed to establish a nexus between the sexual assault and the killing. The record 

2 was uncontested as to the fact that Panos was fully dressed at the time she was stabbed. Even 

3 under the State's theory, the sexual assault occurred well before the stabbings and did not 

4 occur during the perpetration of the sexual assault. 

5 As there is insufficient evidence to support the sole aggravating circumstance of 

6 murder in the perpetration of a sexual assault, Chappell's conviction must be vacated. 

7 0. The Sexual Assault Aggravating Circumstance Is Invalid Under McConnell v. 
State 

8 

9 
Chappell's constitutional rights to a reliable sentence and to free from cruel and 

unusual punishment were violated by application of the sexual assault aggravating 
10 

circumstance under the circumstances presented here. U.S. Const. amend. V, VIII, XIV; 
11 

Nevada Const. art. I, Sec. 3, 6 and 8; art. IV, Sec. 21. 
12 

13 
As noted above, Chappell was charged with first degree murder under theories of 

premeditated and deliberate murder and felony murder. I ROA 38. The felony murder claim 
14 

was based upon underlying felony offenses of robbery and burglary. I ROA 39. When the 
15 

State filed its notice of its intention to seek the death penalty it included aggravating 
16 

circumstances of robbery, burglary and sexual assault. I ROA 44. The original jury 
17 

convicted Chappell of first degree murder but did not provide a special verdict form 
18 

indicating the theory or theories upon which it based its verdict. VII ROA 1747-49. The 
19 

original jury also found the existence of all three aggravating circumstances. IX ROA 2127-
20 

29. In post-conviction proceedings, however, this Court found the robbery and burglary 
21 

aggravating circumstances to be invalid under McConnell v. State, 120 Nev. 1043, 102 P.3d 
22 

606 (2004), reh'g denied, 107 P.3d 1287 (2005). Thus, upon remand for a new penalty 
23 

hearing, the State was limited to the sexual assault aggravating circumstance. Prior to trial, 
24 

Chappell' s counsel argued that this aggravating circumstance was invalid and they sought 
25 

its dismissal. XII ROA 2801. The district court rejected the argument and ultimately the jury 
26 

returned a death sentence based upon this sole aggravating circumstance. XV ROA 3 73 7. 
27 

28 
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1 The sexual assault aggravating circumstance is invalid under McConnell because it 

2 fails to narrow application of the death penalty in these circumstances, and because it permits 

3 the State to divide felony murder aggravating circumstances in that it allowed two to be used 

4 for the basis of felony murder and one to be used as an aggravating circumstance. 

5 "The Eighth Amendment prohibits the infliction of cruel and unusual punishments." 

6 McConnell, 120 Nev. at 1063, 102 P.3d at 620 (citing U.S. Const. amend VIII). "In 1972, 

7 the Supreme Court held that capital sentencing schemes which do not adequately guide the 

8 sentencers' discretion and thus permit arbitrary and capricious imposition of the death 

9 penalty violate the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments." Id. (citing Gregg v. Georgia, 428 

10 U.S. 153 (1976) summarizing Furman, 408 U.S. 238). "As a result, the Court has held that 

11 to be constitutional a capital sentencing scheme 'must genuinely narrow the class of persons 

12 eligible for the death penalty and must reasonably justify the imposition of a more severe 

13 sentence on the defendant compared to others found guilty ofmurder.'"ld. at 1063, 102 P.3d 

14 at621-22 (quoting Zant, 462 U.S. at 877). This Court has also concluded that Nevada's own 

15 constitution bans against the infliction of "cruel and unusual punishments" and the 

16 deprivation of life" without due process of law" require this same narrowing process." Id. 

17 (citing Nev. Const. art. 1 §§ 6, 8(5)). 

18 "Nevada's current definition of felony murder is broader than the definition in 1972 

19 when Furman v. Georgia [408 U.S. 238] temporarily ended executions in the United States." 

20 McConnell, 120 Nev. at 1066, 102 P.3d at 622. "So it is clear that Nevada's definition of 

21 felony murder does not afford constitutional narrowing." Id. "As Professor Richard Rosen 

22 points out: "At a bare minimum, then, a narrowing device must identify a more restrictive 

23 and culpable class of first degree murder defendants than the pre-Furman capital homicide 

24 case. Id. ( citing Richard A. Rosen, Felony Murder and the Eighth Amendment Jurisprudence 

25 of Death, 31 B.C.L. Rev. 1103, 1124 (1990)). 

26 Under the facts of this case, the original jury may have found Chappell guilty under 

27 a theory of felony murder and the sole aggravating circumstance found by the jury in the 

28 second penalty hearing is also a felony murder aggravating circumstance. Thus, Chappell 
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